REGULAR MEETING OF THE FLORIN RESOURCE
CONSERVATION DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Agenda
Tuesday, June 15, 2021

6:00 PM

Compliance with Government Code Section 54957.5

Public records, including writings related to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the
Florin Resources Conservation District that are distributed less than 72 hours before the meeting, are
available by email request at this time. In addition, such writings may be posted, whenever possible, on the
Elk Grove Water District website at www.egwd.org.

The Board will discuss all items on the agenda and may take action on any item listed as an “Action” item.
The Board may discuss items that do not appear on the agenda, but will not act on those items unless there
is a need to take immediate action and the Board determines by a two-thirds (2/3) vote that the need for
action arose after posting of the agenda.

If necessary, the Meeting will be adjourned to Closed Session to discuss items on the agenda listed under
“Closed Session.” At the conclusion of the Closed Session, the meeting will reconvene to “Open Session.”

Pursuant to the Sacramento County Shelter in Place order effective March 19, 2020, we are
requiring all members of the public to participate virtually. Public participation and comment are
limited to the following procedures:

A. The electronic submission of written comments in advance to the Board Secretary
(stefani@egwd.org). Those comments will be read into the record for a maximum of three (3)
minutes per comment.

B. Join Zoom Meeting: https://zoom.us/j/84731009617 Meeting ID: 847 3100 9617

Dial by your location

+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) +1 929 205 6099 US (New York)
+1 253 215 8782 US +1 301 715 8592 US

C. Please press Star+9 (*9) to raise your hand for Public Comment — Members of the audience may
comment on matters that are not included on the agenda. Each person will be allowed three (3)
minutes, or less if a large number of requests are received on a particular subject. No action may
be taken on a matter raised under "Public Comment" until the matter has been specifically
included on an agenda as an action item. Items listed on the agenda will be opened for public
comment as they are considered by the Board of Directors.

CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Public Comment

1. Proclamations and Announcements

Associate Director Comment

Public Comment



Page Numbers

2. Consent Calendar 5-6
(Stefani Phillips, Board Secretary and Patrick Lee, Treasurer)
a. Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of May 18, 2021 7-10
b. Minutes of Special Board Meeting of June 1, 2021 11-12
c. Accounts Payable Check History — May 2021 13-16
d. Board and Employee Expense/Reimbursements — May 2021 17
e. Active Accounts — May 2021 18
f. Bond Covenant Status for FY 2020-21 — May 2021 19
g. Year to Date Revenues and Expenses Compared to Budget — May 2021 20
h. CASH - Detail Schedule of Investments— May 2021 21
i. Consultants Expenses — May 2021 22
J. Major Capital Improvement Projects — May 2021 23

Associate Director Comment
Public Comment

Recommended Action: Approve Florin Resource Conservation District
Consent Calendar items a —j.

3. Public Hearing - 2020 Urban Water Management Plan 24-145
(Travis Franklin, Program Manager)

Associate Director Comment
Public Comment

Recommended Action: 1. Approve Resolution 06.15.21.01, adopting the 2020
Urban Water Management Plan subject to the
receipt and consideration of comments during the
public hearing on this matter;

2. Adopt Ordinance 06.15.21.01, to repeal and replace
the previous Water Shortage Contingency Plan
Ordinances 07.23.14.02, 04.28.10.01, and
06.21.06.01; and

3. Adopt Ordinance 06.15.21.02, to repeal and replace
an Enforcement Procedure for Violations of the
Water Shortage Contingency Plan Ordinance
06.24.15.01

4. Proposed Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District 146-246

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget
(Patrick Lee, Finance Manager/Treasurer)

Associate Director Comment
Public Comment

Recommended Action: Adopt Resolution No. 06.15.21.02:

1. Approving the deferral of the 3.0% revenue rate
adjustment effective January 1, 2022, into future
years; and



2. Adopting the Florin Resource Conservation
District/Elk Grove Water District Fiscal Year 2021-
22 Operating Budget projecting revenues of
$15.716 million and expenses of $19.749 million
and appropriating $4.033 million from operating
reserves to fund expenses over revenues for fiscal
year 2021-22.

5. Fiscal Year 2021-22 Investment Policy Guidelines 247-269
(Patrick Lee, Finance Manager/Treasurer)

Associate Director Comment
Public Comment

Recommended Action: Adopt Resolution No. 06.15.21.03, approving the Fiscal
Year 2021-22 Investment Policy Guidelines of the
Florin Resource Conservation District and delegating
investment authority to the Finance Manager/Board
Treasurer.

6. Backyard Water Mains Replacement Project — Sara Street Contract 270-421
(Bruce Kamilos, General Manager)

Associate Director Comment

Public Comment

Recommended Action: Authorize the General Manager to execute a
construction contract in the amount of $622,075.42
with Flowline Contractors for the Backyard Water
Mains Replacement Project — Sara Street.

7. Future Florin Resource Conservation District Board Meetings 422-423
(Bruce Kamilos, General Manager)

Associate Director Comment

Public Comment

Recommended Action: Provide direction on how and when future board
meetings shall be held in person.

8. Outside Agency Meetings Report 424-426
(Bruce Kamilos, General Manager)

Associate Director Comment

Public Comment

Recommended Action: Consider replacing the standing Outside Agency
Meetings Report with a standing General Manager’s
Report and provide direction to staff.



9. Legislative Matters and Potential Direction to Staff 427-434
(Travis Franklin, Program Manager)

Associate Director Comment

Public Comment

10. EIk Grove Water District Operations Report — May 2021 435-480
(Bruce Kamilos, General Manager)

Associate Director Comment

Public Comment
11. Directors Comments

12. Closed Session
a. POTENTIAL THREAT TO THE SECURITY OF ESSENTIAL PUBLIC SERVICES
(Section 54957(a))

Adjourn to Regular Meeting — July 20, 2021



June 15, 2021

TO: Chair and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District
FROM: Stefani Phillips, Board Secretary and Patrick Lee, Treasurer

SUBJECT: CONSENT CALENDAR

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors
approve Florin Resource Conservation District Consent Calendar items a — |.

SUMMARY
Consent Calendar items a — j are standing items on the Regular Board Meeting agenda.

By this action, the Florin Resource Conservation District (FRCD) Board of Directors will
approve FRCD Consent Calendar items a —j.

DISCUSSION

Background

Consent Calendar items are standing items on the Regular Board Meeting agenda.

Present Situation

Consent Calendar items a — j are standing items on the Regular Board Meeting agenda.

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS

There are no direct environmental considerations associated with this report.

STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY

This item conforms to the FRCD/EIk Grove Water District 2020-2025 Strategic Plan. The
monthly Consent Calendar report provides transparency, which aligns with Goal No. 1,
Governance and Customer Engagement, of the Strategic Plan 2020-2025.

AGENDA ITEM No. 2



CONSENT CALENDAR

June 15, 2021

Page 2

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

There is no financial impact associated with this report.

Respectfully Submitted,

lhse

STEFANI PHILLIPS
BOARD SECRETARY

And

/77, /l‘/(/ /(
“PATRICK LEE
TREASURER

Attachments

AGENDA ITEM No. 2



Consent Calendar
ltem# a

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE
FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Tuesday, May 18, 2021

The regular meeting of the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors was called to order
at 6:02 p.m. by Sophia Scherman, Chair via Zoom.

Call to Order, Roll Call, and Pledge of Allegiance.

Directors Present: Sophia Scherman, Tom Nelson, Bob Gray, Lisa Medina, Elliot Mulberg
Directors Absent: None
Staff Present: Bruce  Kamilos, General Manager; Patrick Lee, Finance

Manager/Treasurer Stefani Phillips, Board Secretary; Travis Franklin,
Program Manager; Amber Kavert, Administrative Assistant Il (Confidential)
Staff Absent: Donella Murillo, Finance Supervisor
Associate Directors Present: Paul Lindsay
Associate Directors Absent: None
General Counsel Present:  Ren Nosky, JRG Attorneys at Law
Consultants Present: Greg Young, Tully & Young

Public Comment
Nothing to report.

1. Proclamations and Announcements
Nothing to report.

2. Consent Calendar

Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of April 20, 2021

Minutes of Special Board Meeting of April 27, 2021
Accounts Payable Check History — April 2021

Board and Employee Expense/Reimbursements — April 2021
Active Accounts — April 2021

Bond Covenant Status for FY 2020-21 — April 2021
Revenues and Expenses — Actual vs Budget FY 2020-21 — April 2021
Cash Accounts — April 2021

Consultants Expenses — April 2021

Major Capital Improvement Projects — April 2021

T T Se@Tmeo0oT

Item c was pulled.
A few questions were asked regarding various items in the Accounts Payable Check History.

MSC (Nelson/Gray) to approve Florin Resource Conservation District Consent Calendar items a-j.
5/0: Ayes: Gray, Medina, Mulberg, Nelson and Scherman.

6. 2020 Urban Water Management Plan Update
Program Manager Travis Franklin presented the item to the Florin Resource Conservation District
(FRCD) Board of Directors (Board) before handing it over to Greg Young, Tully & Young to present
a PowerPoint.

In summary, the Elk Grove Water District (EGWD) contracted with Tully & Young and its
subconsultant, Zanjero, to update the Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP). The major findings
and conclusions of the 2020 UWMP are:1) The EGWD’s water supplies are stable and reliable. Both
the groundwater supply and Sacramento County Water Agency’s surface and groundwater water

MSC = Motion, Second, Carried. MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE FRCD FOR May 18, 2021


AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent Calendar
Item#   a


2

supply are highly reliable over the 25-year UWMP planning horizon. As such, water service to
Service Area 1 and Service Area 2 should remain stable in all year types. (Normal, Single Dry Year
and Multi-Year Drought) and 2) The state-mandated 2020 water consumption target for EGWD’s
customer base was achieved (2020 Target GPCD = 191; 2020 Actual GPCD = 137). The UWMP
gives EGWD confidence that it has a robust water supply to meet the current water needs and
accommodate the anticipated future water demands in its service area. Staff will work with Tully &
Young to complete the Public Draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan for a public hearing and
Board consideration on the matter at its regular Board meeting on June 15, 2021.

3. Elk Grove Water District Fiscal Year 2022-26 Capital Improvement Program
General Manager Bruce Kamilos presented the item to the Board.

In summary, the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-26 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) describes capital
improvement projects planned by the Elk Grove Water District (EGWD) over the next five (5) fiscal
years. Staff presented the FY 2022-26 CIP at the Infrastructure Committee (IC) meeting held on
April 6, 2021. Revisions to the CIP were made based on comments from that meeting. The notable
changes made were: 1) a large portion, approximately fifty percent, of the requested FY 2021-22
CIP budget was related to the recently acquired administration building. Staff requested $2,300,000
to construct tenant improvements to the building and an additional $300,000 for the installation of a
fiber optic cable between the building and the EGWD Railroad Water Treatment Plant and 2) another
large portion of the requested FY 2021-22 CIP budget related to the Backyard Water Mains/Services
Replacement project. Staff requested $1,500,000 to complete this project which will employ a
combination of EGWD work forces and contract work forces. The final version of the FY 2022-26
CIP was presented to the Board for consideration.

MSC (Nelson/Medina) to adopt Resolution No. 05.18.21.01, approving the Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2022-26 Capital Improvement Program and the appropriation of $5,055,000 from
designated reserve funds to the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Capital Improvement Program budget. 5/0:
Ayes: Gray, Medina, Mulberg, Nelson and Scherman.

4. Draft Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District Fiscal Year 2021-
22 Operating Budget
Finance Manager Patrick Lee presented the item to the Board.

In summary, each year staff develops a draft operating budget of estimated revenues and expenses
and presents the document to the Finance Committee and Board. The Finance Committee met on
April 27, 2021 to discuss the draft District FY 2021-22 Operating Budget development worksheet.
The following changes were made to the draft District FY 2021-22 Operating Budget Development
Worksheet since the April 27th Finance Committee meeting: 1) Salaries and Benefits increased by
$46,116 due to an update to reflect a Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) of 3.97%, up from the 2.5%
COLA originally used to calculate salary projections; 2) Office and Operational decreased by
$23,995 due to an increase for Software Program & Update of $4,505 due to the addition of the
annual maintenance fee for the GPS Data Collection Tool. Tools decreased by $28,500 due to the
removal of the GPS Data Collection Tool, which will be capitalized as part of the CIP Budget; and 3)
Capital Expenditures increased the CIP Budget by $288,000 ($28,500 was added for the GPS Data
Collection Tool and an additional $265,000 was added for the Sara Street Backyard Watermain
project, which will now occur in FY 2021-22 due to the need to re-bid the project).

Including the changes discussed above, the draft District FY 2021-22 Proposed Operating Budget
projects total revenues of $15.716 million and total expenditures of $19.746 million. The
expenditures in excess of revenues of $4.030 million will be funded from operating reserves carried
over from prior years.

MSC = Motion, Second, Carried. MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE FRCD FOR May 18, 2021



3

Staff will bring back the Draft Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District FY
2021-22 Operating Budget to a Finance Committee Meeting before the regular board meeting in
June.

5. On-Call Duty Policy Revision
Human Resources Administrator Stefani Phillips presented the item to the Board.

In summary, staff recommended on-call duty pay be increased from $50 per day to $75 per day to
be competitive with the on-call pay provided by other water districts in the region. Staff performed
inquiries with other districts in the region to learn about various conservation practices carried out
by on-call operators, and in doing so, learned that the FRCD/EGWDs (District) on-call pay was lower,
by comparison, than the majority of the agencies surveyed. On-call duties have expanded from what
they have been in the past. Inthe past, employees assigned to on-call duty were required to receive
calls, report for work whenever needed, and to keep their supervisor informed of the telephone
number where they can be reached. Additionally, the on-call employee must respond by telephone
within five (5) minutes of receiving notification of a call-out event and must respond in person within
45 minutes. In addition to the already established on-call duties, employees are now expected to
periodically monitor water waste complaints sent to the District’s “Report Water Waste” email listed
on the District’'s website. The purpose of this additional task is to keep a watchful eye on potential
emergency leaks that our customers may mistakenly report as a water waste event. This additional
task requires another layer of vigilance that our employees must maintain while performing on-call
duty.

After a lengthy discussion, the Board agreed to increase the on-call pay from $50 to $85 per day.

(Mulberg/Medina) to adopt Resolution No. 05.18.21.02, amending Section 4.2.10 On-Call Duty of
the 2019 Elk Grove Water District Employee Policy Manual and increase on-call pay to $85 per day.
4/1: Ayes: Medina, Mulberg, Nelson and Scherman. Noes: Gray

7. Amendment to Professional Services Agreement with SoftResources for Finance
Needs Assessment
Mr. Lee presented the item to the Board.

In summary, on November 30, 2020 staff issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for a Financial
System Needs Assessment (Project) with proposals due by December 18, 2020. RFPs were posted
on the California Society of Municipal Finance Officers (CSMFO) and the California Special Districts
Association (CSDA) RFP forums, as well as on the District's website, resulting in three (3) total
proposals received. Staff completed the review and evaluation of the proposals and selected the
firm SoftResources based on their qualifications, understanding of the project and experience. The
recommendation was made to the General Manager, who executed a professional services
agreement (PSA) with SoftResources in an amount not to exceed $47,136.

MSC (Medina/Nelson) authorize the General Manager to execute an amendment to the professional
services agreement with SoftResources for an additional amount not-to-exceed $8,000 for additional
work to be included in the Financial Services Needs Assessment, bringing the total contract to a not-
to-exceed amount of $55,136. 5/0: Ayes: Gray, Medina, Mulberg, Nelson and Scherman.

8. Outside Agency Meetings Report
Staff and Board members spoke regarding the meetings they attended since the last regular board
meeting.

9. Legislative Update and Potential Direction to Staff
Program Manager Travis Franklin updated the Board on legislative matters.

MSC = Motion, Second, Carried. MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE FRCD FOR May 18, 2021



10.Elk Grove Water District Operations Report — April 2021

Mr. Kamilos presented the Elk Grove Water District (EGWD) Operations Report — April 2021 to the
Board.

11.Directors Comments
Nothing to report.

Adjourn to Regular Board Meeting on June 15, 2021.
Respectfully submitted,

Q&tgfni Dhillips

Stefani Phillips, Board Secretary

AK/SP

MSC = Motion, Second, Carried. MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE FRCD FOR May 18, 2021

10



Consent Calendar
ltem# b

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE
FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Tuesday, June 1, 2021

The special meeting of the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors was called to order
at 6:00 p.m. by Sophia Scherman, Chair, by zoom conference.

Call to Order, Roll Call, and Pledge of Allegiance.

Directors Present: Bob Gray, Tom Nelson, Elliot Mulberg, Lisa Medina, Sophia Scherman

Directors Absent: None

Staff Present: Bruce Kamilos, General Manager; Patrick Lee, Treasurer; Stefani Phillips,
Board Secretary

Staff Absent: Donella Murillo, Finance Supervisor; Travis Franklin, Program Manager;

Amber Kavert, Administrative Assistant Il (Confidential)
Associate Directors Present: Paul Lindsay
Associate Directors Absent: None
General Counsel Present:  Ren Nosky, JRG Attorneys at Law
Consultants Present: Shellie Anderson, Bryce Consulting

Public Comment
Nothing to report.

1. Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District Engineer Series
Classification and Compensation Study
Human Resources Administrator Stefani Phillips introduced the item to the Florin Resource
Conservation District (FRCD) Board of Directors (Board). She provided background on the item
before introducing Shellie Anderson from Bryce Consulting to explain the findings from the Engineer
Series Classification and Compensation study (Study).

In summary, the FRCD/EIk Grove Water District (District) retained Bryce Consulting to develop the
Study under project management of the Human Resources Administrator. The purpose of the Study
was to create an Engineer Series Classification that would create depth within the Technical Services
Division and provide room for growth within the classification, as well as to enable the District the
ability to retain an engineer at a senior level. Bryce Consulting completed the Study and concluded
that the compensation for the Engineer Series Classification should be based on the Associate
Engineer and Associate Civil Engineer classifications, as the two (2) classifications resulted in the
most stable and consistent market data. Furthermore, it recommended that the Senior Civil Engineer
be set utilizing an internal relationship of 15% above the Associate Civil Engineer. Typically, advanced
journey level classifications are 10% to 15% above the journey level, depending on level of
supervision exercised. By setting the salary 15% above the Associate Civil Engineer level, it
recognized the increase in responsibilities and complexity of duties. The recommendation for setting
the compensation is consistent with the market and industry standards.

MSC (Medina/Nelson) to Adopt Resolution No. 06.01.21.01: 1. Accepting the Engineer Series
Classification and Compensation Study; 2. Authorizing the creation of the classifications, Associate
Engineer and Senior Civil Engineer, contained in the Engineer Series Classification; and 3. Approving
the recommended salary grades for the Associate Engineer and Senior Civil Engineer classifications
to be incorporated into the proposed Salary Schedule. Ayes: 5/0: Gray, Medina, Mulberg, Nelson,
and Scherman.

MSC = Motion, Second, Carried. MINUTES OF THE SPCEIAL MEETING OF THE FRCD FOR June 1, 2021

11


AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent Calendar
Item#   b


2

2. Draft Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District Fiscal Year 2021-
22 Operating Budget
General Manager Bruce Kamilos stated that staff will bring back an agendized item to discuss the
District’s reserves in the upcoming fiscal year and would not be addressed during the current meeting.

Finance Manager Patrick Lee explained the three (3) changes made from the May regular board
meeting requested by the Board.

In summary, at the May regular board meeting, staff received comments and recommendations from
the Board on the proposed FY 2021-22 Operating Budget. Those comments included: 1. grammatical
corrections on various sections of the budget document; 2. the addition of percentage change on the
schedule on page 20 of the budget document; and 3. the increase of on-call pay from $75 per shift to
$85 per shift, resulting in an increase of $3,650 to salaries and benefits. Including the changes
discussed above, the draft District FY 2021-22 Proposed Operating Budget projects total revenues
of $15.716 million and total expenditures of $19.749 million. The expenditures in excess of revenues
of $4.033 million will be funded from operating reserves carried over from prior years.

Adjourn to Regular Board Meeting on June 15, 2021 at 6:00 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Qbueferi Zhillips

Stefani Phillips, Board Secretary
AK/SP

MSC = Motion, Second, Carried. MINUTES OF THE SPCEIAL MEETING OF THE FRCD FOR June 1, 2021



Consent Calendar

ltem# c

suonduosgns pue sywJad ‘sdiysiaquial ‘saxe] ‘SasUal| JO [eMBUSI [enuue Ssalousdy

sluswanoidwy Jueus | Buipiing NINGY AMO3

DO - Ja1d0) - 8ouerUBIUIRIA pue Slileday
DOW - Ja1do) - aosueualulely pue sireday

1uswabeuey JusWNI0g
Bulp|ing NINAVY MaN - uawabeuelp 109loid
abeisod pue Buig s,|lidy
dijs yong bBuluadoay a2IAI8S JawoIsn)d
uasu| sbunsa agnd
punjay Jawoisny - paso|d JUN0IIY
punjay Jawoisn)d - Paso|D JUN0JIY
punjay Jawoisn) - paso|D JUN0JIY
punjay Jawoisn)d - Paso|D JUN0JIY
punjay Jawoisn) - paso|D JUN0IIY
punjay Jawoisn) - Paso|D JUN0JIY
punjay Jawoisn) - paso|D JUN0IIY
punjay Jawoisn) - Paso|D JUN0IIY
punjay Jawoisn) - paso|D JUN0IIY
punjay Jawoisn) - Paso|D JUN0JIY
punjay Jawoisn) - paso|D JUN0IIY

NINAV/DOOIN - S92IAIBS [eloliuer - S32I0AU| (2)

juswieal] - buldwes
S19y011 djaH/sysel Alred

uoneue|dx3

Y€ v08°L
96'68L°C
26'SSLL
L2'0LL
19°068
8Y'66L |
G616
99°LY
00°0S¥'L
00691
00°LEY
LY'YLO'L
€6°LYve
00°0vL'L
GL890°}
619829
69799
€186
6€°€91
81¥'€C
94'8¢
Lcy
6L°10¢C
8¢€'¢CS
06°G¢
6¢°0L
G8'€9l
ov'8l
€LV8L
00'90S°t
G9'€0€
05681
00°€zze
GZ'18S'6
0G°LCl
00°00}
6v'¢8¢
ZL YL

%2940

anins

danins

anins

H3INID NOIS IHL

S3ITddNS 301440 vHY3IS

¢¢6# S3OINHGES OI1dNd3d
INOHO X143 40 JHIL VIAvd
S1dvd OLNV AT1I3H.0

"ONI SLO31IHOHY 9d4diN

699# 3OVHOLS 3411

SIW31SAS SSANISNE ANVTINI
SIW3ILSAS SSANISNE ANVINI
H3ONIVHO

IVINIANHIAOD TTIMAVIO
011 "0 DNILTNSNOD THv3

011 3S0ddv.lvd
J7113S0ddv.ivd

011 3S0ddv.lvd

ANVANOD FTLIL NVOIHIWY LSHId
37111 ODVIIHO

NOSIHHON HOTAVL

NOSIHHON HOTAVL
SHOLOVHINOOD AHLINNOD ® NMOL
dNANNOY ALTvV3d

WVYHNOS T3VHOIN

ONI VO SINOH HVYNNIT

NIddI9 TVdLIdNY
SYON1VSITVYNY

J1LIL TVNOILVYN ALIT3Ald

ONI 'VOI4INY HLHON TIVHIAOD
SAILMILN ALNNOD OLNINVHIVS
SV1INIO

S31LVIOOSSY 1S4

"ONI ©9 Ad SNOILNTOS

ONI 'F0dNOS3Y 1143N39
VMMY-UOIOSS BPEASN Blulojije]d
S3OIAHES TVLIdVO NOZVINY
ov1dv

aweN

anins
dnins
anins
3O NOIS
vdd3IS
Mand3d
viavd
ATII3H0
oV a9d4diN
1S 3417
ANVINI
ANVINI
JONIVHO
13IMAvIo
00 Tdv3
Oddvlvd
0Oddvlivd
Oddvlvd
314440
[LHO4HO
AV1 440
AV1 440
OB1 440
d4d 440
O4dIN 440
N3T 440
gAY 440
N1V 440
di4 4o

vV 43A0D
YALNNOD
CSVINIO
XS4
N10S 549
S3d N34
CYMMY
NOZVINY
ovidv

laquinN
10pUa/

L¢0¢/9/S
1202/S/S
L¢0¢/9/S
1202/S/S
1202/S/S
1202/S/S
1202/S/S
1202/S/S
1202/S/S
1202/S/S
1202/S/S
1202/S/S
120¢2/S/S
1202/S/S
120¢2/S/S
1202/S/S
120¢2/S/S
1202/S/S
120¢2/S/S
1202/S/S
120¢2/S/S
1202/9/S
1202/S/S
1202/S/S
1202/S/S
1202/S/S
1202/S/S
1202/9/S
1202/S/S
1202/9/S
1202/S/S
1¢02/9/S
1202/S/S
1¢02/9/S
1202/S/S
1¢02/9/S
1202/S/S
1¢02/9/S

areqg
A39yd

816250
LY¥62S0
916250
S¥6¢S0
Y6250
€v6¢S0
¢v62S0
L¥62S0
0v62S0
6£62S0
8€6¢S0
LE62S0
9€62S0
G€6¢S0
€650
€€6250
¢€62S0
1€6¢S0
0€62S0
626250
8¢62S0
L262S0
9¢62S0
G¢6¢S0
¥262S0
€26¢S0
€¢62s0
126¢S0
02¢62S0
616250
8162S0
L16¢S0
916240
G16¢S0
¥162S0
€16¢S0
¢162s0
116250

laquinN
A99yd

10L1SIQ JaTBM A0 |T
T202/TE/S 01 TZ0Z/T/S

11oday A101SIH M29yD

13


AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent Calendar
Item#   c


suonduosgns pue sywJad ‘sdiysiaquial ‘saxe] ‘SasUal| JO [eMBUSI [enuue Ssalousdy

punjay Jawoisny - Paso|D JUN0JIY
punjay Jawoisn)d - paso|D JUN0IY
punjay Jawoisn) - paso|D JUN0JIY
punjay Iawoisnd - paso|D 1UN0IJY
dIOA
dlOA
punjay Jawoisn) - paso|D JUN0JIY
punjay Jawoisn)d - paso|D JUN0JIY
punjay Jawoisn) - paso|D JUN0JIY
punjay Jawoisn)d - paso|D JUN0JIY
punjay Jawoisn) - paso|D JUN0JIY
punjay Jawoisn)d - Paso|D JUN0JIY
punjay Jawoisn) - paso|d JUN0IIY
punjay Jawoisn)d - Paso|D JUN0JIY
punjay Jawoisn) - paso|D JUN0IIY
punjay Jawoisn)d - Paso|D JUN0JIY
punjay Jawoisn) - paso|D JUN0IIY
punjay Jawoisn)d - Paso|D JUN0JIY
punjay Jawoisn) - paso|D JUN0JIY
punjay Jawoisn)d - Paso|D JUN0JIY
NINAV/OOW - S821AISS [elioUel - SBJI0AU] ()
T20Z |udy % yale - buljig 1arepn Alunod oluaweloes
NINAVY/OON-Sauoyd/adinias 18ulayly

BUISS9201d HOV - S8JIAISS Pa)oru0)d

juawieal] - buldwes
juswieal] - salddns 7% s[elale
s19X21L djsH/sysel Ajred
ludy - reba
10BNU0D JO %GY - Bul|ig ssaiboid - 1PNV T20Z Ad
juswasinquiay joog
SEIETI]
suoneiqied pue 92IAI9S JUBWNIISU| [eNUUY
SdO - sal|ddns 7% s[euale\ - sa210AU| (OT)
uonduosgns Xeluarep| [enuuyy
SdO - sd1|ddns 7 s[euale - Sad1oAu| (g)
Jjuswieal] - salddns 7% s[elale
MeUS 9A3]1S €] - [emauay uonesyilad
JUBWISSASSY SPaaN SWalsAS |eloueuld 1o} buljig ssaiboid

¢S 9l
88°19
L0°€9
LCV8
-L€798
LE98
6L°L01
9c’el
86'91
09°Ly
LLE
vy oGl
y9'G¢

Lv'cs
cL'EE

S LYYL
6€’1€
8Y'E
60°0v
006498

0€ V8L vEY
¥0°20E’t
GL'0LE
0€'8¢€
Ge'9¢
0G'¢cve
9G°0EL’L
88'892'6
00vLL
0SVL9'LL
00°0S€
06'98%'6€
L8861
€¥°890°t
ARA VAR
G8CLLL
G9'€E0C
00°06
00°68C°Clt
LE0OESL
YE8YLL
L9°6GG
8L'9¥
€6'668°|
eV LCE 0L

IMSNINEVM VHANVYS

WIVIVO AQIVZId

ONI ‘YO SINOH HVYNNIT

ONI ‘YO S3INOH HVYNNITT

ONI ‘YO SINOH HVYNNIT

ONI VO S3INOH HVYNNITT
ONOHLSINYY HLITM

S3INOr ANIHIHLVHA

NOSAIAVA AVl

J7LIL TYNOILVYN ALIT3Ald
VIAIQTVA 3NVIA

JAINOOM3AN INVIA

MHV10 3SIN3A

ATVA A4VYMOH JHOrdvin

'® AVA SINN3A S3INVF IHL
JOUNOW "3 11ddV

011 °'SH3ATINg IAVODY
ANVAINOD FT11IL NVOIHINVY HLHON
J1LIL NVOIHINY LSHId

J71IL NVOIHINY LSHId

ONI ‘VOI43NVY HLHON 11VH3IA00
OLN3INVHOVS 40 ALNNOD
SNOILVYOINNWINOD d31vdlTOSNOD
SV1INIO

ONI ‘'SHOSS3D04d MO3IHO
J7LIL TVYNOILVYN ALIT3dld
S3ILVIOOSSY 1S4

ONI “O1410Vd DV.LNNIHL

"ONI ©9 A9 SNOILNTOS
NISNAr 8 MOONVIN H3Mvd
S31VIOOSSY ® IMvavd

1N3X NOANVHd

'00 ‘S3TVS JIYLIN-VNOV

ONI ‘STOHLNOD VHH3IS YNOV
S30IAHES TVLIdVO NOZVINY
ONI VSN XVH1d31VM

ONI ‘SYHOM MONYHL V411N
ININNHLSNI ANV IATVA L1
dOOMAd-90dMS

FHVYMLH0S S30HNO0SIH1L40S
danins

anins

danins

anins

danins

anins

VMS 440
VOd 440
N317 440
N31 440
N317 440
N31 440
V33X 440
'YX 440
avr 442
N4 440
VAd 44D
aNa 440
104 440

va 440
OWV 440
VOV 440
14dON HO
\4=|ER- 0]
\A-|ER- 0]
v 43A0D
ALNNOD
MOSNOD
CSVINID
d MO03HO
1N44D
YS9
VINN3IH4
N10s ©d
VYINHIMVE
IMvavd
IN3M 49
3N YNOV
vNOov
NOZVINY
1 H31VM
vdlin
VA LBL
¢d0dMS
34 1408
danins
anins
danins
anins
danins
anins

120¢/0¢/S
120¢2/0¢/S
1202/0¢/S
120¢2/0¢/S
1202/0¢/S
120¢2/0¢/S
1202/0¢/S
120¢2/0¢/S
1202/0¢/S
120¢2/0¢/S
1202/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S

120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢2/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢2/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢2/0¢/S
L202/9/S
1202/S/S
L202/9/S
1202/S/S
L¢0¢/9/S
1202/S/S
1¢0¢/9/S
1202/S/S
1¢0¢/9/S
1202/S/S
L¢0¢/9/S

¢66¢S0
166250
066250
6862G0
886250
886¢G0
L86¢S0
986¢G0
G86¢S0
¥862G0
€86¢90
¢86¢S0
186250

086250
6.6¢S0
846250
L£62S0
9/62S0
G/6¢S0
¥.62S0
€46¢S0
¢L62S0
1£62S0
046250
696250
896240
£96¢S0
996250
G96¢S0
¥962S0
€96¢S0
296240
196¢S0
096250
65650
8G62G0
LSG6¢S0
9662G0
GG6¢S0
¥G62G0
€66¢S0
266250
1G6¢S0
066250
616250

14



suonduosgns pue sywJad ‘sdiysiaquial ‘saxe] ‘SasUal| JO [eMBUSI [enuue Ssalousdy

punay Jawoisn) - paso|d JUN0IJY
ubredwe) yoeannQ alignd eipa [eloos |udy

laldod - NINaV
SdO - sal|ddnsS % s[euale\

Buing dwmn 020z udy

dID sure 181epn - sallddns 7 sjelalel - Sa2loAu| (2)

dID surep Is1epa - saljddng % sjelarepn
HOX31M 020Z OO
NIAQYV - aulyoey abeisod

M3ID uonnguisiq - salddns % sjeuale|n - sasloau| (0T)

dID Suren J1a1epn - luswdinb3 jeluay - saoloAaul (9)
[udy - [ebaT

ludy - reba
dID sure 1a1epn - salddns 7% sjeualel - Sa2loAu| (g)
|on4d - s82l0AU| (2)

dID sure 1a1epn - salddns 7 sjeualel - Sa2loAu| (g)
juswage|day surely Iarepn preAyoeg - adnoN 2dlgnd
SdO - sd1|ddns 73 s[euale - Sad10Au| (L)

S92I44O puUe S,2MS||9/ ||e 10} daueuUBlUIR Aey
juswieal] - salddns ‘speusyey ‘Buiures |
sallddns ‘sjelale| ‘S|es|N ‘wex3 juswieal| Jayepn ‘bulurel |
uonngmsiq - sa1jddns ‘sjeuale|y ‘lemauay uoneayilua) ‘seay
A1ano2ay ereq/uonen|ens eipsin
sweibold asemyos ‘salddns
sal|ddng ‘swelbold alemijos ‘Juod [enuiA bulds TzZozZ VMOV
ma1D AN - salddns 7 sfeualeiy
punjay Jawoisn)d - Paso|D JUN0DY
punjay Jawoisn)d - paso|D JUN0JIY
punjay Jawoisn)d - Paso|D JUN0DY
punjay Jawoisn)d - paso|D JUN0JIY
punjay Jawoisn)d - Paso|D JUN0DY
punjay Jawoisn)d - paso|D JUN0JIY
punjay Jawoisn)d - Paso|D JUN0DY

LL 06V
LC0le
L0°LS1
00°00L°}
¥0°8.8
[ASXAVA
82'859°L
2 0S
00°G9S°LL
90°GLZt
LEEEL
66'vEC
Ge'LeL'e
8V’ LL

0L ¥9L
00052
SL°LES
bL¢c
00'¥8
L8'8EE
L9'9ge’e
€8'G¢
090Gty
00°¢L9
00°€8L
00°L09°C
G0'0¥9'9
GL'GLEE
¢L09L
00°99
¢c0'199
00°05¢°C
LT YvY
LSYOL')
16°96C'L
GOv8Y°L
86'89
LL¥0S
88'V8l
LeceLl

A WA
VLl
9e'¢ct
L6°9
¥6°89
L9¢L

SYLINID

LINIWNHIAOD MaAd

ANVdINOD TTLIL ODVIIHD
IAILYIEM HINTYM

SSI13HIM NOZIYIA

JONVNI4 LNINDINDI MNVE 'S'N
ONI ‘SYHOM MONYL V411N
aNIN

"ONI ‘ONNOA 8 ATTINL
SILVHIAYODY LHYIHOITL
Y31NIO NDIS IHL

S317ddNS I01440 vHH3IS
S1N3IH 00004

ZZ6# SIDINE3AS 2119nd3y

‘00 INININD3 0ay

ONI ‘NVAHE-NOSL1H3904
Y3IMOd IASYHOHUNd

21410313 B SVYD 21410vd

ONI 431N3D T041INOD 1S3d
"ONITANYH VIH3LVIN S.3dvd
d409 A1ddNS 30vd

S14Vd 01NV AT1I34.0

0711 'NOQ3IMIN SLIN

SINVAV NILSNY AHdYNIN

699# ADVHOLS 3417

d717 ‘'SAINHOLLY DYr

JOINHIS ONIMONYL SAVHE
ANVYdINOD 110 ILV.LSHILNI

"ONI (SN) SYHOMYILVYM XINODI
ONI ‘SNOILYOIT9Nd Y3DdNgy3IH
ANVANOD TVYNILSVYA
IdVOSANY1 TYNOILONYLSNOD 9d
S3DIAY3S a4vo

S3IDIAY3S A4vO

S3DIAY3S a4vo

S3IDIAY3S A4vO

S3DIAY3S a4vo

S3IDIAY3S A4vO

S3DIAY3S a4vo

"ONI ‘VO 40 T3ATTX3AN dIN

02D F1LIL NVOIH3INY LSHI4
ANVYdINOD TTLIL NYOIYINY LSHIS
37LIL TYNOILYN ALIN3Ald
NNYAOOM VI1IONY B MIHLLYIN
43744307 VINTIM

NOSIHHOW HOTAVL

CSVINID
Mas
O1HDD
HIMTVM
NOZId3A
ANVESN
vdlin
3aNITN
ATINL

vV HOIFL
3O NOIS
vdd3IS
0000y
Mand3d
NO3 0ad
194
HOdNd
3%9d
1S3d
ddvd
30Vvd
AT11340
SIN
AHdJHNIN
1S 3417
odr
SAVI
V1S INI
XINOQI
OdNgd3aH
VN31SVvA
S700 4d
SS SO
dS SO
HS SO
NI SO
Nd SO
A8 SO
VvV SO
IANIN4HD
01dIddO
014440
1dI444D
OOM 44D
O1M 440
AV1 440

120¢/9¢/S
120¢2/9¢/S
1202/9¢/9
120¢2/0¢/S
1202/0¢/S
120¢2/0¢/S
1202/0¢/S
120¢2/0¢/S
1202/0¢/S
120¢2/0¢/S
1202/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢2/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢2/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢2/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢2/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢2/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢2/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢2/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S
120¢2/0¢/S
120¢/0¢/S

8€0€S0
LEOESO
9€0€s0
GE0€ES0
€0€S0
€€0€G0
¢e0€s0
L€0€S0
0€0€S0
620€G0
8¢0€S0
L20€S0
92¢0€s0
G20€s0
¥20€s0
€20€S0
€c0€s0
1C0€S0
020€s0
610€S0
810€S0
L10€S0
910€S0
G10€S0
¥10€S0
€10€S0
¢L0€s0
L10ESO
010€S0
600€S0
800€G0
L00€S0
900€G0
G00€S0
¥00€G0
€00€S0
¢00€S0
100€S0
000€S0
666250
8662G0
L66¢S0
966250
G66¢S0
¥662S0
€66¢50

15



suonduosgns pue sywJad ‘sdiysiaquial ‘saxe] ‘SasUal| JO [eMBUSI [enuue Ssalousdy

G6'8L8°LL9 ‘ferol
10eNU0D WelSAS auoyds|al |S3 [enuuvy 00°9LL} ONI ‘NOILVOINNAINOD 0093M 00893aM  12¢0¢/9¢/s  6S0€S0
00°GLE ONI ‘SYHOM MONHL V411N vd1lln  120¢/9¢/S  8S0€S0
dID Sureiy Jsre/ - sel|ddns 7 sjeualelA - S8210AU| (2) ¥899G°| S31VOHIHOOV 143HOIAL VHOIAL 1202¢/9¢/s [S0€S0
G8'GLY S3INddNS 301440 vH4H4IS vd4d3IS  1202/9¢/S  9S0€S0
€C'10¢ 0711 °'NOd3xMIN S1IN SIN 1202¢/9¢/s GS0€S0
[an4 0S°SPE’L ANVAINOD 110 J1V1ISHALNI V1S INI 1202/9¢/S +S0€S0
dID surei 1sre\ - sal|ddns % sfeusiep LY'60LC ONI 13AVED ® ANVS QHO4ANVH QHOANVH  1202/92/G  £€S0€S0
€V LoV ddOod INOHO MT1d  d"O4 O3 120¢/9¢/S  2S0€S0
punjay Jawoisny - paso|D UN0JJY 60°€l ANVAINOD FT1LIL NVOIHINY 1SHId 014440 120¢/9¢/s  1S0€S0
punjay Iswolsny - paso|) JUNoIY ¢L’L9 NIANON L VHN ONVHL  ONL 440 120¢/9¢/S 0S0€S0
punjay Jswolsny - paso|) JUNoIdY 99°L NOSIHHON HOTAVL AVL 440 120¢/9¢/S 6¥0€S0
punjay Iswolsny - paso|] JUNoIY ¢6'S SYANOLNNOY IAILS  OdS 440 120¢/9¢/S  810€S0
punjay Jswolsny - paso|) JuUNoIdY LE798 37111 YNNI L7440 120¢/9¢/S  Lv0€S0
punjay Iswolsny - paso|] JUNoIY LE°98 ONI 'VO S3INOH HVYNNITT N3T440 1¢02/9¢/S  9¥0€ESO
punjay Jswolsny - paso|) JUNoIdY 0069 SVIOVIN VIOIdLVd B SVIOVIN SFINVT Nl 440  120¢/9¢/S  S¥0€S0
punjay Iswolsny - paso|d JUNoIY LLLL AHOLSONOW NVOr  OWr 440  1¢0¢2/9¢/S  ¥¥0€ES0
punjay Jswolsny - paso|) JuNoddY G119 gV 13INVd v1da 440 120¢/9¢/S  €v0€S0
punjay IswWolsny - paso|d JUNoIY 829 NIV H3HJOLSIHHO  vaD0 440 1202/9¢/S  ¢¥0€S0
punjay Jswolsny - paso|) JUNoIdY So€l ‘00 I11IL ODVIIHO GLIHOYO 120¢/9¢/s  L¥0€S0
punjay Jawoisny - paso|D N0V LE9E J7LIL TVNOILVYN ALIT3dld di440 120¢/9¢/s  010€S0

BUIT 82IAISS UO0IeI01SaY JUusWaAed - UONeIO||Y peayisro S ELO'L IA0HO M3 40 ALID 300 1¢0¢/9¢/S 6€0€S0

16



Consent Calendar

ltem# d

L6'€E6'TS
66'672% daid wex3 JojesadQ uswieal] Jalep\ €1 apelo laubepn uopuelg
00°0vT$ suolneladQ jue|d Juswieal] a1\ - Selsren bulurel | )ouapal4 pired
00'07T$ suoneladQ 1ue|d Juswieal] Ja1e N\ - Sjeuaren bulurel | UOS|IM ||B2JeN
86'8GT$ aoueUBUIRA pue uoneladO SWalSAS |[ews - sfeuareln bulurel | yueyd uejals
00°00v$ Z-T sapelo wex3 uswieal] 181ep Aeq-g yueyp uejals
00'G.€$ 9oUalIdU0D [enUIA Bulds T20Z VMOV sojiwey 9onig
00°0¢T$ 1SI[e10adS UOIOBUUOD SSOID [eMAURY - VMMV Jol8pald pired
00'0GE$ uswisinquiliey 1009 1Ud)| uopuelig
divd INNONY NOILdIdOS3d IVNAIAIANI

T120¢/T€/S0 40 SV
SININISHNINIFH/ASNIdXT ATHLNOW I3AOTdINT ANV d4vOod

17


AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent Calendar
Item#   d


Consent Calendar

ltem# e

088'CT  1/8CT 0/8¢T [/8CT V8L2l 8LL2T GY92l 6992l 929¢T S09CT G092l T.S<T
081 08T 18T 18T T8T 18T 18T 18T €8T 18T 181 181
8.1 L1 4T T wT ST ST ST €T 01 0.1 0.1
£9€ 198 €9€ €9  S9€ 29  29€ 29  G9E  S9E £9€ £9€
6ST'2T  €ST'2T  6vT'2T /ST'?T  ¥90'ZT 090°7T [Z6'TT Tv6'TT S06'TT 688'TT  T68'TT  /S8'TT
ANNC [AVIN [ddV | dVIN | 934 [NV | O4A [AON [ 100 | 1d3dS | 9NV |ATINC
- 9E0'€T  0S0'ST LZ0'ET  9T0'€T VIOET PEO'ET LTIOET OZ0'ET TE0'ET  ¥88CT  2¢88'2T
281 €8T €8T  T8T 08T 08T 08T 28T 18T 08T 08T
€8T v8T €8T  T8T  T8T 08T 08T 18T  8.T 8.1 8.1
29g ?9e €9 €9e  T9E  €9€  29€ €98 VOE £9€ £9€
60£'2T  TOS'ZT 862'CT T62'2T 2¢62'2T TIEZT G62'2T ¥62'TT 80ETT  €9T'2T  19T'ZT
ANNC|AVIN [ddV [dVIN | 934 |NVL | Odd |AON [ 100 | 1d3dS | 9NV [ATNC

S1UN022Y [e10L
92IAJBS 2l
uonebi
[e1oJawiwo)
[enuspisay
paJalsN
:S1UN022Y JaTe M\

0c0¢/610¢ Ad
uolrewojul JUN0JJY BAINIY

S1UN029Y [e10L

92IAJaS 8l
uonebi
[e1oJawwo)
[enuspissy
paJaisN
:S1UN0J2Y I91eMN

T20¢Z/TE/S0 10 S
uoITeWI0jUl JUNOJDY BANIY

18


AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent Calendar
Item#   e


Consent Calendar

ltem# f
Bond Covenant Status
For Fiscal Year 2020-21
As of 05/31/2021
Adjusted for Prepayments
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 15,095,373
Operating Expenses:
Salaries & Benefits (1) 3,567,684
Seminars, Conventions and Travel 6,120
Office & Operational 955,810
Purchased Water 2,939,406
Outside Services 780,734
Equipment Rent, Taxes, and Utilities 396,501
Total Operating Expenses 8,646,255
Net Operating Income $ 6,449,118
Annual Interest & Principal Payments
$3,855,469 $ 3,534,180 (2)
Debt Service Coverage Ratio, YTD Only: 1.82
Required 1.15
Notes

1. Reflects only YTD due to CalPERS, not entire prepayment for year

2. Reflects budget divided by number of months year to date.
However, first Principal/Interest Payments made in September.
Projected Annual Budget Coverage Ratio is 1.32

19


AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent Calendar
Item#   f


Consent Calendar

ltem# g

Year to Date Revenues and Expenses Compared to Budget
As of 05/31/2021

11/12=91.67%

General Ledger YTD Annual %
Reference Activity Budget Realized
Revenues 4100 - 4900 $ 15,095,373 $ 15,424,142 97.87%
Operating Expenses
Salaries & Benefits 5100 - 5280 3,725,032 4,373,018 85.18%
less Capitalized Labor (149,773) (376,961) 39.73%
Less CalPERS Prepayment for Remainder of Year: (1) (7,575)
Adjusted Salaries and Benefits: $ 3,567,684 $ 3,996,057 89.28%
Seminars, Conventions and Travel 5300 - 5350 6,120 53,307 11.48%
Office & Operational 5410 - 5494 955,810 1,338,578 71.40%
Purchased Water est. (2) 5495 - 5495 2,939,406 3,198,404 91.90%
Outside Services 5505 - 5580 780,734 1,283,548 60.83%
Equipment Rent, Taxes, Utilities 5620 - 5760 396,501 464,380 85.38%
Total Operational Expenses $ 8,646,255 $ 10,334,274 83.67%
Net Operating Income $ 6,449,118 $ 5,089,868 126.71%
Non-Operating Revenues
Interest Received 9910 - 9910 83,794 100,000 83.79%
Unrealized Gains/(Losses) 9911 - 9911 (14,133) - 100.00%
Other Income/(Expense) 9920 - 9973 (1,463,667) (1,709,239) 85.63%
Total Non-Operating Revenues $ (1,394,005) $ (1,609,239) 86.63%
Non-Operating Expenses
Election Costs 9950 - 9950 1,887 250,000 0.75%
Capital Expenses (3):
Capital Improvements 1705 - 1760 2,329,196 2,752,522 84.62%
Capital Replacements 1705 - 1760 361,385 855,000 42.27%
Unforeseen Capital Projects 1705 - 1760 66,379 100,000 66.38%
Total Capital Expenses: $ 2,756,959 $ 3,707,522 74.36%
Bond Interest Accrued (4) 7300 - 7300 1,425,847 1,555,469 91.67%
Total Non Operating Expenses $ 4,184,693 $ 5,512,991 75.91%
Bond Retirement (4): $ 2,108,333 $ 2,300,000 91.67%
Total Expenditures 16,333,286 19,756,504 82.67%
Revenues in Excess of All Expenditures, including Capital $ (1,237,913) $ (4,332,362) 28.57%
Notes:

1.

The District prepays CalPERS for the employers' share of retirement costs for the entire year.
By doing this, the District saves approximately 3.5% in its total CalPERS payments for the year.
The adjusted salaries and benefits above shows what salaries and benefits would be if

only the amount due to CalPERS YTD was paid YTD, with no prepayment.

. There is a lag in water billings from the Sacramento County Water Agency. Included above

is an estimate of costs to date based on water used.

. YTD Activity includes $149,773 in capitalized labor charged to capital projects.
. Bond retirement payments are made two times a year in September and March
. Accounts receivable balance, which represents the difference between

the total amount billed and total amount collected, as of May 31, 2021 is $464,675.03.

20


AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent Calendar
Item#   g


Consent Calendar

ltem# h

o[|NA elj8U0Qd
sdijjiyd 1uejeis
997 olled

T20¢/T€/S0 40 SV

SIUBWISaAU| JO B|NPAYIS [1eIad - HSYD

- $ sojiwey| adnig
sJaubis paziioyiny
- $ - $
aneA 193 ep 90lid LA ajey 159.91U] a1eq Aine aleq |[eD :Ag panss| dISNd areq |[eD
06'882'829'LT $  pajouisalun [ejoL
- $ palollsay |e1ol sSnonuiuod = "JU0d
Apapenb = Aib
06'882'829°LT $ [eloL Anyeiy o1 pRIA = INLA
1€'60S'6T2'S  $ L£6G2/22S $
00°090°000°T 00°000°000°T $ %02.°0 %9T'6T 5202/6/L Ab - T202/60/L0 NSSV OLIN FeN [e19pad  ZdAVO9ETE 0202/TE/L
00°0.T'000'T 00°000'000'T $ %0ST'T %9T'6T 9202/921y Ab -TZ/92/70 (g7H4) ueo BWoH [e1epad  YOMIVOETE T202/L2lY
00°08€'000'T 00°000'000'T $ %050 %LT'6T v20e/elL Amb - oz/sz/TT (g7H4) ueo awoH [esepa]  9SOTIEETE 0202/TE/L
00°079'T66 00°000'000‘T $ %0850 %00'6T §202/S2/1T Amb - 0z/0T/L0 (g7H4) ueoT dwoH [e1epad  OHSVOSETE 0202/6T/TT
1€'652'222'T $ L£6G2.22T % %700 %TS'ET VIN VIN BlUIOJl[eD JO ueg uolun VIN 9702/0</6
INTVA LAV SISvd 1S0D PISIA JUSIIND Ol0f10d 10 % IIVA ALIENIVIA 3Iva TIVD A9 a3anssi disnd 31va 3svHOaNd
181eM  02-000-280T
8V'€SL'68€T $ pajLsaiun %190 wawisany| wia ] WnIpsy 1snILIvO 181eM  02-000-T80T
N._”;_”ww»mmv,m $ palousaiun %I’ 0 |00d JUBWISaAU| IV eluiojiled olusweldes - 1ainseal] ayl Jo adljo 181 M\ 02-000-080T
SINTWISIANI
£G7Y87SS'S  $ [elolqns
12'5.9'8v. paplsaiun LNNODJV S14v¥a T0-0262€0-80 NP4 181'eM  02-000-T20T
6T'8Y.'S9T pajouisaiun 1NNODJV T10HAVd T0-0682€0-80 NP4 181eM  02-000-T90T
TE€'€L9'290'T paplsaiun LNNOD2V a¥VD LId3¥D T0-2T62€0-80 N®S 181'eM  02-000-T€0T
2T'S€5'00T pajouisaiun %GE0 LINAVIN AINOW T€-20LT0ZE0-80 B4 185eM  02-000-780T
¥7'E0T'0LY'E pajlisaiun LNNODIV ONILYHIJO T0-2T0ZE0-80 N® 183reM  02-000-TTOT
92'60T pajouisaiun LNNODJV ONINOIHD T0-6002£0-80 WHH aoyd 0T-000-TTOT
INVE W% A9 A 13H
00°00€ $ pajouisalun pueH uo ysed 183reM  02-000-T00T
- $ [eloians
000 paLsay pund feminN WA Ainseau 1suj snyfeiq IDIAY3S 193A VYIT0Z DU 058EYL ANG Jre M\ 02-000-2TTT
000 palLsey pund feniny WIN -~ Aunseal | 1suj snjfaiq IDIAY3S 1934 V¥T0Z Addd v7.268 ANE 1835'eM  0Z-000-0TTT
"33ISNJL ANOd A9 A 13H
pun4 1UNoday 9
anjeA 1a)le|\ suonausay wmﬂ._. JuswisaAu| SWeN JuswilsaAu| awleu / Jsquinu Junoddy

21


AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent Calendar
Item#   h


Consent Calendar

ltem#

%EV Ve eveE'vrT $ ¥80'0C $ <CTZ'6TV $
'000°'0¥$ Sem jJunowe 10enuo) [eulblO "000°0T$ [eUOnIppEe Ue 1o} 10'NU0D puswy 0} JapiO abueydy
2%0GS°'€S €02y $ G9G9°LT $ 00S'8L $ VSd BunoA » AInL
%€EL'EC 8oc'ee ¢ - $ 212’86 $ VSd Bunnsuo? osuLIS
%TZ' Ve 0099 $ O0SP'T $ 005926T $ VSd S1031YdIVY 9adiN
%0879 2ov’ze $ 690'T $ 00009 $ VSd Buninsuo) |re3x
unowy 19bpng A4 aep yiuop  1oesiuod erol uonduosag ey nsuo)
1oenuo)d  T20¢-0¢0c 01 pled a1in)d
10 1Ud9I8d
S1JeJjuo) J1ole
%.T'v. 0G0'G9C $ 985'96T $ 0S88T $ 050'G2L Siaplo se| "ou| ‘'9g Aq suonnjos
%GS'6 000'GLT $ 712,98 $ /8€t $ [elol
ovr've $ 2.9 $ adl SI9plo Mse | swepy unsny Aydinp
eCT'IT % - $ adl Si9plo Xse| alownyM ApisseD 1agalT
TS6'Ss ¢ VIT $ adl SI9pJO Mse L NISNAC ® XOONVYIN d3Mvd
- $ - $ agl siaplo yse| uung % suowuwiS yoewos
L09'GE $ TO09C $ adl SI9pJO Mse L d11 ‘sAsulony odr
(%026) Jeak 18bpng A4 alep JIuoN  10eJqiuo) eyol uonduosag 1uelnsuo)d

JO 1UadJisd Tc20c-0c0c O} pred wsung

S10B1IU0D) Joulelay [eodsiH

T120¢Z/1€/S0 JO sV
sasuadx3 juelnsuo)d

22


AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent Calendar
Item#   i


Consent Calendar

ltem# j

8/€'99 $
62501
6v8'sS  $

[elol

Ireday urepy Jarep\ uspwe)d
Ireday urepy uoissiwsuel] ,9¢

:Buipnjour ‘syosload reuded usasioyun sapnjoul (g)

“1eak Juaind ul pala|dwod pue JaA0 paled Yiom ‘1anamoy ‘sreak Joud ul Joy parabpng s1oaloid rended (z)
T20z/T€/S ubnoy) Joge pazifendes ul €22 '6vT$ sapnjaul (1)

%9E 7L 65695/ $ 6.7 $ 2¢25.0L¢€ $ €LL6VT $  %6E/9 986'0S6'€ $ 0S.298°S $ [2101-qnS
(€) %8€99 6.€99 - 000°00T - - 21022 %899 6.€99 000°00T s108foid [ended usssaiojun
%08°06 108'06 - 000°00T aNs pue Buipjing dio - %0806 108'06 000°00T l0jeAeOX3 WNNoeA
%9%'99 91.'68 8G2'T 000'SET als pue Buipjing dio - %9%'99 91.'68 000°GET suswade|day 3oniL
%6506 960°€90'C 61S'C 225'112'2 ans pue Buip)! dio - %97 16 960'€90'C 062'552'2 py uewisie/\ 6286
%000 - - 000'G2 swieal ] dio - %000 - 000'52 sesswe) Aundes
%000 - - - swyeal ] dio - %¥S 00T 90¥'G. 000°G. sanLQ Aousnbald s|qeleA d1MyY
%000 - - - swyeal ] dio - %000 - 000°0€ eUUBIUY OIpRY At [IBM
%000 - - 000'G. swyeal ] dio - %000 - 000°G. SlI3M Mo|leys siazAfeuy auuojyd
%ET'T9 ¥85'G8 ¥10'T 000°0¥T uonnguisig/Aiddns  dIo - %ET'T9 ¥85'G8 000°0¥T suswade|day auI dINISS
%000 - - 000°0T ans pue Buipjing ISk - %000 - 000°0T [e8S 180D puE Jleday Juswaned
%000 - - 000°0S swyeal ] amy - %000 - 000°0S siuswsoe|day 1930ng O1d
%veT 609'T 60T 000'02T uonnquisig/Aiddns  y®Y - %peT 609'T 000°02T weiboid uonen|iqeyay [IBM
(2) %00°00T TS9'TE - - uonnquisig/Aiddns  y®Y - %LT6VT Z8T'OvT 00086 (att) weiboid uoneyjigeySY [I9M
%T19'8Y ¥21'82¢ $  6E8'2E $ 000°G.9 $ uonnqusig/Aiddns ¥Ry 192217 $ %6205 ST2'Z€E'T $ 000'6V9'C  $ juswaoe|day 2IMBS/SURW 48R M prefoeg
wads  (T) ALA [eloL dx3108loid  186png 12-0202 adA1 108loid adAL loge juads areq ol 186png 108f0.d [ended

% ALA pung  paziended ueoI9d  dx3joeloud  10sfoid eloL

Ae\ felol

T202/1€/S J0 SV
s[enjoy sa 186png
1998[01d 1uawanoidwi fende) Jolep

23


AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent Calendar
Item#   j


June 15, 2021

TO: Chair and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District
FROM: Travis Franklin, Program Manager

SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING - 2020 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors:

1. Subject to the receipt and consideration of comments during the public hearing
on this matter, approve Resolution No. 06.15.21.01, adopting the 2020 Urban
Water Management Plan;

2. Adopt Ordinance No. 06.15.21.01, repealing and replacing the previous Water
Shortage Contingency Plan Ordinances 07.23.14.02, 04.28.10.01, and
06.21.06.01; and

3. Adopt Ordinance No. 06.15.21.02, repealing and replacing an Enforcement
Procedure for Violations of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan Ordinance
06.24.15.01

SUMMARY

Every five (5) years, water agencies are required by the Urban Water Management
Planning Act to prepare an Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP). In 2016, the Elk
Grove Water District (EGWD) completed its current UWMP, entitled the Elk Grove
Water District 2015 Urban Water Management Plan. By July 1, 2021, the EGWD must
submit an updated UWMP to the State.

Staff has completed the update of the UWMP for the Florin Resource Conservation
District (FRCD) Board of Directors’ (Board) approval, subject to the comments received
and considered during the public hearing, titled 2020 Urban Water Management Plan
(2020 UWMP). If approved, staff will submit the 2020 UWMP (attached) to the California
Department of Water Resources in compliance with State law.

Part of the 2020 UWMP preparation was to update EGWD’s Water Shortage

Contingency Plan (WSCP). If approved, this new plan will replace the existing plan and
staff will implement this in future water shortage events.

AGENDA ITEM No. 3

24



June 15, 2021

PUBLIC HEARING - 2020 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN
Page 2

DISCUSSION

Background

On June 21, 2006, the Board adopted a WSCP by Ordinance No. 06.21.06.01. The
WSCP was updated on April 28, 2010 by adoption of Ordinance No. 04.28.10.01 as part
of a regional cooperative effort to adopt WSCPs consistent with other agencies
belonging to the Water Forum. On July 23, 2014, the WSCP was amended by
Ordinance No. 07.23.14.01 in response to the State Water Resource Control Board’s
issuance of an emergency regulation for statewide urban water conservation.

On June 24, 2015, the Board adopted an Enforcement Procedure for Violations of the
Water Shortage Contingency Plan Ordinance No. 06.24.15.01.

On November 18, 2020, the EGWD contracted with Tully & Young and its
subconsultant, Zanjero, to update the UWMP.

The 2020 UWMP requirements have expanded since the 2015 update. The 2020
UWMP must include: (1) more robust water supply and demand analyses; (2) a five-
year Drought Risk Assessment; (3) a detailed Water Shortage Contingency Plan; and
(4) proof of compliance with the 20% by 2020 water conservation mandate.

Present Situation

The major findings and conclusions of the 2020 UWMP are:

= The EGWD'’s water supplies are stable and reliable. Both the groundwater supply
and the Sacramento County Water Agency’s surface and groundwater water
supply are highly reliable over the 25-year UWMP planning horizon. As such,
water service to Service Area 1 and Service Area 2 should remain stable in all
year types. (Normal, Single Dry Year and Multi-Year Drought)
= The state-mandated 2020 water consumption target for EGWD’s customer base
was achieved.
o 2020 Target GPCD =191
o 2020 Actual GPCD =137

The 2020 UWMP gives EGWD confidence that it has a robust water supply to meet the
current water needs and accommodate the anticipated future water demands in its
service areas.

On June 1, 2021, a draft of the 2020 UWMP was made available for public viewing at
the EGWD Administration Building and on EGWD’s website. On May 28 and June 4,

AGENDA ITEM No. 3

25



June 15, 2021

PUBLIC HEARING - 2020 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN
Page 3

2021, public notices were published in the Elk Grove Citizen newspaper advertising that
a public hearing would be conducted at the June 15, 2021 FRCD regular board meeting
to receive public comments on the 2020 UWMP.

As part of the 2020 UWMP, the WSCP was updated. A WSCP provides for emergency
water supply management related to general supply shortages due to severe droughts,
infrastructure failure, catastrophic supply interruption, or any other cause. This WSCP
allows for declaration of supply shortages by the Board. When a shortage is identified,
the Board assesses if a particular shortage stage (and corresponding response actions)
should be declared. Upon Board declaration of a shortage stage, restrictions,
regulations, prohibitions on uses, and enforcement measures are enacted. This new
plan has six stages, incremental shortage steps, and reduction measures to allow
flexibility depending on the shortage that exists.

The current Enforcement Procedure for Violations of the Water Shortage Contingency
Plan Ordinance references items that will become outdated if the Board approves and
adopts the new Water Shortage Contingency Plan.

Staff recommends that the Board approve Resolution No. 06.15.21.01, adopting the
2020 Urban Water Management Plan, subject to the receipt and consideration of
comments during the public hearing on this matter.

Staff recommends that the Board adopt Ordinance No. 06.15.21.01, repealing and
replacing previous Water Shortage Contingency Plan Ordinance No. 07.23.14.02,
04.28.10.01, and 06.21.06.01.

Staff recommends that the Board adopt Ordinance No. 06.15.21.02, repealing and

replacing an Enforcement Procedure for Violations of the Water Shortage Contingency
Plan Ordinance No. 06.24.15.01.

STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY

This staff report conforms to Strategic Goal 3, Planning and Operational Efficiency, of
the FRCD/EGWD 2020-2025 Strategic Plan which directs the EGWD to update the
Urban Water Management Plan, including the development of a new Water Shortage
Contingency Plan.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AGENDA ITEM No. 3

26



PUBLIC HEARING - 2020 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

June 15, 2021

Page 4

There is no financial impact associated with this item.

Respectfully submitted,

—
o —
— i
/ o
F . 4 g
s

TRAVIS FRANKLIN
PROGRAM MANAGER

Attachments

AGENDA ITEM No. 3

27



RESOLUTION NO. 06.15.21.01

A RESOLUTION OF THE FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ADOPTING THE
2020 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

WHEREAS, the Urban Water Management Planning Act requires that each water
supplier update its plan at least once every five (5) years on or before July 1, in years ending in
six (6) and one (1) ; and

WHEREAS, all water suppliers are required to complete and update an Urban Water
Management Plan in order to be eligible for financial assistance administered by the Department
of Water Resources; and

WHEREAS, the Florin Resource Conservation District (District) has prepared a
thorough and complete update to the Urban Water Management Plan to serve the District as a
long-range planning document for water supply; and

WHEREAS, the District’s Urban Water Management Plan provides a source of
information for Water Supply Assessments, Water Code Section 10613 et seq., and Written
Verifications of Water Supply, Water Code Section 66473.7, where both statutes require detailed
information regarding water availability to be provided to the City of Elk Grove or County of
Sacramento decision makers prior to approval of specified large development projects; and

WHEREAS, the District has updated its Urban Water Management Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS DOES HEREBY RESOLVE:

SECTION 1. The Board of Directors hereby adopts the foregoing recitals as true and
correct and incorporates them herein by reference.

SECTION 2. The Board of Directors hereby adopts 2020 Urban Water Management
Plan and orders it filed with the Board Secretary.

SECTION 3. The Board of Directors hereby authorizes and directs the District’s
General Manager to file the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan with the State of California,
Department of Water Resources by July 1, 2021, in accordance with the Urban Water
Management Planning Act.

SECTION 4. The Board of Directors hereby authorizes and directs the District’s
General Manager to implement the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan.

28



PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Florin Resource Conservation District
Board of Directors on this 15th day of June, 2021 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
Sophia Scherman
Chair
ATTEST:

Stefani Phillips
Board Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Ren Nosky
General Counsel



EXHIBIT “A”

“ELK GROVE WATER DIsTRICT 2020 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN.”

(APPENDICES NOT INCLUDED BUT ARE AVAILABLE ON EGWD’s WEBSITE)

[Attached behind this cover page]

30



Public Draft — May 2021

2020 Urban Water Management Plan

qrce Consery,
?&50 lio,

Elk Grove Water District

Prepared by:

R O

Tully & Young ZANJERO

Comprehensive Water Planning

31



Table of Contents

Executive Summary - Layperson’s DESCHIPLION......cc.viiiivtecceceecee ettt e e st sre et see e s enaenaen ES-1
ES-1 Elk Grove Water DiSTrCE....c.cueeiiieeiiiecie ettt 1-2
ES-2 EGWD’s Water Service Reliability ......coovvuiiiiiiiiiicies et 1-2

(o o] =Y ol B VoY Yo [ U ot o o TP SRS 1-1
1.1 Background and PUMPOSE .....ciiiuiiieiiiiieecitee ettt e et e e svee s et e e e saaa e e s earae e e enbaeesenneeas 1-1
1.2 Basis fOr Plan Preparation ... ittt e e sae e e save e e s rae e e e nbae e e neeas 1-2
1.3 Coordination and OULIEACh ........cooiiiiiiieiieieeeeeeee e e e s e 1-3

1.3.1 Water Supplier Information EXChange .......cc.oeeeiiiieiiiiiie et 1-4
1.3.2 Statutory Requirements for NOTICE .....c.uueiiiiiieiciiee ettt 1-4
14 UWMP AOPLION ettt ttre e e e s st e e e e e s s aab e e e e e e e e e eanstaaeeeeesennnnnns 1-4
15 Document Organization ........ooiiiiiiiiii e 1-5

Chapter 2 Water Service and System DeSCriPtiON ........cccuiiieiiiiieecieee et eeciee et eeseare e e e eraeeeeesreeeeeanaeaeas 2-1
2.1 W ater SEIVICE AT ..iii ettt e e st e e s enr e e e s sre e e e samreeessneeeesnee 2-1
2.2 SErvice Area ClIMATe .o.eei ittt et ettt e e bt e ae e e sabe e s beessneeenes 2-1

D 2 R O [T 4 =Y €T 1 o = oV RSP 2-4
American River Basin STUAY .......ooociiiiiiiiic ettt e ire e s arnee e 2-4

Projected FULUre CONAITIONS .......veiiiiiiieciiiee ettt et e e e e e abee e e 2-5
=10 ] =T LU = PP PPPPPPPPPPPPPP 2-5
PreCiPItAtioN (oo e aaaees 2-6

SNOWPACK ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e bata e e e e e e e nnnrrraees 2-6

AV oo 1 =1 0 1Y 11 -1 4 [0 o PSS 2-6

{0 g o ] i OO PP PSRRI 2-7

2.3 Current and Projected Population, Land Use, Economy, and Demographics .................. 2-8
2.3.1 Current Population and Historic Trends .......ccceevviiiiiiiiieeiiiiec e sveee e 2-9
2.3.2  Current and Projected Land USE........coicciiiiiiiiieiciieecciree et sriae e s e s svae e s snae e e snvaeaeas 2-9
2.3.3 Economic Trends & Other Social and Demographic Factors.......ccccceeeiveeevcieeicciiee e, 2-11
Expected Population Based Upon Land-Use Planning.......cccccceeivciveeiecieeesceee e, 2-12

2.4 Delivery System DetailS.......cciiiiiiieiee et e 2-13
O R o) -] o (I3 (=] o RSP 2-13

2.5 ENErgY INTENSITY . coiiiiiiiiii e 2-15

32



CRaPTEr 3 W ater SUPPIY e iiiiee ettt e ettt e e ettt e e ettt e e e ettt e e e abaeeeesseeesassaeeeanssssesssaseeanssaeesassenaans 3-1

3.1 Existing Water Supplies and Entitlements ..o 3-1
3.2 Groundwater Basin and EGWD Groundwater SUPPlEs.......cccocveviiiiiieincieee e 3-2
3.2.1 Sacramento Valley — South American SUbbasin........ccccccviviiiiiiiiiee e 3-2
3.2.2 Central Basin Groundwater Management ........ccccccviiiiiiiieiiiieee e esreeeesee e esreeessvaee e 3-5
3.2.3  GroundwWater QUAlILY ..ueeeeieee e e e e e s ta e e e e e e e nraeeeas 3-7
3.2.4 EGWD GroundwWater SUPPIES .....ceeciveeieiiiieccitie ettt e e e st e e s saaae e s saaee s ssnaneeeas 3-9

33 EGWD Contract Supplies With SCWA .........ooo et 3-10
3.4 RECYCIEA WaALE ...oeieiee ettt ettt e e e tte e e e eata e e e e bae e e entee e e ebteeeenneeas 3-11
35 DESaliNAtEd WALtEI .....eeeiiieieeee ettt st sttt sttt et 3-12
3.6 Transfer and Exchange OpportUNIties ........cccueeeeciiee et 3-12
In Lieu Banking Arrangement with Surface Water PUrVeyor........ccccoveeeeeeccciiieeeeeeeeens 3-12

Third Party Water Exchange Arrangement ......coovcvieeiiiieieiiiieeesiee e esiiee e e esvee e s 3-12

3.7 CliIMAte Change . .uviii e e s e e e st e e s sbe e e e sbeeeesantaeeesneeaesanes 3-13
3.8 Planned Water SUPPIY ProjECES....ciu ittt ettt ere e et bee e e 3-13
3.9 EGWD SUpply Reli@bility......ceeiiiiieieiee ettt e 3-13
CRAPTEE A WAtEE USE ..uveiiiivieieceieee ettt ettt eette e eete e e et e e e eetaeeeesbaeeeeestaesesbaseesassaeeesssesesnsseeeeastresesnsseeennn 4-1
4.1 Current Customer Water USe........ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicic e 4-2
4.1.1 Customer Water Use: 2016 10 2019 ......cccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciecc et 4-2
4.1.2  Customer Use iN 2020.......ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiie et sra e s 4-3
4.1.3  Existing Distribution SYStem LOSSES.....cccicuiiiiieeiiciiiiee et e e e eecrrre e e e e e e sveee e e e e e e ennnes 4-4

4.2 Compliance with 2020 Urban Water Use Target ......ccoceeeeeeeeciiiieee e ccciiieeee e ecnneeee e 4-5
4.3 Demand Management IMEBASUIES ......ccccccuiieieeeeeeiiteeeeeeeeecttreeeeeeessssseseeseeessssssessessennnsnns 4-5
4.3.1 Foundational Demand Management IMEASUIES.........cceeeeeeccuieeeeeeeeciiireeeeeeeeinreneeeeeeeennnes 4-6
Water Waste Prevention OrdiNanCes ..........eeeieerieeiiiieeniieeniee et eseee e sieeesveessiee e 4-6

Y= =T T oY= OO ORO R PR OO PP O PPPPPPPPPPTPPPRRY 4-7

(O] a1 V= L [o] T o [of [ o V- PR OO U OO PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPRE 4-7

Public Education and OUTreach .........ccociieiieiieiieiceeeeee e 4-7

Programs to Assess and Manage Distribution System Real LOSS........cccceeeeiveeeriieeennnnen. 4-10

Water Conservation Program Coordination and Staffing Support.........ccccceeeciveeecnnennn. 4-10

Other Demand Management MEASUIES ........cccueeeecieeeeeiiieeeecteeeeecteeeeestreeeseteeeeereeeesanns 4-11

Regional Water Authority Membership......cccccooeciiiieiiiiccee e 4-11

Practical Plumbing HandbooK .........ccoo it 4-11

Water USE AUGIT ..cceueiieiieeiie ettt et st e bt e e be e e sbeesnee s 4-12

4.3.2  ReCent DIMIM ACHIVITIES ..cooueeieeiiiie ettt e e s e s 4-12

33



4.3.3  Planned DIMM ACLIVITIES .....eeeriieiiieiiee ettt 4-12

4.4 Forecasting CUuStOMEr USE ....cccoiiiiiii e ee e e e eeneeeees 4-12
4.4.1 Representing Current Customer Water USE.......ooovuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee et e e 4-12
4.4.2 Factors Affecting FUture CUSTOMEr USE .......ciiiciiiiiiiiiecciiee sttt sree e stee e sveee e 4-13
Water Conservation ObJECLIVES ......ciiiciiiiiiiiecccec e aae e 4-14
Requirements in California Code ........oiiiiiiiiiieicceee et 4-14

California Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance and County Ordinance ........... 4-15

Metering, Volumetric Pricing, and Water BUdgets.......c.ccceecveeiicieeeeeciee e, 4-15

4.4.3 Customer Water Use FOreCast......ccocovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiec et 4-16
Existing Customer FUTUIE USe ......cooiiiiiiii it eeeeeeees 4-16

New CUStOmMEr FUTUIE USE ...couiiiiiiei ettt 4-16

New Residential Customer Water USE.......ccccueereeiiiieiiie et 4-16

New Non-Residential Customer Water Use Factors.......ccccueeveeerieeniieeniiee e 4-18

4.4.4  SuMMary of FOrecast Water USE ......ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt steeessieee st e e ssvae e s sreeessanes 4-19
4.4.5 Adjusting Water Use Forecasts for Single-Dry and Multiple Dry Conditions.................. 4-19
4.4.6 Climate Change ConsSiderationsS.......ccccieiiiiieiiiiiee it erree e e sree e e e ere e e e sbee e e e neeas 4-20

4.5 Forecasting Water Use for the DRA and Annual Assessment........cccceccveeeeeieeeecieeeeennnen. 4-20
4.5.1 Projecting Water Use for 5-year Drought Risk ASS€SSMENt .......ccceveivcieeeeiiieeeeriiee e, 4-20
4.5.2 Projecting Water Use for Annual ASSESSMENTS ....cc.veveiviiieeiiiiee et re e e 4-21

4.6 Projecting Disadvantaged Community Water USE........ccceeevieeeiicieieecciee e 4-22
Chapter 5 Water System Reli@bility ........c.vooiuiiiiiii ettt et et e eare e e beeeaee s 5-1
5.1 Five Year Drought Risk ASSESSMENT .....c..eeviiiiieii ettt e e e re e e e e e enenes 5-1
5.2 Long Term Service Relability .........coueiieeciiiiiee e e e e e 5-2
5.2.1 Long Term Service ReHability .......cccovccuiiiiiiee et 5-2
Normal and Single Dry Conditions 2025-2045 ..........cooeriieeeiiiieeeniieeeesieeeesiee e ssveeessveeas 5-2

Five Consecutive Dry Years 2025 — 2045 ...ttt eeereeeeeeees 5-3

5.3 Annual Reliability ASSESSIMENT ...eviiiiiiiiiieieee et eerrree e e e eerree e e e e e e earaeeeeeeesnaraaeeeas 5-4
5.3.1 Normal Year Supply and Current Water USE........ccuviieiiieeiiiiieeeiiieeecreeeecieeeesvveeessvnee e 5-4
5.3.2 Single Dry Year Supply and Dry-Year Current Demand ..........ccceccvveeeecieeeecineeeccieee e, 5-5

5.4 Water Supply Reliability SUMMAry ......coii i 5-5
Chapter 6 Water Shortage ContingenCy PlaN .........ccueiiiiieiiei ettt ettt ettt et e e eanes 6-1
6.1 [T | I AN U o o 1= SRR 6-1
6.2 Water Supply Reliability ANalYSiS .....cc.uviiieeeee e e 6-2
6.3 Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment Procedures ..........ccccceeeecvieeeeeeeeccnvnnennn. 6-2
6.4 Water ShOrtage STaAZES .. uuii ittt e e st e e sbte e e ssnteeessbeeeesnes 6-4

34



6.4.1
6.5
6.6
6.7
6.8
6.9
6.10
6.11
6.12

NOrmMal Water SUPPIY coeeeeeeeeeee ettt e e e et e e e s et re e e e e e e e ennraaeee s 6-4

Enforcement and VarianCes .......coocei ittt 6-9
CommMUNICAtiON ProtOCOIS. .....uiiiiiiiieieectee ettt 6-10
Financial Consequences Of WSCP .......oooiiiiiiiiie ettt e s e 6-10
Monitoring and REPOITING......cccuiii it e rree e e bee e e 6-11
Response ACtion ESTimates ..ot 6-11
WSCP Refinement ProCeAUIES ......c..coviiiiieiiiieeeceee ettt 6-13
Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Availability........ccccccoeeireiiiiiei e, 6-13

Seismic Risk Assessment and Mitigation Plan (Catastrophic interruption in supplies).. 6-14

35



List of Tables

Table 1-1: Public Water System INformation ... e e 1-2
Table 1-2: Public and Agency Coordination...........ccoociiiieii ittt e e e e nr e e e as 1-4
Table 2-1: Customer Water Service CONNECLIONS .......ciiiuiiiriieiie ettt ettt sreesbeessbeeesaee e 2-2
Table 2-2: Elk Grove Water District Climate Information........ccccoecveiiiciiee e, 2-4
Table 2-3: Projected Change in Precipitation and Temperature Over the American River Basin Study
Area Between 1980-2009 and 2070-2099.......cccteirieieeriienieenieesieenieesieesreestee st e st e sseesreesreesreesbeeseeesneesneennes 2-6
Table 2-4: Change in Hydrologic Indicators between Historical Observations and Projected Future

[ V70 [0 Fo T = SRS 2-8
Table 2-5: Estimated Population — Historical and CUrrent ...........ccceveeeeciiiiieie et 2-9
Table 2-6: Cumulative NeW CONNECTIONS. ... ..oiiiiiiiieriie ettt ettt ettt e et sbe e sbeesreeebeeesaeeesanes 2-10
Table 2-7: Expected Total CONNECLIONS ...ciiciiiiiiiiie ettt e e e sbre e e s sate e e ssabeeeesbeeeesnes 2-11
Table 2-8: Projected FUTUIe POPUIGLION ......oooiiiiieee ettt et e e e eare e e e e e e e eatraaeeeeeeennannns 2-13
Table 2-9: Energy Intensity — Total Utility APProach ........ccueeeeiiiiiciiie e 2-15
Table 3-1: Service Area 1 Wells and Historical Production .........cc.ccoeeerieiieneeniiniencceeeesee e 3-1
Table 3-2: Service Area 2 Historical Water Supply Deliveries from SCWA ..........cccoeeieiieeecciee e, 3-2
Table 3-3: Service Area 1 Groundwater Quality (2019 Consumer Confidence Report).......ccccceevveeenneen. 3-8
Table 3-4: Service Area 2 SCWA Groundwater Quality (2019 Consumer Confidence Report) ................ 3-8
Table 3-5: Service Area 2 SCWA Surface Water Quality (2019 Consumer Confidence Report)............... 3-9
Table 3-6: EGWD Service Area 1 Groundwater Supply through 2025..........cooeiiiiiiiiiiie e 3-10
Table 3-7: EGWD Service Area 1 Groundwater Supply Potential through 2045.........ccoooeiiiieeeeeeiccnnne 3-10
Table 3-8: EGWD Service Area 2 SCWA Agreement Supply through 2025 ........ccccoeiiviiieiiiiieesccieee s 3-11
Table 3-9: EGWD Service Area 2 Projected SCWA Agreement Supply through 2045..........ccoceevvcieennns 3-11
Table 3-10: EGWD Total Potential Supplies through 2025..........ccocoviiiiiiiiiiieeeccee e 3-15
Table 3-11: EGWD Total Potential Supplies through 2045............cccviiiiiiiiiiiieee e 3-15
Table 4-1: Customer Water Use: 2016 to 2019 (values in acre-feet).....ccccvcvveiiivcvreeeeiiiicccreeeee e, 4-3
Table 4-2: Total District Customer Use: 2020 (values in acre-feet)......cccovveeeiiiiicvneeereiiieeieeeee e 4-4
Table 4-3: Distribution System Loss: 2016 through 2020............coooiiiieiiiiee e e 4-5
Table 4-4: Demonstration of Compliance with 2020 GPCD Target ......ccccveeeecieeeecieee et 4-5
Table 4-5: Representative Current Customer Water Use (acre-feet) ......occeecieeeecciiececiie e 4-13
Table 4-6: Anticipated New Residential Units (from Table 2-6).......cccceevcveeiiciiieecccieee et 4-17
Table 4-7: Forecast Future Water Use (values in acre-feet per year) .......cocevveeveeescieesciiescieeecee e 4-19

36



Table 4-8: Forecast DRA Water Use for 2021 through 2025 (acre-feet per year)

Table 4-9: Normal and Single Dry Year “Current” Water Use (acre-feet)

Table 4-10: Estimated Low-Income Water Use Forecast (acre-feet)

Table 5-1: Five Year Drought Risk Assessment

Table 5-2: Normal and Single Dry Year Water Supply and Demand through 2045

Table 5-3: Five Consecutive Dry Years Water Supply and Demand through 2045

Table 5-4: Normal Year Water Supply and Demand

Table 5-5: Single Dry Year Water Supply and Demand

Table 6-1: Shortage Response Action Measures Estimates

37



List of Figures

Figure ES-1: Elk Grove Water District Water SErVICE Ar€a ......ccuuveeeeiieciiiieeee et e e e e e naaae e 1-2
(UL I A R =T oV ol <Y L3N 2-2
Figure 2-2: Monthly Average Climate for the Elk Grove Water District........ccccevviieeircieeiniieee e, 2-3
Figure 2-3: Distribution of Average Monthly Runoff for Historical Record (1922-2015) and Future

Projections under Central Tendency Climate SCENAIIO .......ceeieiieiieciii e 2-7
Figure 2-4. Sacrament Region Labor STatiStiCs ......cciiiiiiiiiiie ittt e 2-12
Figure 2-5: POtable Water SYSTEM ......ccuuiii ettt ette e et e e e e ta e e e s eate e e eebaeeeebteeeeentaeesesteeenanes 2-14
Figure 3-1: EGWD’s Location in South American Subbasin ........ccccccuvvieiiiii i e 3-4
Figure 3-2: Local Groundwater Basin Descriptions in Sacramento County........cccccceeeeeeiccviieeeeeeeecnvenenn. 3-5
Figure 3-3: SCGA PartiCipating ABENCIES......uuiuiiiiiieieeieeeeeeee et e e e e e e e e e s e e s e e e s e nnnnnes 3-6
Figure 3-4: South American Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Agencies..........ccccceveciiieeeeieecccinnenn. 3-7

Figure 3-6: Excedance Plot of Folsom Reservoir Storage (end of Sept) Under Future Climate Change . 3-14

Figure 3-5: Well Monitoring Data Showing Depth to Groundwater ..........ccccccvevivcieeinceee e 3-14

38



Tully & Young, Inc.

Gwyn-Mohr Tully, J.D.

Greg Young, P.E.
Kris Olof

Galen Davis
Dave Bolland
Jingcheng Xu
Jennie McCarl

Zanjero
Jim Crowley, P.E.

Robert Heather
Frank Lyles

List of Preparers

Elk Grove Water District
Travis Franklin - Program Manager
Bruce Kamilos — General Manager

This 2020 Urban Water Management Plan was prepared under the direction of a
California licensed civil engineer.

39



2020 Urban Water Management Plan

[Signature 1 Name]

[Title]

[Signature 2 Name]

[Title]

[Signature 3 Name]

[Title]

2020 UWMP — Public Draft

Signhature Page

Prepared for:
Elk Grove Water District
9257 Elk Grove Blvd

Elk Grove, CA 95624

Prepared by:

Tully & Young, Inc.

965 University Ave, Suite 222
Sacramento, CA 95825

916.669.9357

Zanjero Water

169 Parkshore Drive, Suite 110

Folsom, CA 95630

Date: [final date]

40



Executive Summary
Layperson’s Description

After the devastating drought in the late 1970s, the California Legislature declared California’s water
supplies a limited resource, subject to ever-increasing demands and that the long-term, reliable supply
of water is essential to protect California’s businesses, communities, agricultural production, and
environmental interests. The Legislature also recognized a need to strengthen local and regional
drought planning and increase statewide resilience to drought and climate change. Thus, in 1983, the
California Legislature created the Urban Water Management Planning Act (UWMPA).? The UWMPA
requires urban water suppliers serving over 3,000 customers or supplying at least 3,000 acre-feet of
water annually to prepare and adopt an urban water management plan every five years,? and
demonstrate water supply reliability in a normal year, single dry year, and droughts lasting at least five
years over a twenty-year planning horizon.3> The UWMPA also requires each urban water supplier to
prepare a drought risk assessment and water shortage contingency plan.* And last, beginning in July
2022, each urban water supplier must prepare an annual water supply and demand assessment.> The
California Legislature asserts that aggregating all of these legal requirements at the urban water supplier
level will improve local, regional, and statewide water planning and water resilience.

At a practical level, the Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) is the legal and technical water
management foundation for urban water suppliers throughout California. A well-constructed UWMP
will provide the supplier’s elected officials, management, staff, and customers with an understanding of
past, current, and future water conditions and management. The UWMP integrates local and regional
land use planning, regional water supply, infrastructure, and demand management projects as well as
providing for statewide challenges that may manifest through climate change and evolving regulations.
Thoughtful urban water management planning provides an opportunity for the supplier to integrate
supplies and demands in a balanced and methodical planning platform that addresses short-term and
long-term planning conditions. In brief, the UWMP gathers, characterizes, and synthesizes water-
related information from numerous sources into a plan with local, regional, and statewide practical
utility.

1 california Water Code Section 10610 et seq. (Chapter 1 added by Stats. 1983, Ch. 1009, Sec. 1).
2 California Water Code Section 10610 et seq.

3 California Water Code Sections 10631-10635

4 California Water Code Sections 10632

> California Water Code Sections 10632.1

2020 UWMP — Public Draft ES-1

41



ES-1 Elk Grove Water District

The Elk Grove Water District (District) is a public water agency that provides potable water directly to
retail customers throughout the approximately 13 square mile service area boundary. The District,
originally created in 1893 to provide local water services and fire protection water resources, has
continued to be a predominant water purveyor within the City of Elk Grove. Formerly called Elk Grove
Water Works, it was family owned until 1999 when it was purchased by the Florin Resources
Conservation District (FRCD). The District’s services are coordinated and managed within the FRCD, and
it is governed by a five member, publicly elected Board of Directors.

Serving a population of over 45,000, the District has a broad range of responsibilities, including long-
term water reliability planning, management of current groundwater assets, and distribution of potable
water.

The District is separated into two service areas: Service Area 1 and Service Area 2. Service Area 1is

supplied by groundwater wells and treated by the District’s water treatment plant. Service Area 2 is
supplied by surface water and groundwater purchased from SCWA. Figure ES-1 represents EGWD’s

service areas.

Figure ES-1: Elk Grove Water District Water Service Area

3 ECWD Service Area
\ . | Service Area 1
| Service Area 2

0 4000 8000 12000 it
| EEEaa—

\ Source: Sicramento County Jzer Lam
\ Basemzp: DzerStrectMap

2020 UWMP — Public Draft ES-2

42



ES-2 EGWD’s Water Service Reliability

Elk Grove Water District has developed a robust water supply portfolio to serve its current and future
demands. The District derives its water supplies from two sources — groundwater from the South
American Subbasin and contract supplies through an agreement with Sacramento County Water Agency.
The District’s groundwater supplies are linked to a number of historical groundwater management
actions, including formation of the Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority (SCGA) and more
recently the development of the SCGA Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) under the Sustainable
Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). SCGA prepared the original groundwater management
framework that has been included in the District’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan. SCGA's
ongoing water management activities have stabilized the South American Subbasin’s groundwater levels
and helped preserve the District’s access to those supplies for future generations.

SCGA GSA is updating the existing groundwater management plans, in cooperation with four other
GSA’s, to ensure that the South American Subbasin meets the SGMA sustainability objectives. The
South American Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) will be completed in 2022 and will
characterize and develop specific actions that meet the SGMA sustainability objectives. And although
the new GSP may alter how and under what conditions the District may access groundwater supplies
from the South American Subbasin, the District does not anticipate any actions that would reduce long-
term reliability of the groundwater to meet its current and future demands.

The District also has a Master Water Agreement with Sacramento County Water Agency (SCWA) that it
signed in 1995 and renewed in 2002 (Agreement). This Agreement obligates SCWA to provide water
supplies to the District’s service area. The Agreement has a fifty-year term and a right of renewal that
stabilizes the long-term reliability of this supply to meet the District’s current and future demands.
Moreover, SCWA may deliver any of its water supplies — both surface water and groundwater — based
on the terms of the Agreement, giving the District added reliability through SCWA’s diverse water supply
portfolio and conjunctive use actions. Taken together, the District’s groundwater supplies and
Agreement provide reliable supplies to meet the District’s normal, single dry, and five-consecutive dry
year water supply needs through 2045.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft ES-3

43



Chapter 1 - Introduction

Chapter 1
Introduction

The Elk Grove Water District (EGWD or District) has been a water supplier in southern Sacramento
County for over 120 years. The District, originally created in 1893 to provide local water services and fire
protection water resources, has continued to be a predominant water purveyor within the City of Elk
Grove. Formerly called Elk Grove Water Works, it was family owned until 1999 when it was purchased
by the Florin Resources Conservation District (FRCD). The District’s services are coordinated and
managed within the FRCD, and it is governed by a five member, publicly elected Board of Directors.

Serving a population of over 45,000, the District has a broad range of responsibilities, including long-
term water reliability planning, management of current groundwater assets, and distribution of potable
water.

Ensuring an adequate supply of water is available to serve the existing and future needs for the District’s
residents and Commercial, Institutional and Industrial (Cll) customers is a critical component of
successful planning for EGWD. This Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) draws on local, regional
and statewide inputs to synthesize information from numerous sources into a reliable water
management action plan designed to be referred to as management and Board level decisions arise and
conditions change.

1.1 Background and Purpose

Elk Grove Water District has prepared this 2020 UWMP to comply with the Urban Water Management
Planning Act (UWMPA) requirements for urban water suppliers. This 2020 UWMP addresses the
District’s water management planning efforts to assure adequate water supplies to meet forecast
demands over the next 25 years. As required by the UWMPA, the District’s 2020 UWMP specifically
assesses the availability of its supplies to meet forecast water uses during average, single-dry and five
consecutive drought years through 2045. Verification that future demands will not exceed supplies and
assuring the availability of supplies in dry-year conditions are critical outcomes of this 2020 UWMP.

The 2020 UWMP is an update to the EGWD’s 2015 UWMP and presents new data and analysis as
required by the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) and the California Water Code (CWC)
since 2015. These updates are detailed in Chapter 2 and throughout the rest of the UWMP. The 2020
UWMP is also a comprehensive water planning document that describes existing and future supply
reliability, forecasts future water uses, presents demand management progress, and identifies local and
regional cooperative efforts to meet projected water use.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 1-1

44



Chapter 1 - Introduction

The UWMP is designed to be a valuable water management and planning tool to guide and inform the
EGWD’s Board of Directors, staff, customers and the State of California about its water management
practices. It reflects the District’s planning assumptions and goals and should be used in combination
with other planning resources and documents over the UWMP planning horizon.

The State of California’s drought vulnerability and the additional pressures of climate change and
population growth have emphasized the importance of planning ahead to meet water demands with
potentially at-risk water supplies. Such forward planning is an important outcome of the 2020 UWMP.

1.2 Basis for Plan Preparation

In addition to operating a Public Water System as described in California Health and Safety Code
116275, Elk Grove Water District qualifies as a Retail Urban Water Supplier as described in Water Code
Section 10617, providing water for municipal purposes to more than 3,000 customers or 3,000 acre/feet
of water per year. This qualification requires the preparation of an Urban Water Management plan
every five years. The District’s Public Water System detail is listed in Table 1-1.

Table 1-1: Public Water System Information

Public Water System
Number

CA341008 Elk Grove Water District ~ 12,890

Number of Municipal
Connections 2020

Public Water System Name

The State Legislature passed numerous new requirements since the 2015 UMWP which are detailed
throughout this 2020 UWMP®. Major updates to the requirements are listed below along with a
reference to the corresponding section in which they are addressed in this document.

+ Five Consecutive Dry-Year Water Reliability Assessment: The Legislature modified the dry-year
water reliability planning from a “multiyear” time period to a “drought lasting five consecutive
water years” designation. This statutory change requires a Supplier to analyze the reliability of
its water supplies to meet its water use over an extended drought period. This new requirement
is addressed in Chapter 3—Water Supply Characterization, Chapter 4—Water Use, and Chapter
5— Water Service Reliability Assessment.

+ Drought Risk Assessment (DRA): Due to the extensiveness of recent California droughts and the
variability associated with climate change predictions, the California Legislature created a DRA
requirement for UWMPs. The DRA requires assessment over a five-year period from 2021 to
2025 that examines water supplies, water uses, and the resulting water supply reliability for five
consecutive dry years. The DRA is addressed in Chapter 5— Water Service Reliability Assessment
and Chapter 6—Water Shortage Contingency Plans.

# Seismic Risk: Evaluating seismic risk to water system infrastructure and facilities and having a
mitigation plan is now required by the Water Code. Incorporating the water system into regional
or county hazard mitigation planning is an important aspect of this new statue. Seismic risk is
addressed in Chapter 6.

6 California Water Code Section 10608 to 10608.44; Section 10609 to 10609.38; Section 10610 to 10657

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 1-2

45



Chapter 1 - Introduction

¢+ Water Shortage Contingency Plan In 2018, the Legislature modified the UWMPA to require a
Water Shortage Contingency Plan (WSCP) with specific elements. The WSCP is a document that
provides a Supplier with an action plan for a drought or catastrophic water supply shortage. The
WSCP is in Chapter 6 of this UWMP.

¢+ Groundwater Supplies Coordination 2020 UWMPs are required to be consistent with
Groundwater Sustainability Plans following the 2014 Legislature enactment of the 2014
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). The District’s Groundwater Supplies are
described in Chapter 3—Water Supply Characterization.

& Lay Description A synopsis of the fundamental determinations of the UWMP is a new statutory
requirement in 2020. This section is intended for new staff, new governing members,
customers, and the media, and it can ensure a consistent representation of the Supplier’s
detailed analysis.

1.3 Coordination and Outreach

As required by the Urban Water Management Planning Act (UWMPA) the District has coordinated with
nearby agencies while developing this UWMP in order to ensure consistency with other related service
area planning efforts such as General Plans, Water Master Plans (WMP) and Groundwater Sustainability
Plans (GSP). This requirement includes coordination with (a) water suppliers that share a common water
source, (b) relevant water management agencies that affect the District’s water assets, and relevant
public agencies that may have land use or other regulatory relationships with the District. The District
has prepared this 2020 UWMP in coordination with regional water purveyors, including Sacramento
County Water Agency, and has appropriately notified and coordinated with other appropriate local
government agencies as listed in Table 1-2.

Elk Grove Water District is a member of the Regional Water Authority (RWA), a joint powers authority,
created by water purveyors in the Sacramento region to have a unified approach to regional water
issues. The RWA provides members and associates significant regional coordination to enhance water
management practices.

As stipulated in Water Code Section 10621(b), every urban water supplier shall seek active involvement
from diverse elements of the community. EGWD sought public participation with hearings and notices
to members of the community. These coordination efforts and Statutory Requirements for Notice are
also included in Table 1-2.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 1-3

46



Chapter 1 - Introduction

Table 1-2: Public and Agency Coordination

Coordinate Sent Copy of Draft Sent 60- Notice of
Regarding Demands UWMP Day Notice  Public Hearing
Cities, Counties, Customers and Interested Parties

Coordinating Agencies

Sacramento County

>
>

Sacramento County Water Agency

City of Elk Grove (Planning Dept.) X X

City of Elk Grove
(Public Works Dept.)

Cosumnes CSD

Sacramento County Regional
Sanitation District

>

>
X |IX| X | X|X|[X
X[ X |[X| X | X|X|[X

General Public

Shared Groundwater Resource Interests

Cal-Am Water Company

Sloughhouse RCD

Golden State Water Company

Rancho Murrieta CSD

XX | XXX
XX | XXX

Omochumne Hartnell ID

1.3.1 Water Supplier Information Exchange

Water Code Section 10631 requires wholesale and retail water agencies to provide each other with
information regarding water supply and demand. SCWA provides wholesale water to the District, and as
required by UWMPA, EGWD and SCWA exchange projected water demand in five-year increments for
20 years into the future. The District’s service area is completely encompassed by SCWA. Due to its
contractual and geographical relationship, SCWA plays a significant role in the District’s water
management.

1.3.2 Statutory Requirements for Notice

EGWD provided formal written notification to Sacramento County (County) and the City of Elk Grove
that the District’s UWMP was being updated. In accordance with the UWMPA, this notification was
provided at least 60 days prior to the public hearing of the plan as required by Section 10642 of the
Water Code. Electronic copies of the final UWMP will be provided to the County and City no later than
30 days after its submission to DWR.

1.4 UWMP Adoption

The District held a public hearing regarding its 2020 UWMP on June 15, 2021. Before the hearing, a
draft was made available for public inspection at the District’s office, and on its website. Pursuant to
CW(C Section 10642, general notice of the public hearing was provided through publication of the
hearing date and time and posting of the hearing at the District’s office.

2020 UWMP - Public Draft 1-4

a7



Chapter 1 - Introduction

The District adopted this 2020 UWMP on June 15, 2021. A copy of the adopted 2020 UWMP will be
submitted to DWR, provided to the County and the California State Library, and posted onto the
District’s website.

The District plans to submit all required documentation related to the UWMPA through the DWR
submittal website soon after adoption. These include the following required DWR Excel workbooks:

& “FINAL Submittal 2020 UWMP Tables 04.02.2021.xls”
4+ “FINAL SBX7-7 Verification Form 04.02.2021.xls"”
& “FINAL Energy Use Tables 04.01.21.xls”

1.5 Document Organization

This UWMP is organized as follows:

4 Chapter 2 provides a description of the District’s service area, demographic characteristics and
climate, and describes the future population the District anticipates needing to serve;

& Chapter 3 describes the District’s current and future water supplies and the reliability of the
supplies;

¢ Chapter 4 details the customer uses, including the past and future estimated uses, and describes
the District’s past and on-going demand management measures;

¢ Chapter 5 presents the District’s water system service reliability into the future, including an
assessment of reliability if a drought occurred over the next five consecutive years;

& Chapter 6 is the District’s stand-alone water shortage contingency plan, incorporated as a
chapter in this UWMP, but also available to be shared and utilized separate from the UWMP.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 1-5

48



2020 UWMP — Public Draft {)

Chapter 1 - Introduction

NOTE TO DWR:

The Elk Grove Water District has written this Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP)
primarily as a water resources planning tool to effectively manage water supply, reliability and
demand. This UWMP also satisfies all the requirements of the Urban Water Management
Planning Act (UWMPA).

The body of the document provides narratives, analysis and data that DWR requests in its 2020
UWMP Guidebook, including changes to the California Water Code since 2015. Efforts have
also been made to include enhancements to this document wherever possible as
recommended in the 2020 UWMP Guidebook.

To facilitate review by DWR for compliance with the UWMPA, data from the body of the
document has been transferred into required DWR submittal tables consistent with the
organization of the tables in Appendix E of the 2020 UWMP Guidebook. These tables are
separately uploaded to DWR’s web portal. This UWMP has been reviewed for adequacy
according to the UWMP Checklist as contained in Appendix F in the 2020 UWMP Guidebook.

\
B/

R
1)
5?}

1-6

49



Chapter 2 — Water Service and System Description

Chapter 2
Water Service and System Description

The Elk Grove Water District (District) is a public water agency that provides potable water directly to
retail customers throughout the approximately 13 square mile service area boundary. The District and
surrounding area overlay the Sacramento Area Groundwater Basin, and specifically rests atop the
Central Basin. The District is bounded by Sheldon Road to the north, Highway 99 to the west, Grant Line
Road to the east, and the Union Industrial Park to the south. The District operates as a department
within the Florin Resource Conservation District and is surrounded by the Sacramento County Water
Agency (SCWA) on all sides.

2.1 Water Service Area

The District is separated into two service areas: Service Area 1 and Service Area 2. Service Area 1 is
supplied by groundwater wells and treated by the District’s water treatment plant. Service Area 2 is
supplied by surface water and groundwater purchased from SCWA. Figure 2-1 represents EGWD's
service areas.

The District provides water service to approximately 12,890 residential, commercial/institutional,
irrigation, and industrial service connections. Much of the development is low and medium density
single-family housing, with accompanying retail commercial use. Table 2-1 provides the historical and
current number of service connections by customer class for the entire District.

2.2 Service Area Climate

The District’s climate is typical of California’s Central Valley with hot, dry summers, and cool, wet
winters. Climate data was obtained from local reporting stations with the same microclimate
characteristics as the District’s service area.

Temperature data was obtained from the Western Regional Climate Center (WRCC) station at
Sacramento Executive Airport, located about 17 miles northwest of the service area. The average
annual temperature is about 61 degrees Fahrenheit (°F). Typically, July and August are the hottest
months of the year with an average daily temperature of about 75 °F, though daytime high
temperatures average between 92-93 °F. There are approximately 73 days a year when the high
temperature exceeds 90 °F. December and January are generally the coolest months of the year, with a
mean annual temperature of about 46 °F, and the average minimum dipping down to 38 °F. Historically,
there are about 18 days per year in which temperatures go below 32 °F.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 2-1

50



Chapter 2 — Water Service and System Description

Figure 2-1: Service Areas

f‘/
o
>
i
>
//

# EGWD Servica Area
| Service Area 1

77 Service Area 2

0 4000 8000 12000 it

\
\ Source: Sacramento Courty Jzer Lam
\ Basemzp: DzerStheetMap

Table 2-1: Customer Water Service Connections

Customer Class 2018 2019
Single Family Residential 11,576 11,671 11,802 11,812 12,055 12,295
Multi-Family Residential 60 62 62 62 62 62
Commercial/Institutional 346 520 357 360 360 361
Industrial 43 0 43 43 43 43
Landscape Irrigation 105 105 115 119 119 121
Other n/a 10 10 10 17 10
Total 12,130 12,263 12,389 12,406 12,656 12,882

Precipitation data is also documented from the WRCC Sacramento Executive Airport station. For the
period 1941-20167, average rainfall was measured at 17.24 inches. The wettest months are December,
January and February, and the driest months are typically July and August.

Evapotranspiration (ETo) varies seasonally, and during dry years the significance of evapotranspiration is
magnified because it continues to deplete surface and soil water supplies that are not being replenished

7 Period of Record: 11/10/1941 to 06/09/2016

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 2-2

51



Chapter 2 — Water Service and System Description

by sufficient precipitation. EGWD monitors ETo closely. Standard monthly average ETo data was
obtained from the California Irrigation Management Information System (CIMIS) Station 131 located in
Fair Oaks, California, which is about 20 miles northeast of the service area. Average annual ETo for the
period 1998-2020 measured 50.54 inches.

Additional ETo data from California Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (MWELO) is also
reported in Table 2-2. Local agencies are to use the MWELO ETo values as the standard for approval of
landscape plans associated with specific development projects. Since the City of Elk Grove (City) was not
listed in the MWELO ETo Table, data from the nearby City of Sacramento was used?.

All ETo, rainfall, and temperature data is provided in Table 2-2 and Figure 2-2.

Figure 2-2: Monthly Average Climate for the Elk Grove Water District

9.0 q - 100.0
8.0 - N =
87.5 b
<
7.0 +
- - 750 @
=
% 6.0 - o
£ F 625 9
=50 - o
8 - 500 §°
£ 40 A =)
m —
o - 375 @
o 3.0 =]
& ©
20 4 F 25.0 g
g
1.0 I I F125 2
0.0 : : : : il — = - : : - 0.0
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug  Sep Oct Nov  Dec
Month
Standard Monthly Average Eto (CIMIS) Standard Monthly Average Eto (MWELO)
W= Average Precipitation e==g==Average Max Temp

e Average Min Temp

8 As outlined in the 2015 update to the MWELO § 492.4 (a) (1): For geographic areas not covered in MWELO
Appendix A, use data from other cities located nearby in the same reference evapotranspiration zone, as found in
the CIMIS Reference Evapotranspiration Zones Map, DWR, 1999.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 2-3

52



Chapter 2 — Water Service and System Description

Table 2-2: Elk Grove Water District Climate Information

CIMIS
MWELO Standard Average Average
Appendix A Monthly A".efag? Average Maximum Minimum
Precipitation Temperature
ETo Average il °F) Temperature Temperature
(in) ETo (3] (3]
(in)

January 1.0 1.12 3.56 45.7 53.5 37.8
February 1.8 1.78 3.07 50.4 59.9 41.0
March 3.2 3.24 2.44 53.9 64.6 43.1
April 4.7 4.52 1.17 58.6 71.4 45.9
May 6.4 6.35 0.50 65.3 79.9 50.7
June 7.7 7.44 0.18 71.3 87.2 55.4
July 8.4 7.91 0.03 75.5 92.7 58.2
August 7.2 7.03 0.06 74.6 91.5 57.8
September 5.4 5.14 0.25 71.8 87.7 55.8
October 3.7 3.36 0.93 63.9 77.7 50.2
November 1.7 1.61 2.04 53.1 63.7 42.6
December 0.9 1.04 3.02 46.0 53.8 38.2

Annual: 51.9 50.54 17.24 60.8 73.6 48.1
Totals may not add due to rounding.
MWELO Appendix A data from Sacramento, CA.
ETo data from DWR CIMIS Data, Fair Oaks Station 131, 1997-2020.
Precipitation and Temperature data from WRCC, Sacramento Executive Airport (041630) 1941-2016.

2.2.1 Climate Change

While the California Water Code does not prescribe specific climate change planning and management
measures for water suppliers, it does emphasize that climate change is appropriate to consider when
assessing drought risk assessment, water conservation and use efficiency, and demand management
and supply—both in a historical and projected context.

The service area climate is highly variable with respect to precipitation and temperature. The dry
summer months make the state extremely susceptible to drought when a deficiency in precipitation
materializes, especially in mountain snowpack. Much of the water supply comes from the mountains
falling as winter rain or snow and is then stored as snowpack and subsequently captured in reservoirs
and appropriated throughout the year.

As a member of the Regional Water Authority (RWA), the District participated in the American River
Basin Study. Per DWR requirements regarding the inclusion of climate change analysis, pertinent
excerpts from the referenced study are presented below.

American River Basin Study

In 2020, the American River Basin (Basin) region conducted a climate change study in partnership with
local water purveyors and the United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR). The purpose of the
American River Basin Study (ARBS or Study) was to develop data tools and analyses, identify supply-
demand imbalances, and climate change adaptation strategies specific to the Basin. Under the “new

e""«w‘\
2020 UWMP — Public Draft 2-4

53



Chapter 2 — Water Service and System Description

normal” of a changing climate, the ARBS aims to improve the resolution of regional climate change data
and to develop regionally-specific mitigation and adaptation strategies. More detail, along with the

approved study can be found at www.pcwa.net/planning/arbs®.

The Study Area is bounded by the Sierra Nevada mountain range to the east, the Feather and
Sacramento Rivers to the west, the Bear River to the north, and the Cosumnes River to the south. In
addition to the American River Watershed, the Study Area encompasses the North and South American
Groundwater Sub-basins, and Non-Federal Partners’ service areas outside of the American River
Watershed.

Projected Future Conditions

Analysis of projected future climate conditions in the American River Basin and development of climate
scenarios for the ARBS were based on an ensemble of bias-corrected and spatially downscaled climate
projections.® This ensemble has been used by the California Water Commission and DWR as the
primary source of climate projection information in several recent studies, including the Water Storage
Investment Program (WSIP) and California’s Fourth Climate Change Assessment.!! Projected future
climate conditions were evaluated and characterized based on the ensemble of downscaled climate
projections.

Hydrology scenarios were used to develop streamflow inputs to CalSim 3.0, which was then used to
evaluate changes in water supplies, demands, and management throughout the Central Valley Project
(CVP) and State Water Project (SWP), including the Study Area. Demands for each water purveyor
largely relied upon water purveyors’ information provided in Regional Drought Contingency
Plan/Regional Water Reliability Plan'? and 2015 UWMPs.

Temperature

Surface air temperatures are projected to increase steadily, with average summer temperatures
increasing by approximately 7.2 degrees Fahrenheit (°F) by the end of the 21st century, and winter
temperatures increasing by 4.9°F. Projections of daily maximum and minimum temperatures suggest
similar warming trends during all seasons, with maximum temperatures projected to increase as much
as 7.3°F during the summer months.

9Study not yet complete.

10Climate projections were developed using Global Climate Models from the Coupled Model Intercomparison
Project Phase 5 (CMIP5) and downscaled using Localized Constructed Analogs (LOCA) method projected and
coupled with two future emission scenarios (RCP 4.5 and RCP 8.5) available from Dr. David Pierce at the Scripps
Institution of Oceanography.

11 pierce, D. W., J. F. Kalansky, D. R. Cayan. Climate, Drought and Sea Level Rise Scenarios for California’s Fourth
Climate Change Assessment. August 2018.

12 Regional Water Authority (RWA). North American Basin Regional Drought Contingency Plan, October 2017 and
Regional Water Reliability Plan, May 2019

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 2-5



Chapter 2 — Water Service and System Description

Precipitation

Annual precipitation projections show no significant trend in the median of change over the 21st
century. Many of the available general circulation model (GCM) projections show change in
precipitation, but there is no consistency in the magnitude and direction of projected change between
models. Approximately half of the projections indicate a minor increase in annual precipitation and half
indicate a minor decrease, highlighting the large uncertainty in future precipitation over this region.
Although lacking a clear trend in projected annual precipitation, by the end of the 21st century the
average fall and spring precipitation is expected to decrease, with winter and summer precipitation
increasing. Increasing variability is also projected in winter and fall precipitation. Table 2-3 displays the
projected (2070-2099) change in precipitation and temperature compared to 1980-2009 averages.

Table 2-3: Projected Change in Precipitation and Temperature Over the American River Basin Study Area
Between 1980-2009 and 2070-2099

Percent Change in Change in Basin- Change in Annual Change in Annual
Season Basin-Averaged Averaged Annual Mean of Daily Mean of Daily

Annual Mean Mean Daily Air Maximum Air Minimum Air

Precipitation (%) Temperature (°F) Temperature (°F) Temperature (°F)
Fall -6.0 5.8 6.1 5.5
Winter 4.7 4.9 5.0 4.8
Spring -11.9 5.8 6.3 5.1
Summer 10.4 7.2 7.3 7.0

Snowpack

Snow water equivalent (SWE) is a key indicator of water supplies in this region, where runoff is largely
influenced by snowmelt. The increasing variability in precipitation combined with increases in surface air
temperatures are key drivers in projections of a reduction in annual average SWE. Average SWE is
forecasted to decrease by 50-85% across all climate scenarios and future time periods. In addition, areas
that accumulate snow above Folsom Reservoir are also projected to have up to a 12-inch decrease in
maximum snowpack by end of the century.

Evapotranspiration

Potential evapotranspiration (PET) serves as a key indicator of landscape and agricultural water
demands, including consumptive use by evaporation and transpiration from bare soil, water surfaces,
native vegetation, and crops. Average annual PET is expected to increase 1.2 to 6.2 inches across all
climate scenarios and future time periods. PET is strongly correlated with air temperature and thus
expected to increase more under the hot scenarios (hot-dry, hot-wet) than under the warm scenarios
(warm-dry, warm-wet).

S
2020 UWMP — Public Draft 2-6

55



Runoff

Chapter 2 — Water Service and System Description

Watershed runoff is a direct indicator of local water supply available, and is used to determine the
availability of water for the State Water Project and Central Valley Project. Climate change projections
indicate a pronounced shift in the distribution of runoff from May and June to earlier in the season
(December to March), implying a transition in precipitation from snow to rainfall and/or earlier
snowmelt and increasing the amount of runoff during the winter months. Peak runoff is expected to
shift by more than a month earlier by mid to late century (Figure 2-3). Spring runoff will decrease due to
reduced winter snowpack. Similar to the precipitation scenarios, there is large uncertainty in projected
runoff where the ‘wet’ scenarios suggest an increase in annual runoff and the ‘dry’ scenarios suggest a
decrease in annual runoff. The projected changes in basin wide runoff range from an increase of 486
thousand acre-feet (TAF) under the warm-wet scenario to a decrease of 203 TAF under the hot-dry
scenario by the end of the century.

This 2020 UWMP includes additional climate change discussion in Chapters 3 and 4.

Figure 2-3: Distribution of Average Monthly Runoff for Historical Record (1922-2015) and Future
Projections under Central Tendency Climate Scenario

Oct Mov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul
Historical
- - Total Runoff
Runoff Midpoint Volume
Historical Data ] : — 2.5 MAF
30 days
earier
Mid-Century
— a _ 2.57T MAF
2035-2064 ¢ =
(Central Tendency)
35days
earlier
g
End-of-Century
2070-2099 — — 2.50 MAF
(Central Tendency)
Flood Operations Waler Supply Operalions
2020 UWMP — Public Draft 2-7

56



Chapter 2 — Water Service and System Description
Table 2-4 lists the change in annual climatic and hydrologic indicators between historical baseline
observations (1915 to 2015) and projected future conditions for the ARBS area.

Table 2-4: Change in Hydrologic Indicators between Historical Observations and Projected Future
Hydrology

Time Climate Precip. T ave T max T min PET Runoff
Period Scenario (in) (°F) (°F) (°F) (in) o . (TAF)
Historical Baseline

1915-2015 | Historical 382 | 548 | 67.8 | 356 | 42.8 15 5.7 1,458

Observations
Variance from Historical Baseline

Warm-Wet 1.9 4 6.2 1.6 1.6 -0.7 -2.3 701
Central

2040-2069 0.1 5 8.1 2.1 2.7 -0.9 -2.8 -2
Tendency
Hot-Dry -2.8 6.2 104 2.7 3.7 -1.1 -3.4 -206
Warm-Wet 3.8 4.7 7.4 2 2 -0.8 -2.5 199
Central

2055-2084 -1.1 6.3 11.1 2.6 4.1 -1.08 -3.5 -93
Tendency
Hot-Dry -3.4 7.9 13.3 3.7 5 -1.2 -3.8 -185
Warm-Wet 7 5.4 8.3 2.5 1.8 -0.9 -2.9 486
Central

2070-2099 -0.6 6.5 11 2.8 3.9 -1 -3.3 -54
Tendency
Hot-Dry -4.6 8.9 15.7 4.1 6.2 -1.3 -4.3 -203

2.3 Current and Projected Population, Land Use, Economy, and
Demographics

Service area population and land use projections are critical to developing a useful planning framework
as population dynamics and growth are a primary influence on water use. These projections directly
influence planning measures for system supply, delivery, infrastructure, and demand management.
Similarly, understanding the District’s economic, social, and demographic trends give valuable insight to
water management and planning. This section of the UWMP addresses these factors to provide a
supportable basis for forecasting future water use in Chapter 4.

S
2020 UWMP — Public Draft 2-8

57



Chapter 2 — Water Service and System Description

2.3.1 Current Population and Historic Trends

The population served by the Elk Grove Water District includes a mix of users and user classes, and
follows similar demographic and population trends as the City. EGWD’s customer base is comprised of
single-family residential (95.4 percent), commercial and institutional (2.8 percent), landscape irrigation
(0.9 percent), multi-family residential (0.5 percent), with 0.3 percent of customer connections
designated as industrial. The build out of the service area will consist of mainly residential, multi-family,
and commercial land uses.

Table 2-5 presents the recent and estimated current population for the District’s service area. Because
the service area does not easily correlate to existing boundaries represented by the California
Department of Finance in their historic and recent population analyses, the estimates in the table are
derived using an occupancy rate and the residential connection data provided in Table 2-1.

The service area’s currently averages about 3.27 persons per connection.® Also, because the existing
multi-family connection information in Table 2-1 represents multiple residences for each connection,
population projection needs the connection to adjust to residences prior to the average persons per
connection to be applied. For the purposes of this UWMP, each multi-family connection reflects an
average of 25 units.

Table 2-5: Estimated Population — Historical and Current

2019 2020

2.3.2 Current and Projected Land Use

As described previously, the District serves water into two areas: Service Area 1 and Service Area 2 (see
Figure 2-1). Service Area 1 is nearly built-out, with mostly infill projects remaining. Service Area 2
expects to receive the majority of additional growth.

Recently, the City of Elk Grove released the public review draft of its 2021 through 2029 Housing
Element, a proposed update to its General Plan.'* Using information published in the draft, an
assessment was made to determine the likely number of new housing units — both single-family and
multi-family — that may be constructed within the District’s service area. Since the City also projects
growth for areas west of Highway 99, which receive water service from Sacramento County Water
Agency, the total estimated new housing needed to be evaluated for whether it was occurring within
the District’s service area. The analysis resulted in an estimated 2,400 new residential units added by
2029. This reflects about a 0.3% growth rate.

13 california Department of Finance, E-5 Population and Housing Estimates for Cities, Counties, 2020
14 https://www.elkgrovecity.org/UserFiles/Servers/Server 109585/File/Departments/SPl/Housing 2021/EG-
Housing-Element Public%20Review%20Draft 2021-04-13 TrackChanges.pdf

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 2-9



https://www.elkgrovecity.org/UserFiles/Servers/Server_109585/File/Departments/SPI/Housing_2021/EG-Housing-Element_Public%20Review%20Draft_2021-04-13_TrackChanges.pdf
https://www.elkgrovecity.org/UserFiles/Servers/Server_109585/File/Departments/SPI/Housing_2021/EG-Housing-Element_Public%20Review%20Draft_2021-04-13_TrackChanges.pdf

Chapter 2 — Water Service and System Description

During the analysis of the City’s housing projections and comparing to additional projects currently
permitted or under plan review, as available through the City’s planning department,® the District
anticipates minor additional growth will continue beyond the 2029 horizon in the City’s Housing
Element. This growth will most likely be smaller infill residential projects as well as non-residential
commercial and industrial growth that often lags the housing.

To accommodate future growth beyond the Housing Element, the District assumes additional housing
units equal to about 25% of the Housing Element’s projected 2,400 new households would be
constructed by 2045 — equal to an additional 500 units. Given the likely location for this growth in
Service Area 2, which is characterized by mostly single-family homes, these 500 units will be assumed to
all be single-family homes.®

To estimate non-residential growth, the existing mix of residential to non-residential connections can be
a proxy for estimating the future mix for the incremental new connections. As noted previously,
residential connections represent about 95% of the District’s customers, with non-residential uses
representing 5%. With the addition of 2,400 residential units between 2020 and 2029 plus the
additional 500 residential units by 2045, the existing ratio would result in 145 new non-residential
connections by 2045. Using the existing ratio of sub-classifications of non-residential customers, the 145
additional connections are assumed to be spread among commercial, industrial and landscape irrigation
connections.

Table 2-6 presents the expected new connections by customer classification over the UWMP’s planning
horizon. Multi-family connections assume 25 households per connection.

Table 2-6: Cumulative New Connections

Customer Class 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045
Residential 1,200 2,400 2,600 2,800 2,900
Non-residential 60 120 130 140 145

15 https://elkmap.maps.arcgis.com/apps/MapTour/index.html?appid=3c40052d00c34da6al0af32f609dech5
16 For water use forecasting, this is a more conservative approach since multi-family units have lower per-unit
water demand factors. Thus, if some of the future households are multi-family, the use will likely be less than
forecast.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 2-10

59


https://elkmap.maps.arcgis.com/apps/MapTour/index.html?appid=3c40052d00c34da6a10af32f609decb5

Chapter 2 — Water Service and System Description

Table 2-7 presents the expected total connections by classification, combining the new residential and
non-residential connections with the existing connections. This connection forecast will be used to
estimate future water use, as detailed in Chapter 4.

Table 2-7: Expected Total Connections

Customer Class 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045
Single Family Residential 12,295
Multi-Family Residential 62
.%D Commercial/Institutional 361
;_% Industrial 43
Landscape Irrigation 121
Other 10
= Residential 1,200 2,400 2,600 2,800 2,900
z Non-residential 60 120 130 140 145
= Residential 13,557 14,757 14,957 15,157 15,257
2 Non-residential 595 655 665 675 680

2.3.3 Economic Trends & Other Social and Demographic Factors

EGWD’s service areas are contained within the City of Elk Grove city limits. While the City’s boundaries
include areas that are outside of EGWD’s service area, there is overall compatibility with respect to
employment and growth characteristics.

Since the 1950'’s, the region has experienced a strong urban growth, typical of post-World War Il
suburban and metropolitan areas. During the 1990’s, the City of Elk Grove’s population grew by more
than 70%, while job growth mainly occurring in other parts of the greater Sacramento region.'” Major
job sectors for the City’s population include government, healthcare, educations, and tech industries,
with overall job growth averaging 11.5% annually during the period 2000 to 2013. It is estimated that
the City is expected to see an increase in jobs of approximately 35.5% in 2040 when compared to the
2016 number of jobs.8

In the years prior to the COVID pandemic, some areas within the greater Sacramento Region
experienced a substantially low unemployment rate. Figure 2-4 displays the Sacramento metropolitan
area Labor Force and Employed populations as well as the resulting Unemployment Rate for the period
1990 through 2020. As seen on the figure, in September 2019, the region experienced the lowest
unemployment rate for the period (3.1%). Commensurate with the impacts on the labor market due to
the pandemic, 2020 saw the largest increase in the unemployment rate for the period, resulting in a
high of 14% (April 2020).

17 City of Elk Grove. General Plan. December 2019 (amended).
18 https://www.elkgrovecity.org/UserFiles/Servers/Server 109585/File/Departments/SPl/Housing 2021/EG-
Housing-Element Public%20Review%20Draft 2021-04-13 TrackChanges.pdf

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 2-11



https://www.elkgrovecity.org/UserFiles/Servers/Server_109585/File/Departments/SPI/Housing_2021/EG-Housing-Element_Public%20Review%20Draft_2021-04-13_TrackChanges.pdf
https://www.elkgrovecity.org/UserFiles/Servers/Server_109585/File/Departments/SPI/Housing_2021/EG-Housing-Element_Public%20Review%20Draft_2021-04-13_TrackChanges.pdf

Chapter 2 — Water Service and System Description

The increased unemployment rate experienced during 2020 appears to be rebounding from the historic
high. The rate of economic recovery for the region remains to be seen, indicating a high level of
uncertainty with respect to pace and type of future economic job growth for the greater Sacramento
region. Despite the recent increase in unemployment, the City’s policy toward development entails
increasing jobs and economic opportunities while acknowledging the importance of housing and a
resident workforce®.

The DWR DAC Mapping Tool does not identify any portions within the District service area as a
“Disadvantaged Community.”?° The City has an estimated median income of $84,827% while the
threshold for Disadvantaged Community designation is less than $56,982.

Figure 2-4. Sacrament Region Labor Statistics?

1,200 A r 21
1,000 A r 175 __
o
;=
-]
— 14 @
X800 1 - 14 =
(=}
o X
S o
= -
e <
c 4 L
S 600 105 ”
‘C-U. Q
< £
g 5
[] ]
S 400 7 3
£
]
c
=)
200 - - 3.5
3.1
O T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T O
Q YV g © > Q v \ () N Q v ™ © > Q
%) V) Y V) 3\ N4 N4 3 N\ v
I I I S I R R RSN SR
= Labor Force Employment Unemployment Rate

Expected Population Based Upon Land-Use Planning

To forecast projected service area population as accurately as possible requires consideration of the
past growth rate, local economic predictions, and current and projected land uses. Importantly, one of

19 City of Elk Grove Policy LU-1-2.

20 https://gis.water.ca.gov/app/dacs/

21 https://www.elkgrovecity.org/visitors/about_elk_grove

22 5ource: United States Bureau of Labor Statistics (Sacramento, Roseville, Arden-Arcade, CA)

2020 UWMP — Public Draft

2-12
61



Chapter 2 — Water Service and System Description

the recent statutory updates to the UWMP Act states urban water suppliers “shall coordinate with local
or regional land use authorities”? regarding land uses that may affect water management planning.

The District’s growth prospects are predominantly defined by the City’s Housing Element, with some
minor continued growth, primarily for non-residential customers. Since boundaries used for various
population projections made by the Department of Finance do not correlate to the District’s service
areas, the projected population for this UWMP is estimated by adding the existing population presented
in Table 2-5 to population based upon the total new residential connections shown in Table 2-7
multiplied by the persons-per-household occupancy rates.

The resulting future population is provided in Table 2-8.

Table 2-8: Projected Future Population

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 ‘
45,300 49,200 53,100 53,800 54,500 54,800

2.4 Delivery System Details

The District serves customers through an array of groundwater wells, water treatment plants and
distribution pipelines.

Further discussion of these systems and the water supply used within each is included in Chapter 3, with
current and future customer water use described in detail in Chapter 4.

2.4.1 Potable System

The District’s primary function is delivering potable water to its customers within each previously
described service area (see Figure 2-1).

Service Area 1 is supplied by several groundwater wells that deliver water to a potable groundwater
treatment plant owned and operated by the District. The system includes the treatment plant, two
storage tanks, production wells serving the plant, and various distribution system pipes and
appurtenances. The water treatment plant, referred to as the Railroad Street Treatment and Storage
Facility, has a maximum day capacity of 10.4 million gallons per day (MGD). The facility can pump up to
16,000 gallons per minute. Groundwater is delivered to the plant from the EGWD’s deep production
wells, where it is treated before being delivered to customers.

Service Area 2 is provided treated and fluoridated water provided by SCWA-owned and operated
groundwater production wells that intertie into the District’s Service Area 2 distribution system at
multiple locations. This supply is fluoridated. In accordance with Title 22, Section 64433.2 of the State

23 CA Water Code Section 10631(a).

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 2-13




Chapter 2 — Water Service and System Description
Board regulations, the optimal fluoride level is 0.7 mg/L and the fluoride control range from 0.6 mg/L -
1.2 mg/L.2*

The District is responsible for the maintenance and operation of the transmission and distribution mains
for Service Area 1 and the distribution mains for Service Area 2. There is a single water treatment plant
within the Service Area 2 service boundary, however it is owned and operated by SCWA. This treatment
plant is commonly referred to as the East Elk Grove Groundwater Treatment Plant.

The primary potable water system facilities are shown in Figure 2-5.

The District does not currently have any recycled water systems, nor does it receive recycled water from
its SCWA contract.

Figure 2-5: Potable Water System

Service Area2

Elk Grove Water District

- » Intertie Points
® EGWD Wells
— EGWD Mains
i c EGWD Boundary
Service Area 1 ; X 5
Local Groundwater i s > [ Service Area 1
o [ Service Area 2
24 hitps://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking water/certlic/drinkingwater/Fluoridation.html
2020 UWMP - Public Draft 2-14

63



Chapter 2 — Water Service and System Description

2.5 Energy Intensity

Among the statutory changes enacted with new requirements for 2020 UMWPs, an urban supplier shall
include information it can readily obtain related to the energy use to produce, treat and deliver water.?®
Referred to as “Energy Intensity Reporting” for urban water suppliers, energy Intensity is defined as:
total amount of energy expended in kilowatt-hours (kWh) by the urban water supplier on a per acre-
foot basis to take water from the location where the urban water supplier acquires the water to its point
of delivery.

For purposes of UWMP reporting, the District uses the Total Utility Approach described in DWR’s 2020
UWMP Guidebook. This method sums the annual net energy consumed for all water management
processes, divided by total volume of water in acre feet. These processes include diversion, conveyance,
placement into storage, treatment, and distribution.

The total energy intensity is reported in Table 2-9.

Table 2-9: Energy Intensity — Total Utility Approach

Energy Consumed Volume of Water Energy Intensity
(kwh) Entering Process (AF) (kWH/AF)
Service Area 1 2,714,535 5,043 538
Service Area 2 0 3,065 0
Total kWh/AF 2,714,535 8,108 335

25 California Water Code Section 10631.2(a).

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 2-15



Chapter 3 — Water Supply

Chapter 3 Water Supply

The Elk Grove Water District (EGWD or District) utilizes both groundwater and wholesale water
delivered from Sacramento County Water Agency (SCWA). The District has limited options for water
supplies given its geographic boundaries and local surface water bodies. Although SCWA surrounds the
District and provides water to the District, Elk Grove Water District still has independent access to the
groundwater basin and captures those supplies for use in its service area. Through its groundwater
pumping and a wholesale water contract with SCWA, the District supplies water to meet its customers
water needs.

3.1 Existing Water Supplies and Entitlements

As described in Chapter 2, the District provides water supplies to two service areas — Service Area 1 and
Service Area 2 (see Figure 2-1).

The District has historically received its water supply through self-supplied groundwater and water
purchased from SCWA. Specifically, the District relies solely on its own groundwater resources as the
source of supply for Service Area 1, while Service Area 2 uses water supplied by SCWA. The supplies
provided by SCWA may be derived from a number of water sources in SCWA’s water supply portfolio.

Groundwater is supplied to Service Area 1 by a series of three shallow wells and four deep wells, all
located within the District’s service area. The groundwater production from these wells has been
relatively stable and reflects the demands within that service area. Table 3-1 provides the last 5 years of
historical supply produced by the Service Area 1 wells.

Table 3-1: Service Area 1 Wells and Historical Production

Year  Groundwater \

2016 3,398
2017 3,665
2018 4,036
2019 4,131
2020 4,077

Service Area 2, which is located within SCWA’s Zone 40, has access to both SCWA’s groundwater and
surface water resources. But as a matter of practice, water served to customers in Service Area 2 is
most likely derived from SCWA'’s production wells located within the service area. Although SCWA does
not trace each source molecule of the water assets provided to the District, the location of SCWA wells
in close proximity to EGWD indicates that the delivered supplies are likely derived from groundwater
resources.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 3-1

65



Chapter 3 — Water Supply

Service Area 2 is supplied water from the SCWA through a wholesale Master Water Agreement
(Agreement) with SCWA. The original agreement was signed in 1995. In 2002, the parties “restated”
the Agreement in order to clarify the parties, terms, and conditions. The Agreement provides that
SCWA will provide a permanent supply of wholesale treated water to the District for use within the
District’s service area.?® The contract has a 50 year term with an automatic renewal clause for another
50 years unless one party provides a 5 year notice of intent not to extend.?” The Agreement was
developed to provide a way for new development in the District’s service area and Florin Resource
Conservation District’s service area to access new water supplies being developed through the Zone 40
conjunctive use program. The delivery language in the Agreement states: “SCWA shall deliver all
potable water necessary for FRCD’s retail customers in the Expanded Franchise Area, including water or
fire protection consistent with SCWA design and operations standards in effect at the time a facility is
constructed.”?®

Table 3-2 provides the last 5 years of historical supply delivered to Service Area 2 from SCWA under this
Agreement.

Table 3-2: Service Area 2 Historical Water Supply Deliveries from SCWA

Year SCWA Water

2016 2,107
2017 2,262
2018 2,327
2019 2,304
2020 2,572

3.2 Groundwater Basin and EGWD Groundwater Supplies

Groundwater supplies constitute a major component of the District’s water supply portfolio. The
groundwater supplies are derived from the District’s own production facilities and well systems from
SCWA that import water into EGWD’s service area. This section provides a description of the
groundwater basin, characterizes the management structures related to various areas in the
groundwater basin, and quantifies supplies available to the District from the groundwater basin.

3.2.1 Sacramento Valley — South American Subbasin

EGWD derives its groundwater supplies from the South American Subbasin of the Sacramento Valley
Groundwater Basin. The South American Subbasin (5-21.65) covers approximately 388 square miles and
is defined as the area bounded on the west by the Sacramento River, on the north by the American
River, on the south by the Cosumnes and Mokelumne rivers, and on the east by the Sierra Nevada

26 First Amended and Restated Master Water Agreement Between Sacramento County Water Agency and Florin
Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water Service, Successors-In-Interest to Elk Grove Water Works, June 28,
2002 at Article | and Article Il (Hereafter “Agreement”). Elk Grove Water District is part of FRCD.

27 Agreement at Article VI.
28 Agreement at Article Ill.a.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 3-2

66



Chapter 3 — Water Supply

Range. The eastern basin boundary is defined by the Sierra Nevada foothills and follows a north-south
line extending from Folsom Reservoir to Rancho Murieta. Along this line, little groundwater flows into
or out of the groundwater basin. The rivers that surround the South American Subbasin generally create
a groundwater divide in the shallow subsurface although there is interaction between groundwater
basins at greater depths. The western portion of the subbasin consists of nearly flat floodplain deposits
from the surrounding rivers and tributaries.

Bulletin 118-3 identifies and describes various geologic formations that constitute the water-bearing
deposits underlying the District’s service area. These formations include an upper, unconfined aquifer
system consisting of the Victor, Fair Oaks, and Laguna Formations (now known as the Modesto
Formation), and a lower, semiconfined aquifer system consisting primarily of the Mehrten Formation.
These formations are typically composed of lenses of interbedded sand, silt, and clay, interlaced with
coarse-grained stream channel deposits. The Mehrten formation outcrops near the Sierra Foothills
along the eastern Central Basin boundary and is typically characterized as a black sandy lens.

Groundwater in the South American Subbasin generally occurs in a shallow aquifer zone (Laguna or
Modesto Formation) or in an underlying deeper aquifer zone (Mehrten Formation). Within the
subbasin, the shallow aquifer extends approximately 200 to 300 feet below the ground surface and, in
general, water quality in this zone is considered to be good with the exception of arsenic detections in a
few locations. The shallow aquifer is typically used for private domestic wells requiring no treatment
unless high arsenic values are encountered, causing owners to possibly target other water-bearing
strata.

The deep aquifer is separated from the shallow aquifer by a discontinuous clay layer that serves as a
semi-confining layer for the deep aquifer. The base of the potable water portion of the deep aquifer
averages approximately 1,400 feet below ground surface (bgs). Water in the deep aquifer typically has
higher concentrations of total dissolved solids (TDS), iron, and manganese. Groundwater used in the
South American Subbasin is supplied from both the shallow and deeper aquifer systems.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 3-3

67



Figure 3-1 shows EGWD’s location in the South American Subbasin.

Figure 3-1: EGWD’s Location in South American Subbasin

i'i""\\_-, A : ; ‘—’ /
e
B e T R = e
\\ s e g
P s B = <=
f—s A i , - Elk Grove Water District
¢ \ . b
\, X - 5-021.85 s
NN S
3 p g
;‘ \ - -
o o 7
. \ : "
N i T
r o
’ - -~
3 ) \ N y"’ ) 2
\ / v 1oz
__-a, 4\ ;
”‘ I\ ’1 \
I 7N
™. \ H : " Elk Grove Water District
~ \ : \ _
R 7 : C—] 118 Basin
& ¥ )

The South American Subbasin was locally renamed under the 2000 Water Forum Agreement as the
“Central Basin” and its total area is nearly identical to the area comprising the South American Subbasin.

2020 UWMP - Public Draft 3-4

68



Figure 3-2 shows the North Basin, Central Basin, and South Basin as characterized in local basin
management and EGWD’s service area within the Central Basin.

Figure 3-2: Local Groundwater Basin Descriptions in Sacramento County

Elk Grove Water District  #

e

[] Bulliten 118 Boundaries
[] sacramento County

I North Basin -
[ Central Basin

77 South Basin

[ EGWD

The groundwater wells within the District’s system extract water from aquifers between 200 and 1,000
feet below the ground elevation. The District holds appropriative groundwater rights to all groundwater
supplies derived from its wells that are delivered to its customers and overlying rights where it pumps
water for use on its owned and operated properties. Groundwater elevations are regularly monitored
within the region by DWR and the Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority (SCGA). Some of these
records date back to the early 1950s. Hydrographs in the vicinity of the District’s service areas indicate
that the groundwater elevations have declined from the early 1950s through the late 1970s. From
approximately 1980, the groundwater elevations have remained relatively consistent, except for a
temporary decline in the early to mid-1990s. The static depth to groundwater within the District
currently ranges between 60 to 110 feet below the ground surface. These hydrographs are provided in
Section 3.9 of this Chapter.

3.2.2 Central Basin Groundwater Management

The Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority (SCGA) was formed as a Joint Powers Authority in 2006
to manage groundwater in the Central Basin. SCGA incorporates a number of water service providers,
including EGWD. Figure 3-3 shows the SCGA participating agencies.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 3-5




Figure 3-3: SCGA Participating Agencies

SRCSD

Rancho Cordova

(] Central Basin
™ Greater Area Purveyors
EGWD Boundary
Cal Am - California American Water Company
GSWC - Golden State Water Company EGWD - Elk Grove Water District
RMCSD - Rancho Murieta Community Service District SCWA - Sacramento County Water Agency
OHWD - Omochumne-Hartnell Water District SRCSD - Sacramento Regional Sanitation District

In 2006, SCGA developed a Groundwater Management Plan (GMP) under Assembly Bill 3030 (called an
AB 3030 GMP). The 2006 GMP established parameters to maintain the long-term sustainable yield
target of 273,000 acre-feet, detailed activities SCGA will take to sustainably manage the Central Basin,
and evaluated groundwater management activities and their effectiveness.

The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) was signed into law in September 2014. The
Sacramento Valley — South American Subbasin has six Groundwater Sustainability Agencies created to
cover the entire basin area. Figure 3-4 shows the GSA’s jurisdictional areas. By January 2022, the GSAs
must prepare a comprehensive Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) to sustainably manage the South
American Subbasin. EGWD groundwater production and use remains within the preliminary standards
set in the 2006 GMP — the primary planning document guiding sustainability in the Central Basin
subcomponent of the South American Subbasin. As such, at this time, the guiding principles in that
document govern EGWD’s groundwater planning in the Central Basin.

—
2020 UWMP — Public Draft QT 3-6

70



Figure 3-4: South American Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Agencies

Sacramento Central
Groundwater Authority GSA

@™ e atiay

Elk Grove Water District

Sloughhouse RCD GSA.

[ Bulliten 118 Boundaries
Omochumne-Hartnell
WD GSA [ North Delta GSAs
3 | Sloughhouse RCD GSA
"1 Omochumne-Hartnell WD GSA
| Sacramento County GSA
Sacramento

County GSA 7 Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority GSA

3.2.3 Groundwater Quality

Water produced from the Laguna Formation and the Mehrten Formation is considered generally good
quality with low total dissolved solids. Water produced from the Laguna Formation often meets all
water quality standards, but exceeds the Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL) for arsenic within some
areas of the Central Basin. The Mehrten Formation often contains manganese and odor, which exceed
the MCLs. The upper portion of the Mehrten Formation, (between 300 feet to 700 feet within the
District), occasionally exceeds the MCL for arsenic within the Central Basin. The lower portion of the
Mehrten Formation, (between 700 feet to 1,300 within the District) generally has concentrations of
arsenic that are under the MCL, but still require treatment to remove manganese and odor.

The quality of the groundwater supplied by the district meets the drinking water standards. The District
provides centralized water quality treatment to remove manganese for the District’s four deep wells.
The three active shallow wells require minimal treatment to meet drinking water standards. Tables 3-3,
3-4, and 3-5 show the water quality reports for the groundwater and surface water in Service Area 1 and
Service Area 2.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 3-7

71



Table 3-3: Service Area 1 Groundwater Quality (2019 Consumer Confidence Report)

PHG or EGWD Service Area 1 (Groundwater)
CONSTITUENT UNITS (MCLG) or RANGE AVERAGE YEAR
[MRDLG] SAMPLED
Arsenic PPB 0.004 10 ND - 6.9 5.8 2018 - 2019
Barium PPM 2 1 ND - 0.13 ND 2017
Chromium (Total) PPB (100) 50 ND ND 2017
Hexavalent Chromium PPB 0.02 N/A (a) ND - 5.4 3.6 2017
Fluoride (Natural Source) PPM 1 2 ND - 0.12 ND 2017
Nitrate (as N) PPM 10 10 ND - 4.4 1.0 2019
Gross Alpha pCi/L 0 15 ND - 6.3 ND 2017
Radium 226 pCi/lL 0.05 5 (b) ND-1.1 ND 2017
Radium 228 pCi/lL 0.019 5 (b) 13 -29 2.4 2017
Uranium pCi/L 0.43 20 ND - 2.2 1.0 2017
Control of Disinfection By- PPM N/A TT=2 NR N/A N/A
Product Precursors (TOC)
(treated water) (c)
CONSTITUENT | UNITS PHG OR MCL LEVEL FOUND YEAR
(MCLG) SAMPLED
Turbidity - Surface Water (c) NTU N/A TT=1 NTU NR N/A
% N/A TT =<0.3 NR N/A
Samples NTU

Table 3-4: Service Area 2 SCWA Groundwater Quality (2019 Consumer Confidence Report)

EGWD Service Area 2 (SCWA

MCL or Groundwater)
GO SATE [MRDL] RANGE AVERAGE YEAR
SAMPLED
Arsenic PPB 0.004 10 ND - 6.2 ND 2015 - 2019
Barium PPM 2 1 ND - 0.2 ND 2015 - 2019
Chromium (Total) PPB (100) 50 ND - 11 ND 2015 - 2019
Hexavalent Chromium PPB 0.02 N/A (a) ND - 9.7 2.3 2015 - 2019
Fluoride (Natural Source) PPM 1 2 ND - 0.36 ND 2019
Nitrate (as N) PPM 10 10 ND - 3.2 0.72 2019
Gross Alpha pCi/L 0 15 ND - 3.3 ND 2015 - 2019
Radium 226 pCi/L 0.05 5 (b) NR N/A N/A
Radium 228 pCi/L 0.019 5 (b) NR N/A N/A
Uranium pCi/L 0.43 20 ND - 2.7 ND 2015 - 2019
Control of Disinfection By- PPM N/A TT=2 NR N/A N/A
Product Precursors (TOC)
(treated water) (c)
CONSTITUENT | UNITS PHG OR MCL LEVEL FOUND YEAR
(MCLG) SAMPLED
Turbidity - Surface Water (c) NTU N/A TT=1 NTU NR N/A
% N/A TT=<0.3 NR N/A
Samples NTU
2020 UWMP - Public Draft 3-8

72



Table 3-5: Service Area 2 SCWA Surface Water Quality (2019 Consumer Confidence Report)

PHG or EGWD Service Area 2 (SCWA Surface
(MCLG) or Water)
CONSTITUENT UNITS [MRDLG] RANGE AVERAGE YEAR
SAMPLED
Arsenic PPB 0.004 10 ND ND 2015 - 2019
Barium PPM 2 1 ND ND 2015 - 2019
Chromium (Total) PPB (100) 50 ND ND 2015 - 2019
Hexavalent Chromium PPB 0.02 N/A (a) ND ND 2015 - 2019
Fluoride (Natural Source) PPM 1 2 ND ND 2019
Nitrate (as N) PPM 10 10 ND ND 2019
Gross Alpha pCi/lL 0 15 ND ND 2015 - 2019
Radium 226 pCi/L 0.05 5 (b) NR N/A N/A
Radium 228 pCi/L 0.019 5 (b) NR N/A N/A
Uranium pCi/L 0.43 20 ND ND 2015 - 2019
Control of Disinfection By- PPM N/A TT=2 094 -1.3 1.05 2018 - 2019
Product Precursors (TOC)
(treated water) (c)
CONSTITUENT UNITS PHG OR MCL LEVEL FOUND YEAR
(MCLG) SAMPLED
Turbidity - Surface Water (c) NTU N/A TT=1 NTU 0.099 (d) 2019
% N/A TT=<0.3 100% (e)
Samples NTU

3.2.4 EGWD Groundwater Supplies

EGWD'’s Service Area 1 is an independent system that is currently served wholly through groundwater
deliveries from the District’s wells. There are 7 active wells in the Service Area 1 system with an
operational capacity of approximately 12 MGD. This translates to an approximate total pumping
capacity of 8,000 AF with the consideration of a typical diurnal demand pattern.

The groundwater system makes the supplies available in Service Area 1 100% reliable in all year types.
As shown in Table 3-6, EGWD anticipates the following groundwater production for normal, single dry,
and five consecutive dry years through 2025. Table 3-7 shows the normal, single dry, and five
consecutive dry years of production through 2045. Although the supplies shown in these two tables are
the available supply based on the groundwater basin’s sustainable yield and EGWD’s system capacity,

EGWD would only produce as much water as it needs to meet demands in a particular location.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft

3-9




Chapter 3 — Water Supply

Table 3-6: EGWD Service Area 1 Groundwater Supply through 2025

Service Area 1

Year Groundwater Supply
Normal 8,000
Single Dry 8,000
2021 (1st year) 8,000

;E £ | 2022 (2nd year) 8,000
= g | 2023 (3rd year) 8,000
2 G | 2024 (4th year) 8,000
2025 (5th year) 8,000

Table 3-7: EGWD Service Area 1 Groundwater Supply Potential through 2045

Total Supply 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045
Normal 8,000 | 8,000| 8000| 8000| 8000
Single Dry Year 8,000 | 8,000| 8000| 8000 8,000

Year 1 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000
Year 2 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000
Year 3 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000
Year 4 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000
Year 5 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000

Multi-Year
Drought

3.3 EGWD Contract Supplies with SCWA

As described previously in this chapter, EGWD holds a water service Agreement with SCWA. This
Agreement obligates SCWA to deliver water to meet EGWD’s water supply needs through 2050.
Although SCWA has some surface water and recycled water assets, Service Area 2 is not currently
supplied with recycled water and currently does not receive any significant amount of surface water.?®
SCWA is developing substantial surface water supplies as part of the Freeport Regional Water Authority
(FRWA), which may become available to Service Area 2 in the future. In addition, SCWA could deliver
water derived from its Water Rights Permit, CVP Contracts, other water rights, and Aerojet remediated
groundwater supplies derived from foreign sources of groundwater in the American River Watershed
through the FRWA system that could reach EGWD. The nature and extent of the parameters that would
allow these surface water supplies to reach EGWD is beyond the scope of this document. The District
agreed to purchase water from SCWA to serve its expanded retail area in Service Area 2 and SCWA will
provide the water supplies to meet that need.

The development within the Service Area 2 is required to pay the Zone 40 Development Fee for new
building permits, and a monthly user fee for Zone 40 capital projects, which support conjunctive use in

23 As noted earlier in this Chapter, although SCWA does not monitor the location of each molecule of water in its
delivery system, the proximity of SCWA’s wells to Service Area 2 most likely means that EGWD is served with
groundwater.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 3-10




Chapter 3 — Water Supply

the Central Basin. Importantly, the District does not have a water right other than the contract right to
the water delivered through SCWA'’s system. Nevertheless, SCWA’s conjunctive use water supply is
considered a permanent and reliable source based upon the language of the Agreement.

The Agreement makes the supplies available in Service Area 2 100% reliable in all year types. As such,
EGWD anticipates the following groundwater production for normal, single dry, and five consecutive dry
years through 2025 in Table 3-8 and production through 2045 as shown in Table 3-9. These supplies are
generally rounded in order to show that EGWD could call on more water from SCWA than it has
historically used to meet its service area demands under the terms of the Agreement.

Table 3-8: EGWD Service Area 2 SCWA Agreement Supply through 2025

Service Area 2 SCWA

Year Supply
Normal 5,000
Single Dry 5,000
2021 (1st year) 5,000
g £ | 2022 (2nd year) 5,000
= 3 | 2023 (3rd year) 5,000
2 S | 2024 (4th year) 5,000
2025 (5th year) 5,000

Table 3-9: EGWD Service Area 2 Projected SCWA Agreement Supply through 2045

Total Supply 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045
Normal 5000 | 5,000| 5,000| 5,000| 5,000
Single Dry Year 5000 | 5,000| 5,000| 5000 5,000

Year 1 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
Year 2 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
Year 3 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
Year 4 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
Year 5 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

Multi-Year
Drought

3.4 Recycled Water

The District does not currently receive any recycled water. Although SCWA currently obtains and serves
recycled water within its Zone 40 service area and expansion into the District’s service area is feasible,
there are no clear plans for this to occur or for the District to develop its own recycled water supply.

The recycled water SCWA does serve is produced from a partnership with Sacramento Regional County
Sanitation District (SRCSD) and the Sacramento County Environmental Management Department. The
water recycling facility is located within the City of Elk Grove and is being increased from a 3.5 MGD
capacity to over 10 MGD. SRCSD performed a Water Recycling Opportunities Study (WROS) that
identified five key target areas for potential recycled water uses. The District exists within the Target

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 3-11




Chapter 3 — Water Supply

Area identified as Target Area 1 South Area. However, this area was found to have a decreased
potential for future recycled water use due to its limited overall use potential, and infrastructure costs.
Accordingly, based on the WROS, it is not anticipated that the District will use any recycled water for its
service area presently and out into the future.

3.5 Desalinated Water

Desalination of ocean water is not physically or financially viable for the District at this time and it has no
future plans to develop water supplies derived from desalination activities.

3.6 Transfer and Exchange Opportunities

The District has opportunities for limited potable water transfers or exchanges. All of these transfers or
exchanges would likely involve SCWA since SCWA controls the wheeling facilities that could deliver
surface water assets to the District. Furthermore, the District could move water between Service Area 1
and Service Area 2 through numerous valves that the District has not activated. Therefore, with some
creative thinking and willing partnerships, the District could engage in numerous forms of water
transfers that may have long-term regional benefit. Some examples of these are described below.

In Lieu Banking Arrangement with Surface Water Purveyor

The District could engage a water purveyor with surface water assets connected to the Sacramento
River watershed and use those surface water assets in lieu of using its groundwater. In this scenario, the
District would receive the right to divert water through a temporary water transfer agreement and
appropriate regulatory steps. The water would be diverted at the Freeport Regional Water Agency
diversion facility and delivered directly to the District through SCWA’s wheeling and treatment facilities.
The benefit of this sort of transaction is that it would relieve pressure on the groundwater basin and
preserve the groundwater supplies for dry periods when surface water assets are less available.

A second form of an in-lieu banking alternative might include assigning the rights to the banked
groundwater to another agency. For instance, if Golden State Water Company could deliver some of its
surface water assets directly to the District in normal and wet years, the District could assign a portion of
its banked groundwater assets to Golden State Water Company for use in dry years. An in-lieu banking
and exchange agreement can work where an entity shares resources in the Central Basin.

Third Party Water Exchange Arrangement

In other instances, water exchanges may benefit multiple parties through creative transfer
arrangements. For example, if the District were to purchase water and deliver it directly to SCWA for
SCWA'’s broader distribution in its service area, then SCWA is preserving groundwater assets that it
might otherwise use for dry year availability that could be used in EGWD’s service area. In this situation,
SCWA may also reduce its treatment costs, etc. by increasing the utility of the FRWA (which has cost
variables) as well as the per acre-foot cost of treatment at its Vineyard Water Treatment Plant. In other
words, acquiring an asset and creating an exchange arrangement with SCWA may have multiple benefits

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 3-12

76



Chapter 3 — Water Supply

not only to manage water use in dry years but also in long-term groundwater basin recovery and
management of costs related to FRWA and Vineyard system operations.

3.7 Climate Change

While the California Water Code does not prescribe specific climate change planning and management
measures for water suppliers, it does emphasize that climate change is appropriate to consider when
assessing drought risk assessment, water conservation and use efficiency, and demand management
and supply — both in an historical and future-projection context. EGWD’s 2020 UWMP has incorporated
climate change considerations into its water supply analysis, water demand analysis, water supply
reliability assessment and water shortage contingency plan. The characterizations are imbedded into
the characterizations of supply availability in normal, single dry, and five-consecutive dry year periods as
well as the changes in demands that may result from climatological changes in those same periods.
Moreover, the climate change characterizations are incorporated into future projected conditions
through the 2045 planning horizon. The broad climate change considerations are noted in Chapter 2.

3.8 Planned Water Supply Projects

At this time, EGWD is not planning to develop any additional water supply sources in its service area.

3.9 EGWD Supply Reliability

The District’s water supplies are stable and reliable. Both the groundwater supply and SCWA's surface
water supply are well-preserved. As such, water service to Service Area 1 and Service Area 2 should
remain stable in all year types.

Under the CSCGMP, long-term groundwater quantity and quality protective measures have been
performed throughout the basin by various agencies, including the District, in order to preserve
groundwater assets. As shown in Figure 3-5, the Central Basin’s water levels have remained stable over
the last two decades with the implementation of sound management practices. The well monitoring
data from a sampling of groundwater wells in the basin illustrate the Central Basin’s overall good
condition. Furthermore, the figures show that the wells closest to the District’s actual service area, have
actually increased in groundwater levels because of the District’s and SCWA’s conjunctive use actions.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 3-13

77



Figure 3-5: Well Monitoring Data Showing Depth to Groundwater

| Tully & Young
i ; Comprehensive Water Planning

SCGA-8 / 384417N1213354W001 -
: B e e e e e grce COnsery,,, ’
384738N1214249W001 I ¢ F o o
— o & %
B O =
g epramsityy ol
== B
Fo "l N
2: “| ‘:“'.' = Elk Grove Water District
o = =t iiiiflfﬁiii?!i‘_:._;f_i}
L e | = % g i r—
ERRRRERRERERRRR SCGA-6 / 384798N1212614W001
\, e N e
383610N1214825W001 & | et
e - 5 ===
----- Tt v | —
o e | N i
g ‘ . i‘.
i... B By e e s o, e e e ey
o v e z SERENEEEEEEEE RS

PiiRiiaitatiid

-
J =

SCGA-4 / 384202N1213738W001

A ™ e ‘
b gl ooy
| 8 [Periares
3.\ g~ 4
\ F
382939N1213904W001 i al
B ] == 2 S
i:& SEEREREREEREREE
.';*" T e s 1 5‘ | I Elk Grove Water District
i e e e e s AL | | C~) 118 Basin
EEEREREREERRRERE : ' © Monitoring Wells

The District’s groundwater supplies and contracted supplies with SCWA account for approximately
13,000 acre-feet per year from Central Basin’s estimated sustainable groundwater yield of 273,000 AFY .
This quantity of available groundwater is more than sufficient to meet the District’s current water needs
and accommodate the anticipated future water demands discussed in Chapter 4.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft

3-14
78



Chapter 3 — Water Supply

Table 3-10 shows the combined Service Area 1 and Service Area 2 supplies in normal, single dry, and five
consecutive years through 2025. Table 3-11 shows the combined Service Area 1 and Service Area 2
supplies through 2045.

Table 3-10: EGWD Total Potential Supplies through 2025

Year Total Supply

Normal 13,000
Single Dry 13,000

2021 (1st year) 13,000
;E £ | 2022 (2nd year) 13,000
= 3 | 2023 (3rd year) 13,000
2 S | 2024 (4th year) 13,000

2025 (5th year) 13,000

Table 3-11: EGWD Total Potential Supplies through 2045

Total Supply 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045
Normal 13,000 | 13,000 | 13,000 | 13,000 13,000
Single Dry Year 13,000 | 13,000 | 13,000 | 13,000 13,000

Year 1 13,000 | 13,000 | 13,000 | 13,000 13,000

S = | Year2 13,000 | 13,000 | 13,000 | 13,000 13,000

E g Year 3 13,000 | 13,000 | 13,000 | 13,000 13,000
S S | Year 4 13,000 | 13,000 | 13,000 | 13,000 13,000
Year 5 13,000 | 13,000 | 13,000 | 13,000 13,000

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 3-15




Chapter 4 - Water Use

Chapter 4
Water Use

Understanding water use characteristics is essential to enable the District to reliably and cost-effectively
manage its water supplies to continue to meet customer needs. This chapter characterizes the District’s
retail customer water needs — current and forecast over the next few decades. Characteristics such as
how water uses vary among different land use classifications, throughout the year, and under differing
hydrologic conditions, all help with that understanding.

A thorough characterization and analysis provides a realistic prediction of future water use based upon
the District’s past and current water use, in addition to considerations of anticipated growth, new
regulations, changing climate conditions and trends in customer water use behaviors. A thorough
analysis examines each water use sector for a variety of factors, then aggregates the information into a
comprehensive projection of customer water use that becomes the foundation for integration with the
District’s water supplies (see Chapter 3) to assess long-term water system reliability (see Chapter 5).

Several legislative changes were enacted since the District completed its 2015 UWMP. The new
requirements must be addressed in the 2020 UWMP in addition to completing requirements from the
prior statutory language. While there have been many changes, the critically important items the
District must address are highlighted below:

¢ Provide quantified distribution system losses for each of the 5 preceding years. [CWC
10631(d)(3)(A) and (C)]

¢ Include a drought risk assessment (DRA) for a drought period that lasts five consecutive water
years, starting from the year following the assessment, which would be 2021 for this round of
UWMPs. The DRA requires a comparison of water supplies with total projected water use.
Therefore, the District must produce a projected water use for the years 2021 through 2025 as
part of the water use projections up to 2045. [CWC 10635(b)]

4 Conduct an annual water supply and demand assessment on or before July 1 of each year
(following adoption of its 2020 UWMP) where the annual assessment includes current year
unconstrained demand. The District will consider “unconstrained demand” as the expected
water use in the upcoming year, based on recent water use, before any projected response
actions it may trigger under its Water Shortage Contingency Plan (see Chapter 6). [CWC
10632.1]

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 4-1

80



Chapter 4 - Water Use
This section is organized as follows:

# Current Customer Water Use — This subsection presents data reflecting the District’s residential
and non-residential customers for 2016 through 2019 as well as the actual 2020 water use, and
presents the District’s distribution system losses.

&+ Compliance with 2020 Urban Water Use Target — This subsection documents the derivation of
the 2020 GPCD value and comparison to the 2020 GPCD target.

+# Demand Management Measures — This subsection provides a narrative description of each
water demand management measure implemented by the District over the past five years, and
describes the District’s planned measures for the foreseeable future.

& Forecasting Customer Use — This subsection presents the derivation and results of future water
use forecasts for potable and non-potable water within the District’s service area, including
land-use classifications, unit demand factors, and estimation of distribution system losses. This
subsection also estimates the variations in customer water use the District should expect during
years with low rainfall as well as discusses longer-term climate change considerations.

& Forecasting Water Use for DRA and Annual Assessment — This subsection focuses on the subset
of the customer water use forecast that is necessary for completing the 5-year Drought Risk
Assessment (DRA) and defining the “unconstrained demand” for purposes of the District’s
annual water supply and demand assessment.

& Projecting Disadvantaged Community Water Use — This subsection presents the estimated water
use necessary to meet lower income households, pursuant to California Water Code 10631.1.

4.1 Current Customer Water Use

As described in Chapter 2, the District has been serving potable water to about 12,890 customer
connections for the past several years. Under normal operations, all of the water supplied to its
customers is drawn from the District’s groundwater wells, treated at one of the water treatment plants,
and derived through connections to the Sacramento County Water Agency (see Chapter 3), and
delivered through an array of pipelines (see Figure 2-5). The current customers, their recent and
expected water use trends, and the District’s on-going demand management efforts targeting these
customers provide a foundational basis for this UWMP’s water use forecast to 2045.

Furthermore, the actual water use in 2020 is the basis for determining the District’s compliance with its
2020 gallons per capita per day (GPCD) target established in its 2015 UWMP. This subsection presents
this relevant information.

4.1.1 Customer Water Use: 2016 to 2019

Recent customer water use can help the District understand water use trends, effects of temporary use
restrictions imposed during the most recent prolonged drought and recovery from such temporary
restrictions, effects of long-term demand management measures, and other pertinent water use factors

2020 UWMP - Public Draft 4-2

81



Chapter 4 - Water Use

relevant to its forecast of future water use. Water Code Section 10631(d)(1) also requires the District to
quantify past customer water use.

Table 4-1 presents the District’s past potable water use by customer classification for 2016 through
2019. While the District tracks connections using five primary categories (see Table 2-1), it records
water use by only two categories:

4 Residential
# Commercial, Industrial and Institutional (Cll)

This historic data also provides insight into the relative ratio of differing customer classifications to each
other as well as seasonal variations. For instance, use across nearly all classifications was relatively
consistent for 2016 through 2019. Yet, the Cll sector has significantly lower use in winter and spring
months compared to summer months. Furthermore, the residential classification illustrates two
important characteristics: (1) it represents about 80% of the annual water use, and (2) it has summer
demands that are three times the monthly volume needed in winter months.

Table 4-1: Customer Water Use: 2016 to 2019 (values in acre-feet)

Year Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
2016 | 212 | 211 | 220 | 305 | 393 | 550 | 617 | 607 | 537 | 413 | 243 | 231 | 4,538
2017 | 206 | 205 | 202 | 235 | 316 | 534 | 646 | 663 | 620 | 531 | 413 | 252 | 4,822
2018 | 242 | 216 | 240 | 234 | 341 | 504 | 610 | 647 | 587 | 494 | 438 | 305 | 4,858
2019 | 218 | 213 | 198 | 212 | 378 | 429 | 594 | 641 | 623 | 522 | 457 | 313 | 4,799
2016 | 40 34 39 46 104 | 138 | 184 | 171 | 160 | 123 | 65 41 | 1,145
Commercial/ | 5017 | 40 | 38 | 37 | 46 | 55 | 149 | 180 | 193 | 195 | 160 | 118 | 54 | 1,265
Institutional/
el 2018 | 40 44 42 45 69 155 | 172 | 208 | 212 | 146 | 124 | 84 | 1,342
2019 | 38 38 36 43 84 132 | 160 | 191 | 198 | 154 | 135 | 85 | 1,295
2016 | 252 | 245 | 259 | 351 | 497 | 688 | 801 | 778 | 697 | 536 | 307 | 272 | 5,683
Tota:jl 2017 | 245 | 243 | 238 | 281 | 372 | 683 | 826 | 856 | 815 | 690 | 531 | 306 | 6,086
Metere
Deliveries 2018 | 281 | 260 | 283 | 279 | 410 | 659 | 782 | 856 | 799 | 640 | 563 | 389 | 6,200
2019 | 257 | 250 | 233 | 255 | 462 | 561 | 755 | 832 | 821 | 676 | 592 | 398 | 6,094

Residential

4.1.2 Customer Use in 2020

Customers served by the District are metered at their connection to the District’s potable water
distribution system. These metered values are collected periodically for each customer account and
summarized into annual reports prepared by the District and for reporting to the SWRCB Division of
Drinking Water and to DWR.3! The 2020 actual customer use presented in Table 4-2 represents the
summarized delivery to all the District’s customers. It does not, however, include the distribution

30 california Water Code Section 10631(d)(1)
31 The annual SWRCB report is referred to as the ‘electronic Annual Report’ or eAR, and the annual DWR report is
known as the Public Water System Statistics report.

2020 UWMP - Public Draft 4-3

82



Chapter 4 - Water Use

system losses inherent in a pressurized water delivery system that occur during the District’s efforts to
treat, store and route the water throughout the extensive distribution system to each customer’s
connection.

Table 4-2: Total District Customer Use: 2020 (values in acre-feet)

Use Category  Jan Feb ‘ Mar Apr ‘ May ‘ Jun  Jul Aug Sep Oct ‘ Nov Dec Total
Residential | 220 | 219 | 296 | 277 | 428 | 546 | 662 | 674 | 644 | 566 | 478 | 329 | 5,338
Non-Residential | 39 | 41 67 | 57 87 | 140 | 181 | 201 | 180 | 147 | 131 | 75 | 1,347
Subtotal | 258 | 261 | 364 | 333 | 515 | 686 | 843 | 875 | 825 | 713 | 609 | 404 | 6,685

Further, comparing to the total values in Table 4-1, the 2020 annual customer use is about 10% higher
than the 2017 through 2019 average use, which was fairly consistent. Comparing the specific customer
classifications, the 2020 data displays three unique circumstances: (1) the increase was primarily in the
residential sector, as the non-residential use only rose slightly, (2) residential use in March was nearly
40% higher than during prior years, with April and May also higher, and (3) summer use was nearly
consistent with prior years, rising only a few percent in each month above average.

While new customers in 2020 would account for some of the increase,*? the higher-than-average use,
especially starting in March, is likely due to the pandemic that dominated 2020 and the multiple
advisories and even government-imposed restrictions that resulted in many people working from,
learning from, or simply staying at home.

4.1.3 Existing Distribution System Losses

Distribution system water losses (also known as “real losses”) are the physical water losses from the
District’s water distribution system up to the point of delivery to the customer’s system (e.g., up to the
residential water meter).

Since 2016, the District has been required to quantify its distribution system losses using the American
Water Works Association Method (Title 23 California Code of Regulations Section 638.1 et seq.). An
electronic copy of the audit in Excel format is to be submitted to the Department by October 1 of each
year for the prior year’s estimated system losses, using DWR’s online submittal tool pursuant to Code of
Regulations Section 638.5. The District’s submittals for the last 5 years are shown in Table 4-3. The
2020 estimate has not been officially submitted to DWR as of the drafting of this UWMP but is
estimated to be approximately 265 acre-feet over the year, or about 3.8% of the water entering the
distribution system.

As can be anticipated given the dynamic functions of a pressurized potable water distribution system,
the estimated annual distribution system loss as a percentage of water entering the system will vary
year-to-year and month to month. On average, however, the District’s distribution system loss

32 As shown in Table 2-1, the District added about 200 residential customers in 2020, accounting for a small
increase in use.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 4-4




Chapter 4 - Water Use

represents about 5.1% of the water entering the District’s distribution system. This average is
conservatively used for purposes of forecasting water use to 2045.

Table 4-3: Distribution System Loss: 2016 through 2020

6.2% 5.1% 4.7% 5.7% 3.8%

Average = 5.1%

4.2 Compliance with 2020 Urban Water Use Target

Pursuant to California Water Code Section 10608.24(b),3 the District must demonstrate its 2020 water
use met the GPCD target adopted in its 2015 UWMP. As set forth in the 2015 UWMP, the District’s 2020
GPCD target was established as 191 GPCD, derived as the “gross water use” divided by the population
during a defined baseline period, and reduced pursuant to one of four methods defined under California
Water Code Section 10608.20(b). The District’s 2020 actual GPCD must use the same methodology to
derive “gross water use” for 2020, then divide by the estimated 2020 population presented in Chapter 2.

As presented in the District’s 2015 UWMP, gross water was determined to be the total water produced
by the District’s wells plus the water purchased from Sacramento County Water Agency. This value was
2,264.288 million gallons — or 6,949 acre-feet. This value represents both the customer deliveries shown
in Table 4-2 and the distribution system losses recorded in Table 4-3. As shown in Table 2-5, the
District’s population in 2020 was estimated to be 45,300. This results in a calculated 2020 compliance
value of 137 GPCD, which is less than the District’s established target. Thus, the District is in compliance
with CWC Section 10608.24(b). The compliance calculation parameters are summarized in Table 4-4.

Table 4-4: Demonstration of Compliance with 2020 GPCD Target

2020 Volume into Distribution System = 6,949 acre-feet
Allowable Adjustments 0 acre-feet
2020 Gross Water Use = 6,949 acre-feet
2020 Population = 45,300 people
2020 Actual GPCD = 137
2020 Target GPCD = 191
Compliance Achieved? Yes

4.3 Demand Management Measures

Pursuant to California Water Code Section 10631(e), the District needs to provide a narrative discussion
of the water demand management measures it has implemented, is currently implementing, and plans
to implement. The historic and on-going measures can help the District understand the effectiveness of

33 10608.24. (b) Each urban retail water supplier shall meet its urban water use target by December 31, 2020.

2020 UWMP - Public Draft 4-5

84



Chapter 4 - Water Use

managing existing customer uses so as to help guide refinements, emphasis, or augmentation that will
help position the District to best meet its to-be-established water use objective.3

Demand Management Measures (DMMs) are intended to facilitate the District’s management and
reduction of customer demands. Further, the DMMs aid in maintaining supply reliability and have been
relied upon in meeting customer use targets, including SBX7-7 and mandatory drought conservation
targets. The DMMs were a key component in enabling the District to meet the State Water Resource
Control Board’s mandatory conservation targets imposed during June 2015. For the period January
2015 through March 2017, the District was able to reduce total water use by nearly 5,000 AF of water
(compared to 2013 baseline values).?

The District’s demand management measures are highlighted in this subsection.

4.3.1 Foundational Demand Management Measures

This section describes the foundational demand management measures (DMMs) that underpin the
District operations and customer deliveries. These particular DMMs represent adopted ordinances,
policies, and long-standing budgeted conservation programs.

From 2009 through 2018, the District was a member of the California Urban Water Conservation Council
(CUWCC). The CUWCC was created to increase efficient water use through urban water agencies
partnerships, public interest organizations, and private entities. As a signatory to the CUWCC MOU for
Best Management Practices (BMP), the District committed to implementing BMPs that were designed to
achieve water conservation across demand sectors. The CUWCC required submission of annual reports
aimed at reporting compliance with and implementation of the BMPs. As such, the District submitted
annual BMP coverage reports from 2009 through 2018. The CUWCC is now merged with the California
Water Efficiency Partnership (CalWEP). CalWEP maximizes urban water efficiency and conservation
throughout California by supporting and integrating innovative technologies and practices; encouraging
effective public policies; advancing research, training, and public education, and building collaborative
approaches and partnerships. The original utility-based (foundational) DMMs described below
represent standard practices the District has been implementing for many years. Future direction on
BMP implementation for the District will be impacted by CalWEP.

Water Waste Prevention Ordinances

Water waste is prohibited in the District’s current Water Shortage Contingency Plan (WSCP), adopted
April 2010 (Ordinance No. 04-28-10-01). Under the WSCP, customers are encouraged to use water
efficiently through all stage declarations. The WSCP prohibits all users from unreasonable waste and
includes graduated penalties for waste and/or unreasonable use during all stage declarations. For all
conditions, including Normal Water Supply, restrictions on water waste include:

34 Beginning in 2023, all urban water suppliers will be required to begin reporting their use compared to a “Water
Use Objective” that is being established pursuant to the recently enacted California Water Code Section 10609.20.
35 Elk Grove Water District’s Water Usage and Conservation Report dated April 19, 2017.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 4-6

85



Chapter 4 - Water Use

Runoff prohibited.

Watering after rainfall event prohibited.

Automatic shutoff nozzles are required for all hoses.

Washing driveways and other paved areas is prohibited.

Pools, ponds, and fountains are required to use recirculated water.

> > = > >

In addition, the District’s website also allows for reporting of waste with the “Report Water Waste”
link,3® allowing for proactive response and improved management. The District has implemented this
DMM over the planning period (through multiple versions of the WSCP) and will continue to actively
manage water waste through 2045.

Metering

All of the District’s customers are metered and billed monthly. Metered water service rates are
comprised of two parts: a fixed charge and commodity charge. The fixed charge is dependent on the
meter size, while the commodity charge is based on volume of usage. In addition to the fixed charge,
residential customers are subject to a tiered rate structure, based on metered usage. The District
anticipates transitioning to automated metering infrastructure (AMI) within the next 5-10 years to
provide more timely information to customers and for the District’s management needs.

Conservation Pricing

The District’s water rate structure is set to generate the necessary funds to efficiently operate the
District’s water system and maintain reliable water supplies. In addition to a fixed charge based on
meter size, the District utilizes a tiered rate structure for metered residential customer use. Usage
above the base amount (Tier 1) is billed at a higher rate. The increased block rate structure promotes
conservation by incentivizing use below the base amount. Non-Residential accounts (including
Irrigation) are charged a constant per-unit cost for water service. In both rate structures, the total unit
cost is the summation of commodity and capacity costs.

Public Education and Outreach

As part of its water conservation and efficiency program, the District implements a public information
program through active participation in the Regional Water Authority’s (RWA) Regional Water Efficiency
Program. In collaboration with 19 water provider members and other wastewater, stormwater and
energy partners, RWA formed the Water Efficiency Program (WEP, or Program) in 2001 to bring cost
effectiveness through economies of scale to public education and outreach activities.

The WEP operates on an average annual budget of $530,000 and is supplemented by grant funding.
Grants are an important funding resource for the Program. Since 2003, the Program has been awarded
$13.2 million in grant funding for public outreach and education as well as a variety of rebate programs,

36 https://www.egwd.org/report-water-waste/

2020 UWMP - Public Draft 4-7

86


https://www.egwd.org/report-water-waste/

Chapter 4 - Water Use

fixture direct install programs, system water loss, individualized customer usage reports, large landscape
budgets and more. Of those funds, $3.8 million was awarded between 2016 and 2020.

The main function of the WEP is to develop and distribute public outreach messages to customers in the
region by collaborating with its water provider members. The Program distributes these messages on a
regional scale through regional media and advertising buys and was honored with the United States
Environmental Protection Agency WaterSense Excellence in Education and Outreach Award in 2016.
From 2016-2020, the WEP created a series of public outreach campaigns. Below is a summary of each
campaign and highlighted achievements.

Following the historic 2015 California drought, the WEP launched the “Rethink Your Yard” Campaign in
2016 with a focus on prioritizing landscape watering, putting trees first and transitioning thirsty lawn
and landscaping to beautiful, low water use, River-Friendly landscapes. The Program advertised the
campaign through online ads, social media, commercial radio, Raley Field (local baseball stadium) and
local billboards. The campaign featured local homeowners with their newly redesigned yards on
billboards throughout the region.

The campaign launched in 2017 focused on encouraging customers to understand and deliver the
amount of water their landscape really needs and to make permanent equipment changes to improve
efficiency such as installing weather-based irrigation controllers, more efficient sprinklers and drip
irrigation. The Program partnered on this messaging with local nurseries through a “Get Growing this
Fall” initiative to encourage residents to plant in the fall when days are cooler and plants don’t need as
much water to establish roots.

From 2018 through 2020, the regional campaign focused on tackling the landscape overwatering
problem with a “Check and Save” message encouraging residents to check the soil moisture with a
moisture meter before turning on sprinklers. To support this message, the Program provided free
moisture meters via an online request form and at events. In 2019, WEP distributed 3,000 moisture
meters to customers throughout the region.

These campaigns are implemented through both paid advertising buys and earned media from public

service announcements (PSAs). Every year the campaigns can be heard on local radio stations such as
Capital Public Radio and online through Google, Facebook and YouTube advertisements. From 2016-

2020, the WEP public outreach campaigns produced:

Radio Advertising (2016-2020)

3,443 radio advertisements ran

17.2 million impressions

Digital Advertising (Facebook, Google Display Network and Spotify) (2016-2020)
24.3 million impressions

262,900 clicks

Additional advertising (billboards in 2016)

1.8 million digital advertisements ran

51.6 million impressions

Public Service Announcements (Television and Radio) (2016-2020)

> > > > > > > > > >

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 4-8

87



Chapter 4 - Water Use

4 20 million impressions
& $570,000 in value had they been purchased as advertising

The Program also continues messaging through its own Facebook page. From 2016-2020, the Program
created about 60 Facebook posts a year featuring water saving tips and other relevant information. The
WEP hosted several Facebook sweepstake contests including: Tree Hugger in 2016, where participants
submitted pictures hugging a tree to raise awareness about the importance of healthy trees and the
Under/Over Debate in 2020, where participates were asked to weigh in what is the proper way to hang
toilet paper to raise awareness of toilet leaks. The winner of the Under/Over Debate sweepstakes
received a case of toilet paper delivered via mail and gift card to a local hardware store.

The Program continues to utilize the public outreach website bewatersmart.info to reach customers
throughout the region. The website contains regional and local water provider information on rebates
and services, top ways to save, an interactive watering and water waste information map, a water-wise
gardening database, recent press releases, the Sacramento Smart Irrigation Scheduler tool, and more.

Educational information and customer services were modified to address the COVID pandemic in 2020
including online water efficiency lessons for kids, a list of nurseries that offered curbside pick-up, virtual
water wise house calls, and numerous virtual educational customer workshops. Between 2016 and
2020, the website averaged 96,000 unique visitors per year.

For more targeted outreach, the Program distributed quarterly e-newsletters to participating residents.
The e-newsletters are filled with water savings tips, upcoming events and other interesting articles.
They are usually timed around changes in the weather to help signal the need for residents to adjust
their irrigation systems, such as day light savings coupled with a message to dial back sprinkler systems.
The e-newsletter reaches 6,300 households.

Every year the WEP selects 3 public events to attend for the public to interact with local water efficiency
staff. This provides an opportunity for the region to communicate its messages in person. Events have
included the Sacramento Home & Landscape Show at Cal Expo, Creek Week, Harvest Day, Farm-to-Fork
Festival and several Earth Day events. Additionally, RWA, in coordination with participating local water
providers, hosts an annual Mulch Mayhem event in which customers can pick up a truck load of free
mulch from selected locations throughout the region. All in-person regional events were canceled in
2020 due to the COVID pandemic.

The Program is also very active in communicating to local media outlets such as the Sacramento Bee.
Between 2016 and 2020, RWA issued 50 press releases on WEP activities and regionally significant news
and participated in nearly 30 radio public affairs interviews. The RWA and the WEP were mentioned in
dozens of news articles published by local and regional media outlets both within and outside of the
Sacramento region during the same time frame.

To support public outreach messaging and water savings tips, the Program also coordinated several
regional rebate programs, which were partially funded by state and federal grants. A variety of rebate
options were provided including toilets, clothes washers and irrigation. Collectively these rebates and

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 4-9




Chapter 4 - Water Use

installations will produce an estimated lifetime (10 years) savings of 6 billion gallons of water and 6.4
million kilowatt hours (kWhs) of energy.

In addition to public outreach, the Program also coordinates school education activities. Since 2012, the
Program has hosted the Water Spots Video Contest for high school and middle school students. The
WEP provides a new contest theme each year and provides the region’s teacher and students with
relevant facts and images to help develop 30 second video PSAs. Students submit their videos to RWA
who hosts a panel of local celebrities including Monica Woods from ABC 10 to decide on a first, second
and third place winner. The top 10 scoring videos are then posted online for public voting to select a
“people’s choice” winner as well. Both teachers and student receive cash prizes and the winning videos
are played at Raley Field during River Cats games and in select movie theaters throughout the region.
The winning PSAs are incorporated into the WEP’s media activities as well. Past themes include WATER
MYTHS BUSTED!, H20 Hero, and Show Off Your Water Smarts. Between 2016 and 2019, 450 videos were
submitted (average of 90 videos a year). The 2020 Water Spots Video Contest was canceled due to the
COVID pandemic.

Beginning in 2017, the District began its Community Conservation Education (CCE) Program. Funded by
the California Department of Conservation, the CCE Program is designed to increase the public’s
knowledge of resource conservation issues and improve ecosystem health on agricultural and urban
land in the region. The CCE Program entails a Community Conservation Workshop Series concentrating
on awareness and efficiency. In 2019, three workshops were held on rain gardens, irrigation, and
Watersmart landscaping. Additionally, the CCE Program also involved the implementation of the
Student and Landowner Education and Watershed Stewardship (SLEWS) Programs. Prior to its
conclusion, the SLEWS Program offered opportunities for high school teachers and students to practice
scientific skill, learn from natural resource professionals, and expand on classroom concepts. The hands-
on experience included habitat restoration projects at the Stone Lakes Wildlife Refuge.

Implementation of this DMM is active and ongoing.

Programs to Assess and Manage Distribution System Real Loss

The District conducts annual Distribution System Water Audits (consistent with AWWA M36
methodology using software analysis) to characterize water system losses. The District’s reported
distribution system losses are presented in Table 4-3. Leak detection methods utilized by the District
include monitoring of zone usage, zone pressure, and surface conditions. The District also has a long-
term Capital Improvement Program (CIP) that replaces aging water mains. The District validates its
water audit data annually to improve the accuracy of actual measured water losses occurring in the
system per AWWA M36 methodology.

Water Conservation Program Coordination and Staffing Support

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 4-10

89



Chapter 4 - Water Use

The District’s Program Manager Department is also in charge of water conservation efforts. Recent
accomplishments include the 2020-2025 Strategic Plan” and assistance in drafting and introducing
Senate Bill 42738, Goals and objectives of the Program Manager Department include:

Implementation of EGWD’s Water Conservation Program

Seek to obtain available grant opportunities

Track and monitor State and Federal legislation that may impact conservation efforts

Work with RWA WEP Advisory Committee to develop and implement beneficial water efficiency

> > > >

programs
+ Develop, implement, and conduct the District’s Public Information and Outreach Program

The Program Manager Department has been fully staffed beginning in Fiscal Year 2016-17. Since that
time, the Program Manager Department has been funded annually. The fiscal year 2020-2021 budget
for the Program Manger Department amounts to about $275,000, and includes funding for public
outreach, legislation tracking/monitoring, and regional coordination, consistent with program goals and
objectives.

Other Demand Management Measures

In addition to the foundational measures discussed previously, the District actively promotes demand
management and water efficiency through several other measures.

Regional Water Authority Membership

The District has been a member of the Sacramento Regional Water Authority (RWA) since 2011 and a
member of the RWA Water Efficiency Program since 2005. RWA is a member of the California Water
Efficiency Partnership (CalWEP, formerly known as CUWCC), promoting conservation and efficient water
use. RWA is a joint power agency originally formed in 2001 to assist local water suppliers in
implementing the Water Forum Agreement (WFA), specifically the conjunctive use, groundwater
management, and water conservation elements of the WFA. Representing the interests of water
providers in Sacramento, Placer, and El Dorado counties, RWA’s goals, missions, and support efforts
have evolved, and now include drought assistance programs, integrated regional water management
planning and implementation, and procurement of grant funding. RWA seeks to influence legislative
and regulatory policies and actions that may affect the region, including water supply reliability through
proactive advocacy. The integrated goals of planning, implementation, communication, and advocacy
represent a comprehensive and cohesive approach to identify regional projects and partnerships that
help the region meet its future water needs.

Practical Plumbing Handbook

37 https://www.egwd.org/wp-content/uploads/EGWD StrategicPlan 2020.pdf

38 “Eggman” Water Theft Legislation to broaden the authority of Water Districts to impose fines and penalties for
water theft.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 4-11



https://www.egwd.org/wp-content/uploads/EGWD_StrategicPlan_2020.pdf

Chapter 4 - Water Use

The District provides the Practical Plumbing Handbook to inform customers on conservation, including
solutions to common plumbing problems. Tips on leaky faucets, running toilets, and inefficiency
landscaping systems are provided in the handbook. The handbook is offered to all customers.

Water Use Audit

The District offers free landscape irrigation water use audits to customers. A certified technician
evaluates the customer’s irrigation system and prepares a report summarizing opportunities to increase
irrigation efficiency. The District also offers indoor evaluations aimed at identifying inefficiencies. These
audits allow customers to better understand conservation opportunities and efficient water use.

4.3.2 Recent DMM Activities

The District implements a robust suite of other demand management measures as described above,
both within the District and as a part of the RWA WEP. The District’s water efficiency programs are
available and tailored to both residential and commercial customers.

4.3.3 Planned DMM Activities

In its commitment to ongoing water conservation and proactive demand management activity, the
District is developing a new set of programs and actions which will be used to achieve water use
objectives in compliance with California Water Code Section 10609.20. Resources will be dedicated in
the District budget for demand management activities which will help comply with these future water
use objectives. Special consideration will be taken regarding changing urban water use patterns in the
service area.

4.4 Forecasting Customer Use

Forecasting future water demands begins with an understanding of existing customer demands and
trends, recognizing the additional customers expected through growth, and considering the factors that
will influence the water use of both existing and new customers well into the future — especially factors
that directly affect the efficiency of water use.

Pursuant to California Water Code 10610.4(c), an urban water supplier “shall be required to develop
water management plans to actively pursue the efficient use of available supplies.” One challenge from
this directive is reflecting how the pursuit of efficient use is best represented in the forecast water uses
that are the cornerstone of good planning. As required by the Act, the future water uses of both
existing customers and those added over the 25-year planning horizon should reflect the “efficient use”
of water.

4.4.1 Representing Current Customer Water Use

Table 4-1 and Table 4-2 provided the actual customer water use for 2016 through 2020 by classification.
From this information, an estimate of the representative “current” water use by existing customers has
been developed. Knowing that actual use by existing customers varies slightly year-to-year based on a

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 4-12

91



Chapter 4 - Water Use

variety of factors (e.g. total rainfall and the timing of spring rain events impacting when landscape
irrigation may begin), the recent data provides a basis for estimating current water use. Applying a
slight downward adjustment to the 2020 residential customer use data while maintaining the 2020 non-
residential customer use data provides a basis for a proxy that represents “current” water use. This
creates a baseline from which to estimate the future use of these existing customers.

Importantly, the 2020 residential actual use was adjusted in estimating representative “current” water
use, since it appears to have been skewed by pandemic conditions during 2020 (see subsection 4.1.2).
For purposes of the proxy estimate, the 2020 residential actual use was decreased by 5%. This slight
adjustment to 2020 conditions may be conservatively high for existing customers, but the District also
has a desire to conservatively assure long-term water system reliability (see Chapter 5).

This target total ‘current water demand’ was then estimated using customer-type demand factors and
2020 connection by classification (see Table 2-1) to generate a comparable estimate. This
representative water use for current conditions provides the foundation for estimating the future needs
of these existing customers. Table 4-5 provides the representative monthly and annual current water
use, including distribution system losses.

Table 4-5: Representative Current Customer Water Use (acre-feet)

Jan Feb ‘ Mar Apr ‘ May ‘ Jun  Jul Aug Sep Oct ‘ Nov Dec Total

Residential | 230 | 220 | 230 | 260 | 380 | 530 | 650 | 680 | 630 | 520 | 410 | 290 | 5,030
Non-Residential | 60 | 60 | 60 | 70 | 100 | 140 | 170 | 180 | 160 | 140 | 110 | 80 | 1,330
Subtotal | 290 | 280 | 290 | 330 | 480 | 670 | 820 | 860 | 790 | 660 | 520 | 370 | 6,360

loss| 15 | 14 | 15 | 17 | 25 | 34 | 42 | 44 | 40 | 34 | 27 | 19 | 326

Total | 305 | 294 | 305 | 347 | 505 | 704 | 862 | 904 | 830 | 694 | 547 | 389 | 6,686

4.4.2 Factors Affecting Future Customer Use

There are several factors that affect the forecast of future customer use, ranging from State and local
landscape regulations, building code requirements, and other water-use mandates, to changes in the
types of housing products being offered. These factors are incorporated into determining appropriate
per-dwelling unit or per customer connection water demand values for use in forecasting future water
needs. Relevant characteristics of the factors are described here.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 4-13

92



Chapter 4 - Water Use

Water Conservation Objectives

In 2009, Governor Arnold Schwarzenegger signed Senate Bill No. 7 (SBX7-7), which established a
statewide goal of achieving a 20 percent reduction in urban per capita water use by 2020 for urban retail
water suppliers.3® As presented previously, the District has met this mandated target.

Furthermore, the efforts undertaken by the District and its customers to meet these targets, as well as
efforts throughout the State by other urban retail suppliers, have changed the availability and use of
appliances, fixtures, landscapes and other water using features, through changes or additions to
ordinances and/or through a continuing “conservation ethic.”

In response to the recent multi-year drought conditions, Governor Brown issued Executive Order B-37-
16 in May 2016 entitled “Making Water Conservation a California Way of Life.” In May 2018, Governor
Brown signed into law SB 606 and AB 1668, which imposed additional statutory requirements above and
beyond the 20 percent by 2020 target reflected in the 2009 legislation. This is expected to result in
continued efforts to increase water use efficiency and ultimately to reduce water demands of existing
water users and continue to influence the expected demands of future water users.

Requirements in California Code

Beginning in January 2010, the California Building Standards Commission adopted the statewide
mandatory Green Building Standards Code (hereafter the “CAL Green Code”) requiring the installation of
water-efficient indoor and outdoor infrastructure for all new projects after January 1, 2011. The CAL
Green Code was incorporated as Part 11 into Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, and was
revised in 2013 and in 2016 to address changes to the State’s Model Water Efficient Landscape
Ordinance (“MWELQ”) adopted during the drought.*® Revisions to the CAL Green Code in 2019 modified
sections to direct users to MWELO regulations contained in other regulatory sections.*

The CAL Green Code applies to the planning, design, operation, construction, use and occupancy of
every newly constructed or remodeled building or structure. All new residential and non-residential
customers must meet the water use requirements of the CAL Green Code as well as the outdoor
requirements described by MWELO. The CAL Green Code’s requirements generally manifest through:
(1) installation of plumbing fixtures and fittings that meet the 20 percent reduced flow rate specified in
the CAL Green Code, or (2) by demonstrating a 20 percent reduction in water use from the building
“water use baseline.”*? Future customers are expected to satisfy one of these two requirements

39 California Water Code § 10608.20.

40 The 2016 Triennial Code Adoption Cycle consisted primarily of the MWELO updates adopted in response to the
drought. Indoor infrastructure changes were limited to some minor non-residential fixture changes and changes
to the voluntary Tier 1 and Tier 2 requirements. Additionally, the Code was updated to match the new Title 20
Appliance Efficiency Regulations.

41 The 2019 updated sections to direct CAL Green code users to Title 23 of the California Code of Regulations to
allow Title 23 to be the sole location of MWELO requirements.

42 See CAL Green Code. For Residential construction, Section 4.303.1 provides the residential water conservation
standard and Table 4.303.2 identifies the infrastructure requirements to meet this standard. Table 4.303.1 and

2020 UWMP - Public Draft 4-14

93



Chapter 4 - Water Use

through the use of appliances and fixtures such as high-efficiency toilets, faucet aerators, on-demand
water heaters, or other fixtures as well as Energy Star and California Energy Commission-approved
appliances.

California Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance and County Ordinance

The Water Conservation in Landscaping Act was enacted in 2006, and has since been revised and
expanded multiple times by DWR resulting in today’s MWELO.*® In response to Governor Brown’s
executive order dated April 1, 2015, (EO B-29-15), DWR updated the MWELO and the California Water
Commission approved the adoption and incorporation of the updated State standards for MWELO on
July 15, 2015. MWELO requires a retail water supplier or a county to adopt the provisions of the
MWELO or to enact its own provisions equal to or more restrictive than the MWELO provisions. The
District uses the State’s standard.

The changes included a reduction to 55 percent of reference evapotranspiration rates for the maximum
amount of water that may be applied to residential landscapes, and non-residential projects to 45
percent, which effectively reduces the landscape area that can be planted with high water use plants,
such a turf. For residential projects, the allowable maximum coverage of high-water use plants is
reduced to 25% of the landscaped area (down from 33%). The newly updated MWELO also now applies
to new construction with a landscape area greater than 500 square feet (the prior MWELO only applied
to landscapes greater than 2,500 square feet).* The District reviews all new development for
conformance with these standards.

Metering, Volumetric Pricing, and Water Budgets

California Water Code section 525 requires water purveyors to install meters on all new service
connections after January 1, 1992. California Water Code Section 527 requires water purveyors to
charge for water based upon the actual volume of water delivered if a meter has been installed. This
action alone is not expected to substantially reduce water use. However, it is anticipated that the retail
billing system will encourage and help maintain reasonable use (e.g. through implementation of a tiered
rate structure and/or water budgets), so that individual customer water demands are reasonably not
expected to increase over time.

Worksheets WS-1 and WS-2 are to be used in calculating the baseline and the reduced water use if Option 2 is
selected. For non-residential construction, Section 5.303.2.3 provides the water conservation standard as well as
the baseline and reduced flow rate infrastructure standards. Note that Worksheets WS-1 and WS-2 incorporate
both residential and non-residential fixtures, yet the water use is still to be analyzed by “building or structure” as
specified in Chapter 1, Section 101.3.

Gov. Code §§ 65591-65599

44 CCR Title 23, Div. 2, Ch. 27, Sec. 490.1.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 4-15




Chapter 4 - Water Use

4.4.3 Customer Water Use Forecast

The following subsections detail the assumptions used to forecast customer water use and gross water
needs for the District’s water service area, separated into the needs of (a) existing water use customers,
and (b) new potable water use customers.

Existing Customer Future Use

To be conservative and assure the analysis of water system reliability is adequate (see Chapter 5), the
District is maintaining the annual “current” retail customer potable water use as shown in Table 4-5, a
total delivered quantity of about 6,360 acre-feet, with a total production need of about 6,690 acre-feet
when considering system losses. Additionally, as recognized with the analysis of 2020 gpcd use, the
existing customers have undertaken significant reductions to date.

While these existing customers may undertake a variety of conservation measures — actively through
decisions to modify a behavior or a water use, or passively through the purchase of appliances and
fixtures that simply use less water — they may also maintain their use as-is. Holding the current use as a
constant for all existing customers into the future will provide a conservative number that can be re-
evaluated prior to the 2025 UWMP and the compliance with forthcoming water use objectives.*

New Customer Future Use

Chapter 2 detailed the District’s anticipated new residential and non-residential growth over the UWMP
planning horizon. This growth provides the basis for the estimated future customer water needs. The
District anticipates these new customer connections will be built in accordance with all applicable
building codes including the Cal Green Code discussed previously, and relevant District regulations.

For this UWMP, two distinct customer classifications are anticipated: (1) residential, and (2) non-
residential. Residential customers will include both single-family dwelling units built under a variety of
densities and multi-family residential dwelling units. Non-residential uses are expected to include a
blend of commercial, institutional, industrial and active landscapes, such as parks, in ratios similar to the
District’s current residential-to-non-residential customers.

Values developed for each distinct land use are based on several sources of information, details of which
are provided in the following subsections.

New Residential Customer Water Use

Table 2-6 summarized the District’s anticipated new residential growth over the UWMP planning
horizon — split among single-family and multi-family through 2030 consistent with existing ratios, then
only growing as single-family to 2045. This growth provides the basis for the estimated future customer

45 per California Water Code Section 10609.20, urban water suppliers shall calculate a water use objective
composed of, among other factors, aggregated efficient indoor water use based upon standards of no more than
55 gpcd.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 4-16

95



Chapter 4 - Water Use

water needs, as the non-residential customers will be a ratio of the new residential customers. Table 4-
6 presents the relevant growth information.

The District anticipates these new residential elements will be built in accordance with all applicable
building codes including the Cal Green Code discussed previously, and relevant District ordinances.

Table 4-6: Anticipated New Residential Units (from Table 2-6)

Customer Class 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

Residential 1,200 2,400 2,600 2,800 2,900

Single-family (88%) 960 1,920 2,120 2,320 2,420
Multi-family (12%) 240 480 480 480 480

Distinct demand factors are provided for the following residential uses:

+ Indoor Residential Use — this category identifies the generally anticipated water use for single-
family and multi-family dwelling units.

¢ Outdoor Residential Use — this category addresses the landscape water demands commonly
anticipated for the two primary dwelling unit types.

For purposes of this UWMP, residential unit water demand factors are described as “the acre-feet of
water use annually per dwelling unit” — or acre-feet/dwelling unit (“af/du”). Additionally, as described
in Chapter 2, the growth beyond 2030 is presumed to only be single-family residences.

Residential indoor water demands are estimated using an assumed value of 55 gallons-per person per
day, multiplied by the assumed occupancy rates for anticipated residential densities for single-family or
multi-family classifications. The assumed per-person rate of 55 gallons per day is derived from California
Water Code Section 10609.4(a)(3), which states a value of 55 gallons per capita (i.e., per person) per day
(“gpcd”) be used for estimating indoor residential use targets, though the value is stated to drop to 50
gpcd by 2030.4%

Based on this per-capita assumption, the following indoor per-dwelling unit value is assumed for each
new residential unit:

& Single-family residential indoor use: 0.20 acre-feet per year based upon an assumed occupancy
of 3.27 people per unit (see Chapter 2).

& Multi-family residential indoor use: 0.12 acre-feet per year based upon an assumed occupancy
of 2 people per unit (see Chapter 2)

Outdoor residential water use is primarily a factor of lot size and the type and extent of landscaped area.
The District’s anticipated growth will likely include a range of residential densities (e.g., houses per acre)
and therefore an estimated “typical” lot is assumed for purposes of forecasting.

46 Water Code Section 10609.4(a) also establishes the indoor residential water use ‘standard’ to be 52.5 gpcd
beginning in 2025 and as low as 50 gpcd by 2030, though the Water Code also provides provisions for the water
use target to revert above 50 gpcd. For purposes of this UWMP, the higher value of 55 gpcd is assumed.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 4-17




Chapter 4 - Water Use

For purposes of this UWMP, each new single-family residential unit is anticipated to have a total gross
area of 7,000 square-feet, with 3,500 square-feet anticipated to be irrigable after accounting for the
home footprint, driveways, walkways, other hardscapes, and non-irrigated areas. Multi-family units,
which typically have shared common landscape areas, are assumed to have 400 square-feet of irrigable
area per unit.

Outdoor demands for new residential dwelling units are calculated based on regulations defined under
the MWELO. The MWELO provides for determining the Maximum Applied Water Allowance (MAWA)
where the maximum is calculated as 55 percent of the reference evapotranspiration for the area for
every square foot of landscaped area, resulting in the following equation:

MAWA = (ETo)(0.62)(0.55 x LA), where ETo is the reference evapotranspiration in inches
per year, and LA is the landscape area in square-feet. 0.62 is a conversion factor to
gallons. The resulting value is in “gallons per year.”

A primary factor in this calculation is evapotranspiration (“ET”). The methodology directs the use of ET
from a reference crop, such as maintained grass — a value referred to as ETo. For this UWMP, the ETo is
52.6 inches per year (4.4 feet per year).*’

Using the MAWA equation, outdoor demand factors for each residential lot category are calculated:

¢ Single-Family Residential — Anticipated single-family dwellings are conservatively assumed to be
constructed on lots averaging 7,000 sf, with an average landscape area of 3,500 sf. The resulting
outdoor demand factor is forecast to be 0.20 acre-feet per dwelling unit per year.

& Multi-Family Residential — Anticipated multi-family dwellings will have larger common areas,
assumed to equate to 400 sf of landscape area per unit. The resulting outdoor demand factor is
forecast to be 0.02 acre-feet per dwelling unit per year.

Combining the assumed indoor and outdoor residential demand factors results in the following
estimated use for each new connection:

+ Single-Family Residential — 0.20 af/du for indoor plus 0.20 af/du for outdoor combines for an
annual demand factor of 0.40 af/du.

# Multi-Family Residential — 0.12 af/du for indoor plus 0.02 af/dur for outdoor combines for an
annual demand factor of 0.14 af/du.

New Non-Residential Customer Water Use Factors

Non-residential per-connection demand factors were also estimated for purposes of forecasting the
water needs of anticipated commercial, institutional, industrial and irrigated landscape customers.

However, since the District does not record water use unique to each non-residential connection
classification, a weighted average of the total non-residential connections (see Table 2-1) and the

47 ETo is from the CIMIS Station 235 (Verona) available at: https://cimis.water.ca.gov/Default.aspx

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 4-18

97


https://cimis.water.ca.gov/Default.aspx

Chapter 4 - Water Use

recorded non-residential use was calculated to be representative of future per-connection water needs.
For purposes of this 2020 UWMP, this was determined to be 2.5 acre-feet per connection.

The resulting forecast future water use of existing and new non-residential customers is provided in
Table 4-7.

4.4.4 Summary of Forecast Water Use

Based upon the estimated water use of the existing and new customers, the District anticipates a
continued increase in potable water use over the planning horizon. Table 4-7 presents the resulting
customer water use forecast. Values in the table have been rounded to the nearest 10 acre-feet to
recognize the approximate nature of this forecast. This information will be used to evaluate the
District’s water system reliability in Chapter 5.

Table 4-7: Forecast Future Water Use (values in acre-feet per year)

Land-class 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045
o Residential 5,030 5,030 5,030 5,030 5,030
o Non-residential 1,330 1,330 1,330 1,330 1,330
d Subtotal 6,360 6,360 6,360 6,360 6,360
Residential 420 840 920 1,000 1,040
E Non-residential 150 300 330 350 360
Subtotal 570 1,140 1,250 1,350 1,400
Residential 5,450 5,870 5,950 6,030 6,070
© Non-residential 1,480 1,630 1,660 1,680 1,690
= Distribution System Loss 370 410 410 420 420
Total 7,300 7,910 8,020 8,130 8,180

4.4.5 Adjusting Water Use Forecasts for Single-Dry and Multiple Dry Conditions

The demand forecasts presented in the prior subsection represent expected water needs under normal
hydrologic conditions. To credibly forecast potential maximum future water use, the forecasted normal-
year water uses must be modified to reflect anticipated increases in demand during drier conditions.

Conservative modifications to the forecasted normal year water use to more likely reflect use conditions
during drier and dry years are warranted to help adequately address water service reliability in Chapter
5. For purposes of this UWMP, the following adjustments are made:

& Single dry year: Landscape irrigation needs would increase to reflect the generalized earlier
start of the landscape irrigation season due to limited rainfall in the single driest year. Since this
increase only applies to the outdoor portion of a customer’s forecast use, an adjustment factor
of 5% is applied to the total normal-year forecasts to conservatively reflect the expected
increase in demand for water for landscaping.

& Multiple dry years: During multiple dry years, demands are also expected to increase similar to
the single dry year. For multiple dry year conditions, the single dry year increase of 5% is held in

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 4-19




Chapter 4 - Water Use

each of the subsequent years. This is representative of an “unconstrained demand” as should
be represented when evaluating whether Water Shortage Contingency Plan actions may be
warranted.*®

These values are reflected in tables provided for the Drought Risk Assessment and Annual Reliability
Assessment presented in later subsections.

4.4.6 Climate Change Considerations

Including climate change analysis into a water use analysis will assist the District in understanding the
potential effects on long-term reliability, which in turn, allows the District to proactively begin planning
appropriate responses. For example, hotter and drier weather may lead to an increased demand in
landscape irrigation, especially during spring and fall months, increasing the pressure on water supplies
that may have availability restrictions during these periods. Chapter 2 provides a more detailed
discussion of potential effects of climate change on the District’s supplies and customer water needs.

The potential for water needs to be higher is reflected in the consideration of the single dry year

increase of 5% that is used for the water service reliability analysis, as discussed previously. Whether
the elevated single dry year water forecast becomes more akin to the “normal”
more apparent as the District continues to assess monthly water use trends throughout its service area.

demand will become

4.5 Forecasting Water Use for the DRA and Annual Assessment

The California Legislature created two new UWMP requirements to help suppliers assess and prepare
for drought conditions: The Drought Risk Assessment,* and the Annual Water Supply and Demand
Assessment.”® These new planning requirements were established in part because of the significant
duration of recent California droughts and the predictions about hydrological variability attributable to
climate change.

The Drought Risk Assessment (DRA) requires assessing water supply reliability over a five-year period
from 2021 to 2025 that examines water supplies, water uses, and the resulting water supply reliability
under a reasonable prediction for five consecutive dry years.

As a slight variant, the Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment (Annual Assessment) undertakes a
similar analytical exercise as the DRA but is to focus on actual, and not hypothetical, conditions
anticipated for the upcoming water year in which the Annual Assessment is being performed. The
previously presented water use forecasts facilitate both of these planning exercises as described in the
following subsections.

4.5.1 Projecting Water Use for 5-year Drought Risk Assessment

48 California Water Code Section 10632(a)(2) states water suppliers should use “unconstrained demand” when
performing their annual water supply and demand assessment.

49 California Water Code Section 10635(b)

>0 California Water Code Section 10632.1

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 4-20

99



Chapter 4 - Water Use

A critical component of new statutory language for the 2020 UWMP cycle is the requirement to prepare
a five-year DRA using a supplier-defined hypothetical drought conditions expected to occur from 2021
through 2025. This drought condition is meant to allow suppliers to test the resiliency of their water
supply portfolio and their Water Shortage Contingency Plan actions to meet severe conditions.

DWR recommends that suppliers first estimate expected water use for the next five years without
drought conditions (also known as unconstrained demand). In other words, unconstrained demand is
water demand absent any water supply restrictions and prior to implementing any short-term WSCP
demand reduction actions. If normal water use includes water conservation programs, either currently
implemented or planned for implementation, estimated water use values would incorporate the effect
of those conservation programs when reporting projected water use during this period.

Total water use for 2021, for example, is developed by modifying the water use representation for
“current” conditions (see Table 4-5) taking into consideration the anticipated factors affecting water
use, with each subsequent year further adjusted, as appropriate. Adjustments year-to-year reflect
several factors the District anticipates may occur, including increases from growth. To make these
adjustments, the difference in annual water use between the “current” condition and the forecast
potable use in 2025 is prorated equally across each of the years 2021 through 2025, so that the same
2025 forecast water use is matched.

With an initial annual estimate, each year is further adjusted to reflect anticipated increases in the
“unconstrained demand” during a single dry year. As noted previously, this is reflected by applying a 5%
increase to the total potable water use forecast. The resulting unconstrained demand during a dry year
for 2021 through 2025 are shown in Table 4-8.

Table 4-8: Forecast DRA Water Use for 2021 through 2025 (acre-feet per year)

Year Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
2021 | 330 | 310 | 330 | 370 | 540 | 750 | 920 | 970 | 890 | 740 | 580 | 420 | 7,150
2022 | 330 | 320 | 330 | 380 | 550 | 770 | 940 | 980 | 900 | 760 | 600 | 420 | 7,280
2023 | 340 | 330 | 340 | 380 | 560 | 780 | 950 | 1,000 | 920 | 770 | 610 | 430 | 7,410
2024 | 340 | 330 | 340 | 390 | 570 | 790 | 970 | 1,020 | 940 | 780 | 620 | 440 | 7,530
2025 | 350 | 340 | 350 | 400 | 580 | 810 | 990 | 1,040 | 950 | 800 | 630 | 450 | 7,690

4.5.2 Projecting Water Use for Annual Assessments

The District will need to perform an Annual Assessment and submit the findings to DWR beginning in
2022. To evaluate the plausible water service reliability conditions for 2021 or 2022, described in
Chapter 5, requires two separate representative “current” water use conditions to be developed. The
first condition uses the “current” water use characterization included in Table 4-5. These demands
represent the water use under a normal condition. Alternatively, a “single-dry year current” forecast is
also calculated to provide the District with representative current unconstrained demands. This second
characterization of current water use applies the same single-dry year adjustment described previously,
represented by a 5% increase in the current water use values. Table 4-9 provides the Normal Year and
Single Dry Year current water use for the District’s water service area. These are used in Chapter 5.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 4-21

100



Chapter 4 - Water Use

Table 4-9: Normal and Single Dry Year “Current” Water Use (acre-feet)

Year Type Jan Feb Mar Apr‘May Jun  Jul Aug‘Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
Normal | 305|294 | 305 | 347 | 505 | 704 | 862 | 904 | 830 | 694 | 547 | 389 | 6,686

Single Dry | 320 | 309 | 320 | 364 | 530 | 740 | 905 | 949 | 872 | 729 | 574 | 408 | 7,020

4.6 Projecting Disadvantaged Community Water Use

Pursuant to CWC Section 10631.1, retail suppliers are required to include the projected water use for
lower income households in 2020 UWMPs. Per California Health and Safety Code Section 50079.5, a
lower income household has an income below 80 percent of area median income, adjusted for family
size. For purposes of this UWMP, annual median income was derived from 2019 U.S. Census Bureau
and determined to be about $95,000 for the District.>* Therefore, 80% of this is estimated to be about
$76,000 per year. According to the detailed data, approximately 38% of the households earn at or
below this 80-percentile income.

For purposes of estimating the future water needs, 38% of the total single-family and multi-family
connections are presumed to represent disadvantaged households, resulting in 28% of the future total
potable water use. Applying this condition to the forecast water use for the entire District results in the
estimate provided in Table 4-10.

Table 4-10: Estimated Low-Income Water Use Forecast (acre-feet)

2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

Total Potable Use 7,300 7,910 8,020 8,130 8,180
Low Income Use 2,071 2,231 2,261 2,291 2,307
% of Total Potable 28% 28% 28% 28% 28%

51 This data is from the Household Income in the Past 12 Months (In 2019 Inflation-adjusted Dollars) American
Community Survey 1-year estimates; https://censusreporter.org/profiles/16000US0622020-elk-grove-ca/

e

. N
2020 UWMP — Public Draft 4-22

101


https://censusreporter.org/profiles/16000US0622020-elk-grove-ca/

Chapter 5 - Water System Reliability

Chapter 5
Water System Reliability

This chapter provides the Elk Grove Water District’s water system reliability findings as required under
Water Code Section 10635 and provides reliability information that the District may use in completing
an annual supply and demand assessment pursuant to Water Code Section 10632.1.

Assessing water service reliability is the fundamental purpose for the District in preparing its 2020
UWMP. Water service reliability reflects the District’s ability to meet the water needs of its customers
under varying conditions. The District’s 2020 UWMP considers the reliability of meeting customer water
use by analyzing plausible hydrological variability, regulatory variability, climate conditions, and other
factors that impact the District’s water supply and its customers’ water uses. The reliability assessment
looks beyond past experience and considers what could be reasonably foreseen in the future. This
chapter synthesizes the details imbedded in the Chapters 3 and 4 and provides a rational basis for future
decision-making related to supply management, demand management, and project development. This
chapter presents three system reliability findings:

# Five Year Drought Risk Assessment: The 2021 through 2025 Drought Risk Assessment (DRA) for
the District’s service area.

# Long-Term Service Reliability: The reliability findings for a Normal Year, Single Dry Year, and Five
Consecutive Drought Years in five-year increments through 2045.

# Annual Reliability Assessment: The reliability findings for an existing condition for both a
Normal Year and Single Dry Year that can inform an annual supply and demand assessment for
2021 or 2022.

In short, the District has reliable water supplies available for its service area through 2045.

5.1 Five Year Drought Risk Assessment

The Drought Risk Assessment is a new requirement for the 2020 UWMP cycle. The DRA requires a
methodical assessment of water supplies and water uses under an assumed drought period that lasts
five consecutive years. The District has prepared an assessment of the water supplies and demands for
its system.

The District is in a unique position to have ample water supplies to meet current and growing customer
demand. Specifically, with the buffering capacity over time of the groundwater basin and its stability
coupled with the SCWA contract (see Chapter 3), the District is not susceptible to drought conditions.
Nevertheless, the District continues to encourage its customers to use water efficiently and continues to
see lowering per-capita water use (see Chapter 4). Although the District has sufficient supplies to meet

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 5-1

102



Chapter 5 - Water System Reliability

its five consecutive dry year demands, other regulatory constraints, like the declaration of a drought
emergency by the Governor of the State of California, may require the District to reduce its water
service to its customers. Table 5-1 below shows the District’s DRA that integrates its supplies for 2021
through 2025 as described in Chapter 3 and reflects the dry year unconstrained water uses described in
Chapter 4. As the table shows, the District has sufficient water assets available in years.

Table 5-1: Five Year Drought Risk Assessment

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Supply 13,000 | 13,000 | 13,000 | 13,000 | 13,000
Demand 7,150 | 7,280 | 7,410 | 7,540 | 7,670
Difference | 5,850 | 5,720 | 5,590 | 5,460 | 5,330

5.2 Long Term Service Reliability

The Urban Water Management Planning Act directs urban water purveyors to analyze water supply
reliability in a normal, single dry, and five consecutive dry years over a 20-year planning horizon. The
2020 UWMP Guidebook recommends extending that period to twenty-five (25) years to provide a
guiding document for future land use and water supply planning through the next UWMP cycle.

5.2.1 Long Term Service Reliability

The District’s long term service reliability reflects the recommended 25-year planning horizon
anticipating a normal, single dry, and five consecutive dry years from 2020 through 2045.

Normal and Single Dry Conditions 2025-2045

The District’s future water supplies in normal and single dry conditions reflect the same conditions
described for the DRA and as detailed in Chapter 3. Specifically, the District has sufficient and reliable
water supplies to meet forecast customer water needs through 2045 considering water use forecasts for
both normal and dry condition. All of this information is detailed in Chapter 4 and reflected in the
numbers shown in the tables below. Table 5-2 shows the normal year supplies and demands on an
annual timestep from 2025 through 2045.

Table 5-2: Normal and Single Dry Year Water Supply and Demand through 2045

Normal Year 2025 2030 2035 2040 ‘ 2045
Supply 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000
Demand 7,300 7,910 8,020 8,130 8,180
Surplus Supply 5,700 5,090 4,980 4,870 4,820
Single Dry Year 2025 2030 2035 2040 ‘ 2045
Supply 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000
Demand 7,665 8,306 8,421 8,537 8,589
Surplus Supply 5,335 4,695 4,579 4,464 4,411

2020 UWMP — Public Draft

103



Chapter 5 - Water System Reliability

Five Consecutive Dry Years 2025 — 2045

The District defines a drought condition lasting five consecutive years as one that requires the District to
reduce water service to its customers. The Districts groundwater supplies coupled with its contract
supplies from SCWA have limited constraints in dry years and are considered reliable. However,
although the District has sufficient supplies to meet its five consecutive dry year demands, other
regulatory constraints, like the declaration of a drought emergency by the Governor of the State of
California, may require the District to reduce its water service to its customers. Nevertheless, the
District assumes that these conditions that would require less water supply deliveries to the District’s
customers do not manifest in assessing the supply availability in the future.

The District also assumes that dry year demand conditions would remain unconstrained during the dry
conditions causing a slight increase in the actual demand from District’s customers. This
characterization of water demands provides a conservative estimation of demand conditions in a five-
year drought scenario. Together, the supply availability as paired against the slightly increased demand
conditions demonstrate that the District has sufficient supplies to meet five consecutive dry year
conditions through 2045. Table 5-3 below shows the annual water supply and demand conditions in five
consecutive dry years from 2025 through 2045.

Table 5-3: Five Consecutive Dry Years Water Supply and Demand through 2045

‘ 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045
— Supply 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000
§ Demand 7,670 8,310 8,420 8,540 8,590
> Surplus Supply 5,330 4,690 4,580 4,460 4,410
~ Supply 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000
§ Demand 7,793 8,432 8,442 8,562 8,600
> Surplus Supply 5,207 4,568 4,558 4,438 4,400
" Supply 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000
E Demand 7,916 8,554 8,464 8,584 8,610
> Surplus Supply 5,084 4,446 4,536 4,416 4,390
< Supply 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000
§ Demand 8,038 8,676 8,486 8,606 8,620
> | Surplus Supply 4,962 4,324 4,514 4,394 4,380
" Supply 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000 13,000
§ Demand 8,161 8,798 8,508 8,628 8,630
> | Ssurplus Supply 4,839 4,202 4,492 4,372 4,370

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 5-3

104



Chapter 5 - Water System Reliability

5.3 Annual Reliability Assessment

The District may consider current supply and demand conditions and perform an annual water supply
and demand assessment (Annual Assessment) pursuant to Water Code Section 10632.1 to evaluate real-
time or near-term circumstances that are different than the DRA scenario. This assessment would
evaluate actual current water supply and use conditions. For purposes of this UWMP, the “current”
water use conditions as described in Chapter 4 are compared to the availability of the District’s existing
water supplies as described in Chapter 3. Two scenarios are illustrated:

# Normal Year condition: reflecting the availability of supplies under normal conditions and the
“current” water uses.

+ Single-Dry Year condition: reflecting the availability of supplies under a severe, single-dry year
and elevated “current” water uses reflecting increased demands expected in a single dry year.

5.3.1 Normal Year Supply and Current Water Use

Elk Grove Water District’s current normal year water supply and demand conditions represent the
expected water supply and demand conditions that would likely occur based upon a reasonable
assessment of regional and statewide hydrology and limited regulatory constraints. Under these
conditions, the District anticipates that its access to its groundwater supplies and supplies provided
under its contract with SCWA would be fully available.

The District’s characterization of current water use conditions represent an historical assessment of
water use within the District as well as reasonable characterizations of growth and potential customer
use patterns. The combination of these considerations present a normal water year use assessment
that is incorporated into this reliability determination. Demands in normal conditions are generally
lower in wetter months and higher in drier months. The demands also account for reasonable water
conservation measures derived from improved efficiencies in indoor fixtures, improved management of
outdoor landscape irrigation, and a general awareness of the value of long-term water conservation at
the consumer level. These demand conditions are described in significant detail in Chapter 4 and
reflected in the monthly demand assessments shown below.

Table 5-4 below shows the normal year water supply and demand conditions for the District’s service
area.

Table 5-4: Normal Year Water Supply and Demand

Normal Year Current

Supply 13,000
Demand 6,686
Surplus Supply 6,314

2020 UWMP - Public Draft 5-4

105



Chapter 5 - Water System Reliability

5.3.2 Single Dry Year Supply and Dry-Year Current Demand

The District defines a single dry year condition as one that may require reduced water deliveries to
customers caused by regulatory decrees, as noted in 5.2.1. Nevertheless, the District’s water supplies
are reliable in single dry year conditions based upon the groundwater basin management as well as the
contract with SCWA for water supplies as noted in Chapter 3.

Single dry year demands include the anticipated demands based upon historical trends in water usage in
drought conditions by the District’s customers. Demands in dry conditions may increase in the normally
wetter months as limited rainfall cause an increase in customer uses for outdoor irrigation. These
conditions are described in Chapter 4 and reflected in the demand tables below. The analysis uses the
“current” water use, adjusted as described in Chapter 4.

Table 5-5 below shows the single dry year water supply and demand conditions.

Table 5-5: Single Dry Year Water Supply and Demand

Single Dry Year Current

Supply 13,000
Demand 7,020
Surplus Supply 5,980

5.4 Water Supply Reliability Summary

The District’s water supply portfolio is capable of meeting the water uses in its service area in normal,
single dry, and five consecutive dry years from 2020 through 2045.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 5-5

106



Chapter 6
Water Shortage Contingency Plan

The Elk Grove Water District (EGWD) is committed to meeting the health and safety requirements of a
drinking water purveyor at all times. EGWD maintains this Water Shortage Contingency Plan (WSCP) to
help meet this goal during water shortages.

This WSCP provides for emergency water supply management related to general supply shortages due
to severe droughts, infrastructure failure, catastrophic supply interruption, or any other cause. EGWD
coordinates regionally through Regional Water Authority (RWA) and Sacramento County Water Agency
(SCWA) with respect to emergency water shortage planning and response.

This WSCP allows for declaration of supply shortages by the Board of Directors (Board). When a
shortage is identified, the Board assesses if a particular shortage stage (and corresponding response
actions) should be declared. Upon Board declaration of a shortage stage, restrictions, regulations,
prohibitions on uses, and enforcement measures are enacted.

6.1 Legal Authorities

The Florin Resources Conservation District, established and governed by Division 9 of the California
Public Resources Code (PRC), owns and operates a water utility called the Elk Grove Water District.
EGWD’s authority includes the “development and distribution of water” (PRC 9151) and is authorized to
manage and administer any water conservation or distribution project within or adjacent to EGWD (PRC
§9415). Upon approval by the Board of Directors, EGWD is authorized to include plans and
specifications that include terms and conditions with respect to conservation of water (PRC §9816).

The aforementioned powers derived from EGWD’s organizing statutes are in addition to general powers
granted to water distributors in CWC §§350-359. CWC §350 authorizes the governing body of a
distributor of a public water supply to declare a water shortage emergency whenever it finds and
determines that the ordinary demands and requirements of water consumers cannot be satisfied
without depleting the water supply of the distributor to the extent there would be insufficient water for
human consumption, sanitation, and fire protection. Upon a finding of such an emergency condition,
the distributor can adopt such regulations and restrictions on the delivery and consumption of water as
will conserve the water supply for the greatest public benefit, with particular regard to domestic use,
sanitation, and fire protection (CWC §353). The regulations and restrictions remain in force and effect
until the supply of water available for distribution within such area has been replenished or augmented,
and restrictions may include the right to deny new service connections and discontinue service for
willful violations (CWC §355 and §356).

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 6-1

107



EGWD also coordinates with any city or county within which it provides water supply services for the
possible proclamation of a “local emergency” under California Government Code, California Emergency
Services Act (Article 2, Section 8558).

6.2 Water Supply Reliability Analysis

EGWD supply consists of both self-supplied groundwater as well as purchased supplies from Sacramento
County Water Agency (SCWA). EGWD'’s Service Area 1 relies on production of groundwater, whereas
Service Area 2 relies on purchased supplies from SCWA. Both supply sources can be impacted by
climate factors, catastrophic events, and regulatory measures. EGWD evaluates its overall water supply
reliability through its Urban Water Management Plan, as well as through other regional and SCWA
planning efforts.

EGWD’s groundwater supplies are projected to be available for pumping during drought periods. The
groundwater supply is the Sacramento Valley South American Groundwater Basin, referred to as the
Central Basin Area of the Sacramento County Groundwater Basin, as identified in the Central
Sacramento County Groundwater Management Plan. The Central Basin is sustainably managed by all
the region’s pumpers in coordination with the region’s groundwater sustainability agencies. EGWD does
not currently project any groundwater shortages during a drought lasting up to five years. However, the
ability to pump the groundwater may be limited by regulatory or legal requirements put in place during
a drought. EGWD will address these restrictions as they materialize and modify its water shortage
supply strategy, as necessary.

EGWD also receives supply from the Sacramento County Water Agency. Although SCWA maintains
surface water and groundwater supply for its entire service area, the supply from SCWA is almost
entirely from SCWA production wells located within EGWD’s service area. SCWA'’s recent planning
efforts indicate no expected limitations in its ability to access the groundwater resources used to serve
EGWD’s Service Area 2, including during drought conditions. As the case with EGWD’s own groundwater
production constraints, this supply may be impacted by regulatory or legal requirements imposed during
a drought. EGWD will work with SCWA to address these restrictions and develop the appropriate
response strategy, as necessary.

6.3 Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment Procedures

EGWD conducts an annual analysis of supply and demand projections to help inform water resources
management decisions for the coming year. The analysis incorporates numerous data sources used as
evaluation criteria to project probable demands and supply availability for the coming year. Sources to
consider include:

e Projected weather conditions

o Precipitation versus historical on monthly basis
e Projected Unconstrained Demand

o Production versus historic on monthly basis

o New customer growth

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 6-2

108



o Identify artificially supplied water features separate from swimming pools and parks
o GPCD tracking
e Projected Supply Availability
o SCWA projected supply
o Groundwater production capacity
e Regulatory Conditions
o State mandated conservation orders
o Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) information

The general procedure is listed below. EGWD may modify this process based on available data,
significant events, process restrictions, or other external factors that may impact the process.

1. Compile existing weather data to characterize past 12 months conditions. During the dry year
scenario, the EGWD anticipates no impact in the ability to produce groundwater supplies,
including supplies from SCWA.

2. Estimate unconstrained EGWD demands based on recent and representative customer use data.
Development of unconstrained demand will incorporate recent use patterns (unit factors for
each customer type) and anticipated customer growth.

3. Assess the wholesaler supply based on wholesaler projections for current year and dry year
scenarios.

4. Assess available capacity of groundwater production facilities.

5. Identify and incorporate any applicable constraints (infrastructure, regulatory, etc.) regarding
receiving wholesaler supply or groundwater production.

6. Compare projected wholesaler supplies and available groundwater production facilities with
anticipated EGWD demands.

7. Develop, analyze, and propose water resource management strategies to address the projected
demand to supply comparison, including reference to the water shortage stages identified in
this WSCP.

8. Present Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment (and resulting conservation stage
declaration, if applicable) to Board.

The general proposed timeline is as follows:

# Begin assessment by District staff — March/April
& Present assessment to Board of Directors — May
& Submit to State per CWC §10632.1 — No later than July 1

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 6-3

109



6.4 Water Shortage Stages

The following subsections and tables present information on EGWD’s supply scenarios, including Normal
Water Supply and the six water shortage stages. Results from the annual Water Supply and Demand
Assessment are used to declare a respective shortage stage.

6.4.1 Normal Water Supply

EGWD’s water supply and distribution system is able to meet all the water demands of its customers in
the immediate future. Regulations for Normal Water Supply are applicable to all stages and include the
following:

& Runoff —Irrigation shall not be allowed to run off to adjoining properties or to the roadside ditch
or gutter.

¢ Watering after a Rainfall Event — No irrigation shall be allowed for 48 hours after a measurable
rainfall event. A measurable rainfall event shall be defined as an event having 0.10 inches of
rain in one day.

# Hoses — Open hoses are not permitted. Automatic shutoff nozzles are required.

& Washing driveways and other paved areas — Use of water to clean sidewalks, driveways, patios,
or other hardscapes is not permitted. Washing of streets and commercial parking lots with a
hose is not permitted, except to alleviate immediate fire or sanitation hazards.

& Pools, ponds, and fountains — All swimming pools, ponds, fountains, or other decorative water
feature shall use recirculated water.

The penalties for water waste during this stage (Normal Water Supply) are as follows:

4 First and Second Violation — Customer is notified of a violation.
¢ Third Violation — Written warning sent to customer.

The following practices are encouraged by EGWD:

& lrrigation — Limit landscape irrigation to not more than 3 days per week.

& lrrigation hours — Landscaping irrigation is discouraged between the hours of 12:00 p.m. and
6:00 p.m. during the summer months (May — October).

¢ Serving of Water — Restaurants shall serve water to customers only upon request.

& Water Leaks — Leaking pipes, fixtures or sprinklers shall be repaired promptly.

2020 UWMP - Public Draft 6-4

110



Stage 1 — 10% Supply Shortage

Actions include regulations from Normal stage plus those listed below. When implemented as a
whole program, these actions together are expected to eliminate up to a 10 percent gap between
supplies and demands.

Customers Actions to Reduce Demand up to 10 Percent

Reduce total water use by 10%. Contact EGWD or visit egwd.org for tips and techniques to
reduce indoor and outdoor water use.

Pool draining and refilling shall be allowed only for health, maintenance, or structural
considerations.

Users of construction water meters will be monitored for efficient water use.

Restaurants shall serve water only upon request.

Pipeline flushing is prohibited except in the case of an emergency, public health and for
essential operations or unless specifically authorized by the District.

Addresses ending in an odd number irrigate on Tuesday, Friday, and Sunday. Customers are
encouraged to voluntarily reduce irrigation to Tuesday and Friday.

Addresses ending in an even number irrigate on Monday, Thursday, and Saturday. Customers
are encouraged to voluntarily reduce irrigation to Monday and Thursday.

District Actions

Communicate mandatory reduction targets to customers.

Leak repair receives higher priority.

Increase drought awareness through additional public outreach measures that notify public
and customers for declared stage, requirements, and available conservation program
support.

Decrease system flushing frequency.

Increased monitoring of customer use.

Accelerate infrastructure repairs and improvements.

Water Shortage enforcement measures, including fines and charges, for non-compliance with
this WSCP’s requirements will be implemented in accordance with established District Policies
and Procedures

2020 UWMP — Public Draft

6-5

111



Stage 2 — 20% Supply Shortage

Actions include regulations from Stage 1 plus those listed below. When implemented as a whole
program, these actions together are expected to eliminate up to a 20 percent gap between supplies
and demands.

Treated Water and Municipal Water Customers - Actions to Reduce Demand up to 20 Percent

e Reduce total water use by 20%. Contact EGWD or visit egwd.org for tips and techniques to
reduce indoor and outdoor water use.

e Leaking customer pipes or faulty sprinklers shall be repaired within two working days or less if
warranted by the severity of the problem.

e Water for flow testing and construction purposes from water agency fire hydrants and blow-
offs is prohibited. Use of reclaimed water for construction purposes is encouraged.
Reclaimed water is not currently available within EGWD’s service area and would have to be
obtained elsewhere.

e Addresses ending in an odd number irrigate on Tuesday, Friday from 8pm-8am.

e Addresses ending in an even number irrigate on Monday, Thursday from 8pm-8am.

e Pools, ponds, and fountains — Water use for ornamental ponds and fountains is prohibited.
No potable water from EGWD’s system shall be used to fill or refill new swimming pools,
artificial lakes, ponds, or streams until the Stage 2 — Water Warning has been declared over.

District Actions
e Communicate mandatory reduction targets to customers.
o Implement water conservation patrols.
e Reach out to top consumers about conservation measures.

e

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 6-6

.
B

112



Stage 3 — 30% Supply Shortage

Actions include regulations from preceding stages plus those listed below. When implemented as a
whole program, these actions together are expected to eliminate up to a 30 percent gap between
supplies and demands.

Treated Water and Municipal Water Customers - Actions to Reduce Demand up to 30 Percent

Reduce total water use by 30%. Contact EGWD or visit egwd.org for tips and techniques to
reduce indoor and outdoor water use.

Leaking customer pipes or faulty sprinklers shall be repaired within 24 hours or less if
warranted by the severity of the problem.

Use of reclaimed water for construction purposes is encouraged. Reclaimed water is not
currently available within EGWD’s service area and would have to be obtained elsewhere.
Installation of new turf lawn and/or landscaping is prohibited.

Automobiles or equipment shall be washed only at commercial establishments that use
recycled or reclaimed water.

Addresses ending in an odd number irrigate on Tuesday, Friday from 10pm-4am.
Addresses ending in an even number irrigate on Monday, Thursday from 10pm-4am.

District Actions

Communicate mandatory reduction targets to customers.

No commitments will be made to provide service for new water service connections unless
the Department of Water Resources Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance, found at:
http://www.water.ca.gov/wateruseefficiency/docs/MWELO09-10-09.pdf, is followed and the plans
have been approved by the county or city building department which has jurisdiction over the
property location. Any authorized landscape for new connections is subject to all restrictions
set forth in Stage 3.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft

e

6-7

.
B

113


http://www.water.ca.gov/wateruseefficiency/docs/MWELO09-10-09.pdf

Stage 4 — 40% Supply Shortage

Actions include regulations from preceding stages plus those listed below. When implemented as a
whole program, these actions together are expected to eliminate up to a 40 percent gap between
supplies and demands.

Treated Water and Municipal Water Customers - Actions to Reduce Demand up to 40 Percent
e Reduce total water use by 40%. Contact EGWD or visit egwd.org for tips and techniques to
reduce indoor and outdoor water use.
e No potable water from the District’s system shall be used for construction purposes including
but not limited to dust control, compaction, or trench jetting.
e Addresses ending in an odd number irrigate on Tuesday from 10pm-4am.
e Addresses ending in an even number irrigate on Thursday from 10pm-4am.

District Actions

e Communicate mandatory reduction targets to customers.
e System Pressure — Maximum psi at wells and treatment plants will be reduced to 55.

Stage 5 — 50% Supply Shortage

Actions include regulations from preceding stages plus those listed below. When implemented as a
whole program, these actions together are expected to eliminate up to a 50 percent gap between
supplies and demands.
Customers - Actions to Reduce Demand up to 50 Percent
e Reduce total water use by more than 50%. Contact EGWD for tips and techniques to reduce
indoor and outdoor water use.
e Leaking customer pipes or faulty sprinklers shall be repaired immediately. Water service will
be suspended until repairs are made.
e Turfirrigation is prohibited.
District Actions
e Communicate mandatory reduction targets to customers.
e New connections - No new connections will be added to the system until the Stage 5 has been
declared over.
e System Pressure — Maximum system operating pressure will be reduced to 50 psi.

| TN
2020 UWMP - Public Draft , -

114



Stage 6 — Over 50% Supply Shortage

Actions include regulations from preceding stages plus those listed below. Actions will be identified
to address each specific shortage situation to eliminate the gap between supplies and demands.

Customers - Actions to Reduce Demand greater than 50 Percent
e Health and safety use of water only.
e landscape irrigation is prohibited.

District Actions
e Communicate mandatory reduction targets to customers.
e Other actions as identified specific to the shortage condition.
o Declare Water Shortage Emergency in accordance with Section 350 of Division 1, Chapter 3
Water Shortage Emergencies of the California Water Code.

6.5 Enforcement and Variances

EGWD provides the stages of penalties for violators of the water waste regulation. The penalties are
enforced through the application of FRCD Ordinance No. 06.15.21.XX. For each violation within a 12-
month period under normal water supply conditions, violations are as follows:

& First and Second Violation — Customer is notified of a violation.
# Third Violation — Written warning sent to customer.

When a conservation stage 1-3 is declared, fines for each violation within a 12-month period are as
follows:

First Violation — Customer is notified of a violation.

Second Violation — Written warning sent to customer.

Third Violation — $200 fine and customer is scheduled for mandatory water audit.

Fourth Violation — $500 fine.

Fifth Violation — $500 fine and water service is shut off. A Connection fee is assessed to
reactivate water service.

# Similar fines and charges may be implemented by EGWD as needed to enforce restriction on
specific prohibitions on water uses.

> > > > >

When conservation stage 4 - 6 is declared, fines for each violation within a 12-month period are as
follows:

4 First Violation — Customer is notified of a violation with a written warning.

&+ Second Violation — $500 fine and customer is scheduled for mandatory water audit.

& Third Violation — $500 fine and water service is shut off. A Connection fee is assessed to
reactivate water service.

4 Similar fines and charges may be implemented by the District as needed to enforce restriction
on specific prohibitions on water uses.

Once a water shortage stage has been declared, EGWD will enforce compliance through a multitude of

measures commensurate with each reduction goal. EGWD will either implement measures per this

2020 UWMP — Public Draft

6-9

115



Water Shortage Contingency Plan or will provide further discrete requirements through approval of
ordinances.

Does EGWD have a variance/Appeal Process? For shortage stage fines, not for water theft

The variance and appeal process regarding this WSCP is found in Section 5 of Ordinance 06.24.15.01.

6.6 Communication Protocols

EGWD maintains an established and effective communications program to inform its customers,
neighbors, and other stakeholders of issues, updates, and policies. Implementation of the WSCP will
utilize the existing communication program structure to inform customers and others of the declared
shortage stage and respective actions and restrictions in place.

The Board meetings addressing the Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment and/or a potential
water shortage declaration will be noticed per normal Board meeting public notification procedures.
The meeting will also be announced through regular press release protocols.

Once a shortage stage as been declared by the Board of Directors, EGWD will notify its customers and
others through a range of efforts. The stage and restrictions will be identified in a press release, as well
as customer billing statements. EGWD’s website will be updated to feature the shortage declaration,
restrictions, and resources available to customers from EGWD and other entities to help meet the
restrictions. Subsequent Board of Directors meetings will include a review of the shortage condition,
customer response results, and discussion and recommendations for potential modifications.

EGWD will also coordinate with the City of Elk Grove, Sacramento County, Sacramento County Water
Agency, and Regional Water Authority, to declare a local emergency with respect to anticipated water
supplies and demands in the event conditions necessitate.

6.7 Financial Consequences of WSCP

EGWD understands the potential for decreased revenues and increased costs during prolonged water
shortage conditions and enforcement of excessive residential water use during a drought (compliance
with Chapter 3.3, Division 1 of the CWC). The decreased revenues can be expected due to a reduction in
water sales. Volumetric revenue is approximately 38 percent of total revenue®?. Assuming a reduction
in sales commensurate with the particular WSCP stage declaration, a decrease in total revenues in the
range of 2-4 percent per stage may be expected.

Additional monitoring, public outreach, and enforcement is expected to increase total costs to EGWD in
declaring a water shortage. These additional efforts are prioritized for current staff, and other normal
work efforts and projects are delayed or reassigned. If conditions warrant, EGWD will seek the

S2EGWD’s 2018 Water Rate Study

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 6-10

116



assistance through additional staffing from third-party service providers. These costs depend on the
level of support and will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis.

EGWD maintains a strong financial management position. However, it is reasonable to expect financial
impacts or changes in cash flow during a prolonged water shortage condition. EGWD will enact a range
of management and financial resources depending on the specific situation that include:

Capital project deferment

Operational and maintenance expense deferment
Increased revenues from fines and penalties

And others as identified

> = > >

6.8 Monitoring and Reporting

The WSCP aims to ensure demands are reduced and/or supply is augmented to balance supply and
demand. EGWD will enact various actions commiserate with each respective stage. EGWD will then
monitor results to maintain the supply/demand balance. Similar to the supply and demand projections
used to establish a shortage condition, EGWD will monitor the same data to determine effectiveness
and efficacy. District staff will report to the Board of Directors at least quarterly on status and results.
Data reporting will include:

Actual demands to projected demands per customer class and on total.

Actual supply availability and utilized to projected availability per each supply source.
Projected supply availability for next 12 months per supply source.

Any specific requirements identified by the State in the future.

Data will also be submitted to the State per any future reporting requirements.

> = > > »

Progress and efficacy will be summarized from the results data. EGWD will evaluate the need for any
changes or modifications to the declared water shortage stage or actions based on the results. EGWD
may determine to enact additional measures, develop ordinances, or update the WSCP as a whole. Any
WSCP update or modification will be conducted through the Board of Directors meeting process, unless
specific conditions require otherwise.

6.9 Response Action Estimates

The following table presents the individual estimated demand savings of each response action. Actual
savings will likely vary greatly based on external influences, shortage stage level, and general customer
understanding of drought severity. It is assumed the savings estimates are not additive, but when
implemented together as a program with all the actions in each respective stage, they will eliminate the
supply to demand shortage gap.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 6-11

117



Table 6-1: Shortage Response Action Measures Estimates

Shortage Response Action

Potential

Shortage Gap

Reduction

1 Customer — Asked to reduce total water use by 10%. up to 10%

1+ Customer — Pool draining and refilling shall be allowed only for health, 0-1%
maintenance, or structural considerations.

1+ Customer — Users of construction meters will be monitored for efficient water 0-2%
use.

1 Customer — Limit irrigation to three days per week. Asked to voluntarily 3.8%
reduce to two days a week.

1+ District — Leak repairs receives higher priority. 0-3%
District — Increase drought awareness through additional public outreach

1+ measures that notify public and customers for declared stage, requirements, 3-5%
and available conservation program support.

1+ District — Increased monitoring of customer use. 0-1%

1+ District —Accelerate infrastructure repairs and improvements. 0-3%
District — Increased enforcement measures, including fines and charges, for

1+ . . 0-4%
non-compliance with WSCP.
District - Flushing is prohibited except in the case of an emergency, public

1 health and for essential operations or unless specifically authorized by the 0-2%
District.

2 Customer —Reduce total water use by 20%. up to 20%
Customer — Leaking pipes or faulty sprinklers shall be repaired within two

2 . . . 0-1%
working days or less if warranted by the severity of the problem.

2 Customer — Irrigation shall be limited to two days per week. 5-15%
Customer — Water use for ornamental ponds and fountains is prohibited. No

2+ potable water from EGWD’s system shall be used to fill or refill new swimming 0-1%
pools, artificial lakes, ponds, or streams.

2 Customer — Water for flow testing and construction purposes from fire 0-1%
hydrants and blow-offs is prohibited.

2+ District — Implement water conservation patrols. 3-5%

3 Customer — Reduce total water use by 30%. up to 30%

3+ Customer — Leaking pipes or faulty sprinklers shall be repaired within 24 hours 0-1%
or less if warranted by the severity of the problem.
Customer — Use of reclaimed water for construction purposes is encouraged.

3+ Reclaimed water is not currently available within EGWD’s service area and 0-1%
would have to be obtained elsewhere.
Customer — Flushing of sewers and fire hydrants is prohibited except in the

3+ case of emergency and for essential operations or unless specifically 0-2%
authorized by EGWD.
Customer — Automobiles or equipment shall be washed only at commercial

3+ . . 0-1%
establishments that use recycled or reclaimed water.
Customer - Irrigation shall be limited to two days per week (within six-hour

3 15-20%
block).

3+ Customer — Installation of new turf lawn and/or landscape is prohibited. 0-3%
District - No commitments will be made to provide service for new water

3+ service connections unless the DWR MWELO is followed, and the plans have 1-5%
been approved by the appropriate building department(s).

2020 UWMP - Public Draft 6-12




Potential

Shortage Response Action Shortage Gap
Reduction

4 Customer — Reduce total water use by 40% Up to 40%

4 Customer - Irrigation is allowed only once per week (within six-hour block). 20-30%
Customer — No potable water from EGWD’s system shall be used for

4 construction purposes including but not limited to dust control, compaction or 0-2%
trench jetting.

4 District — Maximum psi at wells and treatment plans will be reduced to 55. 1-4%

5 Customer — Reduce total water use more than by 50%. Up to 50%
Customer — Leaking customer pipes or faulty sprinklers shall be repaired

5+ . . . . . . 0-1%
immediately. Water service will be suspended until repairs are made.

5 Customer — Turf irrigation is prohibited. 25-40%

5 District — No new connection will be added to the system. 2-4%

5 District — Maximum system operating pressure will be reduced to 50 psi. 1-4%

6 Customer — Health and safety use of water only. up to 50%

6 Customer — Landscape irrigation is prohibited. 25-40%

6 District — Other actions as identified specific to the shortage condition. varies
District — Declare Water Shortage Emergency in accordance with Section 350

6 of Division 1, Chapter 3 Water Shortage Emergencies of the California Water varies
Code.

6.10 WSCP Refinement Procedures

EGWD’s WSCP is an adaptive plan that allows for active refinement to particular shortage conditions.
The general procedures for refinement are presented below.

1. For each shortage response action, compare expected results with actual shortage response and
identify any shortfall or over achievement.

2. Revise expected reduction for a specific shortage response action based on updated information.

3. Assess the aggregate expected reductions (from revised shortage response actions) for each
shortage stage.

4, Revise stage declaration or modify stage shortage response actions to balance demands with
supplies.

The procedures presented above will be relied upon during all shortage stage declarations, ensuring an
adaptive WSCP, capable of being relied upon under various circumstances, is produced.

6.11 Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Availability

The WSCP (including subsequent updates) shall be adopted in accordance with standard EGWD
procedures, including requirements for public participation (public hearing), and approval by the Board.
Upon adoption, the WSCP will be submitted to DWR no later than 30 days after and made available for
inspection at EGWD office and website.

. \.‘"«‘\,
2020 UWMP — Public Draft } 6-13

119



6.12 Seismic Risk Assessment and Mitigation Plan (Catastrophic
interruption in supplies)

Sacramento County has completed a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) under the federal Disaster
Mitigation Act of 2000 (Public Law 106-390). Per DWR requirements, a copy of the most recent adopted
LHMP by each entity is included in EGWD’s UWMP (Appendix D).

Sacramento County is currently in the process of updating the LHMP 2016. The update includes
participation with other entities, including Cities of Sacramento, Citrus Heights, Elk Grove, Folsom, Galt,
Isleton, Rancho Cordova, and other special districts. The update is anticipated to be completed and
finalized during 2021. Upon adoption of the LHMP update, EGWD will submit to DWR.

The LHMP 2016 Hazard Identification Assessment for the City of Elk Grove characterizes the earthquake
and liquefaction probability as “occasional” (between 1 and 10 % chance of occurrence in the next year
or has a recurrence interval of 11 to 100 years) and “unlikely” (less than 1 percent chance of occurrence
in the next year, or has a recurrence interval of greater than 100 years), respectively. Earthquake and
liquefaction significance is listed to be “medium” (moderate potential impact) and “low” (minimal
potential impact), respectively.

2020 UWMP — Public Draft 6-14

120



ORDINANCE NO. 06.15.21.01

AN ORDINANCE OF THE FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPEALING AND REPLACING
THE PREVIOUS WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN
ORDINANCE NO. 07.23.14.02, 04.28.10.01, AND 06.21.06.01

WHEREAS, on June 21, 2006 the Florin Resource Conservation District (District)
adopted a Water Shortage Contingency Plan by Ordinance No. 06.21.06.01; and

WHEREAS, on April 28, 2010, the District adopted an updated Water Shortage
Contingency Plan by Ordinance No. 04.28.10.01; and

WHEREAS, on July 23, 2014, the District amended the Water Shortage Contingency Plan
to comply with emergency regulations for statewide water conservation; and

WHEREAS, the District has updated its Water Shortage Contingency in order to comply
with the requirements of the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan; and

NOW, THEREFORE, THE FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein.

Section 2. Water Shortage Contingency Plan. As of the effective date of this
Ordinance, the Board of Directors shall have the authority to activate the Water Shortage
Contingency Plan, attached hereto as Attachment A.

Section 3. Ordinance Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately
upon its adoption.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Florin Resource Conservation District
Board of Directors on this 15" day of June 2021 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
Sophia Scherman
Chair
ATTEST:

Stefani Phillips
Board Secretary

121



APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Ren Nosky
General Counsel

122



EXHIBIT “A”

“ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN.”

[Attached behind this cover page]

123



Elk Grove Water District
Water Shortage Contingency Plan

Elk Grove Water District

Adopted: June 2021

[excerpt from Chapter 6 of 2020 Urban Water Management Plan]

124



Water Shortage Contingency Plan

Table of Contents

Chapter 6 Water Shortage ContingencCy Plan ...........uiiiiii oot crre e e e e s e rarae e e e e 6-1
6.1 LEBAl AULNOIITIES. . uiiiiiiee et e s bee e e s ate e e e sbee e e snteeeesabeeeenaraeas 6-1
6.2 Water Supply Reliability ANAlYSIs ......cooviiiiiiiiie e 6-2
6.3 Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment Procedures .........ccceeeeeeeicinveeeeeeeeeiineeeeeeennn. 6-2
6.4 LT el = =T =T YRR 6-3

6.4.1 NOIrMAl Water SUPPIY «.eeeeeeieee ettt ettt e e e e bae e e nte e e e bae e e e naeas 6-3
6.5 Enforcement and VarianCes .....cc.coieeiienieiieiieeeeree ettt st 6-9
6.6 CoMMUNICAtION ProtOCOIS ... .coviiiiiiieiiette ettt 6-10
6.7 Financial ConsequUENCES OFf WSCP.........oiiiciieiiiiee ettt erte e e e ete e e e eeate e e eebaee e eneeeeennes 6-10
6.8 Y Lo YoV iue gl o =ar- T I 2=T o Yo ] o u 1 o -SSR 6-11
6.9 Response ACtion ESTiMates ..o 6-11
6.10  WSCP Refin€meNnt ProCEAUIES ......c.ceiiiiireiiierie et etee ettt e sb e s e b b e e snee e saneesanes 6-13
6.11  Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Availability.......ccccceeieiiiiiiii e 6-13
6.12  Seismic Risk Assessment and Mitigation Plan.........cccceiveiiiiinciii i 6-13

125



Water Shortage Contingency Plan

Chapter 6
Water Shortage Contingency Plan

The Elk Grove Water District (EGWD) is committed to meeting the health and safety requirements of a
drinking water purveyor at all times. EGWD maintains this Water Shortage Contingency Plan (WSCP) to
help meet this goal during water shortages.

This WSCP provides for emergency water supply management related to general supply shortages due
to severe droughts, infrastructure failure, catastrophic supply interruption, or any other cause. EGWD
coordinates regionally through Regional Water Authority (RWA) and Sacramento County Water Agency
(SCWA) with respect to emergency water shortage planning and response.

This WSCP allows for declaration of supply shortages by the Board of Directors (Board). When a
shortage is identified, the Board assesses if a particular shortage stage (and corresponding response
actions) should be declared. Upon Board declaration of a shortage stage, restrictions, regulations,
prohibitions on uses, and enforcement measures are enacted.

6.1 Legal Authorities

The Florin Resources Conservation District, established and governed by Division 9 of the California
Public Resources Code (PRC), owns and operates a water utility called the Elk Grove Water District.
EGWD’s authority includes the “development and distribution of water” (PRC 9151) and is authorized to
manage and administer any water conservation or distribution project within or adjacent to EGWD (PRC
§9415). Upon approval by the Board of Directors, EGWD is authorized to include plans and
specifications that include terms and conditions with respect to conservation of water (PRC §9816).

The aforementioned powers derived from EGWD’s organizing statutes are in addition to general powers
granted to water distributors in CWC §§350-359. CWC §350 authorizes the governing body of a
distributor of a public water supply to declare a water shortage emergency whenever it finds and
determines that the ordinary demands and requirements of water consumers cannot be satisfied
without depleting the water supply of the distributor to the extent there would be insufficient water for
human consumption, sanitation, and fire protection. Upon a finding of such an emergency condition,
the distributor can adopt such regulations and restrictions on the delivery and consumption of water as
will conserve the water supply for the greatest public benefit, with particular regard to domestic use,
sanitation, and fire protection (CWC §353). The regulations and restrictions remain in force and effect
until the supply of water available for distribution within such area has been replenished or augmented,
and restrictions may include the right to deny new service connections and discontinue service for
willful violations (CWC §355 and §356).

EGWD also coordinates with any city or county within which it provides water supply services for the
possible proclamation of a “local emergency” under California Government Code, California Emergency
Services Act (Article 2, Section 8558).

2020 WSCP 6-1

126



Water Shortage Contingency Plan

6.2 Water Supply Reliability Analysis

EGWD supply consists of both self-supplied groundwater as well as purchased supplies from Sacramento
County Water Agency (SCWA). EGWD’s Service Area 1 relies on production of groundwater, whereas
Service Area 2 relies on purchased supplies from SCWA. Both supply sources can be impacted by
climate factors, catastrophic events, and regulatory measures. EGWD evaluates its overall water supply
reliability through its Urban Water Management Plan, as well as through other regional and SCWA
planning efforts.

EGWD’s groundwater supplies are projected to be available for pumping during drought periods. The
groundwater supply is the Sacramento Valley South American Groundwater Basin, referred to as the
Central Basin Area of the Sacramento County Groundwater Basin, as identified in the Central
Sacramento County Groundwater Management Plan. The Central Basin is sustainably managed by all
the region’s pumpers in coordination with the region’s groundwater sustainability agencies. EGWD does
not currently project any groundwater shortages during a drought lasting up to five years. However, the
ability to pump the groundwater may be limited by regulatory or legal requirements put in place during
a drought. EGWD will address these restrictions as they materialize and modify its water shortage
supply strategy, as necessary.

EGWD also receives supply from the Sacramento County Water Agency. Although SCWA maintains
surface water and groundwater supply for its entire service area, the supply from SCWA is almost
entirely from SCWA production wells located within EGWD’s service area. SCWA’s recent planning
efforts indicate no expected limitations in its ability to access the groundwater resources used to serve
EGWD’s Service Area 2, including during drought conditions. As the case with EGWD’s own groundwater
production constraints, this supply may be impacted by regulatory or legal requirements imposed during
a drought. EGWD will work with SCWA to address these restrictions and develop the appropriate
response strategy, as necessary.

6.3 Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment Procedures

EGWD conducts an annual analysis of supply and demand projections to help inform water resources
management decisions for the coming year. The analysis incorporates numerous data sources used as
evaluation criteria to project probable demands and supply availability for the coming year. Sources to
consider include:

e Projected weather conditions
o Precipitation versus historical on monthly basis
e Projected Unconstrained Demand
o Production versus historic on monthly basis
o New customer growth
o Identify artificially supplied water features separate from swimming pools and parks
o GPCD tracking
e Projected Supply Availability
o SCWA projected supply
o Groundwater production capacity
e Regulatory Conditions
o State mandated conservation orders
o Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) information

2020 WSCP 6-2

127



Water Shortage Contingency Plan

The general procedure is listed below. EGWD may modify this process based on available data,
significant events, process restrictions, or other external factors that may impact the process.

1.

Compile existing weather data to characterize past 12 months conditions. During the dry year
scenario, the EGWD anticipates no impact in the ability to produce groundwater supplies,
including supplies from SCWA.

Estimate unconstrained EGWD demands based on recent and representative customer use data.
Development of unconstrained demand will incorporate recent use patterns (unit factors for
each customer type) and anticipated customer growth.

Assess the wholesaler supply based on wholesaler projections for current year and dry year
scenarios.

Assess available capacity of groundwater production facilities.

Identify and incorporate any applicable constraints (infrastructure, regulatory, etc.) regarding
receiving wholesaler supply or groundwater production.

Compare projected wholesaler supplies and available groundwater production facilities with
anticipated EGWD demands.

Develop, analyze, and propose water resource management strategies to address the projected
demand to supply comparison, including reference to the water shortage stages identified in
this WSCP.

Present Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment (and resulting conservation stage
declaration, if applicable) to Board.

The general proposed timeline is as follows:

L)
L)
L)

6.4

Begin assessment by District staff — March/April
Present assessment to Board of Directors — May
Submit to State per CWC §10632.1 — No later than July 1

Water Shortage Stages

The following subsections and tables present information on EGWD’s supply scenarios, including Normal
Water Supply and the six water shortage stages. Results from the annual Water Supply and Demand
Assessment are used to declare a respective shortage stage.

6.4.1 Normal Water Supply

EGWD’s water supply and distribution system is able to meet all the water demands of its customers in
the immediate future. Regulations for Normal Water Supply are applicable to all stages and include the

following:
& Runoff —Irrigation shall not be allowed to run off to adjoining properties or to the roadside ditch
or gutter.
¢ Watering after a Rainfall Event — No irrigation shall be allowed for 48 hours after a measurable
rainfall event. A measurable rainfall event shall be defined as an event having 0.10 inches of
rain in one day.
# Hoses — Open hoses are not permitted. Automatic shutoff nozzles are required.
2020 WSCP 6-3

128



Water Shortage Contingency Plan

¢+ Washing driveways and other paved areas — Use of water to clean sidewalks, driveways, patios,
or other hardscapes is not permitted. Washing of streets and commercial parking lots with a
hose is not permitted, except to alleviate immediate fire or sanitation hazards.

& Pools, ponds, and fountains — All swimming pools, ponds, fountains, or other decorative water
feature shall use recirculated water.

The penalties for water waste during this stage (Normal Water Supply) are as follows:

4 First and Second Violation — Customer is notified of a violation.
¢ Third Violation — Written warning sent to customer.

The following practices are encouraged by EGWD:

& lrrigation — Limit landscape irrigation to not more than 3 days per week.

¢ lIrrigation hours — Landscaping irrigation is discouraged between the hours of 12:00 p.m. and
6:00 p.m. during the summer months (May — October).

¢ Serving of Water — Restaurants shall serve water to customers only upon request.

# Water Leaks — Leaking pipes, fixtures or sprinklers shall be repaired promptly.

2020 WSCP 6-4

129



Water Shortage Contingency Plan

Stage 1 — 10% Supply Shortage

Actions include regulations from Normal stage plus those listed below. When implemented as a
whole program, these actions together are expected to eliminate up to a 10 percent gap between
supplies and demands.

Customers Actions to Reduce Demand up to 10 Percent

Reduce total water use by 10%. Contact EGWD or visit egwd.org for tips and techniques to
reduce indoor and outdoor water use.

Pool draining and refilling shall be allowed only for health, maintenance, or structural
considerations.

Users of construction water meters will be monitored for efficient water use.

Restaurants shall serve water only upon request.

Pipeline flushing is prohibited except in the case of an emergency, public health and for
essential operations or unless specifically authorized by the District.

Addresses ending in an odd number irrigate on Tuesday, Friday, and Sunday. Customers are
encouraged to voluntarily reduce irrigation to Tuesday and Friday.

Addresses ending in an even number irrigate on Monday, Thursday, and Saturday. Customers
are encouraged to voluntarily reduce irrigation to Monday and Thursday.

District Actions

Communicate mandatory reduction targets to customers.

Leak repair receives higher priority.

Increase drought awareness through additional public outreach measures that notify public
and customers for declared stage, requirements, and available conservation program
support.

Decrease system flushing frequency.

Increased monitoring of customer use.

Accelerate infrastructure repairs and improvements.

Water Shortage enforcement measures, including fines and charges, for non-compliance with
this WSCP’s requirements will be implemented in accordance with established District Policies
and Procedures

2020 WSCP

6-5

130



Water Shortage Contingency Plan

Stage 2 — 20% Supply Shortage

Actions include regulations from Stage 1 plus those listed below. When implemented as a whole
program, these actions together are expected to eliminate up to a 20 percent gap between supplies
and demands.

Treated Water and Municipal Water Customers - Actions to Reduce Demand up to 20 Percent

e Reduce total water use by 20%. Contact EGWD or visit egwd.org for tips and techniques to
reduce indoor and outdoor water use.

e Leaking customer pipes or faulty sprinklers shall be repaired within two working days or less if
warranted by the severity of the problem.

e Water for flow testing and construction purposes from water agency fire hydrants and blow-
offs is prohibited. Use of reclaimed water for construction purposes is encouraged.
Reclaimed water is not currently available within EGWD’s service area and would have to be
obtained elsewhere.

e Addresses ending in an odd number irrigate on Tuesday, Friday from 8pm-8am.

e Addresses ending in an even number irrigate on Monday, Thursday from 8pm-8am.

e Pools, ponds, and fountains — Water use for ornamental ponds and fountains is prohibited.
No potable water from EGWD’s system shall be used to fill or refill new swimming pools,
artificial lakes, ponds, or streams until the Stage 2 — Water Warning has been declared over.

District Actions
e Communicate mandatory reduction targets to customers.
o Implement water conservation patrols.
e Reach out to top consumers about conservation measures.

e

2020 WSCP 6-6

e
=

131



Water Shortage Contingency Plan

Stage 3 — 30% Supply Shortage

Actions include regulations from preceding stages plus those listed below. When implemented as a
whole program, these actions together are expected to eliminate up to a 30 percent gap between
supplies and demands.

Treated Water and Municipal Water Customers - Actions to Reduce Demand up to 30 Percent

Reduce total water use by 30%. Contact EGWD or visit egwd.org for tips and techniques to
reduce indoor and outdoor water use.

Leaking customer pipes or faulty sprinklers shall be repaired within 24 hours or less if
warranted by the severity of the problem.

Use of reclaimed water for construction purposes is encouraged. Reclaimed water is not
currently available within EGWD’s service area and would have to be obtained elsewhere.
Installation of new turf lawn and/or landscaping is prohibited.

Automobiles or equipment shall be washed only at commercial establishments that use
recycled or reclaimed water.

Addresses ending in an odd number irrigate on Tuesday, Friday from 10pm-4am.
Addresses ending in an even number irrigate on Monday, Thursday from 10pm-4am.

District Actions

Communicate mandatory reduction targets to customers.

No commitments will be made to provide service for new water service connections unless
the Department of Water Resources Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance, found at:
http://www.water.ca.gov/wateruseefficiency/docs/MWELO09-10-09.pdf, is followed and the plans
have been approved by the county or city building department which has jurisdiction over the
property location. Any authorized landscape for new connections is subject to all restrictions
set forth in Stage 3.

2020 WSCP

e

6-7

e
=

132


http://www.water.ca.gov/wateruseefficiency/docs/MWELO09-10-09.pdf

Water Shortage Contingency Plan

Stage 4 — 40% Supply Shortage

Actions include regulations from preceding stages plus those listed below. When implemented as a
whole program, these actions together are expected to eliminate up to a 40 percent gap between
supplies and demands.

Treated Water and Municipal Water Customers - Actions to Reduce Demand up to 40 Percent

e Reduce total water use by 40%. Contact EGWD or visit egwd.org for tips and techniques to
reduce indoor and outdoor water use.

e No potable water from the District’s system shall be used for construction purposes including
but not limited to dust control, compaction, or trench jetting.

e Addresses ending in an odd number irrigate on Tuesday from 10pm-4am.

e Addresses ending in an even number irrigate on Thursday from 10pm-4am.

District Actions
e Communicate mandatory reduction targets to customers.

e System Pressure — Maximum psi at wells and treatment plants will be reduced to 55.

Stage 5 — 50% Supply Shortage

Actions include regulations from preceding stages plus those listed below. When implemented as a
whole program, these actions together are expected to eliminate up to a 50 percent gap between
supplies and demands.

Customers - Actions to Reduce Demand up to 50 Percent
e Reduce total water use by more than 50%. Contact EGWD for tips and techniques to reduce
indoor and outdoor water use.
e Leaking customer pipes or faulty sprinklers shall be repaired immediately. Water service will
be suspended until repairs are made.
e Turfirrigation is prohibited.

District Actions
e Communicate mandatory reduction targets to customers.
e New connections - No new connections will be added to the system until the Stage 5 has been
declared over.
e System Pressure — Maximum system operating pressure will be reduced to 50 psi.

2020 WSCP

6-8

133



Water Shortage Contingency Plan

Stage 6 — Over 50% Supply Shortage

Actions include regulations from preceding stages plus those listed below. Actions will be identified
to address each specific shortage situation to eliminate the gap between supplies and demands.

Customers - Actions to Reduce Demand greater than 50 Percent
e Health and safety use of water only.
e landscape irrigation is prohibited.

District Actions
e Communicate mandatory reduction targets to customers.
e Other actions as identified specific to the shortage condition.
o Declare Water Shortage Emergency in accordance with Section 350 of Division 1, Chapter 3
Water Shortage Emergencies of the California Water Code.

6.5 Enforcement and Variances

EGWD provides the stages of penalties for violators of the water waste regulation. The penalties are
enforced through the application of FRCD Ordinance No. 06.15.21.XX. For each violation within a 12-
month period under normal water supply conditions, violations are as follows:

4 First and Second Violation — Customer is notified of a violation.
4 Third Violation — Written warning sent to customer.

When a conservation stage 1-3 is declared, fines for each violation within a 12-month period are as
follows:

First Violation — Customer is notified of a violation.

Second Violation — Written warning sent to customer.

Third Violation — $200 fine and customer is scheduled for mandatory water audit.

Fourth Violation — $500 fine.

Fifth Violation — $500 fine and water service is shut off. A Connection fee is assessed to
reactivate water service.

# Similar fines and charges may be implemented by EGWD as needed to enforce restriction on
specific prohibitions on water uses.

> > = > »

When conservation stage 4 - 6 is declared, fines for each violation within a 12-month period are as
follows:

& First Violation — Customer is notified of a violation with a written warning.

& Second Violation — $500 fine and customer is scheduled for mandatory water audit.

& Third Violation — $500 fine and water service is shut off. A Connection fee is assessed to
reactivate water service.

& Similar fines and charges may be implemented by the District as needed to enforce restriction
on specific prohibitions on water uses.

Once a water shortage stage has been declared, EGWD will enforce compliance through a multitude of

measures commensurate with each reduction goal. EGWD will either implement measures per this
Water Shortage Contingency Plan or will provide further discrete requirements through approval of
ordinances.

2020 WSCP

6-9

134



Water Shortage Contingency Plan

Does EGWD have a variance/Appeal Process? For shortage stage fines, not for water theft

The variance and appeal process regarding this WSCP is found in Section 5 of Ordinance 06.24.15.01.

6.6 Communication Protocols

EGWD maintains an established and effective communications program to inform its customers,
neighbors, and other stakeholders of issues, updates, and policies. Implementation of the WSCP will
utilize the existing communication program structure to inform customers and others of the declared
shortage stage and respective actions and restrictions in place.

The Board meetings addressing the Annual Water Supply and Demand Assessment and/or a potential
water shortage declaration will be noticed per normal Board meeting public notification procedures.
The meeting will also be announced through regular press release protocols.

Once a shortage stage as been declared by the Board of Directors, EGWD will notify its customers and
others through a range of efforts. The stage and restrictions will be identified in a press release, as well
as customer billing statements. EGWD’s website will be updated to feature the shortage declaration,
restrictions, and resources available to customers from EGWD and other entities to help meet the
restrictions. Subsequent Board of Directors meetings will include a review of the shortage condition,
customer response results, and discussion and recommendations for potential modifications.

EGWD will also coordinate with the City of Elk Grove, Sacramento County, Sacramento County Water
Agency, and Regional Water Authority, to declare a local emergency with respect to anticipated water
supplies and demands in the event conditions necessitate.

6.7 Financial Consequences of WSCP

EGWD understands the potential for decreased revenues and increased costs during prolonged water
shortage conditions and enforcement of excessive residential water use during a drought (compliance
with Chapter 3.3, Division 1 of the CWC). The decreased revenues can be expected due to a reduction in
water sales. Volumetric revenue is approximately 38 percent of total revenue®. Assuming a reduction in
sales commensurate with the particular WSCP stage declaration, a decrease in total revenues in the
range of 2-4 percent per stage may be expected.

Additional monitoring, public outreach, and enforcement is expected to increase total costs to EGWD in
declaring a water shortage. These additional efforts are prioritized for current staff, and other normal
work efforts and projects are delayed or reassigned. If conditions warrant, EGWD will seek the
assistance through additional staffing from third-party service providers. These costs depend on the
level of support and will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis.

EGWD maintains a strong financial management position. However, it is reasonable to expect financial
impacts or changes in cash flow during a prolonged water shortage condition. EGWD will enact a range
of management and financial resources depending on the specific situation that include:

& Capital project deferment

& Operational and maintenance expense deferment
¢ Increased revenues from fines and penalties

+ And others as identified

'EGWD’s 2018 Water Rate Study

2020 WSCP 6-10

135



Water Shortage Contingency Plan

6.8 Monitoring and Reporting

The WSCP aims to ensure demands are reduced and/or supply is augmented to balance supply and
demand. EGWD will enact various actions commiserate with each respective stage. EGWD will then
monitor results to maintain the supply/demand balance. Similar to the supply and demand projections
used to establish a shortage condition, EGWD will monitor the same data to determine effectiveness
and efficacy. District staff will report to the Board of Directors at least quarterly on status and results.
Data reporting will include:

Actual demands to projected demands per customer class and on total.

Actual supply availability and utilized to projected availability per each supply source.
Projected supply availability for next 12 months per supply source.

Any specific requirements identified by the State in the future.

Data will also be submitted to the State per any future reporting requirements.

> > = > »

Progress and efficacy will be summarized from the results data. EGWD will evaluate the need for any
changes or modifications to the declared water shortage stage or actions based on the results. EGWD
may determine to enact additional measures, develop ordinances, or update the WSCP as a whole. Any
WSCP update or modification will be conducted through the Board of Directors meeting process, unless
specific conditions require otherwise.

6.9 Response Action Estimates

The following table presents the individual estimated demand savings of each response action. Actual
savings will likely vary greatly based on external influences, shortage stage level, and general customer
understanding of drought severity. It is assumed the savings estimates are not additive, but when
implemented together as a program with all the actions in each respective stage, they will eliminate the
supply to demand shortage gap.

Table 6-1: Shortage Response Action Measures Estimates

Potential
Shortage Response Action Shortage Gap
Reduction
1 Customer — Asked to reduce total water use by 10%. up to 10%
14 Customer — Pool draining and refilling shall be allowed only for health, 0-1%
maintenance, or structural considerations.
1+ Customer — Users of construction meters will be monitored for efficient 0-2%
water use.
1 Customer — Limit irrigation to three days per week. Asked to voluntarily 3-8%
reduce to two days a week.
1+ District — Leak repairs receives higher priority. 0-3%
District — Increase drought awareness through additional public outreach
1+ measures that notify public and customers for declared stage, 3-5%
requirements, and available conservation program support.
1+ District — Increased monitoring of customer use. 0-1%
1+ District —Accelerate infrastructure repairs and improvements. 0-3%

e

N

2020 WSCP ‘ 6-11

136



Water Shortage Contingency Plan

Potential
Shortage Response Action Shortage Gap
Reduction

District — Increased enforcement measures, including fines and charges,

1+ . . 0-4%
for non-compliance with WSCP.
District - Flushing is prohibited except in the case of an emergency,
public health and for essential operations or unless specifically

1 . N 0-2%
authorized by the District.

2 Customer —Reduce total water use by 20%. up to 20%

) Customer — Leaking pipes or faulty sprinklers shall be repaired within 0-1%
two working days or less if warranted by the severity of the problem.

2 Customer — Irrigation shall be limited to two days per week. 5-15%
Customer — Water use for ornamental ponds and fountains is prohibited.

2+ No potable water from EGWD’s system shall be used to fill or refill new 0-1%
swimming pools, artificial lakes, ponds, or streams.

94 Customer — Water for flow testing and construction purposes from fire 0-1%
hydrants and blow-offs is prohibited.

2+ District — Implement water conservation patrols. 3-5%

3 Customer — Reduce total water use by 30%. up to 30%
Customer — Leaking pipes or faulty sprinklers shall be repaired within 24

3+ . . 0-1%
hours or less if warranted by the severity of the problem.
Customer — Use of reclaimed water for construction purposes is

3+ encouraged. Reclaimed water is not currently available within EGWD’s 0-1%
service area and would have to be obtained elsewhere.
Customer — Flushing of sewers and fire hydrants is prohibited except in

3+ the case of emergency and for essential operations or unless specifically 0-2%
authorized by EGWD.
Customer — Automobiles or equipment shall be washed only at

3+ . . . 0-1%
commercial establishments that use recycled or reclaimed water.

3 Customer — Irrigation shall be limited to two days per week (within six- 15-20%
hour block).

3+ Customer — Installation of new turf lawn and/or landscape is prohibited. 0-3%
District — No commitments will be made to provide service for new

3+ water service connections unless the DWR MWELO is followed, and the 1-5%
plans have been approved by the appropriate building department(s).

4 Customer — Reduce total water use by 40% Up to 40%

4 Customer — Irrigation is allowed only once per week (within six-hour 20-30%
block).
Customer — No potable water from EGWD’s system shall be used for

4 construction purposes including but not limited to dust control, 0-2%
compaction or trench jetting.
District — Maximum psi at wells and treatment plans will be reduced to

4 1-4%
55.

5 Customer — Reduce total water use more than by 50%. Up to 50%

2020 WSCP 6-12

(@)



Water Shortage Contingency Plan

Potential
Shortage Response Action Shortage Gap
Reduction
Customer — Leaking customer pipes or faulty sprinklers shall be repaired
5+ . . . ) . . 0-1%
immediately. Water service will be suspended until repairs are made.
5 Customer — Turf irrigation is prohibited. 25-40%
5 District — No new connection will be added to the system. 2-4%
5 District — Maximum system operating pressure will be reduced to 50 psi. 1-4%
6 Customer — Health and safety use of water only. up to 50%
6 Customer — Landscape irrigation is prohibited. 25-40%
6 District — Other actions as identified specific to the shortage condition. varies
District — Declare Water Shortage Emergency in accordance with Section
6 350 of Division 1, Chapter 3 Water Shortage Emergencies of the varies
California Water Code.

6.10 WSCP Refinement Procedures

EGWD’s WSCP is an adaptive plan that allows for active refinement to particular shortage conditions.
The general procedures for refinement are presented below.

1. For each shortage response action, compare expected results with actual shortage response and
identify any shortfall or over achievement.

2. Revise expected reduction for a specific shortage response action based on updated information.

3. Assess the aggregate expected reductions (from revised shortage response actions) for each
shortage stage.

4, Revise stage declaration or modify stage shortage response actions to balance demands with
supplies.

The procedures presented above will be relied upon during all shortage stage declarations, ensuring an
adaptive WSCP, capable of being relied upon under various circumstances, is produced.

6.11 Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Availability

The WSCP (including subsequent updates) shall be adopted in accordance with standard EGWD
procedures, including requirements for public participation (public hearing), and approval by the Board.
Upon adoption, the WSCP will be submitted to DWR no later than 30 days after and made available for
inspection at EGWD office and website.

6.12 Seismic Risk Assessment and Mitigation Plan
(Catastrophic interruption in supplies)

Sacramento County has completed a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) under the federal Disaster
Mitigation Act of 2000 (Public Law 106-390). Per DWR requirements, a copy of the most recent adopted
LHMP by each entity is included in EGWD’s UWMP (Appendix D).

2020 WSCP 6-13

138



Water Shortage Contingency Plan

Sacramento County is currently in the process of updating the LHMP 2016. The update includes
participation with other entities, including Cities of Sacramento, Citrus Heights, Elk Grove, Folsom, Galt,
Isleton, Rancho Cordova, and other special districts. The update is anticipated to be completed and
finalized during 2021. Upon adoption of the LHMP update, EGWD will submit to DWR.

The LHMP 2016 Hazard Identification Assessment for the City of Elk Grove characterizes the earthquake
and liquefaction probability as “occasional” (between 1 and 10 % chance of occurrence in the next year
or has a recurrence interval of 11 to 100 years) and “unlikely” (less than 1 percent chance of occurrence
in the next year, or has a recurrence interval of greater than 100 years), respectively. Earthquake and
liquefaction significance is listed to be “medium” (moderate potential impact) and “low” (minimal
potential impact), respectively.

2020 WSCP 6-14

139



ORDINANCE NO. 06.15.21.02

AN ORDINANCE OF THE FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPEALING AND REPLACING AN ENFORCEMENT
PROCEDURE FOR VIOLATIONS OF THE WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY
PLAN ORDINANCE NO. 06.24.15.01

WHEREAS the Florin Resource Conservation District (District) Board of Directors
believes that enforcement of the mandatory measures established by the District’s Water Shortage
Contingency Plan (Plan) is necessary to achieve the District’s water conservation goals; and

WHEREAS this Ordinance establishes a procedure for enforcing the mandatory
measures established by the Plan, including an appeal process; and

WHEREAS Government Code Section 53069.4 authorizes the District to issue
administrative citations for violations of the District’s ordinances; and

NOW, THEREFORE, THE FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION
DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

L. The following enforcement procedure:

ENFORCEMENT OF WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN
Section 1 Definitions

(a) "Administrative Citation" shall mean an administrative citation issued pursuant to this
section to remedy a violation.

(b) "Day" shall mean a calendar day.
© "Enforcement Officer" shall mean any employee or agent of the District
designated by the General Manager to enforce any Mandatory Measure.
@ "General Manager" shall mean the General Manager or his designee. "Mandatory
(&) Measure" shall mean any mandatory measure established by the
Plan.
M "Plan" shall mean the Water Shortage Contingency Plan.

@ "Responsible Person” shall mean a person who causes a Plan violation to occur, or

allows a violation to exist or continue, by his or her action or failure to act, or whose
agent, employee, or independent contractor causes a violation to occur, or allows a
violation to exist or continue. For the purposes of this Ordinance, there may be more
than one Responsible Person for a violation.

140



Section 2

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

Section 3

(@)

Penalties and Fines for Violation

Any Responsible Person violating any provision of the Water Shortage Contingency
Plan may be issued an Administrative Citation by an Enforcement Officer as provided
herein.

Each day a violation of the Plan occurs constitutes a separate and distinct offense.

A civil fine shall be assessed by means of an Administrative Citation issued by an
Enforcement Officer and shall be payable directly to the Florin Resource
Conservation District.

Civil fines shall be assessed in the amounts specified by the Water Shortage.
Contingency Plan.

Each Administrative Citation shall contain the following information:
(1) The name of the person charged with any violation of the Plan.
2 The date or dates on which the person violated the Plan.

3 The Mandatory Measure(s) of the Plan so violated.

(@) The location where the violation occurred.

5) The amount of the fine imposed or to be imposed for each violation of the
Plan.

(6) A notice of the procedure to request an administrative hearing to contest the
citation.

@) The name and signature of the person who issued the citation.
(8) The date the citation is issued.

9 Any other information deemed necessary by the General Manager or
Enforcement Officer for enforcement or collection purposes.

Payment and Collection of Fines

Payment of a civil fine assessed for a violation of the Plan shall be due within
21 days from the date of issuance of the citation and shall be in the form of
check or money order made payable to the Florin Resource Conservation
District. The citation number shall be designated on the check or money order.
Payment shall be delivered or mailed to: Florin Resource Conservation District,
9257 Elk Grove Blvd., Elk Grove, California, 95624.

141



(b)

Section 4

(@)

(b)

Section 5

(@)

(b)

(©

Payment of any fine or fines shall not excuse the Responsible Person from
complying with the Mandatory Measures so violated. The issuance of a citation
or payment of any fine, or both, shall not bar the District from instituting any
other enforcement action or remedy to obtain compliance with the provisions
of the Plan so violated, including the issuance of additional citations.

Failure to Pay Administrative Fines

The District may collect any past due administrative citation fine or late
payment penalty and interest by use of all available legal means. Without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, all such fines or late payments shall
constitute civil debts and may be recovered in an action at law, or a lien may be
filed by the District against the real property where the violation(s) occurred.

Any person who fails to pay to the District any fine imposed pursuant to this
Ordinance on or before the date that fine is due also shall be liable for the
payment of a late payment charge in the amount of ten percent of the fine.
Thereafter, the amount of the fine, and the penalty, shall accrue interest at ten
percent per annum until paid.

Appeal of Administrative Citation

The recipient of a citation issued pursuant to this section may contest the
citation. A notice of appeal and request for hearing contesting an
Administrative Citation issued for a violation of this Ordinance shall be
accompanied by an advance deposit of the total amount of the fine, which shall
be refunded if it is determined, after a hearing, that the person charged in the
Administrative Citation was not responsible for the violation(s) or that there
was no violation(s) as charged in the citation.

The Chair of the Board shall designate the hearing officer for the
Administrative Citation hearing. The hearing officer may be a District
employee, but in that event the hearing officer shall not have had any
responsibility for the investigation, prosecution or enforcement of this
Ordinance and shall not have had any personal involvement in the proceeding
to be heard or possess any disqualifying interest in the outcome of the
proceeding.

The hearing before the hearing officer shall be set for a date that is not less than
15 and not more than 60 calendar days from the date that the notice of appeal
is filed in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance. The person
requesting the hearing shall be notified of the time and place set for the hearing
at least 10 calendar days prior to the date of the hearing.

142



(d)

(€)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

1)

(k)

(1)

At least ten (10) days prior to the date of the hearing, the recipient of an Administrative
Citation shall be provided with copies of the citations, reports and other documents
submitted or relied upon by the Enforcement Officer. No other discovery is permitted.

Formal rules of evidence shall not apply.

The hearing officer shall only consider evidence that is relevant to whether the
violation(s) occurred and whether the party contesting the Administrative Citation
has caused, maintained, or allowed the violation(s) of the Plan on the date(s)
specified in the Administrative Citation.

The Administrative Citation and any additional documents submitted by the
Enforcement Officer shall constitute prima facie evidence of the respective facts
contained in those documents.

The person contesting the Administrative Citation shall be given the opportunity to
testify and present witnesses and evidence concerning the Administrative Citation.

The unexcused failure of any recipient of an Administrative Citation to appear at

the Administrative Citation hearing shall constitute a forfeiture of the fine and a

failure to exhaust his/her administrative remedies.

The hearing officer may continue the hearing and request additional information
from the Enforcement Officer or the recipient of the Administrative Citation prior
to issuing a written decision.

After considering all the evidence and testimony submitted at the hearing, the
hearing officer shall issue his or her written decision on the contested
Administrative Citation within ten business days. The written decision shall be
filed with the District Secretary and a copy thereof shall be mailed to the recipient
of the citation. The decision of the hearing officer shall either uphold or deny the
Administrative Citation or any portion thereof, and state the facts and reasons
supporting the decision. The decision of the hearing officer shall be final.

If the hearing officer determines that the Administrative Citation should be upheld,
the fine amount on deposit with the District shall be retained by the District.

If the hearing officer determines that the Administrative Citation should be
canceled or reduced and the fine was deposited with the District, the District shall
promptly refund the amount of the deposited fine or excess together with interest
at the average rate earned on the District's investment portfolio for the period the
fine amount was held by the District.

143



Section 6 Right to Further Appeal by Judicial Review

Any person aggrieved by an administrative decision of a hearing officer on an
Administrative Citation may obtain review of the administrative decision by
filing an appeal with the Sacramento County Superior Court in accordance with
the timelines and provisions as set forth in California Government Code section
53069.4."

2. The District finds that this Ordinance is not subject to the California Environmental
Quality Act ("CEQA™) pursuant to Section 15378(c)(3) of the State CEQA Guidelines,
California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Ordinance 3. The Ordinance is not a project as
defined in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15378 because pursuant to Section 15378(b), the
creation of government funding mechanisms or other government fiscal activities which do not
involve any commitment to any specific project which may result in a potentially significant
physical impact on the environment is not a project.

3. Further, this Ordinance preserves the status quo and therefore has no potential for
resulting in either a direct physical change in the environment, or a reasonably foreseeable
indirect physical change in the environment.

4. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable. If any provision,
clause, sentence, or paragraph of this Ordinance, or the application thereof to any person or
circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this
Ordinance or the application of those provisions.

5. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the Board of
Directors.

144



PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Florin Resource Conservation District
Board of Directors on this 15" day of June 2021 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Stefani Phillips
Board Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Ren Nosky
General Counsel

Sophia Scherman
Chair

145



June 15, 2021

TO: Chair and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District
FROM: Patrick Lee, Finance Manager/Treasurer
SUBJECT: PROPOSED FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT/ELK

GROVE WATER DISTRICT FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 OPERATING
BUDGET

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors adopt
Resolution No. 06.15.21.02:

1. Approving the deferral of the 3.0% revenue rate adjustment effective January 1,
2022, into future years; and

2. Approving the Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget projecting revenues of $15.716 million and
expenses of $19.749 million and appropriating $4.033 million from operating
reserves to fund expenses over revenues for fiscal year 2021-22.

SUMMARY

The Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District (District) staff, guided
by District Board of Directors (Board), has developed the proposed District Fiscal Year
(FY) 2021-22 Operating Budget for the Board’s consideration. Although the 2018 Water
Rate Study adopted by the Board on July 18, 2018, recommends a 3.0% revenue rate
adjustment effective January 1, 2022, the proposed District's FY 2021-22 Operating
Budget does not reflect the revenue rate adjustment because it is deemed not necessary,
and staff is recommending that the Board defer the 3.0% revenue rate adjustment into
future years.

By this action, the Board would adopt Resolution No. 06.15.21.02; 1) approving the
deferral of the 3.0% revenue rate adjustment effective January 1, 2022, into future years;
and 2) adopting the proposed District FY 2021-22 Operating Budget (attached) projecting
revenues of $15.716 million and expenses of $19.749 million and appropriating $4.033
million from operating reserves to fund expenses over revenues for fiscal year 2021-22.

AGENDA ITEM No. 4

146



June 15, 2021

PROPOSED FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT/ELK GROVE WATER
DISTRICT FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 OPERATING BUDGET
Page 2

DISCUSSION

Background

The District has a fiscal year that runs from July 1 to June 30. Staff initiated a process in
April to prepare the District’'s FY 2021-22 Operating Budget, which should be adopted by
June 30, 2021. Staff has continued a process that involves multiple Board of Director
meetings to conduct reviews with public participation. Staff presented the first draft of the
District FY 2021-22 budget development worksheet to the Finance Committee at the April
27, 2021, Special Board Meeting. A second draft of the District FY 2021-22 budget
development worksheet and a first draft of the proposed District FY 2021-22 Operating
Budget was presented to the Board at the May 18, 2021, Regular Board Meeting. A
second draft of the proposed District FY 2021-22 Operating Budget was presented to the
Board at the Special Board meeting on June 1, 2021.

During the various meetings, staff received comments and recommendations from the
Board and made the requested changes as directed. These changes, as well as the
deferral of the 3.0% revenue rate adjustment, are included in the proposed District FY
2021-22 Operating Budget (attached) and is being brought to the Board for recommended
adoption.

Present Situation

Staff is presenting the proposed District FY 2021-22 Operating Budget to the Board for
adoption.

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS

There are no direct environmental considerations associated with this report.

STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY

This item, and all other budget related activities, conforms to the FRCD/EGWD’s 2020-
25 Strategic Plan. Adoption of an annual EGWD balanced budget is specifically identified
as a goal in the Fiscal Responsibility section of the Strategic Plan.

AGENDA ITEM No. 4

147



June 15, 2021

PROPOSED FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT/ELK GROVE WATER
DISTRICT FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 OPERATING BUDGET
Page 3

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The District’s budget for FY 2021-22 projects total operating revenues of approximately
$15.716 million and total expenses of approximately $19.749 million including Capital
Improvement and Capital Repair & Replacement Reserve contributions of approximately
$5.055 million. The projected expenses in excess of revenues are approximately $4.033
million which will be funded from operating reserves carried over from prior years.

Despite many non-discretionary cost increases, staff undertook efforts to find cost
reductions as well as minimize increases and these are reflected in the FY 2021-22
budget. The budget has an increase in total expenses of $14,737 (0.07%) from the
adopted budget for FY 2020-21. The major highlights are listed below, and comparisons
made are against the budgeted amounts for FY 2020-21:

e Revenues for FY 2021-22 is budgeted at $15.716 million, an increase of $291,952
(1.89%) from prior year’s budget based on the following assumptions:

o A deferral of the 3.0% revenue rate adjustment effective January 1, 2022,
into future years. This revenue rate adjustment was recommended by the
2018 Water Rate Study adopted by the Board on July 18, 2018.

o No changes in consumption levels.

Increase in the number of accounts based on the most recent billing cycle.

o A 10% conservation factor in residential revenues due to the unknown
nature of drought conditions.

o A 5% conservation factor in non-residential revenues due to the unknown
nature of drought conditions.

o

e Total Salaries and Benefits budgeted is $4.620 million, an increase of $246,596
(5.64%) from prior year’s budget mainly due to:

o Anincrease in Exempt Salaries of $69,954 (12.13%) due to:
= A Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) of 3.97% based on the April
2021 Consumers Price Index.
= Longevity and merit pay increases for eligible employees.
o Anincrease in Non-Exempt salaries of $244,003 (15.86%) due to:
= Longevity and merit pay increases for eligible employees.
= A COLA of 3.97% based on the April 2021 Consumers Price Index.
* Anincrease in on-call pay from $50 per shift to $85 per shift.
o An increase in medical benefits of $23,462 (2.95%) based on estimated
medical premium increases provided by Joint Power Insurance Authority

AGENDA ITEM No. 4

148



June 15, 2021

PROPOSED FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT/ELK GROVE WATER
DISTRICT FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 OPERATING BUDGET

Page 4

(JPIA) averaging 6% for any employee who has not yet met the medical
subsidy cap.

o Adecrease in Retirement Benefits of $91,822 (25.42%) due to the pay down
of the District’'s unfunded accrued liability in December of 2020.

Seminars, Conventions and Travel budgeted is $48,859, a decrease of $4,448
(8.34%) from prior year’s budget due the Association of California Water Agencies
(ACWA) Spring Conference being held in Sacramento resulting in no travel costs.

Total Office and Operational Costs budgeted is $1.345 million, an increase of
$6,693 (0.50%) from prior year’s budget mainly due to:

o An increase in Advertising of $10,500 for more frequent bill inserts and
anticipated recruiting advertising.

o A decrease in Association Dues of $28,759 (18.60%) due to a decrease in
Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority (SCGA) dues.

o An increase in Building Maintenance of $55,000 (86.61%) for well site and
property landscaping and maintenance, which was previously budgeted as
contracted services.

o An increase in Materials of $25,000 (25.77%) for anticipated materials to
complete distribution valve changeouts.

o A decrease in Meters of $40,000 (30.77%) due to an anticipated decrease
in new meters related to new development.

Purchased Water budgeted is $3.511 million, an increase of $312,916 (9.78%)
from prior year’s budget due mainly to:

o An estimated 3.1% rate increase in the wholesale water rate as provided
the Sacramento County Water agency (SCWA).

o An increase in the number of new accounts in Service Area 2 due to new
development.

o A 10% contingency factor due to the unknown nature of new development
in Service Area 2.

Total Outside Services budgeted is $1.150 million, a decrease of $133,190
(10.38%) from prior year’s budget due mainly to:

o An increase in Water Conservation Services of $30,000 (100.00%) due to
anticipated Conservation Monitoring services due to drought conditions.

AGENDA ITEM No. 4

149



June 15, 2021

PROPOSED FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT/ELK GROVE WATER
DISTRICT FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 OPERATING BUDGET
Page 5

o A decrease in Engineering Services of $55,000 (47.83%) due the
anticipated Ground Water Recharge project no longer being viable.

o A decrease in Special Projects of $100,000 (100.00%) due to the
postponement of Well 3 destruction.

e Total Equipment Rent, Taxes and Utility budgeted is $561,740, an increase of
$97,360 (20.97%) from prior year’s budget due mainly to:

o Anincrease in Occupancy of $72,000 (100.00%) due to leaseback of 9257
Elk Grove Blvd. while the District's new administrative building is being
remodeled.

o Anincrease of $10,200 (2.57%) in Electricity based on anticipated electricity
rate increases through Sacramento Municipal Utility District.

e Capital Improvement Funding includes contributions to the Repair & Replacement
Reserve, as well as the Capital Improvement Reserve for a total of $5.055 million.
This represents an increase of $1.369 million from prior year’s budget and is based
on actual funding needs from the FY 2022-26 Capital Improvement Program (CIP).

e Bond interest expenses will decrease by $112,970 (7.26%) while bond principal
retirements will increase by $140,000 (6.09%).

e No Elections Costs anticipated for FY 2021-22.

e This budget anticipates capitalizing $400,192 of Salaries and Benefits for capital
improvements constructed by the Distribution and Utility Divisions, which are
funded in the Five-Year CIP. Capitalized labor is estimated at 60% of the total
salaries and benefits of the Utility Division.

e The budget, as recommended, will meet bond covenant requirements as follows:

o Covenant — 1.26 (1.15 required)

e The Board adopted a Five-Year CIP which only appropriated funding for the CIP
projects scheduled in FY 2021-22.

e Staff has determined that Grants or Special Funding are not currently available for
the District. Therefore, no revenues from these income sources are included in this
budget document.

AGENDA ITEM No. 4
150



June 15, 2021

PROPOSED FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT/ELK GROVE WATER
DISTRICT FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 OPERATING BUDGET
Page 6

The attached District FY 2021-22 Operating Budget contains many schedules and graphs
detailing the proposed budget. Staff is recommending that the Board of Directors adopt
Resolution No. 06.15.21.02, approving the revenue rate adjustment deferral and adopting
the proposed District FY 2021-22 Operating Budget.

Respectfully submitted,

/S , X o
L7k e

PATRICK LEE
FINANCE MANAGER/TREASURER

Attachment

AGENDA ITEM No. 4

151



RESOLUTION NO. 06.15.21.02

A RESOLUTION OF THE FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPROVING THE DEFERRAL OF THE 3.0% REVENUE
RATE ADJUSTMENT EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2022, INTO FUTURE YEARS AND

APPROVING THE FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT/ELK GROVE
WATER DISTRICT FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 OPERATING BUDGET PROJECTING
REVENUES OF $15.716 MILLION AND EXPENSES OF $19.749 MILLION AND
APPROPRIATING $4.033 MILLION FROM OPERATING RESERVES TO FUND
EXPENSES OVER REVENUES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-22

WHEREAS, the Florin Resource Conservation District (FRCD) is a Resource
Conservation District organized pursuant to Division 9 of the California Public Resources Code,
Sections 9001, et seq. (Resource Conservation Law); and

WHEREAS, the FRCD is formed for the purposes delineated in the Public Resources
Code Section 9001 and all things necessary to carry out the provisions of the Resource
Conservation Law and adopted FRCD/Elk Grove Water District (District) Bylaws; and

WHEREAS, the FRCD has held several public meetings to review the proposed revenues
and expenses for the District for the Fiscal Year (FY) July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the 2018 Water Rate Study adopted by the Board of July 18, 2018,
recommends a 3.0% revenue rate adjustment effective January 1, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the District FY 2021-22 Operating Budget reflects the deferral of the 3.0%
revenue rate adjustment effective January 1, 2022, into future years as it is deemed not necessary
for FY 2021-22; and

WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors (Board) has received and considered the
proposed District FY 2021-22 Operating Budget submitted by the Finance Manager/Treasurer on
June 15, 2021.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS DOES HEREBY RESOLVE:

SECTION 1. The Board of Directors hereby adopts the foregoing recitals as true and
correct and incorporates them herein by reference.

SECTION 2. The Board of Directors hereby approves the deferral of the 3.0% revenue
rate adjustment effective January 1, 2022, into future years.

SECTION 3. The Board of Directors hereby approves the total revenues of $15,716,094
and total expenses of $19,749,469 for the proposed Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk
Grove Water District FY 2021-22 Operating Budget.

SECTION 4. The Board of Directors hereby authorizes the General Manager to
redistribute allocated budgeted amounts between line items within the budget categories.

152



SECTION 5. The Board of Directors hereby approves the FY 2021-22 Rate and Fee
Schedule which includes no revenue rate adjustments effective January 1, 2022.

SECTION 6. The Board of Directors hereby approves the FY 2021-22 Salary Schedule
which includes a 3.97% cost of living adjustment.

SECTION 7. The Board of Directors hereby adopts the Florin Resource Conservation
District/Elk Grove Water District Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget, attached hereto as
Exhibit “A and made a part hereof.

SECTION 8. The Board Secretary shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution.

SECTION 9. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Florin Resource Conservation District
Board of Directors on this 15" day of June 2021 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
Sophia Scherman
Chair
ATTEST:

Stefani Phillips
Board Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Ren Nosky
General Counsel

153



EXHIBIT “A”

“FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT/ELK GROVE WATER
DISTRICT FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 OPERATING BUDGET”

[Attached behind this cover page]

154



Elk Grove Water District

Fiscal Year 2021-22
Operating Budget

155



Elk Grove Water District

Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
9257 Elk Grove Boulevard
Elk Grove, CA 95624
(916) 685-3556
www.egwd.org

Board of Directors
Sophia Scherman, Chair
Tom Nelson, Vice-Chair

Bob Gray, Director

Lisa Medina, Director
Elliot Mulberg, Director

Appointed Official
Bruce Kamilos, General Manager

Leadership Team
Stefani Phillips, Human Resources Administrator/Board Secretary
Patrick Lee, Finance Manager/Board Treasurer
Donella Murillo, Finance Supervisor
Travis Franklin, Program Manager
Steve Shaw, Water Treatment Supervisor
Sean Hinton, Water Distribution Supervisor
Alan Aragon, Water Distribution Supervisor

156


http://www.egwd.org/

GOVERNING VALUES

Board members and employees of the Florin Resource Conservation District and Elk Grove
Water District commit to the following values:

e Transparency: We recognize that transparency is the foundation of good
governance. We are committed to openness and accountability in all District
endeavors.

e Leadership: We are a team. The community is supported through mutual
cooperation and respect. Great ideas come from many sources and we listen with an
open mind.

e Caring: We care about the quality of our water, we care about our customers’
satisfaction and we care about the quality of the working environment.

e Integrity: We are honest with one another, with our customers and with our
industry partners. We maintain a quality operation that is fiscally sound and
forthright. We want the trust and respect of our community and ratepayers.

e Professionalism: We are committed to standards of excellence, accuracy and
superior conduct.

e Vision: We recognize that decisions we make today impact the future of this District
and our community. We value our community’s natural resources and actively seek
ways to improve our services through local control and stewardship.

157



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Budget TranSmittal LETter ...ttt st s e s es e 3
Industry Analysis and CUrreNnt STAtUS........cvevireireie e e aer s 5
About the Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District...........ccccueue.... 7
EGWD DY the NUMDEIS....cvieiitieie ettt ettt sttt e e e e e st eb st aes s es e ensaseneees 14
GFOA Distinguished Budget Presentation AWard..........c.ouvevivineineiieeiesie e s 15

FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 BUDGET OVERVIEW

FY 2021-22 Budget Adoption RESOIULION......cocecieeeeeceece st 17
FY 2021-22 Budget Preparation TiIMeliNe... ..o ie ettt et s 19
Summary of ReVENUES aNd EXPENSES....ccuieieiecececeeterteeeeste e seeee st e e saestesrnesssessansenns 20
Summary of Net POSItION ACHIVILY....ccoveieeeeie et e s et 21
Budget Highlights FY 2021-22.......oooi e sttt s e et st ste e s e ees e e e et e 23

REVENUE SECTION

Budgeted ReVENUES DY Cat@BOrY.....uccuuiiiieiice ettt s te st e et st sre s eae e 27
IMaJOr REVENUE SOUICES. ...cciutiiiieiitieies e tstiesstessresies seessaes stessasesaessressssesssesnaessns snesssesssesnsasnse ons 28
REVENUE DELAIL .ottt sttt et s tesae s e et e s e e e e st sre s eeseensennne e seeaans 31
EXPENSE SECTION
Budgeted EXPenses DY Cat@ZOrY.. .. ie ettt eree e et eeeereesaesas s e seessestesnneesaessennes 33
Salaries aNd BENEFItS.....ccoi ittt st st sae e e 35
Seminars, CoNVENTIONS AN TrAVEL....cuuivviiiiieeeeieis ettt et csre s esr e st e sar e saeseaessnnneens 37
Office & Operational and PUrchased Water...........oovvieieceecenee ettt eeeereeraeenns 38
OULSITE SEIVICES...cueiueiuectertecte ettt et ettt e s ettt es et s e e e eseaseeseaaeaseeeesbe st seeeteseeseesee e snanen 41
Equipment Rents, Taxes and ULIITIES......cc.coviveerieieiiire ettt e esreen e ene v e 42
Capital EXPENAITUIES ...ooveeveeeiieecte ettt ettt e be et sbestess e s aessenne sbesbesnsesaessensenees 43
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Capital Projects LiStING.......cvecvecreeiirenre ettt seeereer e saeene e 44
Non-0perating EXPENSES (REVENUES).......cecievvireeerreieeeiere e creseeeseessesesssesaesreseseessessenseessesseons 45

ORGANIZATIONAL AND BUDGET SUMMARIES BY DEPARTMENT

OrganizatioNal Chart c.....co ettt st s ae et s e e steebesas e s e s eea e anes 47

o I S I V- TR 48

Jurisdictional COMPATISON ......ooviiuieieiece ettt sttt s tesae et et e n e e e e 49

EXPENSES DY DEPAIMENT.....ccceeiieitict ettt st ste st et s e et s te st st ees e s e et e 50
1

158



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

SUMMArY DY DEPAITMENT...ciiiie ettt et saeeteeae e st sa sae s 50
Office of the GENEral MAnN@EEr......ccooeve vttt r et sr e e eae s 51
Human Resources DepartmMeEnT... ... oottt sttt st sae e e e sae e eas 53
Program Manager DepartmMent...... .ot ettt et sttt e e s ere e 54
Finance and Administrative Departments. ... eeieiininircre et st saaens 55
Technical Services DePartMENt... ..o i ittt rr e e anes 57
INFOrmMation TEChNOIOZY . ....uviiiiiiiiiiie e e e e e e s aaaees 58
Operations DePartMENT..... .. e e e e e e et ettt s e e e e e e e e eeeeneneees 60

LONG-TERM INDEBTEDNESS, REVENUE BONDS AND BOND COVENANT RATIO

Long-Term Indebtedness to MatuUrity.......cccevieieceecceece e et s e 65
Debt Service CoVErage Rati. ...ttt et sve st st e er et e s e e e eee 66

FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 RATES AND FEES SCHEDULE

RAtES AN FEES SCNEAUIE....eivit ittt ettt st e s et e tesssebte e ebebes sesabeaessersresesssnes 69

FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 SALARY SCHEDULE

Y1 [V Yol a =T (1] L= TR 73

ACronyms & GlOSSary Of TEIMIS... ..o et et st s s re e sre s e s e e e st sreeas 84

159



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

grce Consery,..
aes® liay)

Elk Grove Water District

To: Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors

From: Bruce Kamilos, General Manager

Date: June 15, 2021

Subject: FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT/ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT

FY 2021-22 OPERATING BUDGET

For your consideration, | respectfully submit the proposed annual Florin Resource
Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District (District) Operating Budget for the fiscal year
beginning July 1, 2021. This proposed operating budget reflects a collaborative effort
between staff and the Board, as well as allowing for input from the public during several
meetings.

Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-2021 proved to be challenging as the District dealt with the surge of the
COVID-19 pandemic while trying to maintain and provide critical water services. Businesses
and schools shut their doors and residents were ordered to shelter in place. The fallout
included many businesses closing down, workforce reductions, schools moving to distance
learning, employers implementing telecommute working protocols and an overall economic
recession.

The economic recession was evident as District delinquent accounts started to increase due
financial hardships experienced by District ratepayers. District ratepayers joined the growing
number of families who could no longer afford their utilities or rent, forcing the Governor to
issue an executive order establishing a moratorium on rent evictions and utility shutoffs. To
assist District customers who were experiencing these financial hardships, the District Board
of Directors issued a resolution waiving door tag fees and late payment penalties.

To address the COVID-19 Pandemic, the District took a proactive approach by developing and
implementing a COVID-19 Risk Minimization and Outbreak Response Plan. The five-tiered risk
level plan was developed to coincide with the State of California Department of Public Health
and the Center for Disease Control’s identified risk levels based on the spread of the virus.
The Plan included precautionary measures and actions required within each tier to minimize
and/or address the spread of the virus within the District. As part of the actions taken, the

3

160



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

District closed its front lobby to minimize public contact and prevent the spread of the virus.
Although all non-critical services were also put on hold, the District continued to perform all
customer service functions over the phone and electronically. Even with a limited operations
workforce, the District maintained the critical functions necessary to meet its commitment
to the community of Elk Grove of supplying its customers with high quality, safe water along
with outstanding customer service.

Not all that occurred in FY 2020-21 was overshadowed by the pandemic, however. Although
the economy was in a recession, proper planning and years of prudent financial management
allowed the District to utilize reserve funds to pay down the District’s unfunded accrued
liability with CalPERS in the amount of approximately $1.7 million. The paydown of the
unfunded accrued liability has the potential to save the District an estimated $1.3 million in
interest payments over the next 30 years.

FY 2020-21 also proved successful for the District in its search for a new administrative
building. The District was able to close escrow on the property located at 9829 Waterman
Road in Elk Grove, CA in October of 2020. This new administrative building will provide the
District’s Board of Directors with a place to hold their monthly Board meetings, as well as
provide the District’s staff with an appropriate facility to provide top tiered customer service.

The Board of Directors and Staff of the District remain committed to prudent, conservative
financial practices, with goals of continuing to reduce long-term debt and funding capital
improvements on a pay-as-you-go basis.

The District has also completed efforts to review its rates and fees with the intent of attaining
long-term stability and maintaining sufficient debt service coverage required by its
outstanding bond covenant.

| would like to thank staff for their conscientious efforts in prudent management of District
resources to meet the demands of great customer service and responsible facilities
maintenance. | want to also thank the Board of Directors for their leadership and continued
interest in prudent fiscal management.

In summary, the District will continue to maintain financial discipline during FY 2021-22, and
this reflects a concerted effort by the Board and staff to maintain our customer rates and
charges as low as possible.

B 7. lafoos

BRUCE KAMILOS, P.E.
GENERAL MANAGER

161



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

INDUSTRY ANALYSIS AND CURRENT STATUS

Issues Currently Affecting the Water Industry. The American Water Works Association
(AWWA) 2020 State of the Water Industry Report has identified the top five issues facing the
water industry as: 1) renewal and replacement of aging infrastructure; 2) financing for capital
improvements; 3) long-term water supply availability; 4) public understanding of the value of
water systems and services; and 5) watershed/source water protection.

The District is proactively addressing these top five issues identified by AWWA. As part of its
five-year CIP, the District is replacing aging infrastructure such as old water mains each and
every year. In addition, the District, through its Asset Management Plan, annually assesses
the condition of all of its assets to determine when projects should be undertaken to replace
assets. The District currently has a pay-as-you-go policy to fund replacement of aging assets.
To address long-term water supply availability, the District prepares an urban water
management plan every five years as required by law that verifies its ability to meet long-
term water demands. To improve public understanding of the value of water, water systems
and services, the District periodically issues a newsletter to its customers and participates in
two large annual events where people in our community gather. To ensure watershed/source
water protections, the District is working with the Sacramento Regional Water Authority to
prepare a Regional Water Reliability Plan that addresses, in part, source water protection in
the American River Basin. The District is also preparing a Risk and Resiliency Plan which will
link to the United States Bureau of Reclamation American River Basin Study which forecasts
the long-term effects of climate change.

Changing Water Demands. Although more efficient use of water is a major goal of the
industry, in areas where customer growth is slow or nonexistent, declining water use left
unaddressed can decrease operating revenue and affect how costs are recovered through
rates and charges. In some cases, utilities must explain to customers that their rates must go
up even as their community uses the same amount of water or less water.

The District has experienced gradual decreases in water consumption from 2014 to 2016 due
to the drought starting in 2014. In 2017, when the emergency drought declaration was lifted
by the Governor, the District started to experience gradual increases in water consumption.
This gradual increase, however, was offset by certain conservation efforts, such as installing
water efficient appliances and landscaping, which result in long-term water use reductions.
Water consumption still has not returned to the pre-drought levels experienced in 2013 and
earlier.

Cost Recovery and Affordability. Faced with increasing capital needs and potential funding
shortfalls, many utilities must increase the rates they charge for water services in the
immediate future. The affordability of water has become a significant issue for low-income
households and a higher priority for water utilities that struggle to reconcile the need to

5

162



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

adequately fund infrastructure while not overburdening those who cannot afford rate
increases.

The District completed a 5-year water rate study during the summer of 2018, setting forth
the incremental rate adjustments for years 2019 through 2023, necessary to continue to fund
debt service costs, operating costs and anticipated repairs and replacement costs of aging
infrastructure of the water utility. Through prudent financial management, cost control and
the implementation of certain cost reduction programs, the District was able to hold off rate
adjustments in 2019 and 2020 and to defer the 3.0% rate adjustment scheduled in 2021. The
District is further investigating whether rate adjustments in the final 2 years of the study can
be deferred to maintain affordability while still providing sufficient revenues to maintain
operations.

Long Term Water Supply Availability. The District, like all other municipal water providers,
must complete an Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) every five (5) years. The next
UWMP is due to the State by June 30, 2021, and it must project out the District’s water supply
and demand forecast for a twenty-year period. This UWMP will also consider growth impacts
and potential shortages resulting from drought and climate change. The District is also
partnered with other Sacramento regional water agencies, led by the Regional Water
Authority (RWA), to develop a Regional Water Reliability Plan which will also forecast long-
term water supply needs and develop projects and programs to maintain long-term
reliability. The District is also a member of the Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority
(SCGA) which is charged with developing a Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) to seek
sustainability of the South American Subbasin through 2042. As the District is nearly
exclusively reliant on the groundwater basin for its water supply, this Groundwater
Sustainability Plan and the associated management of the South American Subbasin is of vital
importance to the District.

Regulatory Compliance. The importance of current and future regulatory compliance
continues to be a main concern of the water industry. New regulatory compliance
requirements challenge the ability of water utilities to meet such requirements financially
and operationally while continuing to maintain affordability to customers, with regulations
surrounding perfluorinated alkyl substances (PFAS) and nonpoint source pollution being the
top two concerns.

Local, State, and Federal regulatory compliance continues to be a concern of the water
industry. New standards challenge the ability of water utilities to meet such requirements
financially and operationally while continuing to maintain affordability to customers. The
District continues to closely track these new requirements and is prepared to meet them if
implemented.

163



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

ABOUT THE FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT

Introduction

In the spring of 1950, the Florin Farm Center Committee for Organization of a Soil
Conservation District, a committee of Florin farmers, submitted a proposal for the formation
of the Florin Soil Conservation District to the Sacramento County Board of Supervisors,
requesting approval and submission of that proposal to the State Soil Conservation
Commission. The specific intents of the new soil conservation district would be efficient use
of irrigation water, improved drainage, flood control and other land improvements. With the
necessary approvals, the committee met with other agricultural interests and local
landowners until they had thoroughly identified all properties wanting to be within the
District boundaries.

On June 23, 1953, a public election determined the establishment of the Florin Soil
Conservation District (FSCD) and its first five-member board of directors. The very first work
plan, written in 1953, identified the importance of wise irrigation use and the necessity in not
depleting the area's underground water supplies. In 1954, the board executed a
Memorandum of Understanding with the USDA, beginning a long and productive partnership.

California Resource Conservation Districts are authorized by Division 9 of the California
Public Resources Code. Chapter 3, Article 9 of Division 9 details the general powers of a
district. An expansion of those powers was the impetus in changing the names of the Soil
Conservation District to Resource Conservation Districts in 1971, resulting in the Florin
Resource Conservation District (FRCD).

ABOUT THE ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT

Introduction

In 1893, after several fires threatened the small town of Elk Grove, CA, local residents banded
together and founded the Elk Grove Water Company. The water company began business
with twelve owners and 10 customers. The Jones family later purchased the water company
in the early 1900’s and operated the utility as a private company known as the Elk Grove
Water Works. The FRCD acquired the Elk Grove Water Works in 1999 from the Jones family
and created the Elk Grove Water District (EGWD), which is a Department of the FRCD. This
acquisition changed the governance of the water utility from private ownership to a publicly
owned and operated agency. The EGWD is structured as an enterprise fund of the FRCD.

The District is governed by an elected five-member Board and advice from one volunteer
associate Board member. Board members serve four-year, staggered terms. The Board of

7

164


http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=PRC&division=9.&title=&part=&chapter=&article=
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=PRC&division=9.&title=&part=&chapter=&article=

Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

Directors delegate the daily operations of District to the General Manager, who supervises
the work of 30 staff members.

Although recent efforts by the District have primarily focused on managing the water utility
(EGWD), it has also performed other activities including creek cleanups, tire recycling,
technical assistance, and conservation education. To remedy some of the financial pressures
of the District, on April 18, 2018, the Board made the decision by Resolution No. 04.18.18.01
to limit all future activities to “water related activities that benefit, or otherwise serve, the
EGWD ratepayers.” This decision was made after years of deliberation, multiple public
meetings, in-depth engagement with legal counsel, and even consideration of integration
with other water agencies. The decision to limit District activities to benefit EGWD ratepayers
protects the District from financial uncertainty, maintains stability for EGWD customers, and
leaves the FRCD boundaries intact.

Elk Grove Water District Service Area

VERLINN [ROAD A

1
p 5 |
g
Q
BRADSHAW|ROAD

Elk Grove Water
District Area

Florin Resource
Conservation
District Boundary

The EGWD service area covers 13 sg. miles with a population of approximately 46,000 people,
providing water to over 12,800 homes and businesses in Elk Grove. Much of the water
supplied is produced by wells located throughout Elk Grove, the treatment and storage
facility at the Railroad Water Treatment Facility (RRWTF) on Railroad Street and the
treatment facility on Hampton Drive. EGWD produces over 1.3 billion gallons of water each
year, providing supply to approximately two-thirds of the EGWD service area. The remaining
area is supplied with water purchased from the SCWA under a long-term agreement.

165



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

Budget Process

The District adopts an annual operating budget and an annual CIP to ensure the adequacy of
resources to meet District needs and to accomplish the District’s mission.

The District’s budget process begins with a Leadership Team Budget Kickoff Workshop to
discuss timeline and identify strategic goals and objectives. Each department head is then
responsible for developing their departmental operating budget for submission to the
Finance Department. The Human Resources Department is responsible for the development
of personnel budget and the Finance Department is responsible for the preparation of
revenue estimates. Once all departmental operating budgets, personnel budget and the
revenue estimates are completed, the Finance Department will compile the information into
the budget document.

As required by certain debt covenants, the annual operating budget is evaluated to ensure
that net revenues, as defined by the debt covenant, are equal to or exceed a minimum of 115
percent of the anticipated debt service for the budget year.

The preliminary budget is presented to the Finance Committee during a public meeting to
solicit feedback and comments from the committee and the public. Once all feedback and
comments received have been considered and incorporated as appropriate, the final budget
is presented to the Board of Directors for adoption during a public meeting prior to each fiscal
year end.

Basis of Accounting

The District operates on a fiscal year that runs from July 1, through June 30. Accounting and
budgetary records are maintained using the full accrual basis of accounting. The District is a
governmental entity which reports all activities related to the water operation as an
enterprise fund where revenues are recognized when they are earned, and the expenses are
recognized when they are incurred. The budget does not include amounts for depreciation,
pension expense in accordance with Government Accounts Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 68, or retiree medical expenses in accordance with GASB Statement No. 75
but does include an expenditure for debt principal. Therefore, the budget is not prepared in
the same manner as the Comprehensive Annual Finance Report. The budget detailed in this
document is used as a management tool for projecting and measuring revenues and
expenses.

Budgetary Control

Since the budget is an estimate, from time to time, it may be necessary to make adjustments

to fine tune budget line items within expenditure categories. Various levels of budgetary

control have been established to maintain the Budget’s integrity. The levels of budgetary
9

166



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

control are as follows: The General Manager controls the budget at the operating level and
budgets are monitored by each respective department head. The General Manager has the
authority to transfer balances between budget lines within an expenditure category. Any
transfers between expenditure categories or increases in appropriations require approval by
the Board of Directors. Budget to actual reports are prepared by the Finance Department and
presented to the Board of Directors on a monthly basis.

Reserve Policy

It is the policy of the District that all funds held in reserve be designated to specific uses. The
District holds reserves for special projects and operations. Such reserves are not considered
‘surplus’ and shall not be made available for other uses without the express authorization of
the Board of Directors.

The adequacy of the target reserve balance and/or annual contributions will be reviewed
annually during the budgeting and planning process and may be revised accordingly as
necessary. The following District reserve fund categories are to be established:

e Operating Reserve Fund — Used to ensure resources are available to fund daily
administration, operations, and customer services. Target Balance is 120 Days of the
Annual Operations and Maintenance Budget.

e Capital Improvement Reserve Fund — Used to fund the new assets needed for the
operations of the District that enhance or increase capacity. Target Balance is equal
to the annual Capital Improvement Program Budget.

e Capital Replacement Reserve Fund — Used to fund replacement of existing assets.
Target Balance is equal to the annual Capital Replacement Budget.

e Elections and Special Studies Reserve Fund — Used to fund various special studies, as
needs arise such as election cost, Board expense, etc. The Target funding balance is
based on the amount as approved in the annual budget.

e Future Years Capital Improvement Reserve Fund — Used to fund future assets needed
for the operations of the District that enhance or increase capacity in future years not
yet identified in the annual CIP. Target Balance is 75% of the balance of the
Unrestricted Net Position not allocated to the Operating Reserve Fund, Capital
Improvement Reserve Fund, Capital Replacement Reserve Fund and the Elections
Special Studies Reserve Fund upon conclusion of the annual audit.

e Future Years Capital Replacement Reserve Fund — Used to fund the replacement of
existing assets in future years not yet identified in the annual CIP. Target Balance is
25% of the balance of the Unrestricted Net Position not allocated to the Operating

10

167



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

Reserve Fund, Capital Improvement Reserve Fund, Capital Replacement Reserve Fund
and the Elections Special Studies Reserve Fund upon conclusion of the annual audit.

Investment Policy

It is the policy of the District to invest public funds in a manner which will provide the highest
investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow demands of
the District and conforming to all state and local statutes governing the investment of public
funds. In accordance with section 53600 et. seq. of the Government Code of the State of
California, the authority to invest public funds is expressly delegated to the Board of Directors
for subsequent re-delegation to the Finance Manager/District Treasurer.

Investments by the Finance Manager are limited to those instruments specifically described
in the District’s investment policy. The Finance Manager submits monthly reports to the
Board of Directors detailing all investment holdings. In order of importance, the following
three fundamental criteria are followed in the investment program: 1) safety of principal; 2)
liquidity; and 3) return on investment.

Procurement Policy

The District’s procurement policies create uniform procedures for acquiring general goods
and services, professional services, public construction contracts and the acquisition of real
property. The primary purpose of the policies are to provide for the purchase of materials
and trade services with the objective that they will be available at the proper time, place,
guantity and at the best available price, consistent with the needs of the District.

Accounting Systems and Controls

The District uses Sage 100 as its financial accounting system to record its financial
transactions. Management has established a system of internal controls that provide a
reasonable basis for protecting the District’s assets from fraud, waste and abuse and compile
sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the District’s financial statements. At
the end of the year, the District prepares a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report consisting
of management’s representations concerning the District’s finances. An independent
auditing firm audits this report and examines the District’s internal controls and provides an
opinion on the financial reporting and suggestions on ways to improve the internal control
processes of the District.

Capital Improvement Program

The District’s annual Capital Improvement Program (CIP) is a projection of the District’s

capital funding for planned capital projects in upcoming fiscal years. The CIP is reviewed and

updated on an annual basis and is a key component of the District’s overall Strategic Plan.
11

168



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

The CIP is an important document for performing water rate studies and for managing the
District’s operations. The CIP also provides a basis to align District plans with other local
agency plans so that an integrated approach may be applied to projects within the community
at large.

The District currently funds its capital expenditures on a pay-as-you-go basis. A projection of
the anticipated future capital projects and associated funding needs of those projects were
included in the 2018 Water Rate Study when analyzing total revenue requirements to
maintain operational and capital needs. The study recommended the appropriate user
charges and annual water rate increases to ensure revenue requirements were met for both
operational and capital needs. Based on the inclusion of capital funding needs into the 2018
Water Rate Study, and all recurring and nonrecurring capital expenditures being funded on a
pay-as-you-go basis, the only effect of capital projects on the annual budget will be on going
costs for operation and maintenance.

Long-Term Financial Planning

With the approval of the 2018 Water Rate Study and associated rate ordinance, the District
has a five-year plan that provides for the stable funding of operations, capital projects and
debt service. In conjunction with this plan, the District restructured approximately $32.3
million of outstanding bonded indebtedness in December 2014 and $16.4 million in June 2016
to provide an average annual savings of $194,000 over the remaining term of the debt. It
should be noted that the District contributed $1.5 million of reserve funds in order to reduce
the remaining term of the debt by 13 years and maintain annual debt service savings on the
refinanced bonds. The District has no legal debt limit and does not intend to issue any
additional debt. This, along with continued prudent financial management, has allowed the
District to implement no rate adjustments in 2019 and 2020 and to defer the 3.0% rate
adjustment scheduled in 2021. The District is further investigating whether rate adjustments
in 2022 and 2023 can be deferred to maintain affordability while still providing sufficient
revenues to maintain operations. Staff will continue to review revenues and expenditures
annually to determine whether the projected revenue adjustments as recommended by the
2018 Water Rate Study will be necessary.

12

169



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

Budget Assumptions

A budget is an estimate of revenues and expenditures for a set period of time. The creation
of estimates involves a set of assumptions. It is important that the reader of this budget
understands the assumptions used in preparing the revenue and expenditures estimates
contained herein. Listed below are the primary assumptions used in the creation of this
budget:

e The 2018 Water Rates Study adopted by the Board on July 18, 2018 approved a 3.0%
revenue rate adjustment beginning January 1, 2022. However, this revenue rate
adjustment has been deferred into future years, resulting in no anticipated revenue
rate adjustment for FY 2021-22.

e A 10% conservation factor was used in projecting water revenues due to the
uncertainty of the drought conditions the State is currently facing.

e Estimated 3.10% rate increase in Purchased Water cost from the SCWA.

e Estimated 27.26% decrease in employer retirement costs through California Public
Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) as a result of the District paying down the
Unfunded Accrual Liability of approximately $1.6 million in FY 2021.

e Estimated 6.0% increase in health care insurance costs for all employees that have not
yet met the District’s medical contribution cap.

e Salary increases will be based on a COLA of 3.97%, in accordance with the consumers
price index (CPI), and potential merit increases based upon specific employee
performance.

13

170



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

EGWD by the Numbers

MAXIMUM DAILY WATER SuPPLY CAPACITY

NUMBER OF TREATMENT FACILITIES

AGGREGATE TREATMENT FACILITY CAPACITY

NUMBER OF WELLS

MILES oF WATER MAINS

NUMBER OF BOOSTER PUMPS

NUMBER OF ACTIVE SERVICE CONNECTIONS

NUMBER OF BOND ISSUES OUTSTANDING

NUMBER OF CERTIFIED WATER DISTRIBUTION OPERATORS
NUMBER OF CERTIFIED WATER TREATMENT OPERATORS
NUMBER OF PUBLIC FIRE HYDRANTS

EGWD SERVICE AREA POPULATION

14

11.4 MGD
2

13.0 MGD
7

149.8

10

13,027

17

17
1,660
46,212

171



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

®

GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION
Distinguished
Budget Presentation
Award

FRESENTED TO
Florin Resource Conservation District

California

For the Fiscal Year Beginning

July 1, 2020

Chutop o P- Monitt

Executive Director

15

172



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

FiscAL YEAR 2021-22
BUDGET OVERVIEW

16

173



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

Hold for Budget Adoption Resolution

17

174



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

Hold for Budget Adoption Resolution

18

175



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Budget Preparation Timeline

March 29 Leadership Team Budget Kick-Off.

April 01 All District key objectives and department goals and accomplishments are due
to the FM.

April 06 Infrastructure Committee meeting to discuss the 1°t draft of the FY 2022-26
CIP.

April 09 All department initial budget requests are due to the FM.

April 13 FM submits budget development worksheet to the GM for first review.

April 15 Leadership Team meeting to review the 1% draft of the budget development
worksheet.

April 20 Present to the Board the 3™ quarter financial report.

April 21 GM to provide first round comments and revisions on budget development

worksheet to FM.

April 23 FM makes the required revisions and disperses the 1st draft of the budget
development worksheet and District key objectives and department goals and
objectives to the Finance Committee (Board).

April 27 Infrastructure Committee meeting to go over 2" draft of the CIP (if necessary).

April 27 Finance Committee meeting to go over 1° draft of budget development
worksheet and District specific key objectives and department goals and
objectives.

May 13 Issue the 1%t draft of the actual budget document and 2" draft of budget

development worksheet to the Board for review.

May 18 Review and discuss the 2" draft budget development worksheet and 1%t draft
of actual budget document.

May 26 Finance Committee Meeting (if necessary).
June 01 Issue revised budget to Finance Committee (if necessary).
June 08 Finance Committee Meeting (if necessary).
June 10 Final Budget and staff report due for Board Packet inclusion.
June 15 Board considers all budgets for adoption.

19

176



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

SUMMARY OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

weudoud Juawanosdwi |eyide) sy 03 padieyd a4 [|Im YdIym UolsiAIg Aj13N 3Yi JO Ss3auag pue salie|es o 909 Ajrewixoidde syuasaidau siyy 4

%000 - S - $ - - S - S - $ - S (Aousniyaq)/sseax3 193png 19N
%EY'9- (sTz'LL2) GLE'EE0Y YOE'BCLT  06S0TEY  (¥80'8€9'7)  (¢£9'8L6'T)  (980°CTE'T) S9AI9S9Y Wouy/(01) siajsuel)
%EY'9- ste’iLe S (GLE'€E0Y) § 0 (POE'8TLT) S (06S0TER) S ¥80°8€9'T $ TBE'9LET $ 980°CIET $ Joqeqpazijende) pue juswialiiay [edpulld
‘s24n}ipuadx3 JO $$9IX3 U| SONUIADY
%L0°0 LEL'YT 69v'6L'6T SYO'8T6LT  TEL'VELBT  [8T'08L'ET  T6C'LS8TT  6E0'TE0VT sainyipuadx3 1aN |30
%ST'LE 0SC'69€'T 000'550°S 8LE'T/9'T  0SL'G89'€E  6E9'BET‘T 062°916 668'7SET sainyipuadx3 pue juawdinb3 |ejde)
%05°ce-  (602'£S8°T) 667'£58°E 9/L'6Ev'S  SOLYIL'S  TEEOWY'E 6VELVE'S  9ST'TS8'E (dwoou() saunyipuadx3 SunesadQ-uoN
%98t 969705 0£6°9€8°0T 168°908'6  SLTWEEOT  LIE'TOT'6 €59°665'8  ¥86'9¢8'8 sasuadx3 [euofesadQ [e10L
%9T°9 (eet’en) « (¢61°00V) (¢6T'05T) (196'9.€) (9sv'eLT) (929°2T€) (€€9'6L2) Joge pazieyide) :ssa7
%16y LT6'STS €9T°LET'TT 881°/G6'6  SETTTILOT  €LLWLY'6 6CE'TT68  LT9'90T'6 sain}ipuadx3 [euofesadQ [e103qns
%L6°0C 09€'L6 OvL'19S TET'9LS 08€ 79 15785 666'€€E 8LT'vLE S313|13N pue saxe] ‘Juay Juawdinb3
%8€'0T-  (06T€ET) 85€°0ST'T ¥00'T6L 8vS‘€8C'T  9SV'6E6 9TY'ev8 9/5'TT6 S30IAIIS BPISINQ
%8L'6 916'TIE 0CETISE TC9'T6E'E  YOV'S6T'E  8E9'G96°T YWE'LLLT  T6U'ELBT Jaiepm paseydingd
%0S°0 €699 TLT'SYE'T S€6€66 8/S'BEE'T  LE'686 920'7L6 ¥18'786 [euonieladQ pue 10
%ve 8- (8t0'%) 6588y 6EL'S LOE‘ES €TY°0€ T00°6€ 7/8°8C [9ABJL PUE SUO[IUBAUOD ‘SIRUIWDS
%9°S 965 97T ¥19'619 8GL'8YCy  SIOELEY  Tv¥'T60Y EVSEV6'E  G8L'TLE'E s1jauag pue saliejes
saJnyipuadx3 jeuonesado
%68°T 66T S ¥60°9TL‘ST $ TVL'68T9TS THI'VTv'STS TLE'STY'OT $ YL9'€ET'STS GCI'ErE'STS SaNUaNaY €301
a8ueyd % 198png 193png payaloid 193png |enyy |enjy |enjy 24n3}ipuadx3
ur a3ueyn TT-T20T M T2-0T A 12-0C A 0C-6T A 61-8T A4 8T-LT Ad

T20T ‘0€ dunf Sulpus Jea\ |edstd ay3 Jod
Ao8a1e) Aq sainyipuadx3 pue sanuanay paiaspng
PUISIq J31e M 3N0ID Y3

20

177



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

SUMMARY OF NET POSITION ACTIVITY

Elk Grove Water District
Summary of Net Position Activity
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022

FY 20-21 FY 20-21 FY 2021-22
Budget Projected Budget
Beginning Net Position S 46,703,765 S 46,703,765 S 44,975,461
Estimated Revenues 15,424,142 16,189,741 15,716,094
Estimated Operational Expenditures
Salaries and Benefits 4,373,018 4,248,758 4,619,614
Seminars, Conventions and Travel 53,307 5,739 48,859
Office and Operational 1,338,578 993,935 1,345,271
Purchased Water 3,198,404 3,391,622 3,511,320
Outside Services 1,283,548 791,004 1,150,358
Equipment Rent, Taxes and Utilities 464,380 526,131 561,740
Total Operational Expenditures 10,711,235 9,957,188 11,237,163
Estimated Nonoperational Expenditures
Capitalized Labor (376,961) (150,297) (400,192)
Non-Operating Expenditures (Income) 5,714,708 5,439,776 3,857,499
Capital Equipment and Expenditures 3,685,750 2,671,378 5,055,000
Total Nonoperational Expenditures 9,023,497 7,960,857 8,512,307
Revenues in Excess of Expenditures (4,310,590) (1,728,304) (4,033,375)
Estimated Ending Net Position S 42,393,175 S 44,975,461 S 40,942,085
21

178



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

THIS PAGE
INTENTIONALLY
LEFT BLANK

22

179



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS
FiscAL YEAR 2021-22

The District’s budget for FY 2021-22 projects total operating revenues of approximately
$15.716 million and total expenditures of approximately $19.749 million including Capital
Improvement and Capital Repair & Replacement Reserve contributions of approximately
$5.055 million. The projected expenditures in excess of revenues are approximately $4.033
million which will be funded from operating reserves carried over from prior years.

Despite many non-discretionary cost increases, staff undertook efforts to find cost reductions
as well as minimize increases and these are reflected in the FY 2021-22 budget. The budget
has an increase in total expenditures of $14,737 (0.07%) from the adopted budget for FY
2020-21. The major highlights are listed below, and comparisons made are against the
budgeted amounts for FY 2020-21:

e Revenues for FY 2021-22 is budgeted at $15.716 million, an increase of $291,952
(1.89%) from prior year’s budget based on the following assumptions:

o

o

A deferral of the 3.0% revenue rate adjustment effective January 1, 2022 into
future years. This revenue rate adjustment was recommended by the 2018
Water Rate Study adopted by the Board on July 18, 2018.

No changes in consumption levels.

Increase in the number of accounts based on the most recent billing cycle.

A 10% conservation factor in residential revenues due to the unknown nature
of current drought conditions.

A 5% conservation factor in non-residential revenues due to the unknown
nature of drought conditions.

e Total Salaries and Benefits budgeted is $4.620 million, an increase of $246,596
(5.64%) from prior year’s budget mainly due to:

o

An increase in Exempt Salaries of $69,954 (12.13%) due to:
= A COLA of 3.97% COLA based on the April 2021 Consumers Price Index.
= Longevity and merit pay increases for eligible employees.
An increase in Non-Exempt salaries of $244,003 (15.86%) due to:
= Longevity and merit pay increases for eligible employees.
= A COLA of 3.97% based on the April 2021 Consumers Price Index.
= Anincrease in on-call pay from S50 per shift to $85 per shift.
An increase in medical benefits of $23,462 (2.95%) based on estimated
medical premium increases provided by JPIA averaging 6% for any employee
who has not yet met the medical subsidy cap.

23

180



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

o A decrease in Retirement Benefits of $91,822 (25.42%) due to the pay down
of the District’s unfunded accrued liability in December of 2020.

Seminars, Conventions and Travel budgeted is 548,859, a decrease of $4,448 (8.34%)
from prior year’s budget due the ACWA Spring Conference being held in Sacramento
resulting in no travel costs.

Total Office and Operational Costs budgeted is $1.345 million, an increase of $6,693
(0.50%) from prior year’s budget mainly due to:

o An increase in Advertising of $10,500 for more frequent bill inserts and
anticipated recruiting advertising.

o Adecrease in Association Dues of $28,759 (18.60%) due to a decrease in SCGA
dues.

o An increase in Building Maintenance of $55,000 (86.61%) for well site and
property landscaping and maintenance, which was previously budgeted as
contracted services.

o An increase in Materials of $25,000 (25.77%) for anticipated materials to
complete distribution valve changeouts.

o A decrease in Meters of $40,000 (30.77%) due to an anticipated decrease in
new meters related to new development.

Purchased Water budgeted is $3.511 million, an increase of $312,916 (9.78%) from
prior year’s budget due mainly to:

o An estimated 3.1% rate increase in the wholesale water rate as provided the
SCWA.

o An increase in the number of new accounts in Service Area 2 due to new
development.

o A 10% contingency factor due to the unknown nature of new development in
Service Area 2.

Total Outside Services budgeted is $1.150 million, a decrease of $133,190 (10.38%)
from prior year’s budget due mainly to:

o An increase in Water Conservation Services of $30,000 (100.00%) due to
anticipated Conservation Monitoring services due to drought conditions.

o A decrease in Engineering Services of $55,000 (47.83%) due the anticipated
Ground Water Recharge project no longer being viable.

o Adecrease in Special Projects of $100,000 (100.00%) due to the postponement
of Well 3 destruction.

24

181



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

Total Equipment Rent, Taxes and Utility budgeted is $561,740, an increase of $97,360
(20.97%) from prior year’s budget due mainly to:

o Anincrease in Occupancy of $72,000 (100.00%) due to leaseback of 9257 Elk
Grove Blvd while the District’s new administrative building is being remodeled.

o An increase of $10,200 (2.57%) in Electricity based on anticipated electricity
rate increases through SMUD.

Capital Improvement Funding includes contributions to the Repair & Replacement
Reserve, as well as the Capital Improvement Reserve for a total of $5.055 million. This
represents an increase of $1.369 million from prior year’s budget and is based on
actual funding needs from the FY 2022-26 CIP Program.

Bond interest expenses will decrease by $112,970 (7.26%) while bond principal
retirements will increase by $140,000 (6.09%).

No Elections Costs anticipated for FY 2021-22.

This budget anticipates capitalizing $400,192 of Salaries and Benefits for capital
improvements constructed by the Distribution and Utility Divisions, which are funded
in the Five-Year Capital Improvement Program. Capitalized labor is estimated at 60%
of the total salaries and benefits of the Utility Division.

The budget, as recommended, will meet bond covenant requirements as follows:

o Covenant —1.26 (1.15 required)

The Board adopted a Five-Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) which only
appropriated funding for the CIP projects scheduled in FY 2021-22.

Staff has determined that Grants or Special Funding are not currently available for the

District. Therefore, no revenues from these income sources are included in this
budget document.

25

182



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

REVENUE SECTION

26

183



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

BUDGETED REVENUES BY CATEGORY

Fire Service, Other Revenues, Other Revenues include:
$194,563,1.24% _$206,875,1.32%

Meter/Plan Check/Water Capacity Fees
Door Hanger Fees

New Account Fees

NSF Fees

Credit Card Fees

Backflow Prevention Installations

Commercial,
$1,878,259,11.95% _

Commercial Revenues Include:
e Non-Residential Revenue
e |[rrigation Revenue

Residential,
“._ $13,436,396 , 85.49%

Note: Residential Revenue in this chart is net of customer refunds.

TOTAL REVENUES
FISCAL YEARS 2017-18 THROUGH 2021-22
518,000,000 -
§17,000,000 -
$16,418,071

$16,181,835
$15,716,094
$16,000,000 $15,424,142
515,343,125 ¢15 233,674
$15,000,000 -
$14,000,000 -
413,000,000 -
$12,000,000 - : : : : :

FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 15-20 FY 20-21 FY 20-21 FY 21-22
Actual Actual Actual Budget Projected Budget

The FY 2021-22 Budget reflects the deferral of a 3.0% revenue rate adjustment into future
years and no anticipated increase in overall water consumption. This revenue rate
adjustment was recommended in the 2018 Water Rate Study, adopted by the Board of
Directors on July 18, 2018.

27

184



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

MAJOR REVENUE SOURCES

Approximately 98% of the District’s revenues are derived from recurring water revenues
related to water consumption and availability charges. Although a 3.0% revenue rate
adjustment was approved by the Board through the adoption of the 2018 Water Rate Study,
the 3.0% revenue rate adjustment effective January 1, 2022, was deemed unnecessary and
will be deferred into future years. In addition, the District derives revenues from new
connection fees for development within Service Area 1 of its two service areas. Connection
fees for development within Service Area 2 of the EGWD’s service area are paid to the SCWA.

\ SHELDON RD

{ '&:\I

BOND RD

ELK GROVIE FLORIN RD
BRADSHAW RD

m
L
-
(2]
a

DVE BLVD

/

WATERMAN RD

Service Area 1

Service Area 2

Revenue projections are developed using a fee/rate-based projection, taking account and
consumption information for the most recent twelve-month period, and applying it against
the current and proposed fee/rates. Depending on drought conditions, revenue projections
are adjusted by what the District deems to be an appropriate conservation factor and/or
anticipated increase in water consumption as a result of the lifted drought restrictions.

Revenue Rate Increase Projections

Utility rate setting is subject to the provisions of Proposition 218 wherein customers are
provided information on proposed rate changes and are invited to attend a public hearing on
the proposed changes. Proposed rate changes can be denied if a majority of ratepayers

28

185



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

submit written protests opposing them. If a majority of ratepayers do not protest, the Board
of Directors vote on the proposed rate changes and set the effective date for any proposed
and approved changes. On July 18t™, 2018, the 2018 Water Rate Study was adopted by the
Board with recommended revenue adjustments over the next five years beginning on January
1, 2019, as follows:

e January1, 2019 -0%
e January 1, 2020-0%
e January 1, 2021 - 3% - Deferred into future years.
e January 1, 2022 — 3% - Deferred into future years.
e Januaryl, 2023 -3%

Revenue rate adjustments are necessary to fund various projects and to pay for increased
operating cost, primarily due to inflation. It should be noted that the Board of Directors
decided to defer the revenue rate adjustments of 3.0% on January 1, 2022, into future years
as it was deemed unnecessary in FY 2021-22.

The table below shows the average revenue rate adjustment each calendar year since 2011
in relation to an average bill, assuming the customer is a single-family residential service
customer with a 1” meter consuming 15 CCF’s of water. As can be seen, the increases in rates
have been very consistent and relatively minimal. For the years with a rate increase, the
increase is approximately equal to the average inflation rate. This is all made possible through
prudent financial management and budgeting; however, future revenue adjustments will be
necessary to fund various capital projects and to pay for increased operating cost, primarily
due to inflation.

% Rate Increase from 2011 - 2021

$100.00 -
$90.00 -
$80.00 -
$70.00
$60.00 -
$50.00
$40.00 -
43000
$20.00
$10.00 -

31% 3% oo0% 0.0%
Sgy  2.9%

0.0% 0.0% 00% 21% 2%

Average Invoice Amt

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2015 2020 2021

Calendar Years

B Fixed Charge Commodity Charges %Change

29

186



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

WATER CONSUMPTION TREND

Water revenues are driven by two primary factors, the amount of water sold and the rate per
unit, with increases in water consumption generating more revenues to offset the increased
costs of operations. The graph below shows the consumption trends for the prior two
calendar years as compared to the pre-drought calendar year of 2013. The graph also shows
the correlation between the annual seasonal change and overall water consumption, with
the highest level of consumption occurring during the summer months.

As can be seen in the graph below, the District has experienced gradual increases in water
consumption in 2020 and 2019, however, the total level of water consumption still has not
reach the pre-drought levels of 2013. Attributable to the overall decrease in water
consumption for the most recent two calendar years, as compared to the pre-drought levels
of 2013, is the implementation of certain water conservation efforts, such as installing water
efficient appliances and landscaping, which result in long-term water use reductions.

400
350 -
300 -
: 250
3 2020542
5 = 2020541
T 00 2019542
m 2019541

20135A2
m20135A41

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Now Dec

30

187



¥60°9TL‘ST S GERTBTITS CYI'veh'STS TLO'STVITS P/9'EET'STS SCT'EVE'STS

SONUDAJY |e1o0]

8 (000°T) - (000°T) (€9227) (89¢) (980°0¢) Spunyay Jawoisn)  006Y
..m 000°ST 96L €€ - - - - awoou| [eludy  00Lb
m - - - LOYV'T - - 99juarjoases|ay TSV
]

m o - - 0008 0509 qzL0T 000°0T $994 pled Upal) 085y
o ¥ GC9'LE - 00005 008°8€ 0SL'€9 991°€9 $994 JJO-INYS  0LSY
m m. 000°€ 8TLT 000°€ 099'C 099°C 0v9'e S9944SN 0SSP
< C

W m 000°ST YTLCE 000°SZ ozy'oe 0007T 16LTC $99431UNONY MAN  OFSP
2 g 0Sz'98 - 000°STT 00t‘90T 00L ‘7wt SCL6YT s994498ueHJ00q 0TS
..Dm m 000°0T LTE6C 000°0T 9799 G558 9TT'sT aM93 |[eIsul mo|ppeg  00EY
S n 000°0€ €€0'V61 000°0€ vLL'TTS 71695 06T°0¥7C Avioede) uarep/5dY) Ue|d/S994 49BN 00ZY
w m €95761 65910 €95v61 LSE‘961 9zELLT 156881 901N 3414 - SBNUIAIY JudWAed 121N OTTY
m m 657'8/8'T €50°918'T TLESL8T 9e6°010C £88'9T6'T TCS1E8T |BIDIBWIWOD - SBNUIAJY JudwAed 4ol OTTY
m .lxa 96E°LEV'ET S 6CSTV'ETS LOTVIT'ETS VOV'6LV'ETS G6V'8I8‘TTS VOT'8Y8‘CTS  |BlUSPISAY - SONUSASY JUsWAed Jalepy  Q0TY
m [ 198png paisanbay payaloid 198png |enyy |enyy |enyy uonduasaqg H#1UNOJJY
a TC-120T A T2-0T Ad T2-0T M 0Z-6T Ad 6T-8T Ad 8T-LT AMd

o

£

m 2202 ‘0€ dunf Sulpud JedA |easl4 9y3 104

|1e19Q SIUN0JIY SNUANY paraspng
PUISIQ 1918\ 9A04D Y|3

31

188



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

EXPENDITURE SECTION

32

189



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

Capital Equipment and Expenditures, Salaries and Benefits,
$5,055,000 , 25.60% $4,219,422 , 21.36%

Seminars, Conventions and
_Travel, $48,859,0.25%

_ Office and Operational,
51,345,271, 6.81%

| _ Purchased Water,
Non-Operating Expenditures $3,511,320, 17.78%

{Income), $3,857,499 , 19.53%

\_Outside Services,
$1,150,358 , 5.82%

Equipment Rent, Taxes and

Utilities, $561,740, 2.84%

Note: Total Salaries and Benefits Expenditures are net of capitalized labor costs of $400,192,
which is included in total Capital Equipment and Expenditures.

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURES
FiscAL YEARS 2017-18 THROUGH 2021-22

525,000,000

519,734,732 519,749,469
520,000,000

| $17,918,045
$15,000,000 514,031,033 512;85?;252513,?80,28?
410,000,000 -
$5,000,000 -
$- . . . . :

FY 17-18 FY 18-19 Y 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 20-21 F21-22
Actual Actual Actual Budget Projected Budget

33

190



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

SALARIES AND BENEFITS
FiscAL YEARS 2017-18 THROUGH 2021-22

Aside from the cost of water

purchased from the SCWA for the ==

EGWD’s Service Area 2 and debt _ ]

service payments, Salaries and [ ] [ ] [ [ ]
Benefits represent the largest =

expense of the District. -

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT STAFF

Staffing levels at the District has
remained relatively unchanged. In 4

FY 2021-22, the District added a

provision to the Employee Policy

Manual to increase the on-call pay @
from S50 per day to S85 per day.
The District also provides COLAs

annually based on the average of the U.S. City Average, West Urban Size B/C and San
Francisco-Oakland-San Jose, CA indices. The COLA for FY 2021-22 is 3.97%.

LA

F2017-18 FY2018-15 Fr20158-20 Prz0z0-21 Pr2021-22

B Administration/Finance Operations W Technical

Employee Cost Control Program

During FY 2011-12, District staff developed an Employee Cost Control Program (ECCP) that
helped reduce and control employee costs by obtaining savings through selected employee
concessions, including, freezing certain full-time equivalent (FTE) positions, a phase in
reduction of the employer portion of employee retirement contributions and placing a cap
on the amount of employer paid health premiums. To offset these concessions, the District
created an alternative 9/80 work schedule and established a permanent disability retirement
benefit program.

Pension and other Post-Employment benefits

The District’s retirement program remains with the CalPERS. The District currently pays the
employer costs and a portion (one percent) of the employees’ tax-deferred member
contributions to the system monthly. The District provides post-employment healthcare
benefits to retirees and their dependents. Five retired employees receive these benefits,
which are financed on a pay-as-go basis. The District pays the medical, dental, and vision
insurance premiums for eligible retired employees (and qualified spouse) that are enrolled in
the health insurance plan. The current requirements for eligibility are: attaining age 55,
having at least fifteen years of continuous service, and retiring from the District.

34

191



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

The following tables show the trend in salaries and benefits in comparison to prior years, as
well as the breakout of the current proposed budgeted salaries and related components.

SALARIES AND BENEFITS
54,500,000 - $4,219,422

$3,996,057 94098,461
P4/000,000 $3,643,152 $3,625,867 $3,817,985
$3,500,000
$3,000,000
$2,500,000
$2,000,000
$1,500,000
$1,000,000
$500,000
$_ | I I ! T

FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 Fy20-21 FyY21-22
Actual Actual Actual Budget Projected Budget

NET SALARIES AND BENEFITS $4,219,422*

Other,
$52,180, 1.24% The Other Expenditure
Categories include:
e Employee Training
e Employee Recognition
e Meetings

Benefits,
$1,503,030, 35.62%

_ Salaries,
$2,664,212 , 63.14%

*The total Salaries and Benefits are net of capitalized labor costs of $400,192 for capital
improvements constructed by the Distribution and Utility Departments.

35

192



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

w6ty S T9V‘'860VS £S0'966'€S S86'LZ18°€S [98°GT9‘€S TSTEV9‘eS
(z6T00V) (t6T'0sT)  (1969L8)  (9sv'esz)  (949°21€)  (€£9%6LT) Jogeq pazijeyide) ssa
00Z‘s - 00Z‘e LV8 29 63T s3unas 082S
088°C S¥S 088°C €8€°C €9y 0€S‘e uolyugoday asAojdw3 0L1S
009°cw G96°S 00S‘Sk G80°6T 8/€'8T L69°ET 8ulutes] a3ho|dw3 092s
00S‘C - 00SC - - 995°C doUe)SISSY uoleINpy 0SS
00996 780°16 685701 qee’ss 8€€T6 6LV VTT douelnsu| uoijesuadwo) s 3O (0749
799 126°CS €05°€9 ¥9L6v 9€0°LY 06691 INS pue A}1uNJas [e100S ‘Xe| |edIpaN 0€¢S
6€€99T 9T€‘99T 9T€‘99T LTY'S8T 8308.¢ €90'TET JuswAo|dw3 1504 - S31}2Udg JUBWIIIRY STTs
95169¢ 66€0LE LLT'T9E €LT'VCS 900°09% 6ET VTS SHjaUag JUBWIIRY 0zes
GT8'6S 2095 795°€9 #5968 LTT'SS LEETS adueJnsu| aI/uoisin/eiuaa 0TS
00€°92 00v‘2C 00S‘€C 7601 TSC'ET 40 V'S’H uolingquiuo) amo3 1025
/8 688 776 876 €18 Gz8 dv3 S6TS
900°0Z8 265199 €V5'96L £80°G8S T¥2'885 €59°€6S syjauag |edIpaN 002S
87L'€0T 817888 G86°66 91916 L0€90T £8€°S0T Aed awi] |euosiad 0LTS
9LTT ¥TT'eST ¥6C €T 19L 8T 000‘T9T TET'6ST Aed uoneoen 09TS
099°6¢CT 1SS‘€CT 186'7¢CT T6L'ETT €8C'TIT 7€9°60T Aed AepijoH 0STS
G20'TE 6€L°CE 0SZ‘8T ovy'eC 0S9°LT 002‘8T Aed ||e3 uo (0]429
00S‘ev 1599¢ 00S‘8% ¥8LcE YT ‘ev 66L09 uoliesuadwo) SWIHIAQ 0€TS
v2LT8LT LOLTS9'T  TCL'S8ES'T  86I'G9E‘T  €66€6T'T  €EE'S6L'T sale|es 1dwax3-uoN 0zTS
Shv‘9v9 TTT29S 16%9/5 £1599S 796'18S 8iv'sTs saueles 1dwax] 0TTS
8/9°66T S 008‘C8T $ 98Y‘TTC $ GT9Z8T S O0CC'TLI $ ¥E6'IST S Asejes anindax3 00TS
193png paisanbay paafoid 193png |[enpy |lenpy [enpy uonduasag #1UNodYy
TC-TT0C Ad T2-0C A4 TT-0T A4 0Z-6T A4 6T-8T Ad 8T-LT Ad

720z ‘0€ dunf Bulpua Jea [easty Y3 Jod
|1e19Q S1UN0JJY S11jaudg pue sauejes pa1aspng
1PUISIQ J2IB N 301D Y3

36

193



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

SEMINARS, CONVENTIONS AND TRAVEL
FISCAL YEARS 2017-18 THROUGH 2021-22

Seminars, Conventions and Travel
expenditures are budgeted based on
the anticipated travel to and from
various conferences and seminars. It
is in the best interest of the District to
invest in the employees to allow them
to stay current and educated about
activities, developments, and
professional trends affecting their
ability to provide high-quality job
performance, which includes external

and internal customer service. As
such, travel to attend hearings,
meetings, conferences, or other

gatherings is of value to the District.

$60,000

$50,000 -

540,000 -

530,000 -

520,000

$10,000

528,872

|

SEMINARS, CONVENTIONS AND TRAVEL

$35,001

530,413

$53,307

I 5,739

548,859

|

FY 17-18 FY 1819 FY15-20 FY20-21 FY20-21 Fy21-22
Budget Projected Budget

Actual

Actual

Actual

The two major conferences that District staff attend are the semi-annual Association of
California Water Associations (ACWA) conferences and the annual California Society of
Municipal Finance Officers (CSMFQ) conference.

Elk Grove Water District
Budgeted Seminars, Conventions and Travel Accounts Detail
For the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2022

FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 20-21 FY 2021-22
Account#t  Description Actual Actual Actual Budget Projected Requested Budget
5300 Airfare S 168 S 2536 S 2928 S 5600 S - S 6,050
5310 Hotels 5,022 11,024 7,366 17,441 - 13,216
5320 Meals 3,282 4,585 2,741 7,246 851 7,018
5330 Auto Rental - 373 63 2,200 - 2,200
5340 Seminars & Conferences 9,109 12,588 10,256 12,900 (1,130) 12,545
5345 Seminars & Conferences - Board 2,197 725 - - - -
5350 Mileage Reimbursement, Parking, Tolls 1,577 1,170 989 1,920 19 1,830
5375 Auto Allowance 6,000 6,000 6,070 6,000 6,000 6,000
S 28872 S$ 39001 S 30,413 $ 53307 S 5739 S 48,859

37



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

OFFICE AND OPERATIONAL AND PURCHASED WATER
FiscAL YEARS 2017-18 THROUGH 2021-22

Office and Operational
expenditures are budgeted to
cover administrative costs such
as repairs and maintenance of
equipment, buildings, and
computers, purchases of
chemicals for water treatment,
postage, printing, and
association dues. These costs
allow the District to continue to
operate and maintain the water
system and to continue to
provide water services to its
ratepayers. As can be seen by
the table to the right, office and
operational expenditures have

51,600,000
51,400,000
51,200,000
1,000,000
$800,000
$600,000
£400,000
$200,000

5-

$984,814 5974,026

OFFICE AND OPERATIONAL

$1,338,578

$1,345,271

Ff17-18
Actual

FY 18-19
Actual

FY15-20 FY20-21 FY20-21 FY21-22
Actual Budget Projected Budget

remained relatively consistent from year to year and only expected to increase by
approximately $7,000 in FY 2021-22 as compared to the FY 2020-21 budgeted amount.

Zone 41 per 100 cu ft

5140

5122
5118
51.20 srg7 S0 5112
SLOS g0 :
51.00

50.80

50.60

50.40

5020

50.00

FY11/12 FY12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY15/16 FY16/17 FY17/18 FY18/19 FY19-20

5133
5128

5125

FY20-21

Through the First Amended
and Restated Master Water
Agreement between
Sacramento County Water
Agency and Florin Resource
Conservation  District/Elk
Grove Water District,
entered into on June 28,
2002, the District has
agreed to purchase, on a
wholesale basis, potable
water supply from the
SCWA. The purchased
water from the SCWA is

used to supply the EGWD Service Area 2 ratepayers with their water source. Under the
general terms of the agreement, the cost of the wholesale purchased water supply is based
on a rate as determined by the actual cost of procurement, extraction, diversion, treatment,

38

195



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

and conveyance of potable water actually delivered to the District. The table on the pervious
page shows the trend in the wholesale purchase water rate for the last 10 years. The change
in the wholesale purchase water rate is a direct correlation to the conservation efforts during
the drought in FY 2013-14. As drought restrictions from FY 2013-16 resulted in less water
delivered to the District and operational and maintenance costs remained stable, there was
an overall increase to the wholesale purchase water rate. When drought restrictions were
lifted in FY 2016-17, the gradual increase in water consumption resulted in an increase of
purchased water delivered to the District. This resulted in a decrease to the wholesale
purchased water rate in FY 2017-18. As consumption trends start to normalize and operating
costs continue to increase, the District expects the wholesale purchased water rate to
gradually increase as well without the major swings experienced during the drought.

PURCHASED WATER COST

54,000,000 -
§3,391,622 53,511,320

$3,500,000 - 43,198,404
$2,873,292

$3,000,000 -$2,732,016 $2,777,344
42,500,000
$2,000,000
$1,500,000
51,000,000

$500,000

5- . . ; ; .

FY1l7-18 FY 1819 FY159-20 FY20-21 FY20-21 FY21-22
Actual Actual Actual Budget Projected  Budget

The table above shows the total annual purchased water costs since FY 2017-18. Purchased
water cost has continued to increase slightly from year to year as drought restrictions have
been lifted. For FY 2021-22, the District expects to see water consumption and delivery
continue to increase slightly due to the continued residential development in the EGWD’s
Service Area 2.

39

196



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

0zZETISE S TT9'T6E'ES VOV'86T'ES 8€9°G96°CS VWELLLTS T6T'EL8TS 133/ paseyaind S6vS
TLT'SYET GE6'E66 8/S'8EET  ¥/£'686 920'vL6 ¥18786
000‘8T - 000‘8T - 1Z44C] 687°CT S|elIS1BIA] UOIIBAISSUOD) J31BMN €6vS
000‘€T 00v‘CT 000‘€T LLTTT £89°S €229 3u1yzo|D J1aYy30 - aMo3 16¥S
00L‘L €0S°T 00L‘L €TLT 9/58 902’8 UEMO||Y Buly10|) 06%S
000‘TT 6vCCT 00S‘CT LS8°L 6S0°LT 0LE‘S s|oo] a8
006°0€ STT'VC 685°6€ 966°SC 0TECE 0€0°6€ suoyds|ay 08S
0z6°0€ 9TT9T ozL'oE 96L'9¢ ¥£97C 1S€°Ce saljddns SL¥S
¥1T1°202 6VC‘GET €69°0TC T79°STT ¥9°9GT G8/°G0T salepdn 1@ swei3o.d aiemijos 0L¥S
00S‘ST 0zL'L 00S‘ST 029°6T 18€‘s €€9°L swdinb3 Ayajes S9rS
0089 €758 0s€‘0e L L90°€T ¥150T Sunuud 09
G/9°C8 9568y 0S6v8 60L°09 €65°GS GSe‘9L a3e1sod GSS
05089 9€799 05099 9TH‘9g 98Y'LY 8677°€8 IEY €SYS
00006 TSLTL 000°0€T €9¢°6¢1T €079 GS0°LT sileday 4913\ 0S¥S
000°GY 885°9¢ 000°GY LYS‘Ty 8TY'6€ vevty s|eaiwayd ShbS
000°7CT LSV'96 000°26 6€C°TT OvL‘v9 00S‘2CT s|elaleN (0147
0LY'Sy 4914 0zLTY EvEvE 956°8€ 8TTOV |an4 8EVS
00S‘20T 128's8 000201 0YTT 09866 88¢€°L6 juawdinb3 - dueualule g sileday GEYS
GCT9T oze's G/E'6T LT6°0C 090°s€E 80C'TC s191ndwo) - adueUBUIBA g Sileday YEVS
00S‘8TT 433077 00S‘€9 8ST'sy 169'8¢C 206°6¢ 3ulp|ing - ddueudlulelA % siieday 4372
00S°SE 768°6C 000°Ci 9/¥‘ee 6TLVE 9€T'8¢ SAIJ0WOINY - 3dUBUIIUIEIA B Sileday (01379
0LEY 6659 N AC) ¥0€8 696C ¥S1C $994 ‘su0I1ed1J1d) ‘SaSUI Y47
002901 0t9°s6 088701 8TT‘T6 00S VS 90098 duelnsu| ozvs
LY8'STT 896'8YT 909 VST 6v9°8TT 90€eET v/8°6L sanQ uo[3eossy ST¥S
00S9T S 888°€CT S 0009 $ 00CS S§ €€0's S SI90T S Suisiuanpy 0T¥S
198png paisanbay payaloid 198png |enyy |enpy |enpy uonduisaq  #lunody
TT-T20T A4 T2-0C Ad T2-0C Ad 0Z-6T A4 6T-8T Ad 8T-LT Ad

2202 ‘0 3unf SuIpua Jea [easl4 ayy 104

|Ie13Q S1UNO2Y [euonesadQ pue 321340 pa1aspng
1PUISIQ 4318 M 104D |3

40

197



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

OUTSIDE SERVICES
FiscAL YEARS 2017-18 THROUGH 2021-22

OUTSIDE SERVICES
Outside Services expenditures $1,400,000
consist mostly of professional

services, such as banking $1,200,000 - $1,150,358
services, engineering services
’ g . g " $1000000 $922,576 $939,456
contracted services, pre- $843,416
. . 751,004

employment medical services $200,000 - $
and legal services. The District
utilizes  specialized outside  $600,000 -
service firms and professionals

. . 5400,000 -
to assist in the development of
various techinical studies and 440000 -
projects. An example of such a
techinical study would be the S . - . . .

FY17-18 FY1819 FY15-20 FY20-21 FY20-21 FY21-22
Actual Actual Actual Budget Projected Budget

8 $1,283,548

use of a professional consulting
firm in FY 2017-18 to complete
the 5-year water rate study that was adopted by the Board on July 18, 2018, setting forth the
planned revenue rate increases for the next 5 years. The District expects outside services to
remain relatively stable and consistent with prior year.

Elk Grove Water District
Budgeted Outside Services Accounts Detail
For the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2022

FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 20-21 FY 2021-22

Account#  Description Actual Actual Actual Budget Projected Requested Budget
5505 Administration Services S 3,200 S 3,820 S 6,419 S 3,590 $ 6,377 S 3,250
5510 Bank Charges 132,426 159,130 168,810 184,308 170,031 190,208
5515 Billing Services 23,597 19,228 20,869 28,800 24,548 25,500
5520 Contracted Services 297,891 345,052 351,356 521,000 319,267 507,150
5523 Water Conservation Services - - - - - 30,000
5525 Accounting Services 25,536 34,860 28,514 35,000 35,000 30,000
5530 Engineering 21,858 68,671 174,660 115,000 37,767 60,000
5532 Special Projects - - - 100,000 - -
5535 Legal Services 192,023 118,159 94,361 175,000 97,302 175,000
5540 Financial Consultants 112,879 10,421 1,750 10,000 - 10,000
5545 Community Relations 8,679 16,958 7,650 9,200 - 9,200
5552 Misc. Medical 2,548 2,648 1,174 2,500 4,451 2,500
5550 Pre-employment 425 46 1,185 1,000 563 1,000
5555 Janitorial 7,015 7,655 14,753 22,000 26,870 30,400
5560 Bond Administration 4,220 3,800 5,770 7,050 5,720 7,050
5570 Security 51,049 20,874 21,691 29,100 22,527 29,100
5575 Sampling 39,230 32,094 40,494 40,000 40,583 40,000

S 922,576 S 843,416 S 939,456 $1,283,548 S 791,004 S 1,150,358

41

198



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

EQUIPMENT RENT, TAXES AND UTILITIES
FISCAL YEARS 2017-18 THROUGH 2021-22

Equipment Rent, Taxes and
Utilities are budgeted to cover
the cost of utilities to extract,
treat and pump the water supply
to ratepayers. With the rising
cost for most utilities and the
expected gradual increase in
water consumption, the District
is expecting to see an increase in
this  expenditure  category.
However, to assist in improving
or maintaining  operational
efficiencies and keep operating
costs low, the District has
installed a series of variable
frequency drives (VFD) on the

$600,000

$500,000

$400,000

$300,000

$200,000

$100,000

| 5358,058

Il

EQUIPMENT RENT, TAXES AND UTILITIES

4526,131

|

5464,380

4374,278
$333,999

5561,740

FY1/-18 FY18-19 FY15-20 FY20-21 FY20-21 FY21-22

Actual

Actual Actual Budget

Projected Budget

booster pumps that deliver treated drinking water to our customers. The VFD provides energy
savings by matching pump motor load to the work needed for water delivery instead of
always running the pump at peak load. The District also has an ongoing well rehabilitation
program where it monitors the efficiencies of each water well. Over time, well screens plug
up, making well pumping operations inefficient. The District rehabilitates its water wells
when certain inefficient thresholds are reached, thereby returning the wells to efficient

operations.
Elk Grove Water District
Budgeted Rents, Taxes and Utilities Accounts Detail
For the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2022
FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 20-21 FY 2021-22
Account#  Description Actual Actual Actual Budget Projected Requested Budget
5610 Occupancy S - S - S - S - S 18,000 S 72,000
5620 Equipment Rental 23,266 16,075 21,236 27,800 22,659 35,360
5710 Property Taxes 959 1,116 995 1,500 967 3,500
5740 Electricity 320,004 292,047 402,747 397,000 431,846 407,200
5750 Natural Gas 517 779 725 900 1,151 900
5760 Sewer & Garbage 29,532 23,982 32,748 37,180 51,509 42,780
$ 374278 $ 333,999 $ 458,451 $ 464,380 S 526,131 $ 561,740
42

199



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
FiscAL YEARS 2017-18 THROUGH 2021-22

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Fiscal year 2021-22 Capital
Expenditures consist  of
funding for Repair &

Replacement and Long-term SA00g
Capital Improvement based
on the FY 2022-26 CIP. The $4000,000 - $3,685,750
CIP is developed by staff in
parallel to the budget and is  $3,000,000 - $2,671,378
a key component of the
District’s  Strategic Plan. 32,000,000 - I
Annually, Staff will identify $1,352,899
4916,290 51,138,640

56,000,000 -

$5,055,000

projects to be included in the

$1,000,000 -
CIP. Each project is defined
in the CIP and summarized ‘. i . i . i . |
by a brief description and FY17-18 FY1819 FY19-20 FY20-21 FY2021 FY21-22
justification. Each project is Actual Actual Actual  Budget Projected Budget
detailed by location, timing,
expenditure schedule, funding source, useful life and impact on operating costs. Before the
CIP is completed, it is reviewed to ensure the financial elements are consistent with the
District’s financial policies. The District’s current approach to capital funding is pay-as-you-
go. The expenditures for the capital projects, identified by staff to be included in the CIP, are
included in the budget. The table on the next page lists the capital projects included in the

FY 2022-26 CIP and budgeted for in the current year proposed budget.

Elk Grove Water District
Budgeted Capital Expenses Detail
For the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2022

FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 20-21 FY 2021-22
Account#  Description Actual Actual Actual Budget Projected Requested Budget
3560 Repair & Replacement Reserve S 463,368 S 492,048 S 778,658 S 905,000 S 282,706 S 2,030,000
3565 L-T Capital Improvement Reserve 889,531 424,242 359,981 2,780,750 2,388,672 3,025,000
$1,352,899 $ 916,290 $1,138,640 $3,685,750 $2,671,378 S 5,055,000
43

200



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

FY 2021-22 CAPITAL PROJECTS LISTING

AMOUNT IN 000’s

SUPPLY / DISTRIBUTION IMPROVEMENTS
1 Well Rehabilitation Program
2 Truman St./Adams St. Water Main
2 Backyard Water Mains/Services Replacement
2 Service Line Replacements (Pavement Repairs)
3 2nd Ave. Water Main
4 Transmission Main Brinkman Ct. (Cost Share)

TREATMENT IMPROVEMENTS
1 PLC/MCC Bucket Replacement (Wells 4D & 11D)
1 Well 4D Radio Communications
2 Chlorine Analyzers Shallow Wells
BUILDING & SITE IMPROVEMENTS / VEHICLES
Adminstration Building
Fiber Optic Cable
Compact Track Loader with Cold Planer
Pavement Repair & Seal Coat - RRWTP
Digital Data Collector & GPS Rover
UNFORESEEN CAPITAL PROJECTS
Unforeseen Capital Projects

TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET

w N =

75
244
1,500
100
86

42

50
35
70

2,300
300
105

25
23

100
5,055

44

201



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES (REVENUES)
FISCAL YEARS 2017-18 THROUGH 2021-22

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES/(INCOME)
Non-Operating Expenditures/ s7,000,000 -
(Revenues) account for debt
service interest and principal

payments, elections costs and s o00,000 -
any interest earned on $3,857,499
investments. The  major 34000000 |5385L156 §2,347.349 “3490:331
decrease in budgeted non- $3,000,000 -
oeprating expenditures/
(revenues) for FY 2021-22 as $2000,000 -
compared to projected for FY 41,000,000 -
2020-21 is due to the pay
the 5 - - - - - -

down of District’s
unfunded accrued I|ab|||t FY17-18 FY18-19 FY19-20 FY 20-21 FY20-21 FY21-22
y Actual Actual Actual Budget  Projected  Budget

with CalPERS in FY 2020-21.
The District expects all future non-operating (income)/expenses to be consistent.

_ 5,714,708
$6,000,000 5 45,439,776

Elk Grove Water District
Budgeted Non Operating Activity Detail
For the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2022

FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 20-21 FY 2021-22

Account#  Description Actual Actual Actual Budget Projected Requested Budget
7300 Debt Service (Bond Interest Expense) $1,807,502 $1,726,795 $1,627,405 $1,555,469 $1,555,469 S 1,442,499
9920 Other Expenses (Income) 91,661 (39,929) (40,580) 1,709,239 1,617,818 -
2500 Bond Retirement 1,990,000 2,070,000 2,165,000 2,300,000 2,300,000 2,440,000
9910 Interest Earned (105,884) (213,052)  (221,048)  (100,000) (74,783) (25,000)
9911 Unrealized Gains and Losses 67,877 (198,473) (90,446) - 39,385 -
9950 Election Costs - 2,008 - 250,000 1,887 -

$3,851,156 $3,347,349 $3,440,331 $5,714,708 $5,439,776 S 3,857,499

45

202



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

ORGANIZATIONAL AND BUDGET
SUMMARIES BY DEPARTMENT

46

203



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

General Coumsal

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT

ORGANIZATION CHART

Florin Resource

Conservation District

Board of Directors:
Eophia Scherman
Tom Nelson
Bab Gray
Liza Medins
Ellint Mulberg

General Manager
Bruce Kamilos

Elk Grove Water
District

Sercrstany
Stefani Phillips

Treasurer
Patrick Les

Tedhnical Services

Senbor Chuil

Enginees (1]

Enginesring
Technickan | (1)

Adminigtrative

Operations

Treatment
Division

Water Treatrment
Supervisor (1)

Distribution
Diwision

Water
DEtribution
Supervizor (1}

WWiater
Distribuition
Superyisar (1)

Water Treatment
Operatar {1}

Water Treatment
Dperatar [ {1)

Water
Dristribution
Operatar 0l (1)

‘Water
Distribution
Dperator (L)

Administration

Finanoe Manager {1)

Finanmce
Siperyisor (1]

Senmior Utility
Billing Specialist

1)

Wakber
Distribution
Diperatar ¥ [3}

Water
Distribiition
Operatar B [3]

\Water
Distridution
Dperatar [ (1}

Water
Distribuwtion
Operatar 1{1)

‘Waker
Diseribution
Orperatar in
Training H1)

W ater
Distrihaltion
Operator in
Training | {1)

47

Litility Billng
Speciafst {2)

Customer Sarvice
Speciafst 1 (1)

Human Resources Program Manager
Administratar {1) [1}

Administrative
Assistant il
{Confidential} 1)

204



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT STAFF FTE

Administration & Finance
General Manager

Finance Manager

Program Manager

Human Resources Administrator
Administrative Assistant Il
Finance Supervisor

Senior Utility Billing Specialist
Utility Billing Specialist
Customer Service Specialist |
Customer Service Specialist Il
Department Total

Technical Services
Assistant General Manager
Senior Civil Engineer
Engineering Technician |
Administrative Assistant Il
GIS Technician Il
Department Total

Operations

Foremen

Supervisors

Water Distribution Operator in Training
Water Distribution Operator |

Water Distribution Operator Il

Water Distribution Operator llI

Water Treatment Operator Il

Water Treatment Operator Ill
Departmental Total

Organizational Total

FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
1.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
1.00 - - - -
1.00 - 1.00 1.00 1.00

10.00 9.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 -

- - - - 1.00

- - - - 1.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 -
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00

- - 1.00 3.00 2.00
6.00 6.00 4.00 1.00 2.00
4.00 3.00 6.00 6.00 6.00
3.00 3.00 1.00 2.00 2.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
18.00 17.00 17.00 17.00 17.00
31.00 29.00 30.00 30.00 30.00

48

205



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

JURISDICTIONAL COMPARISON

Elk Grove Water Carmichael Water San Juan Water

District District (EGWD) District District

Year Established 1953 1916 1854
Governed By Board of Directors  Board of Directors Board of Directors
Size 13 sq miles 8sq miles 17 sq miles
Number of Connections 12,800 11,693 10,700
Number of Customers 46,000 38,000 29,830
Budget Comparison - Fiscal Year Basis July-June July-June July-June

Revenues - FY 2020-21 Budget

Retail Water Sales S 15,184,142 § 12,723,622 § 12,806,500
Other Revenues 240,000 277,388 624,700
TOTAL REVENUE BUDGET S 15,424,142 $ 13,001,010 $ 13,431,200

Expenditures - FY 2020-21 Budget

Personnel Costs S 3,996,057 S 4,219,372 S 5,403,300
Operating Costs 6,338,217 4,706,903 3,034,700
Non-Operating Costs 5,714,708 3,389,828 4,188,700
EXPENDITURE BUDGET S 16,048,982 $ 12,316,103 $ 12,626,700
CAPITAL BUDGET S 3,685,750 S 2,817,006 S 5,467,300
TOTAL EXPENDITURE BUDGET S 19,734,732 §$ 15,133,109 $ 18,094,000
REVENUES IN EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES S (4,310,590) S (2,132,099) $ (4,662,800)
OUTSTANDING DEBT S 39,910,000 S 32,285,000 S 11,865,407
FTE 30 29 a7

Note: The information above is based on FY 2020-21 approved budgets for each District.
Both the Carmichael and San Juan Water Districts generate revenue from sources other than
retail water sales. For comparison purposes, revenues reflected above include only the
portion applicable to retail water sales and expenditures reflect total expenditure for all
operations, not just retail water sales.

49

206



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENTS

Elk Grove Water District
Summary by Departments
For the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2022

Technical General Human  Program Total

Expenditure Operations Services Manager Resources Manager Finance Admin Budget

Revenues $15,716,094
Salaries and Benefits $2,328,151 $405,781 $243,510 $319,911 $188,776 S 968,147 $ 165,339 S 4,619,614
Seminars, Conventions and Travel 7,760 2,810 18,180 4,900 2,915 12,294 - 48,859
Office and Operational 736,042 54,134 500 3,535 66,120 130,483 354,457 1,345,271
Purchased Water 3,511,320 - - - - - - 3,511,320
Outside Services 100,000 63,000 181,200 38,250 91,500 255,708 420,700 1,150,358
Equipment Rent, Taxes and Utilities 448,000 - - - - - 113,740 561,740
Subtotal Operational Expenditures 7,131,273 525,725 443,390 366,596 349,311 1,366,632 1,054,236 11,237,163
Less: Capitalized Labor (400,192) * - - - - - - (400,192)
Total Operational Expenses 6,731,081 525,725 443,390 366,596 349,311 1,366,632 1,054,236 10,836,970
Non-Operating Expenditures (Income) - - - - - - 3,857,499 3,857,499
Capital Equipment and Expenditures - - - - - - 5,055,000 5,055,000
Total Net Expenditures $6,731,081 §525,725 $443,390 $366,596 $349,311 $1,366,632 S 9,966,735 $19,749,469
Transfers (to)/from reserves 4,033,375

Revenues In Excess of Expenditures, Principal Retirement and Capital Expenditures

S -

* This represents approximately 60% of salaries and benefits of the Utility Division which will be charged to Capital Projects.

Admin,
49,966,735 , 50.47%

SUMMARY BY DEPARTMENTS

Operations,

Program Manager,
$349,311,1.77%

Finance,
$1,366,632,6.92%

50

$6,731,081, 34.08%

_ Human Resources,

$366,596 , 1.86%

Tech Services,
_$525,725, 2.66%

207



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

OFFICE OF THE GENERAL MANAGER

The General Manager superintends the District,
ensuring that the policies and directives of the Board of
Directors are carried out as assigned. The General
Manager leads the entire staff with a subset of
managers informally called the Leadership Team.

FY 2021-22 GENERAL MANAGER EXPENDITURES

Outside Services,
$181,200, 40.91%

|
Salaries and Benefits,
Seminars, Conventions and $243,510 , 54.98%

Travel, $18,180, 4.10%

FY 2021-22 GOALS AND OBJECTIVES
GENERAL OBJECTIVES

e Provide leadership to ensure that the District overall mission and values are accomplished.

e Provide the Board of Directors timely support and information.

e Ensure that all water facilities and programs are operated in compliance with all applicable
standards.

e Promote continued innovation and creativity in providing services in a more effective and
cost-efficient manner.

e Maintain effective long-term financial and operational plans.

¢ Implement sound fiscal policies, budgets, and controls.

e Maintain effective coordination, cooperation, and communication with local governments,
State and Federal agencies and continue involvement in civic, professional and community
affairs.

e Motivate employees and encourage teamwork throughout the organization.

e Complete all approved CIP projects identified in the District’s FY 2021-22 CIP.

51

208



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

Specific Key Objectives

Implement a new records management and document storage system.

Complete the tenant improvements of the new administration building.
Complete the offering and potential disposition of all surplus remnant properties.
Construct a comprehensive history of the Florin Resource Conservation District.
Complete a cybersecurity checkup and review.

Complete an update of the District’s source capacity.

FY 2020-21 ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Successfully navigated the operations of the District throughout the COVID-19 pandemic.
Completed a new Urban Water Shortage Contingency Plan for the District.

Completed a new Water System Risk and Resiliency Assessment for the District.

Completed an update of the District’s Emergency Response Plan.

Acquired a new Administration Building for the District.

Completed a new Municipal Services Review which was adopted by the Sacramento Local
Agency Formation Commission.

Developed and implemented a comprehensive Public Outreach Plan for the District that
incorporates electronic communications and social media.

Implemented a seamless transition for the General Manager position.

Advanced Senate Bill 427 (Water Theft Legislation) working with Senator Susan Talamantes
Eggman.

52

209



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

The Human Resource Department is responsible for
handling confidential personnel matters, including
recruitment, hiring, training and development,
policy development and compliance and employee
benefits. The Human Resources Department makes
certain that employee matters are handled fairly,
equitably and without discrimination according to
District policies and State and Federal regulations.

FY 2021-22 HUMAN RESOURCE EXPENDITURES

Outside Services,
_$38,250, 10.43%

Seminars, Conventions and _
Travel, 54,900, 1.34%

FY 2021-22 GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

e Develop standard operating
procedures (SOP) for Board Secretary
and Human Resources duties.

e Complete the review of staffing

, requirements and implement the

Salaries and Benefits, recruitment of qualified candidates
$319,911, 87.27% for vacant positions.

e Complete the review and update of all District job descriptions.

e Develop and maintain a comprehensive Wellness Program by obtaining grant funding and

utilizing results of the pilot program.

e Customer relations training for all District employees.

FY 2020-21 ACCOMPLISHMENTS

e Completed a Document management and electronic filing and storage needs assessment.

e Completed an update of the Board Member Guidebook.

e Updated various provisions within the District’s Employee Policy Manual.

e Completed the review of staffing requirements, reviewed, and updated related job descriptions
and the recruitments to backfill three positions.

e Obtained Grant Funding for comprehensive wellness program.

e Implemented Zoom to hold virtual Board meetings, Leadership meetings, and staff meetings
during the COVID-19 pandemic.

e Secured a COVID-19 testing site for the employees and their families.

53

210



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

PROGRAM MANAGER DEPARTMENT

The Program Manager manages special programs and projects as assigned by the General
Manager, including water conservation, safety, legislative tracking and lobbying, grant

acquisition, and public information and outreach.

FY 2021-22 PROGRAM MANAGER EXPENDITURES

Outside Services,
$91,500, 26.19%

Office and Operational,_

$66,120 , 18.93%

| Salaries and Benefits,
Seminars, Conventions and $188,776 , 54.04%

Travel, $2,915,0.83% °

FY 2021-22 GOALS AND OBIJECTIVES

Work with legislative representative
to advance the District’'s proposed
water theft legislation, as well as
legislation to allow Conservation
Districts to compensate board
members.

Track and monitor legislation that
may impact District operations in
coordination with CSDA, RWA and
ACWA.

Work with the Regional Water

Efficiency Program Advisory Committee to develop and implement water efficiency programs

that will benefit the District.
e Complete the 2020 Emergency Response Plan.
e Obtain Cal OSHA 30 Certification.

FY 2020-21 ACCOMPLISHMENTS

e Completed the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan.

e Completed the 2020 Risk and Resilience Assessment.

e Worked with legislative representative to draft and
introduced Senate Bill 427 “Eggman” Water Theft
Legislation to broaden the authority of Water Districts
to impose fines and penalties for water theft.

e Developed the Coronavirus (COVID-19) Home to Office
Playbook to safely guide staff in return to working in
person.

e Enhanced public outreach by creating and maintain a
District Facebook page.

54

Preas
o tully & Young ﬁ ZANTERO

211



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENTS

The Finance Department is responsible

for maintaining the fiscal stability in a
i ) The Gavernment Finance Officers Association of
manner consistent with generally G the United States and Canada
accepted accounting principles and g
statutory requirements. Included in the rents s
Financial Department’s duties are: AWARD OF FINANCIAL REPORTING ACHIEVEMENT
customer service, accounts payable, '
ledger maintenance, capital assets
records, investment activity,

accounting, budget development and
monitoring, development of cash flow
models, debt service, revenue and
expenditure  forecasting, payroll,

Ewcliv: Divein C?IWW» P Aore st

financial reporting and coordination

with external financial audits. Finance also oversees the general and administrative functions
of the District and its administrative building, including purchasing/procurement
management, risk management, equipment rent, supplies and building maintenance.

FY 2021-22 FINANCE EXPENDITURES FY 2021-22 GOALS AND

Outside Services, OBJECTIVES
$255,708 , 18.71%

e Review and update the
District’s Reserve Policy
to ensure the adequacy of
District’s operating
reserve requirements to
meet operating needs
resulting from
unforeseen disruptions.

e Implement electronic
payroll timesheets that
integrate with payroll
system.

e Establish a program to encourage and increase the number of ratepayers subscribed for

paperless billing.

e Develop and implement a process to validate customer authenticity during voice calls to

increase security over customer information.

e Complete the outsource of lock box payment services to achieve cost savings in payment

processing.

Seminars, Conventions and
Travel, $12,294 ,0.90%

Salaries and Benefits,
$968,147 , 70.84%

55

212



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

Implement electronic timecards and time off requests that integrates with the District’s
payroll system.

FY 2020-21 ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Completed an analysis of the District’s unfunded pension liability and the District’s future
reserves and funded an additional discretionary payment to CalPERS to pay down the
District’s unfunded liability and increase the District’s funded ratio.

Developed and implemented a policy to address unclaimed property in the District’s
possession.

Implemented electronic check signatures for accounts payable vendor checks and payroll
checks and update internal controls accordingly.

Developed and implemented a system of paperless forms and a customer service portal to
increase customer service efficiency and reduce carbon footprint.

Converted all Customer Service transactional documents from paper to digital.

Developed and implemented remote working protocols that sustained all customer service
and finance operations in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Engaged with the County of Sacramento to develop a partnership to provide District utility
customers access to rent and utility assistance payments through the Emergency Rental
Assistance program.

Continued to manage the District’s debt service, maintaining strict compliance with bond
covenant.

Achieved the GFOA Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting for the 12t consecutive
year.

Achieved the GFOA Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for the second consecutive
year.

FY 2021-22 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES

Office and Operational,

$354,457 , 3.56%
Salaries and Benefits, _

$165,339, 1.66%

_ Equipment Rent, Taxes and
Utilities, $113,740, 1.14%

MNon-Operating Expenditures
(Income), $3,857,499, 38.70%

56

213



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

TECHNICAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT

The Technical Services Department provides
planning, engineering, construction management,
Operations technical support, and district-wide
geographic information system (GIS) services.
Technical Services Department is also responsible for
developing and administering the District’s capital
improvement program.

FY2021-22T S E Rraget 2o
- ECHNICAL SERVICES EXPENDITURES CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
Office and Operational, Outside Services,
$54,134,10.30% - $63,000,11.98% S S oo

Sophia Scherman, Chair

1

Tom Nebon, Vice Lhair L Medoa, Dvoater

Seminars, Conventions an
Travel, 52,810, 0.53%

B0b Gray, Drecto LliGt Nelery, imector

FY 2021-22 GOALS AND OBIJECTIVES
|
Salaries and Benefits, o Coordinate and complete all
3405,781,77.19% required CIP projects identified in
the FY 2021-22 CIP budget.

e Complete the design of water main replacement improvement plans for next year’s planned
water main replacement capital improvement projects.

e Complete the unidirectional flushing of the Service Area 1 water distribution system.

e Review and update the District’s Standard Construction Specifications and Detail Drawings.

e Review and update the District’s Asset Management Plan.

e Provide assistance as required related to the Administration Building Tenant Improvements
Project.

FY 2020-21 ACCOMPLISHMENTS

e Completed 6 of the 9 CIP projects identified in the FY 2020-21 CIP budget.

e Developed the FY 2022-2026 CIP for the next fiscal year.

e Provided technical support as needed to the Treatment and Distribution Divisions.
e Reviewed and updated the District’s Asset Management Program.

e Filled the Engineering/GIS Technician position that had been vacant.

57

214



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The District does not have a formal Information
Technology (IT) department or staff but considers the
operations of IT to be an essential function. The District
contracts its Information Technology (IT) services to an IT
Professional that reports to the General Manager, who is
responsible  for information services, including
development and support of computers and software,
information network, program development, office
telecommunications, office security, and office systems.
All hardware and software IT costs are budgeted for and
directly charged to each department based on actual
costs for equipment and software. Contract costs are
budgeted for and paid out of the Administrative Budget,
as such, there are no expenditures to report for
Information Technology.

FY 2021-22 GOALS AND OBIJECTIVES

Continue to improve the District’s cyber-security posture by doing monthly vulnerability
scanning and handling all vulnerabilities found.
Assist in a new cyber security audit for the District.
Set up automated disaster recovery response and test response systems to test the
effectiveness of the server and system backups.

o Successfully passing the annual Payment Card Industry (PCI) audit.
Complete all users on a new cyber security awareness training program and keep the click
rate to below 1%.
Migrate Backflow Tester software to new XC2 Software.
Assist with the implementation of a new document Management Solution.
Get Two Factor authentication deployed across all devices both cloud and on-premises to
secure accounts.
Implement any findings and recommendations from the Emergency Response Plan Cyber
Security Review.
Upgrade the following systems:

o SCADA - to be brought to the most current version of Wonderware.

o ARCGIS To be brought to the most current version of the software.
Assist in the implementation of a new CMS if that is what is decided upon.
Get the networking and IT Infrastructure created for the new Admin building. Includes setting
up and implementing a new phone system.
Assist with the new Fiber Optic line between the new Admin building and the IT Center.

58

215



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

FY 2020-21 ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Implemented a Work from Home strategy, including setting up all users with Virtual Private
Networking (VPN) Software, reconfiguring network devices to allow remote connections,
implementing redirected network printing, redirecting phone calls, and configuring desktop
workstation with cameras to allow for virtual meetings.

Reconfigured networking so that the meter reading devices could be used at the Training
Center while still being accessed at the Customer Service Desktops who were working
remotely.

Installed 18,531 security patches to servers and systems —an increase of around 87.67% over
the previous year.

Maintained and patched all user software as needed to keep systems operating at peak
efficiency. Server system uptime (24x7x365) improved by 0.01% compared to the same time
period last year.

Managed software licenses for all desktop, laptop, and server systems.

Managed SSL Certificates, for web servers and remote desktop connections. A total of 66
certificates were issued.

Completed and closed out 7278 help desk tickets - an increase of 10%.

Completed a security scan of all the District’s network assets for twelve consecutives months
and fixed any major flaws found. Vulnerabilities found, patched, or fixed reduced by 61.89%
Ran a phishing test campaign (weekly) through the KnowBe4 system. User Awareness
increased as shown in the number of users reporting phishing scams which increased by
530.3%.

Continued to hold the District’s phish-proneness to 0.0% compared to the same Industry
value (Energy & Utilities less than 250 staff) of 15.5% while the industry benchmark worsened
for this same sector by 24%.

Rolled out a Two Factor Authentication campaign and immediately secured all District
Managed Microsoft Cloud accounts for administrators as well as all local server logins for
administrators with 2FA.

Reworked the offsite disaster recovery assets networking to bring these in line with the
infrastructure changes done.

Set up automated disaster recovery response and test response systems to test the
effectiveness of the server and system backups.

Upgraded all server systems, where their operating systems had reached “end of life”, to their
newest versions.

All servers and services were fully integrated into the monitoring solution.

Upgraded the hardware firewall with new hardware and the latest version of the software.
Added a second hardware firewall for redundancy.

59

216



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT

The Operations Department, overseen by the General Manager, consists of the Treatment,
Distribution, and Utility Divisions. The purpose of the Operations Department is to operate
and maintain all facilities in a manner that safeguards public and employee health, complies
with all regulatory requirements, and ensures outstanding customer service. The Operations
Department is also responsible for the delivery of water to District customers as well as
operating and maintaining the District’s pipelines and facilities. This department includes the
functions of water quality, system maintenance, planning, operations, inspection, and safety.

TREATMENT DIVISION

The Treatment Division oversees the
operation and maintenance of District’s
water supply and treatment facilities to
ensure safe and reliable water supplies to
ratepayers. Responsibilities of the
Treatment Division include: maintaining
strict compliance with all State and
Federal regulatory agencies with the
intent of safeguarding public health and
the environment; maintenance and
management of all water quality sampling
and reporting to Local, State and Federal
agencies; maintaining water production
and equipment maintenance records and
reports; and management of the Backflow/Cross-Connection Control Program.

DISTRIBUTION DIVISION

The Distribution Division oversees the
operation and maintenance of the
District’s water distribution facilities to
ensure the reliable and safe distribution of
water to ratepayers. Responsibilities of
the  Distribution  Division include:
maintenance of 1,610 fire hydrants to
ensure reliable fire flows during
emergencies and maintenance and
exercise of 1,843 valves to ensure that
every valve is checked and exercised every 3
three years. The Distribution Division also conducts the necessary monthly meter readings

60

217



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

and responds to and handles all customer service requests and corrective maintenance in
accordance with State and Federal regulations regarding repairs that impact potable water.

UTILITY DIvISION

The Utility Division oversees the operation
and maintenance of capital improvement
projects for the District’'s water system.
Responsibilities of the Utility Division include:
the necessary repairs and upgrades to the
water systems aging infrastructure; staffing
and coordination to complete capital
improvement projects; the installation of
new pipeline due to expanding development;
and all construction related activities
required by the District that is not contracted
to outside contractors.

Outside Services, [bilinioe y £ BB
$100,000,1.49% _ i KT Salaries and Benefits,
p— $1,927,959 , 28.64%

Seminars, Conventions
_and Travel, $7,760, 0.12%

Purchased Water,
$3,511,320,52.17%

| Office and Operational,
$736,042 , 10.93%

FY 2021-22 GOALS AND OBIJECTIVES
Improve the radio communication between Well 4D and the Railroad Water Treatment Plant.
Complete the Unidirectional Flushing program.

Install 3,000 feet of water mains.
Upgrade the Programmable Logic Controller cabinets at Wells 4D and 11D.

61

218



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

Obtain Backhoe/Excavator Operator Training for field employees whose job duties require
the operation of such equipment.

Obtain comprehensive OSHA 10 training for all field employees to increase staff safety
awareness related to the construction industry.

Develop and implement an updated Lockout-Tagout program.

Provide technical and operational resources to assist field employees in obtaining the
necessary certifications and licenses (i.e., Class A commercial driver’s licenses, Water
Distribution Operator and Water Treatment Operator).

Review training records and conduct the necessary training to ensure field employees are up
to date on the necessary trainings (i.e., Back Flow Prevention Device Tester and Cross
Connection Control Specialist).

FY 2020-21 ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Operated and maintained critical functions of the District’s water supply, treatment, and
distribution system in a safe and reliable manner with a significantly limited workforce due
to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Completed routine maintenance on all production and treatment equipment.

Repaired a ruptured 36-inch diameter transmission main without disruption of service to
customers.

Installed 1,240 feet of new water mains on Barth and Emily Streets.

Completed over 800 water quality samples, on raw and treated water throughout the system,
as required by State and Federal regulation.

Maintained all Cross-Connection Control Program requirements, including the review and
approval of 796 backflow assembly test reports.

Completed the rehabilitation of Well 11D.

Installed a new variable frequency drive on the Railroad Water Treatment Plant Booster
Pump #6.

Installed a new chlorine storage shed and flow meter at Well 9.

Relocated all inventory in the Administration Building Warehouse to prepare for the property
sale.

Serviced and maintained 1,374 fire hydrants and 1,202 valves.

Replaced 183 water meters.

Handled 2,908 Underground Service Alert requests.

Read approximately 12,600 meters a month.

62

219



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

63

220



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

LONG-TERM INDEBTEDNESS
REVENUE BONDS
BOND COVENANT RATIO

64

221



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

Elk Grove Water District
Long-Term Indebtedness to Maturity

Payment Total Total Fiscal Year
Date Principal Interest Total

9/1/2021 2,440,000.00 750,349.38

3/1/2022 - 692,149.38 3,882,498.76

9/1/2022 2,560,000.00 692,149.38

3/1/2023 - 631,054.38 3,883,203.76

9/1/2023 2,675,000.00 631,054.38

3/1/2024 - 580,939.38 3,886,993.76

9/1/2024 2,780,000.00 580,939.38

3/1/2025 - 527,089.38 3,888,028.76

9/1/2025 2,935,000.00 527,089.38

3/1/2026 - 479,413.13 3,941,502.51

9/1/2026 3,075,000.00 479,413.13

3/1/2027 - 426,633.75 3,981,046.88

9/1/2027 3,180,000.00 426,633.75

3/1/2028 - 370,576.25 3,977,210.00

9/1/2028 3,295,000.00 370,576.25

3/1/2029 - 310,960.00 3,976,536.25

9/1/2029 3,430,000.00 310,960.00

3/1/2030 - 234,170.00 3,975,130.00

9/1/2030 3,595,000.00 234,170.00

3/1/2031 - 158,190.00 3,987,360.00

9/1/2031 3,745,000.00 158,190.00

3/1/2032 - 80,735.00 3,983,925.00

9/1/2032 3,900,000.00 80,735.00

3/1/2033 - - 3,980,735.00
Totals 37,610,000.00 9,734,170.68 47,344,170.68

65

222



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22
Long-Term Indebtedness
Schedule of Required Payments

Total
Series Description Principal Interest Payment
2014A  Water Revenue Refunding Bonds 2,040,000 986,019 3,026,019
2016 A Water Revenue Refunding Bonds 400,000 456,480 856,480
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS S 2,440,000 S 1,442,499 S 3,882,499

Required Proposed
Debt Covenant Ratio 1.15 1.26
Net Income S 4,879,123
Total Debt Service S 3,882,499
66

223



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

THIS PAGE
INTENTIONALLY
LEFT BLANK

67

224



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

FiscAL YEAR 2021-22
RATES AND FEES SCHEDULE

68

225



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

Use Charges:

Fixed charge based on the number of accounts and the size of the water meter/connections:

Connection Size Jan. 1, 2021 Jan. 1, 2022
17 $ 61.15 $ 61.15
1.5” $ 86.07 $ 86.07
2" $ 115.97 $ 115.97
3’ $ 185.76 $ 185.76
4” $ 285.43 $ 285.43
6” $ 534.64 $ 534.64
8” $ 833.69 $ 833.69
10” $1,182.57 $1,182.57

Commodity charge for units of water used in a month:
Service Type Jan. 1, 2021 Jan. 1, 2022
Residential Metered
Tier 1 (0-30 CCF) $1.92 $1.92
Tier 2 (30.01+ CCF) $4.04 $4.04
CCF = Hundred Cubic Feet
Non-residential $1.79 $1.79
Irrigation $2.27 $2.27
Other Fees:
Private Fire Protection Service Rates:

Connection Size Jan. 1, 2021 Jan. 1, 2022
2" $ 3.02 $ 3.02
37 $ 8.78 $ 8.78
47 $ 18.71 $ 18.71
6" $ 54.34 $ 54.34
8" $ 115.80 $ 115.80
10” $ 208.25 $ 208.25
12” $ 336.37 $ 336.37

69




Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

New Connections: Effective August 15, 2018

Fees for new connection to EGWD contain two components. The base charge for a 1-inch
meter is $926.00 and larger meter installations will be charged any additional time and
material (T&M) cost. The second is a capacity charge, which covers the cost of “buying-in” to
an existing system. New connections in EGWD’s Service Area 2 do not pay the capacity charge,
as those costs are part of Sacramento County’s infrastructure.

Meter Size Meter Charge Capacity Fee Total
1” $ 926 $ 4.479 $ 5,405
1.5” T&M $ 8,958 $ 8,958+ T&M
2’ T&M $ 14,333 $ 14,333+ T&M
3” T&M $ 26,874 $ 26,874 + T&M
4” T&M $ 44,790 $ 44,790 + T&M
6” T&M $ 89,580 $ 89,580 + T&M

Other: Effective November 18, 2019

Account set up $30.00
Return check charge $35.00, plus amount of check
Over the phone payments $5.00
Meter re-read

First request Free

Subsequent requests $25.00
Photocopies

Black and white $0.10/page

Color $0.15/page
Delinquency shutoff

Delinquent amount Amount of past due bill

Door Tag Fee $25.00

Late Payment Penalty $100.00
24-hour turn-on fee $100.00
Meter testing $47/hour
Back flow Tag Fee $25/tag
Fire flow testing $156.00
Violation of ordinance (within 1 year)

First occurrence $100.00

Second occurrence $200.00

Each additional occurrence $500.00
Plan check fees

Irrigation only $500.00

1 lot (EDU) $500.00

2-9 lots (EDUs) $2,000.00

10 lots (EDUs) or more $5,000.00
Construction/temporary service

Installation & removal $194.00

Weekly rental $50.00

Deposit $2,000.00

70

227



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

THIS PAGE
INTENTIONALLY
LEFT BLANK

71

228



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

FiscAL YEAR 2021-22
SALARY SCHEDULE

72

229



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT

Salary Schedule
Annual, Monthly, Bi-Weekly & Hourly Wage
As of July 1, 2021

Grade Step | Step I Step Il Step IV Step V
1 $ 19,177.60 | $ 20,134.40 | $ 21,112.00 [ $ 22,193.60 | $ 23,296.00
$ 159813 |$ 1,677.87|$ 1,759.33($ 1,849.47($ 1,941.33
$ 737.60 | $ 774.40 | $ 812.00 | $ 853.60 | $ 896.00
$ 9.22 | % 9.68 | $ 10.15 | $ 10.67 | $ 11.20
2 $ 19,635.20 | $ 20,633.60 | $ 21,673.60 [ $ 22,734.40 | $ 23,899.20
$ 163627 |$ 1,719.47|$ 1,806.13($ 1,894.53 ($ 1,991.60
$ 755.20 | $ 793.60 | $ 833.60 | $ 874.40 | $ 919.20
$ 9441 % 9.92 ($ 1042 | $ 1093 | $ 11.49
3 $ 20,134.40 | $ 21,112.00 | $ 22,193.60 [ $ 23,296.00 | $ 24,481.60
$ 1677.87|$ 1,759.33 |$ 1,849.47 ($ 1,941.33($ 2,040.13
$ 774.40 | $ 812.00 | $ 853.60 | $ 896.00 | $ 941.60
$ 9.68 | $ 10.15 | $ 10.67 | $ 11.20 | $ 11.77
4 $ 20,633.60 | $ 21,673.60 | $ 22,734.40 [ $ 23,899.20 | $ 25,064.00
$ 1,719.47|$ 1,806.13|$ 1,89453|$ 1,991.60 $ 2,088.67
$ 793.60 | $ 833.60 | $ 874.40 | $ 919.20 | $ 964.00
$ 9.92 | % 1042 | $ 1093 | $ 1149 | $ 12.05
5 $ 21,112.00 | $ 22,193.60 | $ 23,296.00 | $ 24,481.60 | $ 25,667.20
$ 1,759.33($ 1,84947($ 1941.33|$ 2,040.13|$ 2,138.93
$ 812.00 | $ 853.60 | $ 896.00 | $ 941.60 | $ 987.20
$ 10.15 | $ 10.67 | $ 11.20 | $ 11.77 | $ 12.34
6 $ 21,673.60 | $ 22,734.40 | $ 23,899.20 [ $ 25,064.00 | $ 26,332.80
$ 1,806.13|$ 1,89453|$ 1,991.60$ 2,088.67 ($ 2,194.40
$ 833.60 | $ 874.40 | $ 919.20 | $ 964.00 | $ 1,012.80
$ 1042 | $ 1093 | $ 11.49 | $ 12.05 | $ 12.66
7 $ 22,193.60 | $ 23,296.00 | $ 24,481.60 | $ 25,667.20 | $ 26,977.60
$ 1,849.47|$ 1,941.33|$ 2,040.13($ 2,13893($ 2,248.13
$ 853.60 | $ 896.00 | $ 941.60 | $ 987.20 | $ 1,037.60
$ 10.67 | $ 11.20 | $ 11.77 | $ 1234 | $ 12.97
8 $ 22,734.40 | $ 23,899.20 | $ 25,064.00 [ $ 26,332.80 | $ 27,643.20
$ 1,89453|% 1,991.60|$ 2,088.67$ 2,19440($ 2,303.60
$ 874.40 | $ 919.20 | $ 964.00 | $ 1,012.80 |$ 1,063.20
$ 1093 | $ 11.49 | $ 12.05 | $ 12,66 | $ 13.29
9 $ 23,296.00 | $ 24,481.60 | $ 25,667.20 [ $ 26,977.60 | $ 28,329.60
$ 1941.33|$ 2,040.13|$ 2,13893($ 2,248.13($ 2,360.80
$ 896.00 | $ 941.60 | $ 987.20|$ 1,037.60 | $ 1,089.60
$ 11.20 | $ 11.77 | $ 1234 | $ 1297 | $ 13.62
10 $ 23,899.20 | $ 25,064.00 | $ 26,332.80 [ $ 27,643.20 | $ 29,016.00
$ 1,991.60|$ 2,088.67 |$ 2,19440($ 2,303.60($ 2,418.00
$ 919.20 | $ 964.00 [$ 1,012.80 ($ 1,063.20 |$ 1,116.00
$ 11.49 | $ 12.05 | $ 12,66 | $ 13.29 | $ 13.95
73

230



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT

Salary Schedule
Annual, Monthly, Bi-Weekly & Hourly Wage
As of July 1, 2021

Grade Step | Step Il Step Il Step IV Step V
11 $ 24,481.60 | $ 25,667.20 | $ 26,977.60 | $ 28,329.60 | $ 29,723.20
$ 2,040.13|$ 2,138.93|$% 2,248.13|% 2,360.80 |$ 2,476.93
$ 941.60 | $ 987.20 |$ 1,037.60 ($ 1,089.60 |$ 1,143.20
$ 11.77 | $ 1234 | $ 1297 | $ 13.62 | $ 14.29
12 $ 25,064.00 | $ 26,332.80 | $ 27,643.20 | $ 29,016.00 | $ 30,472.00
$ 208867 |$% 219440|% 2,303.60|$% 2,418.00|% 2,539.33
$ 964.00 ($ 1,012.80($ 1,063.20$ 1,116.00($ 1,172.00
$ 12.05 | $ 12,66 | $ 13.29 | $ 1395 | $ 14.65
13 $ 25,667.20 | $ 26,977.60 | $ 28,329.60 | $ 29,723.20 | $ 31,200.00
$ 213893 |$% 2,248.13|$% 2,360.80 |$ 2,476.93|% 2,600.00
$ 987.20 ($ 1,037.60$ 1,089.60 |$ 1,143.20($ 1,200.00
$ 1234 | $ 1297 | $ 13.62 | $ 1429 | $ 15.00
14 $ 26,332.80 | $ 27,643.20 | $ 29,016.00 | $ 30,472.00 | $ 31,990.40
$ 2,19440($% 2,303.60|$% 2,418.00(% 2,539.33|% 2,665.87
$ 1,012.80($% 1,063.20|$ 1,116.00($ 1,172.00|$ 1,230.40
$ 12,66 | $ 13.29 | $ 1395 | $ 1465 | $ 15.38
15 $ 26,977.60 [ $ 28,329.60 | $ 29,723.20 | $ 31,200.00 | $ 32,780.80
$ 2,248.13($ 2,360.80 |$ 2,476.93|$ 2,600.00|$ 2,731.73
$ 1,037.60|$ 1,089.60|$ 1,143.20|$ 1,200.00|$ 1,260.80
$ 1297 | $ 13.62 | $ 1429 | $ 15.00 | $ 15.76
16 $ 27,643.20 | $ 29,016.00 | $ 30,472.00 | $ 31,990.40 | $ 33,592.00
$ 2,303.60|$% 2,418.00|% 2,539.33|% 2,66587|% 2,799.33
$ 1,063.20|$ 1,116.00|% 1,172.00|$ 1,230.40|% 1,292.00
$ 13.29 | $ 1395 | $ 1465 | % 1538 | $ 16.15
17 $ 28,329.60 | $ 29,723.20 | $ 31,200.00 | $ 32,780.80 | $ 34,403.20
$ 2,360.80|$ 2,476.93|% 2,600.00 (% 2,731.73|% 2,866.93
$ 1,089.60|$ 1,143.20|% 1,200.00|$ 1,260.80|% 1,323.20
$ 13.62 | $ 1429 | $ 15.00 | $ 15.76 | $ 16.54
18 $ 29,016.00 | $ 30,472.00 | $ 31,990.40 | $ 33,592.00 | $ 35,297.60
$ 241800|$% 253933|% 2,66587 % 2,799.33|% 2,941.47
$ 1,116.00($ 1,172.00|$ 1,230.40($ 1,292.00|$ 1,357.60
$ 1395 | $ 1465 | $ 1538 | $ 16.15 | $ 16.97
19 $ 29,723.20 | $ 31,200.00 | $ 32,780.80 | $ 34,403.20 | $ 36,129.60
$ 2,476.93($ 260000 |% 2,731.73|$ 2,866.93|% 3,010.80
$ 1,143.20|$ 1,200.00|$ 1,260.80|% 1,323.20|% 1,389.60
$ 1429 | $ 15.00 | $ 15.76 | $ 16.54 | $ 17.37
20 $ 30,472.00 [ $ 31,990.40 | $ 33,592.00 | $ 35,297.60 | $ 37,044.80
$ 2,539.33 (% 2,66587|% 2,799.33 ($ 294147 |$ 3,087.07
$ 1,172.00|$ 1,230.40|$ 1,292.00|$ 1,357.60|% 1,424.80
$ 1465 | $ 15.38 | $ 16.15| $ 16.97 | $ 17.81
74

231



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT

Salary Schedule
Annual, Monthly, Bi-Weekly & Hourly Wage
As of July 1, 2021

Grade Step | Step Il Step Il Step IV Step V
21 $ 31,200.00 | $ 32,780.80 | $ 34,403.20 | $ 36,129.60 [ $ 37,960.00
$ 2,600.00|$ 2,731.73|$ 2,866.93|$ 3,010.80($ 3,163.33
$ 1,200.00$ 1,260.80 % 1,323.20|% 1,389.60 [ $ 1,460.00
$ 15.00 | $ 15.76 | $ 16.54 | $ 17.37 [ $ 18.25
22 $ 31,990.40 | $ 33,592.00 | $ 35,297.60 | $ 37,044.80 | $ 38,875.20
$ 2,66587 |$ 2,799.33|$ 2,941.47|$ 3,087.07 [$ 3,239.60
$ 1,23040($ 1,29200|$ 1,357.60|% 1,42480($ 1,495.20
$ 15.38 | $ 16.15 | $ 16.97 | $ 1781 | $ 18.69
23 $ 32,780.80 | $ 34,403.20 | $ 36,129.60 | $ 37,960.00 [ $ 39,832.00
$ 2,731.73|$ 2,866.93|$ 3,010.80|$ 3,163.33|$ 3,319.33
$ 1,26080|$ 1,323.20|$ 1,389.60|% 1,460.00 ($ 1,532.00
$ 15.76 | $ 16.54 | $ 17.37 [ $ 18.25  $ 19.15
24 $ 33,592.00 | $ 35,297.60 | $ 37,044.80 | $ 38,875.20 | $ 40,851.20
$ 2,799.33|$ 294147 |$ 3,087.07 |$ 3,239.60 [ $ 3,404.27
$ 1,29200|$ 1,357.60|$ 1,42480|$ 1,49520 (% 1,571.20
$ 16.15 | $ 16.97 | $ 1781 | $ 18.69 | $ 19.64
25 $ 34,403.20 | $ 36,129.60 | $ 37,960.00 | $ 39,832.00 [ $ 41,849.60
$ 2,866.93|$% 3,010.80|%$ 3,163.33|$ 3,319.33 |$ 3,487.47
$ 1,323.20($ 1,389.60|$ 1,460.00|% 1,532.00($ 1,609.60
$ 16.54 | $ 1737 | $ 18.25  $ 19.15( $ 20.12
26 $ 35,297.60 | $ 37,044.80 | $ 38,875.20 | $ 40,851.20 [ $ 42,889.60
$ 294147 |$ 3,087.07|$ 3,239.60 |$ 3,404.27 ($ 3,574.13
$ 1,357.60|$ 1,42480|$ 1,49520(|$ 1,571.20($ 1,649.60
$ 16.97 | $ 1781 | $ 18.69 | $ 19.64 | $ 20.62
27 $ 36,129.60 | $ 37,960.00 | $ 39,832.00 | $ 41,849.60 [ $ 43,950.40
$ 3,010.80|$ 3,163.33|$ 3,319.33|$ 3,487.47|$ 3,662.53
$ 1,380.60|$ 1,460.00|$ 1,532.00|% 1,609.60 ($ 1,690.40
$ 17.37 | $ 18.25 ( $ 19.15( $ 20.12 | $ 21.13
28 $ 37,044.80 | $ 38,875.20 | $ 40,851.20 | $ 42,889.60 [ $ 45,032.00
$ 3,087.07 |$ 3,239.60 |$ 3,404.27|% 357413 ($ 3,752.67
$ 1,42480|% 1,49520|$ 1,571.20|$ 1,649.60 $ 1,732.00
$ 17.81 | $ 18.69 | $ 19.64 | $ 20.62 | $ 21.65
29 $ 37,960.00 | $ 39,832.00 | $ 41,849.60 | $ 43,950.40 | $ 46,134.40
$ 3,163.33|$ 3,319.33|$ 3,487.47|3% 3,662.53 $ 3,844.53
$ 146000 $ 1,532.00|$ 1,609.60|% 1,690.40($ 1,774.40
$ 18.25 ( $ 19.15( $ 20.12 | $ 21.13 | $ 22.18
30 $ 38,875.20 | $ 40,851.20 | $ 42,889.60 | $ 45,032.00 [ $ 47,278.40
$ 3,23960 |$ 3,404.27|$ 357413 |% 3,752.67 ($ 3,939.87
$ 1,49520|% 1,571.20|$ 1,649.60|$ 1,732.00($ 1,818.40
$ 18.69 | $ 19.64 | $ 20.62 | $ 21.65| $ 22.73
75

232



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT

Salary Schedule
Annual, Monthly, Bi-Weekly & Hourly Wage
As of July 1, 2021

Grade Step | Step Il Step Il Step IV Step V
31 $ 39,832.00 | $ 41,849.60 | $ 43,950.40 | $ 46,134.40 | $ 48,422.40
$ 331933 |$ 348747 |$ 3,66253|$ 3,84453|$ 4,035.20
$ 153200 |$ 1,609.60|$ 1,690.40 |$ 1,774.40 |$ 1,862.40
$ 19.15 | $ 20.12 | $ 21.13 | $ 22.18 | $ 23.28
32 $ 40,851.20 | $ 42,889.60 | $ 45,032.00 | $ 47,278.40 | $ 49,628.80
$ 340427 |$ 357413 |$ 3,752.67|$ 3,939.87|$ 4,135.73
$ 157120 |$ 1,649.60|$ 1,732.00|$ 1,818.40 |$ 1,908.80
$ 19.64 | $ 20.62 | $ 21.65 | $ 22.73 | $ 23.86
33 $ 41,849.60 | $ 43,950.40 | $ 46,134.40 | $ 48,422.40 | $ 50,856.00
$ 348747 |$ 3,66253|$ 3,84453|$ 4,035.20 |$ 4,238.00
$ 1,609.60 |$ 1,690.40|$ 1,774.40 |$ 1,862.40 |$ 1,956.00
$ 20.12 | $ 21.13 | $ 22.18 | $ 23.28 | $ 24.45
34 $ 42,889.60 | $ 45,032.00 | $ 47,278.40 | $ 49,628.80 | $ 52,124.80
$ 357413 |$ 3,75267|$ 3,939.87|$ 4,13573|$ 4,343.73
$ 164960 |$ 1,732.00|$ 1,818.40|$ 1,908.80 |$ 2,004.80
$ 20.62 | $ 21.65 | $ 22.73 | $ 23.86 | $ 25.06
35 $ 43,950.40 | $ 46,134.40 | $ 48,422.40 | $ 50,856.00 | $ 53,393.60
$ 3,662.53|$ 3,84453|$ 4,035.20|$ 4,238.00|$ 4,449.47
$ 169040 |$ 1,774.40|$ 1,862.40 |$ 1,956.00 |$ 2,053.60
$ 21.13 | $ 22.18 | $ 23.28 | $ 24.45 | $ 25.67
36 $ 45,032.00 | $ 47,278.40 | $ 49,628.80 | $ 52,124.80 | $ 54,724.80
$ 375267 |$ 3,939.87|$ 4,13573|$ 4,343.73|$ 4,560.40
$ 1,73200|$ 1,81840|$ 1,908.80 |$ 2,004.80 |$ 2,104.80
$ 21.65 | $ 22.73 | $ 23.86 | $ 25.06 | $ 26.31
37 $ 46,134.40 | $ 48,422.40 | $ 50,856.00 | $ 53,393.60 | $ 56,056.00
$ 3,84453|$ 4,03520|$ 4,238.00|$ 4,449.47 |$ 4,671.33
$ 177440 |$ 1,862.40|$ 1,956.00 |$ 2,053.60 |$ 2,156.00
$ 22.18 | $ 23.28 | $ 24.45 | $ 25.67 | $ 26.95
38 $ 47,278.40 | $ 49,628.80 [ $ 52,124.80 | $ 54,724.80 | $ 57,491.20
$ 3,939.87|$ 4,135.73|$ 4,343.73|$ 4,560.40 | $ 4,790.93
$ 181840 |$ 1,008.80 |$ 2,004.80 |$ 2,104.80 |$ 2,211.20
$ 22.73 | $ 23.86 | $ 25.06 | $ 26.31 | $ 27.64
39 $ 48,422.40 | $ 50,856.00 | $ 53,393.60 | $ 56,056.00 | $ 58,864.00
$ 403520 |$ 4,238.00|$ 4,449.47|$ 4,671.33|$ 4,905.33
$ 186240 |$ 1,956.00 |$ 2,053.60 |$ 2,156.00 |$ 2,264.00
$ 23.28 | $ 24.45 | $ 25.67 | $ 26.95 | $ 28.30
40 $ 49,628.80 | $ 52,124.80 | $ 54,724.80 | $ 57,491.20 | $ 60,340.80
$ 413573 |$ 4,343.73|$ 4,560.40 |$ 4,790.93 |$ 5,028.40
$ 1,908.80|$ 2,004.80|$ 2,104.80 |$ 2,211.20 |$ 2,320.80
$ 23.86 | $ 25.06 | $ 26.31 | $ 27.64 | $ 29.01
76

233



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT

Salary Schedule
Annual, Monthly, Bi-Weekly & Hourly Wage
As of July 1, 2021

Grade Step | Step Il Step Il Step IV Step V
41 $ 50,856.00 | $ 53,393.60 | $ 56,056.00 | $ 58,864.00 [ $ 61,796.80
$ 4,238.00|$ 4,44947|$ 4,671.33|$ 4,905.33($ 5,149.73
$ 1,956.00$ 2,053.60|% 2,156.00|% 2,264.00($ 2,376.80
$ 24.45 | $ 25.67 | $ 26.95 | $ 28.30 | $ 29.71
42 $ 52,124.80 | $ 54,724.80 | $ 57,491.20 | $ 60,340.80 | $ 63,356.80
$ 4,343.73|$ 4,560.40 |$ 4,790.93|% 502840 ($ 5,279.73
$ 2,00480|% 210480 |$ 2,211.20|$ 2,320.80$ 2,436.80
$ 25.06 | $ 26.31 | $ 2764 | $ 29.01 | $ 30.46
43 $ 53,393.60 | $ 56,056.00 | $ 58,864.00 | $ 61,796.80 [ $ 64,916.80
$ 4,44947|% 4,671.33|$ 490533 |$ 5,149.73 | $ 5,409.73
$ 2,053.60|$ 2,156.00|$ 2,264.00|% 2,376.80 ($ 2,496.80
$ 2567 | $ 26.95 | $ 28.30 | $ 29.71 | $ 31.21
44 $ 54,724.80 | $ 57,491.20 | $ 60,340.80 | $ 63,356.80 | $ 66,539.20
$ 456040 ($ 4,79093|$ 5,02840|% 5,279.73($ 5,544.93
$ 210480 |% 2,211.20|$ 2,320.80|$ 2,436.80($ 2,559.20
$ 26.31 | $ 2764 | $ 29.01 | $ 30.46 | $ 31.99
45 $ 56,056.00 | $ 58,864.00 | $ 61,796.80 | $ 64,916.80 [ $ 68,140.80
$ 4,671.33|$% 4,90533|$ 5/149.73|$ 5,409.73|$ 5,678.40
$ 2,156.00 | $ 2,264.00|$ 2,376.80|$ 2,496.80 ($ 2,620.80
$ 26.95 | $ 28.30 | $ 29.71 | $ 3121 | $ 32.76
46 $ 57,491.20 | $ 60,340.80 | $ 63,356.80 | $ 66,539.20 [ $ 69,846.40
$ 4,79093|$ 502840 |$ 5,279.73|% 554493 ($ 5,820.53
$ 2,211.20|$ 2,32080|$ 2,436.80|$ 2,559.20 ($ 2,686.40
$ 2764 | $ 29.01 | $ 30.46 | $ 3199 | $ 33.58
a7 $ 58,864.00 | $ 61,796.80 | $ 64,916.80 | $ 68,140.80 [ $ 71,552.00
$ 4,90533|% 5149.73|$ 5,409.73|$ 5,678.40($ 5,962.67
$ 2,26400($ 2,376.80|$ 2,496.80|% 2,620.80$ 2,752.00
$ 28.30 | $ 29.71 | $ 31.21 | $ 3276 | $ 34.40
48 $ 60,340.80 | $ 63,356.80 | $ 66,539.20 | $ 69,846.40 [ $ 73,361.60
$ 502840|$% 5279.73|$ 554493 |% 582053 ($ 6,113.47
$ 2,32080|$ 2,436.80|$ 2,559.20 |$ 2,686.40 |$ 2,821.60
$ 29.01 | $ 30.46 | $ 31.99 | $ 3358 | $ 35.27
49 $ 61,796.80 | $ 64,916.80 | $ 68,140.80 | $ 71,552.00 [ $ 75,129.60
$ 5,149.73|$ 5409.73|$ 5,678.40|% 5,962.67 [$ 6,260.80
$ 237680 |$ 2,496.80|$ 2,620.80|% 2,752.00$ 2,889.60
$ 29.71 | $ 3121 | $ 32.76 | $ 3440 | $ 36.12
50 $ 63,356.80 | $ 66,539.20 | $ 69,846.40 | $ 73,361.60 [ $ 76,980.80
$ 5,279.73|$ 554493|% 582053|% 6,113.47($ 6,415.07
$ 2,436.80|% 2,559.20|$ 2,686.40|$ 2,821.60 $ 2,960.80
$ 30.46 | $ 31.99 | $ 33.58 | $ 35.27 | $ 37.01
77

234



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT

Salary Schedule
Annual, Monthly, Bi-Weekly & Hourly Wage
As of July 1, 2021

Grade Step | Step Il Step Il Step IV Step V
51 $ 64,916.80 | $ 68,140.80 [ $ 71,552.00 | $ 75,129.60 | $ 78,894.40
$ 540973 |$ 567840($ 596267 |$% 6,260.80|% 6,574.53
$ 249680 |% 2,620.80($% 2,752.00|$ 2,889.60 | % 3,034.40
$ 3121 ($ 32.76 | $ 3440 [ $ 36.12 [ $ 37.93
52 $ 66,539.20 | $ 69,846.40 [ $ 73,361.60 | $ 76,980.80 | $ 80,849.60
$ 554493 |$ 582053 ($ 6,113.47|$ 6,415.07 |$ 6,737.47
$ 255020 $ 2,686.40($ 2,821.60|% 2,960.80|% 3,109.60
$ 3199 ( $ 3358 | $ 35.27 [ $ 37.01 (% 38.87
53 $ 68,140.80 | $ 71,552.00 [ $ 75,129.60 | $ 78,894.40 | $ 82,846.40
$ 567840 |$ 596267 ($ 6,260.80|$% 657453 |% 6,903.87
$ 262080 (% 2,752.00($ 2,889.60 |$% 3,034.40|% 3,186.40
$ 3276 [ $ 3440 | $ 36.12 | $ 3793 (% 39.83
54 $ 69,846.40 | $ 73,361.60 | $ 76,980.80 | $ 80,849.60 | $ 84,926.40
$ 582053 |$ 6,11347|$ 6,415.07 |$ 6,737.47|$ 7,077.20
$ 268640 |% 2,821.60($ 2,960.80|% 3,109.60|$ 3,266.40
$ 33.58 [ $ 35.27 | $ 3701 | % 38.87 (% 40.83
55 $ 71,552.00 | $ 75,129.60 | $ 78,894.40 | $ 82,846.40 | $ 86,985.60
$ 596267 |$ 6,260.80($ 657453 |$% 6,903.87|$ 7,248.80
$ 2,75200 | $ 2,889.60 ($ 3,034.40|$ 3,186.40|$ 3,345.60
$ 3440 [ $ 36.12 | $ 3793 | $ 39.83 1% 41.82
56 $ 73,361.60 | $ 76,980.80 | $ 80,849.60 | $ 84,926.40 | $ 89,169.60
$ 6,11347|$ 6,415.07($ 6,737.47|$ 7,077.20|$ 7,430.80
$ 2,82160|% 2960.80($ 3,109.60|$ 3,266.40| % 3,429.60
$ 35.27 [ $ 37.01 | % 3887 | $ 4083 | $ 42.87
57 $ 75,129.60 | $ 78,894.40 | $ 82,846.40 | $ 86,985.60 | $ 91,332.80
$ 6,26080|% 6,574.53($ 6,903.87|$ 7,24880|% 7,611.07
$ 2,889.60$ 3,03440($ 3,186.40|$% 3,345.60| % 3,512.80
$ 36.12 [ $ 3793 | % 3983 | % 4182 | $ 43.91
58 $ 76,980.80 | $ 80,849.60 [ $ 84,926.40 | $ 89,169.60 | $ 93,620.80
$ 641507 |$ 6,737.47($ 7,077.20|$ 7,430.80|% 7,801.73
$ 296080 |$ 3,109.60($ 3,266.40 |$ 3,429.60|$ 3,600.80
$ 37.01 | % 38.87 | % 40.83 | $ 4287 | $ 45.01
59 $ 78,894.40 | $ 82,846.40 [ $ 86,985.60 | $ 91,332.80 | $ 95,908.80
$ 6,57453|% 6,903.87 ($ 7,248.80|%$ 7,611.07|% 7,992.40
$ 3,03440|$ 3,186.40($ 3,34560|% 3,512.80|% 3,688.80
$ 37.93 | $ 39.83 | % 4182 | % 4391 | $ 46.11
60 $ 80,849.60 | $ 84,926.40 [ $ 89,169.60 | $ 93,620.80 | $ 98,280.00
$ 6,73747|$ 7,077.20($ 7,430.80|$% 7,801.73|% 8,190.00
$ 3,109.60 |$ 3,266.40($ 3,429.60 |$ 3,600.80|% 3,780.00
$ 38.87 [ $ 40.83 | $ 42.87 | $ 4501 | $ 47.25
78

235



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

Salary Schedule
Annual, Monthly, Bi-Weekly & Hourly Wage
As of July 1, 2021

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT

Grade Step | Step Il Step Il Step IV Step V
61 $ 82,846.40 | $ 86,985.60 [ $ 91,332.80 | $ 95,908.80 | $100,692.80
$ 6,903.87|$ 7,24880 (% 7,611.07|$ 7,992.40|$ 8,391.07
$ 3,18640|% 3,34560|% 3,51280|% 3,688.80|% 3,872.80
$ 39.83 | $ 4182 | $ 4391 | $ 46.11 | $ 48.41
62 $ 84,926.40 | $ 89,169.60 | $ 93,620.80 | $ 98,280.00 | $103,188.80
$ 7077.20($ 7,430.80|% 7,801.73($ 8,190.00|$ 8,599.07
$ 3,266.40|$% 3,429.60|% 3,600.80 (% 3,780.00|% 3,968.80
$ 40.83 | $ 42.87 | $ 4501 | $ 4725 $ 49.61
63 $ 86,985.60 | $ 91,332.80 | $ 95,908.80 | $100,692.80 | $105,705.60
$ 7,24880|% 7,611.07($ 7,99240|$% 8,391.07|$ 8,808.80
$ 334560 (% 3,51280|% 3,68880 (% 3,872.80|% 4,065.60
$ 4182 | $ 4391 | $ 46.11 | $ 4841 | $ 50.82
64 $ 89,169.60 | $ 93,620.80 | $ 98,280.00 | $103,188.80 | $108,368.00
$ 7,43080|% 7,801.73|$% 8,190.00|$ 8,599.07|$ 9,030.67
$ 3,42960|$% 3,600.80|% 3,780.00($ 3,968.80|% 4,168.00
$ 42.87 | $ 4501 | $ 4725 | $ 4961 | $ 52.10
65 $ 91,332.80 | $ 95,908.80 | $100,692.80 | $105,705.60 | $110,988.80
$ 761107 ($ 7,99240|% 8,391.07($ 8,808.80|% 9,249.07
$ 351280 (% 3,68880|% 3,872.80($% 4,065.60|% 4,268.80
$ 4391 | $ 46.11 | $ 48.41 | $ 50.82 | $ 53.36
66 $ 93,620.80 | $ 98,280.00 | $103,188.80 | $108,368.00 | $113,796.80
$ 7,801.73|$% 8,190.00|$ 8,599.07 ($ 9,030.67|$ 9,483.07
$ 3,600.80|% 3,780.00($ 3,968.80|% 4,168.00 % 4,376.80
$ 4501 | $ 4725 | $ 49.61 | $ 52.10 | $ 54.71
67 $ 95,908.80 | $100,692.80 | $105,705.60 | $110,988.80 | $116,542.40
$ 7,99240($% 8,391.07|$ 8,808.80 (% 9,249.07|$ 9,711.87
$ 368880|% 3,87280|% 4,06560|% 4,268.80|% 4,482.40
$ 46.11 | $ 4841 | $ 50.82 | $ 53.36 | $ 56.03
68 $ 98,280.00 | $103,188.80 | $108,368.00 | $113,796.80 | $119,454.40
$ 8,190.00 | $ 8,599.07 | $ 9,030.67 [$ 9,483.07|$ 9,954.53
$ 3,780.00($ 3,968.80|% 4,168.00($ 4,376.80|$ 4,594.40
$ 4725 | $ 4961 | $ 52.10 | $ 5471 | $ 57.43
69 $100,692.80 | $105,705.60 | $110,988.80 | $116,542.40 | $122,387.20
$ 8,391.07|$ 880880 (% 9,249.07|$ 9,711.87 | $ 10,198.93
$ 387280 (% 4,065.60 |$ 4,268.80 (% 4,482.40|$% 4,707.20
$ 4841 | $ 50.82 | $ 53.36 | $ 56.03 | $ 58.84
70 $103,188.80 | $108,368.00 | $113,796.80 | $119,454.40 | $125,444.80
$ 8599.07|$% 903067 |% 9483.07|% 995453 |% 10,453.73
$ 3,96880|% 4,168.00|$% 4,376.80($ 4,594.40|$ 4,824.80
$ 49.61 | $ 52.10 | $ 5471 | $ 57.43 | $ 60.31

79

236



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

Salary Schedule
Annual, Monthly, Bi-Weekly & Hourly Wage
As of July 1, 2021

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT

Grade

Step |

Step Il

Step Il

Step IV

Step V

71

$105,705.60
$ 8,808.80
$ 4,065.60
$ 50.82

$110,988.80
$ 9,249.07
$ 4,268.80
$ 53.36

$116,542.40
$ 9,711.87
$ 4,482.40
$ 56.03

$122,387.20
$ 10,198.93
$ 4,707.20
$ 58.84

$128,502.40
$ 10,708.53
$ 4,942.40
$ 61.78

72

$108,368.00
$ 9,030.67
$ 4,168.00
$ 52.10

$113,796.80
$ 9,483.07
$ 4,376.80
$ 54.71

$119,454.40
$ 9,954.53
$ 4,594.40
$ 57.43

$125,444.80
$ 10,453.73
$ 4,824.80
$ 60.31

$131,726.40
$ 10,977.20
$ 5,066.40
$ 63.33

73

$110,988.80
$ 9,249.07
$ 4,268.80
$ 53.36

$116,542.40
$ 9,711.87
$ 4,482.40
$ 56.03

$122,387.20
$ 10,198.93
$ 4,707.20
$ 58.84

$128,502.40
$ 10,708.53
$ 4,942.40
$ 61.78

$134,929.60
$ 11,244.13
$ 5,189.60
$ 64.87

74

$113,796.80
$ 9,483.07
$ 4,376.80
$ 54.71

$119,454.40
$ 9,954.53
$ 4,594.40
$ 57.43

$125,444.80
$ 10,453.73
$ 4,824.80
$ 60.31

$131,726.40
$ 10,977.20
$ 5,066.40
$ 63.33

$138,278.40
$ 11,523.20
$ 5,318.40
$ 66.48

75

$116,542.40
$ 9,711.87
$ 4,482.40
$ 56.03

$122,387.20
$ 10,198.93
$ 4,707.20
$ 58.84

$128,502.40
$ 10,708.53
$ 4,942.40
$ 61.78

$134,929.60
$ 11,244.13
$ 5,189.60
$ 64.87

$141,668.80
$ 11,805.73
$ 5,448.80
$ 68.11

76

$119,454.40
$ 9,954.53
$ 4,594.40
$ 57.43

$125,444.80
$ 10,453.73
$ 4,824.80
$ 60.31

$131,726.40
$ 10,977.20
$ 5,066.40
$ 63.33

$138,278.40
$ 11,523.20
$ 5,318.40
$ 66.48

$145,225.60
$ 12,102.13
$ 5,585.60
$ 69.82

77

$122,387.20
$ 10,198.93
$ 4,707.20
$ 58.84

$128,502.40
$ 10,708.53
$ 4,942.40
$ 61.78

$134,929.60
$ 11,244.13
$ 5,189.60
$ 64.87

$141,668.80
$ 11,805.73
$ 5,448.80
$ 68.11

$148,761.60
$ 12,396.80
$ 5,721.60
$ 71.52

78

$125,444.80
$ 10,453.73
$ 4,824.80
$ 60.31

$131,726.40
$ 10,977.20
$ 5,066.40
$ 63.33

$138,278.40
$ 11,523.20
$ 5,318.40
$ 66.48

$145,225.60
$ 12,102.13
$ 5,585.60
$ 69.82

$152,484.80
$ 12,707.07
$ 5,864.80
$ 73.31

79

$128,502.40
$ 10,708.53
$ 4,942.40
$ 61.78

$134,929.60
$ 11,244.13
$ 5,189.60
$ 64.87

$141,668.80
$ 11,805.73
$ 5,448.80
$ 68.11

$148,761.60
$ 12,396.80
$ 5,721.60
$ 71.52

$156,208.00
$ 13,017.33
$ 6,008.00
$ 75.10

80

$131,726.40
$ 10,977.20
$ 5,066.40
$ 63.33

$138,278.40
$ 11,523.20
$ 5,318.40
$ 66.48

$145,225.60
$ 12,102.13
$ 5,585.60
$ 69.82

$152,484.80
$ 12,707.07
$ 5,864.80
$ 73.31

$160,097.60
$ 13,341.47
$ 6,157.60
$ 76.97

80

237



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

Salary Schedule
Annual, Monthly, Bi-Weekly & Hourly Wage
As of July 1, 2021

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT

Grade

Step |

Step Il

Step Il

Step IV

Step V

81

$134,929.60
$ 11,244.13
$ 5,189.60
$ 64.87

$141,668.80
$ 11,805.73
$ 5,448.80
$ 68.11

$148,761.60
$ 12,396.80
$ 5,721.60
$ 71.52

$156,208.00
$ 13,017.33
$ 6,008.00
$ 75.10

$164,008.00
$ 13,667.33
$ 6,308.00
$ 78.85

82

$138,278.40
$ 11,523.20
$ 5,318.40
$ 66.48

$145,225.60
$ 12,102.13
$ 5,585.60
$ 69.82

$152,484.80
$ 12,707.07
$ 5,864.80
$ 73.31

$160,097.60
$ 13,341.47
$ 6,157.60
$ 76.97

$168,126.40
$ 14,010.53
$ 6,466.40
$ 80.83

83

$141,668.80
$ 11,805.73
$ 5,448.80
$ 68.11

$148,761.60
$ 12,396.80
$ 5,721.60
$ 71.52

$156,208.00
$ 13,017.33
$ 6,008.00
$ 75.10

$164,008.00
$ 13,667.33
$ 6,308.00
$ 78.85

$172,182.40
$ 14,348.53
$ 6,622.40
$ 82.78

84

$145,225.60
$ 12,102.13
$ 5,585.60
$ 69.82

$152,484.80
$ 12,707.07
$ 5,864.80
$ 73.31

$160,097.60
$ 13,341.47
$ 6,157.60
$ 76.97

$168,126.40
$ 14,010.53
$ 6,466.40
$ 80.83

$176,508.80
$ 14,709.07
$ 6,788.80
$ 84.86

85

$148,761.60
$ 12,396.80
$ 5,721.60
$ 71.52

$156,208.00
$ 13,017.33
$ 6,008.00
$ 75.10

$164,008.00
$ 13,667.33
$ 6,308.00
$ 78.85

$172,182.40
$ 14,348.53
$ 6,622.40
$ 82.78

$180,793.60
$ 15,066.13
$ 6,953.60
$ 86.92

86

$152,484.80
$ 12,707.07
$ 5,864.80
$ 73.31

$160,097.60
$ 13,341.47
$ 6,157.60
$ 76.97

$168,126.40
$ 14,010.53
$ 6,466.40
$ 80.83

$176,508.80
$ 14,709.07
$ 6,788.80
$ 84.86

$185,328.00
$ 15,444.00
$ 7,128.00
$ 89.10

87

$156,208.00
$ 13,017.33
$ 6,008.00
$ 75.10

$164,008.00
$ 13,667.33
$ 6,308.00
$ 78.85

$172,182.40
$ 14,348.53
$ 6,622.40
$ 82.78

$180,793.60
$ 15,066.13
$ 6,953.60
$ 86.92

$189,862.40
$ 15,821.87
$ 7,302.40
$ 91.28

88

$160,097.60
$ 13,341.47
$ 6,157.60
$ 76.97

$168,126.40
$ 14,010.53
$ 6,466.40
$ 80.83

$176,508.80
$ 14,709.07
$ 6,788.80
$ 84.86

$185,328.00
$ 15,444.00
$ 7,128.00
$ 89.10

$194,584.00
$ 16,215.33
$ 7,484.00
$ 93.55

89

$164,008.00
$ 13,667.33
$ 6,308.00
$ 78.85

$172,182.40
$ 14,348.53
$ 6,622.40
$ 82.78

$180,793.60
$ 15,066.13
$ 6,953.60
$ 86.92

$189,862.40
$ 15,821.87
$ 7,302.40
$ 91.28

$199,347.20
$ 16,612.27
$ 7,667.20
$ 95.84

90

$168,126.40
$ 14,010.53
$ 6,466.40
$ 80.83

$176,508.80
$ 14,709.07
$ 6,788.80
$ 84.86

$185,328.00
$ 15,444.00
$ 7,128.00
$ 89.10

$194,584.00
$ 16,215.33
$ 7,484.00
$ 93.55

$204,339.20
$ 17,028.27
$ 7,859.20
$ 98.24

81

238



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

Salary Schedule
Annual, Monthly, Bi-Weekly & Hourly Wage
As of July 1, 2021

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT

Grade

Step |

Step Il

Step Il

Step IV

Step V

91

$172,182.40
$ 14,348.53
$ 6,622.40
$ 82.78

$180,793.60
$ 15,066.13
$ 6,953.60
$ 86.92

$189,862.40
$ 15,821.87
$ 7,302.40
$ 91.28

$199,347.20
$ 16,612.27
$ 7,667.20
$ 95.84

$209,310.40
$ 17,442.53
$ 8,050.40
$ 100.63

92

$176,508.80
$ 14,709.07
$ 6,788.80
$ 84.86

$185,328.00
$ 15,444.00
$ 7,128.00
$ 89.10

$194,584.00
$ 16,215.33
$ 7,484.00
$ 93.55

$204,339.20
$ 17,028.27
$ 7,859.20
$ 98.24

$214,552.00
$ 17,879.33
$ 8,252.00
$ 103.15

93

$180,793.60
$ 15,066.13
$ 6,953.60
$ 86.92

$189,862.40
$ 15,821.87
$ 7,302.40
$ 91.28

$199,347.20
$ 16,612.27
$ 7,667.20
$ 95.84

$209,310.40
$ 17,442.53
$ 8,050.40
$ 100.63

$219,814.40
$ 18,317.87
$ 8,454.40
$ 105.68

94

$185,328.00
$ 15,444.00
$ 7,128.00
$ 89.10

$194,584.00
$ 16,215.33
$ 7,484.00
$ 93.55

$204,339.20
$ 17,028.27
$ 7,859.20
$ 98.24

$214,552.00
$ 17,879.33
$ 8,252.00
$ 103.15

$225,284.80
$ 18,773.73
$ 8,664.80
$ 108.31

95

$189,862.40
$ 15,821.87
$ 7,302.40
$ 91.28

$199,347.20
$ 16,612.27
$ 7,667.20
$ 95.84

$209,310.40
$ 17,442.53
$ 8,050.40
$ 100.63

$219,814.40
$ 18,317.87
$ 8,454.40
$ 105.68

$230,796.80
$ 19,233.07
$ 8,876.80
$ 110.96

96

$194,584.00
$ 16,215.33
$ 7,484.00
$ 93.55

$204,339.20
$ 17,028.27
$ 7,859.20
$ 98.24

$214,552.00
$ 17,879.33
$ 8,252.00
$ 103.15

$225,284.80
$ 18,773.73
$ 8,664.80
$ 108.31

$236,516.80
$ 19,709.73
$ 9,096.80
$ 113.71

97

$199,347.20
$ 16,612.27
$ 7,667.20
$ 95.84

$209,310.40
$ 17,442.53
$ 8,050.40
$ 100.63

$219,814.40
$ 18,317.87
$ 8,454.40
$ 105.68

$230,796.80
$ 19,233.07
$ 8,876.80
$ 110.96

$242,320.00
$ 20,193.33
$ 9,320.00
$ 116.50

98

$204,339.20
$ 17,028.27
$ 7,859.20
$ 98.24

$214,552.00
$ 17,879.33
$ 8,252.00
$ 103.15

$225,284.80
$ 18,773.73
$ 8,664.80
$ 108.31

$236,516.80
$ 19,709.73
$ 9,096.80
$ 113.71

$248,372.80
$ 20,697.73
$ 9,552.80
$ 119.41

99

$209,310.40
$ 17,442.53
$ 8,050.40
$ 100.63

$219,814.40
$ 18,317.87
$ 8,454.40
$ 105.68

$230,796.80
$ 19,233.07
$ 8,876.80
$ 110.96

$242,320.00
$ 20,193.33
$ 9,320.00
$ 116.50

$254,404.80
$ 21,200.40
$ 9,784.80
$ 122.31

100

$214,552.00
$ 17,879.33
$ 8,252.00
$ 103.15

$225,284.80
$ 18,773.73
$ 8,664.80
$ 108.31

$236,516.80
$ 19,709.73
$ 9,096.80
$ 113.71

$248,372.80
$ 20,697.73
$ 9,552.80
$ 119.41

$260,790.40
$ 21,732.53
$ 10,030.40
$ 125.38

82

239



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT

General Manager Salary
Annual, Monthly, Bi-Weekly & Hourly Wage
As of July 1, 2021

General Manager

GM $ 192,345
$ 16,029
$ 7,398
$ 92.47

83

240



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

ACRONYMS & GLOSSARY OF TERMS
A

Account — A category that identifies the justification of the transaction of funds received or paid.

Account Balance — The difference in dollars between the total debits and the total credits in an
account.

Accrual Basis of Accounting — A basis of accounting under which increases and decreases in economic
resources are recognhized as soon as the underlying event or transaction occurs. Revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows.

Accrual — The recognition of a revenue or expense in a current period even though the actual cash
may not be received or paid until a following period.

Acre-foot of Water — The volume of water that covers one acre to a depth of one foot; 43,560 cubic
feet; 1,233.5 cubic meters; 325,872 gallons.

Actual — The final audited revenue / expenditure results of operations for the fiscal year indicated.
ACWA — Association of California Water Agencies.
AICPA — American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Amortization — Gradual reduction, redemption, or liquidation of the balance of an account according
to a specified times and amounts.

Assets — Resources owned or held by EGWD/FRCD which have monetary value.

Audit — An examination of the books and records of EGWD/FRCD to determine financial status and
results of operations (excess or loss).

AWWA — American Water Works Association.
B

Backflow — The backing up of water through a conduit or channel in the direction opposite to normal
flow.

BMPs — Best Management Practices.

Board of Directors — The EGWD/FRCD is governed by a Board, the members of which are elected by
the voters within the FRCD boundaries. The Board sets policy and provides overall leadership for
EGWD/FRCD including the mission, goals, priorities and resource allocation.

Bond Issuance Costs — The costs incurred by the bond issuer during the planning, marketing and sale
of a bond issue.

Bonds — Fixed income instruments that represent loans made by investors to borrowers.

Budget Calendar — The schedule of key dates or milestones which the District follows in the
preparation, adoption, and administration of the budget.

Budgetary Control - The control of management in accordance with the approved budget to keep
expenditures within the limitations of available appropriations and available revenues.

84

241



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

C

CAC — Community Advisory Committee.
CalPERS — California Public Employees Retirement System.

Capital Equipment (Assets) — Fixed assets such as vehicles, computers, equipment, technical
instruments, etc., which have a life expectancy of more than one year and a value over $5,000.

Cash Flows — The movement of cash in and out of the District from day-to-day activities.

Cash Management — The management of cash flows in such a way that interest and penalties paid
are minimized and interest earned is maximized. Funds received are deposited on the day of receipt
and invested as soon as the funds are available. The District maximizes the return on all funds available
for investment without sacrifice of safety or necessary liquidity.

CCF — Centum cubic feet.

CCR — Consumer Confidence Report.

CIP — Capital Improvement Program.

COLA — Cost of Living Adjustment.

CMTA — California Municipal Treasurer’s Association.

Consumer Price Index (CPI) — A statistical description of price levels provided by the U.S. Department
of Labor. The index is used as a measure of the increase in the cost of living or doing business (i.e.
economic inflation).

CSDA — California Special Districts Association.
CSR — Customer Service Representative.
CSMFO - California Society of Municipal Finance Officers.

Current Assets — Cash plus assets that are expected to be converted to cash, sold or consumed during
the next 12 months or as a part of the normal operating cycle.

Current Liabilities — Obligations that will become due within the next year or within the normal
operating cycle, if longer than a year.

D

Debt — An obligation resulting from the borrowing of money or from the purchase of goods and
services. These include bonds and accounts payable.

Debt Service — The payment of principal and interest on any short-term and long-term debt.

Debt Service Requirements — The amount of money required to pay interest and principal on
outstanding debt.

Depreciation — The allocation of the acquisition cost of plant, property and equipment to the
particular periods or products that benefit from the utilization of the asset in service.

E

Easement — An acquired legal right to the use of land owned by others.

85

242



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

ECCP — Employee Cost Control Program.
EGWD — Elk Grove Water District.
Enterprise Fund — A fund established to account for the operation of self-supporting enterprises.

Expenditures — A decrease in net financial resources, actual payment for goods and services received.

F

Financial Statement — A set of summary documents which pertain to financial information that consist
of the following: Balance Sheet or Combining Schedule of Net Assets, Income Statement or Combining
Schedule of Revenues and Expenses, Statement of Cash Flows, Notes of Financial Statements and, in
the District’s case, various Supplements, Schedules, etc.

Fiscal Policy — The District’s policies with respect to revenues, spending, and debt management as
these relate to services, programs and capital investment.

Fixed Assets — Long-term tangible assets that have a normal use expectancy of more than one year
and do not lose their individual identity through use. Fixed assets include primarily buildings,
equipment, and land.

FRCD - Florin Resource Conservation District.
FTE — Full Time Equivalent.

Fund — A fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts in which cash and other
financial resources, all related liabilities and residual equities, or balances and changes therein, are
recorded and segregated to carry on specific activities or attain certain objectives in accordance with
special regulations, restrictions or limitations.

Fund Balance — The cumulative difference of all revenues and all expenditures of the fund from the
time the District was established. Fund balance is also considered to be the difference between fund
assets and fund liabilities and is sometimes referred to as “fund equity” at any given point in time.

G

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) — Uniform minimum standards of, and guidelines
for, external financial accounting and reporting. They govern the form and content of the basic
financial statements of an entity. GAAP encompasses the conventions, rules, and procedures
necessary to define accepted accounting practices at a particular time. They include not only broad
guidelines of general application, but also detailed practices and procedures. GAAP provides a
standard by which to measure financial presentations. The primary authoritative statement on the
application of GAAP to state and local governments is Government Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) pronouncements.

Geographic Information System (GIS) — An organized collection of computer hardware, software and
geographic data designed to efficiently capture, store, update, manipulate, analyze, and display all
forms of geographically referenced information.

Goals — General statements of desired state, condition, or situation to be achieved, which may be
viewed from a short or long-term perspective.

86

243



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) — Their mission is to establish and improve
standards of state and local governmental accounting and financial reporting that will result in useful
information for users of financial reports.

Governmental Finance Officers of America (GFOA) — Their purpose is to enhance and promote the
professional management of governments for the public benefit. The GFOA accomplishes this mission
by identifying and developing financial policies and practices and promoting them through education,
training and leadership.

Groundwater — Water produced by pumping from underground.

H
/

Independent Auditor — External public accounting firm hired to audit the annual financial statements
and express an opinion on those statements as to conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles.

Infrastructure — District owned capital assets that provide services to the ratepayers.

Internal Control — Methods and procedures that are primarily concerned with the authorization of
transactions, safeguarding of assets, and accuracy of the financial records.

Inventories — Items held for future use.

Investment Income — Income derived by investing certain fund balance in interest-yielding securities
in compliance with the provisions of the District’s Investment policy.

J
K
L

Liabilities — Obligations incurred in past or current transactions requiring present or future
settlement.

Long-Term Debt — Debt with a maturity of more than one year after the date of issuance.

M

Meter — An instrument of measuring the flow of water.
MGD — Million gallons per day.

Mid-Year Review — Midway through the fiscal year the current year budget is evaluated based on
spending to date and current projections. The primary areas reviewed and analyzed are year-to-date
expenditure and revenue status plus expenditure and revenue projections for the remainder of the
year.

Modified Accrual Basis — The accrual basis of accounting adapted to the governmental fund type.
Revenues are recognized when they become both “measurable” and “available to finance
expenditures of the current period.” Expenditures are recognized when the liability is incurred except
on long-term debt which is recognized when due.

87

244



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

N

Notes Payable — Long or short-term obligations that are payable according to a contract or agreement
in which the timeframe is executed.

NSF — Non-sufficient funds.
(0]

Objective — A statement of purpose defined more specifically than goals, defining the result-oriented
activities necessary to achieve a stated goal.

Obligation — Amounts which the District may be legally required to meet out of its resources and
includes not only actual liabilities, but also encumbrances not yet paid.

OPEB — Other Post Employment Benefit.

Operating Expense — All costs required for the daily operation of the District necessary to provide
services and maintain the systems in good operating condition that are not considered capital
improvements or debt repayments.

Overtime — Hours worked in excess of 40 hours per work week or hours worked in excess of those
scheduled in a shift.

P

Projected — An estimate of revenues or expenditures based on past trends, the present economic
situation and future financial forecasts.

PTO - Personal time off.

Q
R

Ratepayers— Those being provided with water service by Elk Grove Water District.
Refunding Bonds — Bonds issued to retire bonds already outstanding.
Reimbursements — Payment made to someone for out-of-pocket expenses incurred.

Reserves — An account used to indicate that a portion of a fund’s assets are restricted for a specific
purpose.

Revenue — An inflow of assets in exchange for services.

Revenue Bonds — Municipal bonds that finance income-producing projects and are secured by a
specific revenue source.

Risk Management — A coordinated effort to minimize costs — typically where insurance policies are
purchased to manage the District’s exposure to various risks of loss; Workers’ Compensation; theft
of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural
disasters.

RRWTF — Railroad Water Treatment Facility.
RWA — Regional Water Authority.

88

245



Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget

S

SCADA System — “Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition” System. The computer system that
collects data, processes the data and allows operating personnel to take corrective actions.

SCGA — Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority.
SCWA - Sacramento County Water Agency.

SOP — Standard operating procedures.
T

Treated Water — Water which has been processed through the District’s water treatment plant(s) or
imported from other utilities to supplement the EGWD’s water supplies.

U
v

Variance — The dollar and/or percentage difference between two sets of figures.
VFD — Variable frequency drive.
VTO — Vacation time off.

w

Water Conservation — Reducing the demand for water through activities that alter water use
practices, e.g., improving efficiency in water use, and reducing losses of water from leaks.

Water Quality — The chemical, physical and biological characteristics of water with respect to its
suitability for a particular purpose. The same water may be of good quality for one purpose or use,
and bad for another, depending on its characteristics and the requirements for the particular use.

Well — A vertical drilled hole into an underground formation, usually to obtain a source of water, to
monitor ground water quality or to determine the position of the water table.

WDO — Water Distribution Operator.
X

Y

89

246



June 15, 2021

TO: Chair and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District
FROM: Patrick Lee, Finance Manager / Treasurer

SUBJECT: FEISCAL YEAR 2021-22 INVESTMENT POLICY GUIDELINES

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors adopt
Resolution 06.15.21.03, approving the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Investment Policy Guidelines
and delegating investment authority to the Finance Manager/Board Treasurer.

SUMMARY

By this action, if approved, the Florin Resource Conservation District (District) Board of
Directors (Board) will approve the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Investment Policy Guidelines
(attached) of District and delegate investment authority to the Finance Manager/Board
Treasurer.

DISCUSSION

Background

State of California Government Code section 53607 et. seq., states that the authority to
invest District funds is expressly delegated to the Board. The Board may then re-delegate
that authority to the District Treasurer for a period of up to one (1) year. Subject to review,
the Board may renew the delegation of authority each year.

Present Situation

The District’s Investment Policy Guidelines requires the annual readoption and delegation
of investment authority annually. California Government Code sections 53600 — 53610
establishes the guidelines for the investment of public funds including the types of
allowable investments and maximum amounts of each type of investment. Staff has
reviewed the policy for compliance with applicable government codes and is not
recommending any changes to the Investment Policy Guidelines at this time.

California Government Code section 53607 et. seq., allows the authority of the Board of

Directors to invest or to reinvest funds of the District, or to sell or exchange securities so
purchased, to be delegated for a one-year period by the Board of Directors to the

AGENDA ITEM No. 5

247



June 15, 2021

FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 INVESTMENT POLICY GUIDELINES
Page 2

Treasurer of the District, who shall thereafter assume full responsibility for those
transactions until the delegation of authority is revoked or expires.

If approved, the Board will readopt the District's Investment Policy Guidelines and

delegate investment authority to the Finance Manager/Board Treasurer for fiscal year
2021-22.

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS

There are no direct environmental considerations associated with this report.

STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY

This item conforms to the FRCD/EGWD’s 2020-2025 Strategic Plan. Annual adoption of
the Investment Policy Guidelines is in line with the Fiscal Responsibility and best business
practices of the Strategic Plan.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

There is no direct financial impact associated with this report.

Respectfully submitted,

PATRICK LEE
FINANCE MANAGER / TREASURER

Attachment

AGENDA ITEM No. 5

248



RESOLUTION NO. 06.15.21.03

A RESOLUTION OF THE FLORIN RESOURCE
CONSERVATION DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPROVING
THE FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 INVESTMENT POLICY GUIDELINES
AND DELEGATING INVESTMENT AUTHORITY TO THE
FINANCE MANAGER/BOARD TREASURER

WHEREAS, the Florin Resource Conservation District (District) is a Resource
Conservation District organized pursuant to Division 9 of the California Public Resources Code,
Sections 9001, et seq. (Resource Conservation Law); and

WHEREAS, the District is formed for the purposes delineated in the Public Resources
Code Section 9001 and all things necessary to carry out the provisions of the Resource
Conservation Law and adopted District Bylaws; and

WHEREAS, the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors adopted the
Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-21 Investment Policy Guidelines on June 16, 2020, to guide the District,
General Manager, Finance Manager/Board Treasurer, and District staff regarding District
investments; and

WHEREAS, Section XIV of the Investment Policy Guidelines provides that the District
shall adopt the guidelines by resolution annually; and

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 53607 et. seq., allows the authority of
the Board of Directors to invest or to reinvest funds of the District, or to sell or exchange securities
so purchased, to be delegated for a one-year period by the Board of Directors to the Finance
Manager/Board Treasurer, who shall thereafter assume full responsibility for those transactions
until the delegation of authority is revoked or expires; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors wishes to adopt the FY 2021-22 Investment Policy
Guidelines and delegate investment authority to the District’s Treasurer for a period of one year.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS DOES HEREBY RESOLVE:

SECTION 1. The Board of Directors hereby adopts the foregoing recitals as true and
correct and incorporates them herein by reference.

SECTION 2. Investments shall be made in accordance with the FY 2021-22 Investment
Policy Guidelines attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” and made a part hereof.

SECTION 3. Investment authority shall be delegated to the Finance Manager/Board
Treasurer for a period of one year.

SECTION 4. The policies adopted by this resolution are in addition to and supplement
any other legal requirements.

249



SECTION 5. The Board Secretary shall certify to the passage and adoption of this
resolution and the same shall take effect and be in force upon its adoption.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Florin Resource Conservation District
Board of Directors on this 15" day of June 2021 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Stefani Phillips
Board Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Richard E. Nosky
District Legal Counsel

Sophia Scherman
Chair

250



EXHIBIT “A”

“FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 INVESTMENT POLICY GUIDELINES”

[Attached behind this cover page]

251



Policy Type: Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors

Policy Title: Fiscal Year 2021-22 Investment Policy Guidelines
Date Adopted: June 15, 2021
Resolution No: 06.15.21.03

Date Amended:

PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for the investment of public funds
in a manner which will provide the highest investment return with the maximum
security while meeting the daily cash flow demands of the Florin Resource
Conservation District (District) and conforming to all state and local statutes
governing the investment of public funds.

POLICY

This policy applies to all surplus financial assets of the District. These funds are
accounted in the monthly financial reports and the comprehensive annual financial
report of District financial activities.

INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

In accordance with the section 53600 et. seq. of the Government Code of the State
of California, the authority to invest public funds is expressly delegated to the District
Board of Directors (Board) for subsequent re-delegation to the Finance
Manager/Treasurer.

A. Delegation of Authority

Management responsibility for the investment program is hereby delegated,
pursuant to Section 53607 of the Government Code, to the Finance
Manager/Treasurer, who shall establish written procedures for the operation of
the investment program consistent with this investment policy. This responsibility
includes authority to select Brokers, establish safekeeping accounts, enter into
wire transfer agreements, banking service contracts, and collateral/depository
agreements. The Finance Manager/Treasurer shall be responsible for all
transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the
activities of subordinate officials. This delegation shall be for no greater than one
(1) year and may be revoked at any time, or, upon review, renewed each year.

. PRUDENCE

The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials in the management of
District funds shall be the “prudent investor” standard which shall be applied in the
context of managing all aspects of the overall portfolio. Investments shall be made
with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence, under circumstances then prevailing,
including the general economic conditions and the anticipated needs of the District,
which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence acting in a like capacity and
familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like character
and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of the
District.

252



VI.

VII.

It is the District’s intent, at the time of purchase, to hold all investments until maturity.
However, investments may be sold prior to maturity for cash flow purposes or to take
advantage of principal appreciation.

OBJECTIVE
The primary objectives, in priority order, of the District’s investment activities shall be:

A. Safety
Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments of the District shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure
the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio.

B. Liquidity
The District’s investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the
District to meet all operating requirements which might be reasonably anticipated.

C. Return on Investments
The District’s investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining
a rate of return commensurate with the District’s investment risk constraints and
the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio.

ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from
personal business activity that conflicts with proper execution of the investment
program or impairs their ability to make impartial investment decisions. Additionally,
the Finance Manager/Treasurer is required to annually file applicable financial
disclosures as required by the Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) and/or the
District’s Conflict of Interest Code.

AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS

The District shall transact business only with banks, associations, and with
broker/dealers licensed by the State of California. The broker/dealers should be
primary government dealers regularly reporting to the New York Federal Reserve
Bank. The Finance Manager/Treasurer shall annually send a copy of the current
investment policy to all broker/dealers approved to do business with the District.
Confirmation of receipt of this policy shall be considered evidence that the dealer
understands the District’s investment policies and intends to sell the District only
appropriate investments authorized by this investment policy.

VIII.INVESTMENTS

A. Authorized and Suitable Investments
All investment vehicles allowed by Sections 53601 of the California Government
Code may be used by the Florin Resource Conservation District.

1. Government Agency Issues
As authorized in Government Code Sections 53601 (a) through (f), this
category includes a wide variety of government securities. There are no

253



special portfolio limitations on the amount that may be invested in these
securities, as follows:

a. California local government agency bonds, notes, warrants or other
indebtedness;

b. California State warrants, notes, bonds or other indebtedness;

c. Bonds issued by the Florin Resource Conservation District;

d. U.S. Treasury notes, bonds, bills or other certificates of indebtedness
secured by the full faith and credit of the federal government;

e. Federal agency or United States government-sponsored enterprise
obligations, participations, or other instruments, including those issued by
or fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by federal agencies or
United States government-sponsor